Public Document Pack
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr CYNGOR

Head of Legal and Democratic Services Sir Y Fflint

Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd Ay . R
Flintshire
COUNTY COUNCIL

To: Clir Aaron Shotton (Leader)

. . . . CS/NG
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell,

Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine Jones, 9 July 2014
Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

Nicola Gittins 01352 702345
nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the CLWYD COMMITTEE ROOM,
COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on TUESDAY, 15TH JULY, 2014 at 9.30 AM to
consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

P

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 16)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting.

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



10

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING REPORTS

STRATEGIC REPORTS

"IN DEFENCE OF LOCALISM" - ELECTED GOVERNMENT IN WALES
AND THE IMPACT OF AUSTERITY" (Pages 17 - 40)

Report of Chief Executive - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

ANNUAL COUNCIL REPORTING FRAMEWORK (ACRF) (Pages 41 - 90)

Report of Chief Officer, Social Services - Cabinet Member for Social Services

FLINTSHIRE CHILDCARE SUFFICIENCY ASSESSMENT 2014 - 2017
(Pages 91 - 130)

Report of Chief Officer, Social Services - Cabinet Member for Social Services

REGIONAL COMMISSIONING OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
ADVOCACY SERVICE (Pages 131 - 136)

Report of Chief Officer, Social Services - Cabinet Member for Social Services

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT SUBSIDY REFORM (Pages 137 - 162)

Report of Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise - Cabinet Member for
Housing

3 COUNTY REGIONAL PROCUREMENT PROJECT (Pages 163 - 166)

Report of Head of ICT and Customer Services - Cabinet Member for
Corporate Management

OPERATIONAL REPORTS

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 (OUTTURN) (Pages 167 - 184)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance



11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (OUTTURN) (Pages 185 - 238)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (Pages 239 - 244)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS - ACTUAL 2013/14 (Pages 245 - 250)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

ENFORCEMENT ACTION FOR THE RECOVERY OF COUNCIL TAX AND
NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES (Pages 251 - 258)

Report of Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise - Cabinet Member for
Corporate Management

GARDEN SERVICE FOR COUNCIL TENANTS (Pages 259 - 264)

Report of Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise - Cabinet Member for
Housing

IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK BASED VERIFICATION POLICY (Pages
265 - 268)

Report of Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise - Cabinet Member for
Corporate Management

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 269 - 318)

Report of Chief Officer, Planning and Environment - Deputy Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member for Environment

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE LEISURE FINANCE TASK & FINISH
GROUP (Pages 319 - 322)

Report of Member Engagement Manager - Cabinet Member for \Waste
Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS (Pages 323 - 326)
Report of the Chief Executive enclosed.




FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT
AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

The following reports were scheduled to be reported to this meeting but are
not on the agenda for the reasons stated:

e Food Service Plan
Deferred until September as a report is awaited from the Food
Standards Agency (FSA) who audited the Food Service in its entirety



Agenda Item 3

CABINET
17 JUNE 2014

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet of Flintshire County Council held at County
Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 17 June 2014

PRESENT: Councillor Aaron Shotton (Chair)
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine Jones and Kevin
Jones

APOLOGIES:
Councillors: Chris Bithell and Billy Mullin

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Chief Officer, Community
and Enterprise, Chief Officer, Education and Youth, Chief Officer, Organisational
Change, Chief Officer, Planning and Environment, Chief Officer Social Services,
Corporate Finance Manager and Team Manager, Committee Services.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Helen Brown declared a personal and prejudicial interest in agenda
item number 16, Business Rate ‘Retail’ Relief and a personal interest in agenda item
number 17, Private Sector Housing Renewal.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 2014 had been circulated with the
agenda.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT REPORT FOR WALES AUDIT OFFICE

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance welcomed Mr Huw Lloyd-Jones
and Mr Paul Goodlad from the Wales Audit Office (WAO) who were in attendance to
present the WAO Annual Improvement Report 2013-14 for Flintshire County Council.

The Chief Executive explained that an updated version of the Executive
response had been circulated which included details on schools maintenance
backlog and out of county places.

Huw Lloyd-Jones introduced the Report which was in three sections:

1. The delivery and evaluation of services at Flintshire County Council in

2012-13 (updated where possible to reflect more recent developments)
2. Flintshire County Council’s planning of improvement for 2013-14 and

Page 1



3. Whether the Auditor General believed that the Council would make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement for 2014-15

Huw Lloyd-Jones made the following comments, full details of which were
contained the Report:

e The Council had made good progress against the improvement
priorities and improved its overall performance against the national
indicators

e The Council had taken action to strengthen its approach to
performance evaluation, but further work was required to harmonise its
improvement planning and performance reporting arrangements

e The Council had enhanced its arrangements for planning and
supporting improvement, but further action was required to provide the
rigour necessary to cope with the challenges ahead

e The Council was likely to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement for 2014-15

In conclusion, Huw Lloyd-Jones said this was the best Report that had been
presented to Flintshire County Council to date and that the Auditor General believed
the authority was likely to meet the requirements of the Measure in making
arrangements to secure continuous improvement. There were no new
recommendations or proposals for improvement.

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance thanked Huw Llloyd-Jones and
Paul Goodlad for their attendance.

The Chief Executive added that the financial challenge facing the authority
was not underestimated however Flintshire County Council had made progress in
this difficult challenging time. Also, CIPFA had been invited to work with the authority
on the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) for the longer term.

On the Improvement Plan, the Chief Executive said this was a constantly
evolving document which had focused officers and Members.

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment asked if the WAO
made representations to Welsh Government (WG) on the importance of local
authorities receiving timely information on budgets to enable them to plan for the
future. Paul Goodlad acknowledged the difficulties faced by local authorities but the
extent to which the WAO could influence WG was limited, which had been
recognised in the Annual Improvement Report.

The Chief Executive explained that the Annual Improvement Report would
now be submitted to Audit Committee and Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Council’'s Annual Improvement Report 2013-14 published by the
Auditor General for Wales be received; and

Page 2



(b)  That the report be noted and the Council’s response be received and agreed.

WALES AUDIT OFFICE REGULATORY PROGRAMME 2014-15

The Chief Executive invited Mr Huw Llloyd-Jones to present the proposed
Regulatory Programme for Performance Audit for the Wales Audit Office (WAO) for
the period 2014-15 and the fees for the performance and financial audit work
programme.

Mr Huw Lloyd Jones explained that the main piece work to be carried out in
2014-15 was the Corporate Assessment, which was a review of the Council’s
capacity and capability to deliver continuous improvement. The outcome of the
Corporate Assessment would be a report that stated whether the Auditor General
believed that the Council was likely to comply with the requirements of the measure.

On the fees for performance audit and financial audit work for 2014-15, Mr
Huw Lloyd-Jones explained that there was a reduction of 9.4% compared with the
fees for the previous year, with an explanation of the decrease outlined in appendix 2
to the report.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the proposed Regulatory Programme for Performance Audit for the
Wales Audit Office (WAO) for the period 2014-15 be accepted; and

(b)  That the reduction in fees for the performance and financial audit work
programme be noted.

2013/14 YEAR END IMPROVEMENT PLAN MONITORING

The Chief Executive introduced the 2013/14 Year End Improvement Plan
monitoring reports for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014. Members were
asked to note the following:

e The levels of progress and confidence in the achievement of high level
activities which seek to deliver the impacts of the Improvement Plan;

e The performance against improvement plan measures and the predicted level
of performance for year end; and

e The current (net) risk levels and targeted risk levels for the risks identified in
the Improvement Plan and the arrangements to control them

A summary of overall progress against the high level activities was as follows:

PROGRESS
e Good progress (green) was being made in 55 (56%)
e Satisfactory progress (amber) was being made in 41 (42%)
e Limited progress (red) was being made in 2 (2%)

Page 3



OUTCOME
e There was a high (green) level of confidence in the achievement of 69
(70%)
e There was a medium (amber) level of confidence in the achievement of 28
(29%)
e There was a low (red) level of confidence in the achievement of 1 (1%)

Full details of the activities assessed as red, with an explanation of why that
assessment was made, were contained in the report. Also detailed in the report was
the assessment of the strategic risks and the level to which they were being
controlled.

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment expressed his
disappointment in the non-achievement of 20mph advisory zones being placed
outside schools, which he said was due to a delay in Welsh Government (WG)
reviewing the compliance of the proposed signs with visual standards.

RESOLVED:

(@) That Cabinet Members note the sufficiency of actions taken to manage
delivery of the Improvement Priority impacts; and

(b)  That the following be noted:

e The levels of progress and confidence in the achievement of key
activities which seek to deliver the impacts of the Improvement Plan;

e The levels of performance against improvement plan measures and the
predicted level of performance for year end; and

e The current (net) risk levels and targeted risk levels for the risks
identified in the Improvement Plan and the arrangements to control
them

IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2014/15

The Chief Executive introduced the Improvement Plan 2014/15 prior to its final
publication in June. An addition to appendix 1 on improving road safety was tabled.

It was a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 to set
Improvement Objectives and publish and Improvement Plan. It was a statutory
requirement for the County Council to adopt the Improvement Plan which would be
submitted to the meeting on 24 June 2014.

The Plan presentation had previously changed and provided details for each
of the priorities which were to have the most impact during the year. This had helped
the organisation to concentrate on the outcomes where most immediate action was
needed.

The draft Improvement Plan submitted to Cabinet on 13 May 2014 had been
presented for consultation at each Overview and Scrutiny Committee, with the
exception of Corporate Resources, along with the accompanying targets for
measures and milestone dates on which achievement would be measured. It would

Page 4



be presented to Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 2 July
2014.

RESOLVED:

That the Improvement Plan 2014/15 be approved prior to adoption by Council and
final publication in June.

LOCAL SERVICE BOARD AND STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS END OF YEAR
REPORT

The Chief Executive introduced the end of year assessments for:
e The progress of the Local Service Board (LSB) Priorities and its key
Strategic Partnerships and;
e The priorities for each of the Strategic Partnerships for the year ahead

The LSB had recently published its Single Integrated Plan which focussed on
four priorities and supported the work of LSB related strategic partnerships.

The LSB had adopted four priorities which were:
o Priority 1: Lead by example as employers and community leaders
o Priority 2: People are safe
o Priority 3: People enjoy good health, wellbeing and independence
o Priority 4. Organisational environmental practices

All four priorities had detailed programme plans, governance and reporting
arrangements and integrated with the Council's Improvement Plan. The Single
Integrated Plan brought together those commitments and activities into one plan.

The Cabinet Member for Economic Development commented on the RAG
status and what did not go so well on the Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ). Although
the authority shared its DEZ investment enquiries with Welsh Government (WG) on a
monthly basis, communication was one way and investment enquiries and
opportunities remained unreported in the council’s data.

RESOLVED:

That progress made in the end of year reports be noted and the commitments for the
current year as reflected in the Single Integrated Plan be endorsed.

SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING BILL

The Cabinet Member for Social Services provided an update on the Social
Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014, the key implications and timelines for
implementation.

The intended purpose of the Act was to enable the transformation of priority

areas of social care, bringing about significant change in how services were delivered
and to ensure they were sustainable.

Page 5



The Act placed greater legal obligations on Local Authorities and Local
Authority partners to: promote equality, improve the quality of services and the
provisions for information and advice, provide service users and carers with a
stronger voice and real control over the services they received and encourage a
renewed focus on prevention and early intervention.

Subordinate legislation including relevant regulations, codes and guidance
would be drafted following the achieved Royal Assent which would provide further
clarity on the requirements of the Act through 2014-15.

Full details of the proposed changes and updates were detailed in the report.

The Chief Officer, Social Services added that the Act required transformational
change in the way the authority managed and commissioned services for vulnerable
people. There was a need to ensure that vulnerable people had access to high
quality services whilst at the same time needing to remodel more traditional models
of care, and empower people and communities to take responsibility for their own
wellbeing. This could not be delivered in isolation — the Council, the NHS,
independent and voluntary providers of care and support and local communities
would need to work together to turn the Act’'s ambitious plans and principles into an
everyday reality.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the legislative changes and obligations associated with the Act be
directed and overseen through the established Modernising Social Services
Board;

(b)  That there be a sustained focus on how services are commissioned, provided
and where appropriate integrated. The Council’s response will also need to
be informed as proposed regulations and guidance are received from Welsh
Government; and

(c)  That a self-assessment be conducted against the new guidance/regulations
when they are published, to be undertaken within three months of publication.

CSSIW NATIONAL REVIEW OF COMMISSIONING FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE IN
WALES 2013-14

The Cabinet Member for Social Services introduced the outcome of a national
review of commissioning in adult social care. The review included an inspection of
how well services for people with dementia and their carers were being
commissioned in Flintshire.

The report for Flintshire was published on the CSSIW website on 16 April
2014 and was overall very positive about the services in place for people living with
dementia in this authority.

The report identified a number of areas of best practice it found in Flintshire,
namely

Page 6



10.

e the “Living Well domiciliary care team supporting people living with
dementia using in-house domiciliary care staff and

e the North East Wales Carers Information Service (NEWCIS) as a
model of best practice in supporting carers and families

Flintshire’s Community Care Brokerage Service was described as pro-active
and commended for brokering Community Health Care packages in order to ensure
that CHC and palliative care was provided in a timely way.

The report also recognised Flintshire’s contribution to the development of a
Regional approach to commissioning through its work with the North Wales Regional
Commissioning Hub and the development of a Regional Framework for domiciliary
providers. It highlighted Flintshire’s focus on ‘quality and responsiveness of
services’, noting positively that the authority did not commission 15 minute
domiciliary care calls and described relationships with providers as “very positive and
very collaborative”.

Cabinet Members welcomed the report, particularly the positive comment on
Flintshire not commissioning 15 minute domiciliary care calls.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the findings from the CSSIW report be received and the development of
an action plan detailing the response to the recommendations be supported;

(b)  That it be noted that a strong, reciprocal, partnership approach between
BCUHB and the local authority will be integral to developing the action plan
and ensuring that good quality support and care is available to people with
dementia and their carers; and

(c) That a progress report, and the final draft of the action plan, be submitted to
Scrutiny and Cabinet in July for review and consideration.

SUPPORTING PEOPLE COMMISSIONING PLAN

The Cabinet Member for Housing provided an update on the Supporting
People Programme in Flintshire and sought support for the Local Commissioning
Plan (LCP) and Local Spend Plan (LSP).

The local authority was required to develop a 3 year Commissioning Strategy
that would inform the priorities within the Regional Commissioning Strategy. Local
authorities in North Wales had developed 12 month Commissioning Plans to cover
the transition period and allow time for reviewing of existing services, new
developments and appropriate targeting of reductions.

The Commissioning Plan was appended to the report and detailed the
proposals for how the grant would be allocated for the next year; this plan was set
within the context of reduced funding. This would be replaced by a longer term
strategy which would details the Supporting People Commissioning intentions.

Page 7



1.

12.

The report provided full details of the reductions and how those reductions
would be managed. Also detailed within the report were the national, regional and
local developments and the LCP Priorities for 2014/15.

In response to a question from the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Environment, the Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise explained that Local
Solutions, who now delivered the services that had previously been delivered by
Save the Family, remained in the same building but they were responsible for
delivering the services to local people.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the reductions to the Supporting People Grant be noted and the
proposed approach to managing reductions be approved; and

(b)  That the Flintshire Local Commissioning Plan 2014-15 be approved.

QUEENSFERRY PRIMARY SCHOOL - CHANGE IN AGE-RANGE FROM
SEPTEMBER 2014, RESPONSES TO THE STATUTORY NOTICE

The Chief Officer, Education and Youth informed Members of the response to
the publication of the statutory notice relating to the change of age range of
Queensferry Primary School from 4-11 to 3-11 years from September 2014.

No written objections had been received to the proposals which resulted in
Cabinet having the authority to determine the proposal.

In response a question, the Chief Officer, Education and Youth said the
decisions that were outstanding from the Minister on the proposals from the area
review provision should be received before the summer recess.

RESOLVED:

That the proposal to change the age-range of Queensferry CP School, Queensferry
Campus, Chester Road West from 4-11 to 3-11 years from September 2014 be
approved.

2013/14 YEAR END HEAD OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE REPORTS

The Chief Executive introduced the 2013/14 Year End service performance
reports produced at Divisional level. The report covered the period 1 April 2013 to 31
March 2014 and Members were asked to note the following:

e The progress updates for the Council Improvement Priorities that were not set
as an in-year priority

e Service Plan progress

e Progress/performance against Corporate measures e.g. absence
management

e The assessment of any regulatory reports and

Page 8



13.

e Performance against Improvement Targets, National Strategic Indicators
(NSiIs) and Public Accountability Measures (PAMs)

RESOLVED:
(@) Thatthe Year End Head of Service performance reports be received; and

(b)  That the following be noted:

e The progress updates for the Council Improvement Priorities that are
not set as an in-year priority

e Service Plan progress

e Progress/performance against Corporate measures e.g. absence
management

e The assessment of any regulatory reports and

e Performance against Improvement Targets, NSls and PAMs

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 12)

The Corporate Finance Manager provided the latest revenue budget
monitoring information for 2013/14 for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue
Account based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 12 based on the most
up to date information available.

The projected year end position on the Council Fund as estimated at Month 12
was:

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £3.152m less than budget (an increase
of £0.937m on the £2.215m reported at Month 11)
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March of £5.093m

On the HRA, the net in year expenditure forecast was £0.124m less than
budget (£0.171m as at Month 11), with a projected closing balance at 31 March 2014
of £1.533m.

The table in the report showed a projected positive variance of expenditure
against budget of £3.152m, which was an increase of £0.937m on the projected
underspend of £2.215m reported at Month 11. The main reasons for the variances
were detailed in the report.

The original budget column reflected in-year virements which had been
approved in compliance with Financial Procedure Rules. All of the movements for
Month 12 were summarised in appendix 1 to the report with detailed reasons for all
variances by Directorate summarised in appendices 2 to 8.

As reported at Month 11, a number of carry forward requests had been
reviewed during the month and been identified as requiring carry forward into
2014/15. Details of each request were contained in appendix 10.

The 2013/14 budget contained £5.331m of specific efficiencies and the table
in the report summarised the current position in relation to the achievement of those

Page 9



14.

items. The analysis showed that it was projected that £4.213 (79%) would be
achieved resulting in a net underachievement of £1.118m.

After bringing in the impact of the projected in year budget position the current
projected level of the contingency reserve at the end of March 2014 was £5.093m.

On the HRA, there was an overall projected underspend of £0.124m and a
projected closing balance at Month 12 of £1.533m, which at 5.36% of total
expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.
RESOLVED:

(@)  That the report be noted;

(b)  That the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31 March 2014 be
noted;

(c) That the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account be
noted; and

(d)  That the carry forward requests be approved.

PENSIONER DISCOUNT SCHEME

The Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise provided information on the
proposed implementation of a revised Pensioner Grant scheme in 2014-15 to those
Council Tax payers in receipt of partial awards under the Council Tax Reduction
Scheme (CTRS).

In 2013-14 the Welsh Government (WG) prescribed a new national grant
scheme with a targeted approach to provide a grant to those pensioners who already
received partial awards under the CTRS. In Flintshire, 2,233 households qualified for
funding of up to £100, although some households received less due to their net
Council Tax liability being less than £100.

The WG had decided that they would not operate a national grant scheme for
2014-15, however within the Revenue Support Grant they had included £201,700
identified for the funding of a pensioner grant scheme at the discretion of each
authority. WG had not stipulated that the grant should be paid to pensioners;
however a review of North and Mid Wales local authorities showed that all were
proposing to pay the grant with the exception of Wrexham and Denbighshire.

Data analysis work had calculated that there were 2,204 households in
Flintshire, who were in receipt of Council Tax Reductions and would qualify for
funding. It was not possible to identify the number of pensioners who would qualify if
restrictions on applicants were not introduced however statistics from 2012-13
indicated a minimum of 8,700 applicants which would reduce the grant to £23.18 per
applicant.

Page 10



15.

The demands and funding availability had been assessed to produce criteria
which were based on the continuation of the 2013/14 WG Scheme to ensure
continuity and an equitable distribution of the grant, targeted to those taxpayers in
most need of financial help.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the revised funding availability for a Pensioner Grant scheme be noted
and that a scheme for Flintshire for 2014-15 be agreed,;

(b)  That the following scheme as prepared by Revenues and Benefits Senior
Officers be approved:

Pensioner Grant Scheme
e That the grant is only payable to pensioners who fulfil the criteria at the
qualifying date of 30 June
e A maximum award of £95. The qualifying criteria is:

o Either the claimant or the partner to the claimant has reached
the age of 60 and is liable for Council Tax at a property which is
deemed to be a ‘sole and main’ residence, and

o The claimant qualifies for partial Council Tax Support, but not the
maximum level of support on the qualifying date and there is a
net liability to Council Tax (after any other discounts or
reductions, for example single person discount or disabled
banding relief)

o Should the net liability be below the £95 maximum level of award
then the credit to the Council Tax account will only be up to the
net liability

o The minimum award will be £10

o Grant awards will be automatically credited to the Council Tax
accounts of qualifying households during July 2014

BUSINESS RATES ‘RETAIL’ RELIEF

The Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise provided Members with details
of a new Business Rates Relief scheme, providing a grant of up to £1,000 to ‘retail’
businesses during 2014-15.

Welsh Government (WG) had confirmed that £581,299 of funding was
available to Flintshire County Council to award retail grants to approximately 725
businesses. In many cases the awards would be less than £1,000 given that many
retail businesses were also entitled to Small Business Rate Relief and already paid
less than £1,000.

Full details of the criteria for discretionary rate relief policy for retail relief were
detailed in the report.

Cabinet Members commended the report which would support the

continuation of town centre trading and said the scheme should be publicised as
widely as possible.

Page 11



16.

RESOLVED:

That the introduction of the scheme from 1 April 2014 be approved and ‘retail relief
be awarded of up to £1,000 to qualifying businesses for the financial year 2014-15.

NB — Councillor Brown left the meeting during discussion of this item.

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING RENEWAL

The Cabinet Member for Housing introduced the proposed revisions to the
Private Sector Renewal and Improvement Policy, along with the rationale for the
revisions.

The three areas of change included:
e Introduction of new loan products to support energy efficiency
measures
¢ Introduction of the Welsh Government Property Improvement Loan
Scheme
e Strengthening the criteria to access empty homes support

Current statistics suggested that 1 in 3 Flintshire households, which equated
to 20,000 households, were in fuel poverty and tackling this was an Improvement
Plan priority. The objectives were to provide benefits to Flintshire households and to
the council, as well as being a self sustaining area of the service. External funding
would be administered in a way that allowed it to be recycled, so that it could be
reinvested in further energy efficiency initiatives. This would operate as an invest to
save fund.

The focus of the energy efficiency programme in 2014/15 would be major gas
infill schemes at Aston and Mostyn, where it was anticipated 233 council properties
would be connected.

With that in mind, the Council was keen to provide an offer to private
homeowners within those areas which would encourage them to connect to the gas
main. Money from the WG Arbed ECO top up scheme had been secured which
would be used to fund the new loans, full details of which were contained in the
report.

It was proposed that two additional conditions be inserted in respect of empty
homes, which included a minimum period the property must remain tenanted after
support was provided. This would be two years, or until the loan was released. The
minimum period would rise to five years for those owners accessing grant support. A
further condition relating to the need for owners provided with financial support to
consent to their property being managed by a social lettings agency would also be
inserted.

Page 12



17.

18.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the introduction of a new Energy Efficiency loan product, to help deliver
gas infill in communities across Flintshire be approved, and delegated
authority be given to the Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise to operate
the scheme;

(b)  That the introduction of the WG Property Improvement Loan initiative be
approved and the final terms and conditions of the scheme be delegated to
the Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise and the Chief Officer, People and
Resources; and

(c) That the additional clauses to be added to the Empty Homes assistance be
approved, relating to the minimum period of rental being two years for a loan
and five years for a grant and that the owner must consent to the property
being managed by the Council’'s chosen social lettings agency.

TACKLING PRIVATE LONG TERM VACANT HOMES - ENFORCED SALES
POLICY

The Cabinet Member for Housing introduced an Enforced Sales Policy and
sought approval for its use.

There were currently circa 450 long term vacant homes in Flintshire which had
reduced over the previous two years. Flintshire County Council had a long and
successful history of tackling long term vacant homes and had provided support to
owners of empty properties for approximately 12 years, which was reflected in the
relatively low number of empty properties, in comparison with other parts of Wales.

Legislation had recently been used by Manchester City Council, the Law of
Property Act, which allowed Council’s to force properties into auction where there
was an outstanding debt. Full details of the proposed enforced sales policy were
contained in the report and in the appendix to the report.

Cabinet Members welcomed the report and the enforced sales policy.

RESOLVED:

That the proposed enforced sales policy, and its use, be approved.

RESPONSIBLE PET OWNERSHIP POLICY

The Cabinet Member for Housing introduced the Housing Service’s proposed
Responsible Pet Ownership Policy.

It was a requirement in both the current tenancy agreement and the proposed
one that written permission must be obtained from Flintshire County Council to keep
a pet or animal. However, some customers had complained that there was a lack of
consistency in the decision making process.

Page 13



20.

It was therefore intended that the Responsible Pet Ownership Policy would
provide the Neighbourhood Housing Teams with a clear framework for decision
making so that there was a more consistent approach across the whole county.

The policy had been developed through feedback from residents who had
reported animal related problems, through a Member workshop and in consultation
with the Tenants Federation. Details of the implementation issues, legal framework,
application process, decision making, enforcement and community animal welfare
footprints scheme were contained within the report.

The Chief Officer, Community and Enterprise emphasised that the policy
would be applied going forward and not retrospectively.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the report be noted and the proposed policy be approved; and
(b)  That the policy only be applied going forward and not retrospectively.

COMMUNAL HEATING CHARGES

The Cabinet Member for Housing sought approval of the proposed heating
charges to the communal HRA properties in 2014/15.

On 21 May 2013 Cabinet agreed to spread the 2013/14 heating increase over
two years. Tenants paid 75% of the recommended increase from October 2013 and
the remaining 25% to be applied in July 2014 in addition to any inflationary increase
to bring charges up to the recommended level. The phasing of those charges over
two years meant that tenants would incur an additional charge of £0.68 on average
on top of the standard inflationary increase in 2014/15.

The heating rates for 2014/15 showed that Flintshire County Council would
incur no inflationary increases to the current charges therefore it was proposed to
only implement the agreed phases increase to tenants in July 2014. The table in
3.05 of the report set out the recommended heating charge increases for 2014/15
based on actual costs to the Council in 2013/14 and heating estimates for 2014/15.

The Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure
suggested that an advisory note be sent to tenants to advise them on being aware of
the heating they used which was accepted by the Chief Officer, Community and
Enterprise.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That there will be no inflationary heating increases for 2014/15; and

(b)  That the phased increase of heating charges to tenants takes place from July
2014.

Page 14



21.

22.

FLEXIBLE RETIREMENT POLICY

The Chief Executive introduced a revised Flexible Retirement Policy for
approval which was one of a number of policies that were being updated.

Under the current policy there was no minimum amount that an employee
could request to reduce their hours or salary and consequently, the benefits of
flexible retirement were not maximised from the Council’s perspective. To remedy
that, the Council was recommending a new criteria for the approval of Flexible
Retirements and a revised policy. The following revisions were recommended:

e To reduce contractual working hours/salary by at least 20% (or equivalent to
20% reduction)

¢ Reduction of hours/salary must apply for 12 months after implementation date

¢ An employee must give an indication of their planned or projected retirement
date

Following the implementation of the new Operating Model and the Chief
Officer team, the consideration of Flexible Retirement applications would take place
via a recruitment panel involving the relevant portfolio Chief Officer, the Chief Officer
for People and Resources and the Chief Finance / S151 Officer.

Flexible Retirement applications would be considered in accordance with the
criteria detailed in the report.

The revised policy stipulated that the Council would only consider applications
where there was no service requirement to backfill reduced hours and where
identified savings would be released to the corporate centre.

RESOLVED:

That the Flexible Retirement Policy and associated procedures be supported and
approved.

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS

An information report on the actions taken under delegated powers was
submitted. The actions were as set out below:-

e Deeside Naval Club, Chapel Street, Connah’s Quay — Release of
Restrictive Covenant

e Grant of Easement at Land at the Head of St Mary’s Drive, Northop Hall

e Drury Lane — Proposed Traffic Calming

Page 15



23. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There were two members of the press in attendance.

(The meeting commenced at 9.30am and ended at 11.20am)

Chairman

Page 16



Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY., 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: "IN DEFENCE OF LOCALISM" - ELECTED
GOVERNMENT IN WALES AND THE IMPACT OF
AUSTERITY"

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To consider the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA)
consultation document “In Defence of Localism” - Elected
Government in Wales and agree the Council’s response.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Appended to this report is the WLGA consultation document “In
Defence of Localism” — Elected Government in Wales and the Impact
of Austerity” which was published at its Annual Conference on 19"
June.

2.02 The document covers key issues including financial futures, the Public
Services Commission’s recommendations, central local relations in
Wales and devolution. The predominate theme of the document is to
restate the case for localism in Wales.

2.03 In England and Scotland, the Local Government Association (LGA)
and Convention of Scottish Local Authorities (COSLA) respectively,
are advocating localism as a campaigning stance. The LGA
campaign “Rewiring Public Services” and the COSLA “Commission on
Local Democracy” both argue for devolution of power to the most
appropriate local level.

2.04 The WLGA is now utilising the “In Defence of Localism” badge on all
further publications between now and the Assembly elections in 2016.
It is also their intention to undertake a national customer survey on
local government services and the value which the public place on
these services.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 As part of the shared commitment outlined above, Welsh Local
Government will:

Page 17



3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00

5.00

e Engage in constructive debate around structural reform of local
government and will continue to lead and deliver the wider
public service reform agenda

e Promote and support the local contributions to the long term
national strategic vision for Wales which will be articulated
through the forthcoming Future Generations Bill

e Deliver specific local contributions to the Wales Programme for
Government, through successful delivery of Outcome
Agreements

e Continue to lead on self improvement and a collective sector-
led approach to identifying and responding to improvement
challenges faced by individual authorities

e Build on progress around improving engagement, challenge
and scrutiny within the local democratic process, with particular
focus on improving the diversity of democracy ahead of the
next local elections

e Honour all existing specific service based commitments

It is vital that the relationship between Welsh Government and local
government is improved and more clearly defined. The WLGA
Consultation document argues that there is room for improvement
with formal partnership agreements, concordats and memoranda of
understanding etc. A completely new approach is needed towards
redefining the relationship between Councils and their communities;
providing services with local people, rather than for them.

The dividing line is a clear choice between two approaches:

e Centralist — that local government is primarily in existence to
administer, provide and oversee the provision of public services
and therefore must be regulated and controlled — as far as any
constitution allows — by the centre; or

e Localist — that it is a democratic body charged with the role of
governing its locality and representing (and defending) it and its
need to the centre, in which case it must have autonomy and
financial security and control over its own locality.

It is the unanimous view of the leaders of all 22 local authorities that
the localist approach offers the best way forward in terms of protecting
our communities and enhancing democracy across Wales.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Cabinet is asked to consider the consultation document and
agree to support the approach as outlined in paragraph 3.01 to 3.04
above.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Page 18



6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

11.00

12.00

As outlined within the consultation document.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly associated with this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly associated with this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly associated with this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly associated with this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None directly associated with this report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None directly associated with this report.

APPENDICES

WLGA Consultation Document:
“In Defence of Localism — Elected Government in Wales and the
Impact of Austerity”.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Documentation is contained within the relevant files within the
Executive Office.

Contact Officer: Sharron Jones, Executive Manager
Telephone: 01352 702107
Email: sharron.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Welsh Local Government Association X F

WLGA-CLILC

In Defence of Localism -
Elected Government in Wales
and the Impact of Austerity

June 2014

Discussion Document for
Consultation




Welsh Local Government Association

The WLGA's primary purposes are to promote a better local government, its reputation
and to support authorities in the development of policies and priorities which will improve
public service and democracy.

It represents the 22 local authorities in Wales with the 3 fire and rescue authorities and 3
national park authorities as associate members.

www.wlga.gov.uk | 029 2046 8600




Foreword

Any future reform of public service delivery in Wales
must consider the Welsh public sector as a whole.
While we acknowledge that local government itself
must change as part of this wider process, such
complex reform should be based upon a true
consideration of the functions that are required
rather than the structures that will eventually
support them.

In presenting this paper, we hope to reclaim a
vitally important debate on public service reform
which has recently been reduced to an overly
simplistic ‘for and against’ on local government
reorganisation.

We would be grateful for your views. Please send
your comments on this paper, and your thoughts on
the role and function of local government to
enquiries@wlga.gov.uk

Welsh Local Government Association
Local Government House

Drake Walk

Cardiff CF10 4LG

Page 23



Introduction

1. It is noteworthy that the overused
maxim "may you live in interesting times
is often purported to be a translation of
an old Chinese curse. For local
government in Wales over recent years
this sadly resonates. The word
“interesting” does not come close to
describing the current context, the sheer
scale of issues, or the task of
transformation that lies ahead.

n

2. The financial and organisational
sustainability of all public services in
Wales will come into question over the
next ten years as the squeeze on public
spending continues. The viability of
Wales’ councils is potentially at stake and
there are much deeper questions of how
we shift services from badly outdated
delivery models designed for growth to
ones of prioritisation, responding to need
and embracing innovation. These
challenges pose fundamental questions
about the nature of democracy in Wales
and local government’s place within that
framework of democratic accountability
and service delivery.

3. This paper sets out an argument for a
localist approach to public service
delivery. It argues that local public
services must be provided within a
democratic framework and that services
are best provided when those who use
them are directly involved in how they
are delivered, managed and planned.
Local government is seen as the tier of
government closest to public service
users and it is argued that councils
should be empowered to deliver those
services more effectively and efficiently
over the coming years. This would
require a mature relationship of trust
between local and central government,
where local government would be given

the freedom and flexibility to deliver
services according to local circumstances
while being held to account by Welsh
Government for the outcomes delivered.

4. In setting out the financial challenges
facing local government and the Welsh
public sector as a whole, this paper also
suggests that the viability and
sustainability of public services is
threatened unless an alternative
approach to dealing with the austerity
programme is considered. With this in
mind, a range of alternative models for
public service delivery are considered and
discussed. The paper concludes with a
commitment to continue to work in
partnership with the Welsh Government
to address and resolve these profound
issues.

5. Since 1999 and the advent of the
National Assembly for Wales, it has been
accepted that central government sets
strategy nationally and that local
government delivers services locally in
accordance with national strategy and
circumstances within their communities.
It is recognised that both central and
local government have a democratic
legitimacy in this process and that
equilibrium must be found within the
local-central relationship. That balance
has shifted back and forth over the last
15 years but the equilibrium has more or
less been retained. This balance has
been supported by mechanisms such as
the Local Government Partnership Council
derived from the Government of Wales
Act, and other related structures. As the
financial and economic circumstances
change, however, and the viability and
sustainability of public services are
threatened, the balance in central-local
relations is also under threat.

4 Page 24




The Current Context

6. It is often said in the business world
that looking through the rear view mirror
is often clearer than looking through the
windscreen. While looking ahead is
difficult the clues to future developments
are to be seen all around us.
Communities across the west and north
Wales coast saw the fierce impact of
climate change in action during the
winter storms. At the same time,
communities in the South Wales Valleys
are at the sharp end of a new model of
welfare reform which is bringing to the
fore the need to prioritise efforts to
eradicate poverty in all our communities.
Rural communities are seeing the decline
of the Welsh language and in trusted
community institutions while Wales’ City-
Regions, though growing rapidly, are
struggling with a road infrastructure
which means that the average trip along
the M4, A55 and A470 can often be more
of an odyssey than a journey.

7. Within the big statutory services
provided by local government there are
major challenges ahead. Everyone is
familiar by now with the story told by the

PISA tests, but while we tend to compare

Wales’ relatively poor performance with

the better performing UK nations, the real

challenge to our education system lies
elsewhere. The top seven performing
countries in the OECD PISA rankings are
all in Asia and it will take decades for
Wales and the rest of the UK to catch up
with them.

8. Finally, across Wales we have the
great news that people are living longer
and fuller lives. In 2008, 18 per cent of
the population was over the age of 65; by
2033 this is expected to rise to almost 26
per cent. The issue however is not one of
living longer but of ageing well.

9. Responding to these changing
circumstances will require a new model of
social care and an NHS that is less
preoccupied with hospital provision and
able to shift towards a renewed emphasis
on public health and prevention. The
concept of Prudent Health Care captures
this idea and local government has a key
role to play in addressing the wider social
and economic determinants of health
inequalities in our society.

Page 25 5



The Growing Funding Crisis

10. All these challenges occur in the most
sustained period of austerity since the
Second World War. Across the UK, it is
local government that is bearing the
brunt of these cuts more than any other
service.

11. While it is fair to say that local
government in Wales has received better
revenue settlements than elsewhere
during this period, it would be
fundamentally wrong to assume that local
government has avoided cuts over the
past five years. Taking one example over
that same period Cardiff Council has cut
£120m from its revenue spending. All
Welsh councils experienced a cut of 5.6%
in real terms in 2014-15 with further cuts
to follow. Local government now finds
itself in a “zero sum game” with funding
decisions essentially shifting resources
between local government and health. At
the same time some of local
government's larger services are subject
to a level of protection that places an
unbearable squeeze on smaller
unprotected services.

12. The implications of these funding cuts
in Wales have been analysed in the
report “Local Government Expenditure in
Wales - Recent trends and future
pressures” which was commissioned by
WLGA from the Institute of Fiscal Studies
in October 2012.The report looks in depth
at the impact on other services of
applying preferential status to the
budgets of larger services.

13. The report argues that, "“if the Welsh
NHS is protected from further cuts after
2014-15, our assumptions mean that
Welsh unitary authorities would face a
reduction in spending power of 4.1% per
year, on average, in 2015-16 and

6 Page 26

2016—17 if further welfare cuts are

made, or 5.7% per year if no further
welfare cuts are made. These falls are
very substantial and mean the authorities’
spending power would be 10% or 13%
below its 2012—-13 level by this date”
(Institute of Fiscal Studies, page 48)

14. The financial plight of local authorities
is gaining enormous media attention in
Wales and recent local authority budget
setting decisions were covered with an
almost morbid fascination. The word
“council” is rarely heard without the
appendage “cash strapped” in
contemporary reporting. Of course, this
should come as no surprise as some £280
million has been cut from services this
year. The WLGA estimates that by 2017-
18 there could be up to a further£860m
in cuts. In all probability this will mean
thousands of further job losses and land
a further blow on Welsh communities.
Given the reliance on the public sector for
employment, the cruel irony for Wales
could be that an upturn in the UK
economy coincides with a decline in
public services and jobs.

15. For councillors, budget processes are
becoming excruciating in terms of choices
and devastating in their impact. No one
seeks election to confront their
communities with the removal of precious
public services. Councils across Wales
have engaged more than ever in intense
discussions with council tax payers about
what matters most to them and how to
pay for the services the public want and
value.

16. Local authorities must set balanced
budgets however, and this means that
concepts such as “continuous
improvement” across every service area




are now becoming increasingly
meaningless. Consolidated improvement
and managed decline may be the more
accurate descriptors of future service
provision. By definition you cannot
improve a service that you are about to
close down and the debate in many
councils now revolves around the
question “what should we stop doing”.

17. There are those who would urge local
government to resist these cuts and to
continue to protect all of the 500 plus
discreet functions traditionally delivered
by councils in Wales. This unfortunately is
not a feasible proposition as such
exhortations fail to recognise the scale
and nature of the challenge ahead,
particularly if current levels of austerity
continue.

18. Another option is to centralise further
with central government to increase its
role as a provider. But does this mean
that democracy in Wales is a “one size
fits all” with government more
centralised, more top-down, more statist
and less accountable? The alternative is
to seek a solution which is more attached
to community interaction, more engaged
and empowering of citizens.

19. The WLGA has long argued that
decisions about how services are
organised and managed should be taken
as close to the point of delivery as
possible and that those who use public
services should have as great a say as
possible in the way in which services are
delivered. This means being comfortable
with the principle of decentralisation and
the idea that a matter ought to be
handled by the smallest, lowest, or least
centralised authority capable of
addressing that matter effectively.

Page 27



The “third rail” of Welsh politics

20. American politics has the concept of
the “third rail” - the third rail refers to the
charged middle rail of an electrified rail
track - which is used as a metaphor for
any issue so controversial that it is
“deadly” or "untouchable". The “third
rail” of Welsh Politics is the growing
tension caused by the need to protect
large services like health and education
and the impact of this on unprotected
services in areas such as leisure, parks,
libraries, arts, roads, environment,
planning and transport etc. These are all
areas of service that the public cares
passionately about but questions must be
asked about their sustainability in the
future.

21. A recent report by Mark Jeffs of the
Wales Audit Office, published for the
think tank Welsh Public Services 2025
was entitled, “Future Pressures on Welsh
Public Services” argues that it is
imperative that we address these issues
now as the trajectory of health spending
related to demographics is ever upward.
For example, he presents a best and
worse case scenario based on funding
forecasts. In this context what would it
mean if spending on the NHS rises from
42% of the Welsh Government’s present
revenue budget to a best case of 57%
and worse case of 67% in 2024-25? The
graph on the following page shows the
impact of the squeeze on unprotected
services based on these assumptions for
an average council. In effect it means
that by spend on services as wide ranging
as leisure, libraries, transport,
environmental health, trading standards
and so on would have reduced to a
quarter of current levels.

22. Such a scenario would deprive
individuals and communities across Wales
of much needed and valued public
services. It is incumbent upon us
collectively therefore to consider
alternative models of delivering services.
Not to do this would inevitably leave
Welsh communities with a local
government sector that is essentially an
empty vessel devoid of previously
cherished functions.




Future Funding Scenarios

Future Funding and Spending - for the average council

£300m

£250m -

et
£200m +

Social Services

£150m
£100m
Education
£50m
Fixed Budgets
£0m
2014- 2015- 2016- 2017- 2018- 2019- 2020- 2021- 2022- 2023- 2024-
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

A New Model for Local Government in Wales

23. Last year, the WLGA held a joint 24. Councils will increasingly look beyond
conference with the LGA in England to their own boundaries as they redesign
examine experiences of a new model of services. The emergence of Waste
cooperative councils that is emerging in Procurement Partnerships, School
England, particularly in the north-west. Improvement Consortia, a National

This approach argues for a new Adoption Service, Shared Legal Services
settlement between citizens, communities across a range of authorities, a National
and the state which would engage all in Procurement Service and much more all
sharing the responsibility for achieving contradict the prevailing view that

better social outcomes. Reformed public collaboration has been a failure. Other
services would foster a new spirit of partnerships also see deeper public sector
social citizenship, characterised by social relationships being forged. These include
responsibility, reciprocity and resilience. the Western Bay Project in social care
Forging them would require fundamental and the Gwent Frailty Project providing a
and long term change, developed — platform to integrate health and social
critically — in open dialogue with citizens. care, helping councils and the NHS to
Councils across Wales have started invest in prevention.

similar dialogue in many areas but it
needs to go further.

Page 29 9



25. The publication of the Future
Generations Bill in Wales has called for a
vigorous “national conversation” on such
issues, including the future of Wales and
its long term development path. This
debate has been avoided for far too long
and the WLGA believes that we have a
collective responsibility to address these
issues and seek to tackle systemic
problems. The themes set out in this
document are seen as a contribution to
that wider debate.

26. The scale of the challenge local
government faces cannot be avoided or
deferred. Choices for local government
include more rigorous approaches to
demand management and prevention,
new and innovative approaches to
delivery and in many cases ceasing to
deliver some services altogether. If the
current WLGA estimate is right and local
government has to cut up to £860m from
its revenue budgets in by 2018, then
these issues have to be addressed and
resolved.

27. In light of these circumstances, the
future affordability of the Welsh
Government’s “progressive universal”
polices and services within local
government will also need debate. For
example the reimbursement rate for
concessionary fares has been reduced
from 73.59% to 64% in 2014-15 and the
available budget is set to continue to
decline, from £65m this year to £61m in
2016-17. Coming on top of a 25%
reduction in bus funding between 2011-
12 and 2013-14, this inevitably means

10

that bus operators are cutting back on
services. Due to their constrained
financial position, local authorities are
simply not in a position to inject funds to
keep marginal services running. What will
it mean for the sustainability of the
concessionary fares scheme if increasing
numbers of bus routes are closed?

28. In terms of new approaches, it is
becoming apparent that traditional local
authority functions such as leisure are
rapidly moving from being services
delivered in house to being externalised
services delivered through new models
such as community trusts and mutual’s.
Similar developments are happening in
libraries, theatres, museums, public
toilets and other community facilities. In
England, this has led to a debate on the
establishment of the strategic enabling
council - with most local authorities
moving some way down the road towards
a slimmer strategic core with more
services delivered at arm’s length through
a wide variety of delivery bodies including
the private sector.

29. In Wales, the tradition is different and
probably far closer to the model recently
put forward by the Association of Public
Service Excellence (APSE) namely the
“Ensuring Council”. This proposes an
authority with a strong public sector ethic
but with a willingness to examine other
delivery mechanisms that are not for
profit and which reflect a cooperative
basis.




THE ENSURING COUNCIL |

ORGANISING PRINCIPLE

THE ENABLING COUNCIL

ORGANISING PRINCIPLE

Stewardship of place Strategic Commissioning

In-house provision of core services and
public employment

Maintenance of core capacity within the
sector

Collaborative relationships

Local representative and participative
democracy

Collective community outcomes

Joined up services meeting the needs of
local communities and delivering wider
strategic objectives

Expresses an explicit preference for the
private and voluntary sectors as service
providers

Divestment to alternative service providers
Contractual relationships

Market democracy, individual choice and
personalisation

Individual user outcomes

Fragmented services that lack the overall
strategic co-ordination to deliver on wider
policy objectives

Source — APSFE 2013

30. The WLGA has been in extensive
discussions with the Wales Council for
Voluntary Action (WCVA) over recent
years to examine social impact bonds and
partnership based service delivery
models. The WLGA is also discussing with
the Wales TUC and colleagues in the
wider trade union movement how to
reconcile new models with the concerns
of their members and to ensure robust
social partnerships can be built that can
provide the necessary employment
assurances. The WLGA has just signed a
MOU with One Voice Wales to examine
how we can enhance the role of town
and community councils. This work is
significant, but it is in its early stages and
cannot offer the answer to all our
ailments. As it stands, for most local
authorities, strategies based on pragmatic
downsizing, significant internal reform,
bearing down on costs and exploring
innovation remain the most common
solution.

31. The reality is that in the immediate
future, some of our services could be

Page 31

shrunk by between 35% and 45%. A
recent survey by the Wales Audit Office,
for example, recently registered cuts of
20% in one year within some
environmental services departments.
When funding and services are cut by this
order then it becomes impossible to
retain the same level of provision. The
status quo cannot be sustained magically
when the service has been cut by 35%.
Despite the well publicised examples of
alternative approaches and innovative
models this has still been the
predominant response in England. As the
New Local Government Network observed
in a recent study:

32. "We expected to uncover a huge
amount of innovation and divergence as
councils plan for the future. It seemed
likely that we might uncover many more
‘easy councils’ and ‘co-operative councils’
quietly reforming themselves away from
the limelight. In fact, there appears to be
surprisingly little of this kind of high
concept reform”

11



Public Services Delivery and Governance

33. The WLGA recognises that the
publication of the report by the
Commission on Public Service
Governance and Delivery chaired by Sir
Paul Williams in January 2014 has
attempted to address many of the issues
raised in this analysis. The Williams
report is a large and detailed study of the
state of Welsh public services and it
reiterates clearly that the sustainability of
public organisations is under threat
because of the dramatic fall in finances.
It makes some very useful
recommendations about shredding
complexity, concerted efforts to improve
culture and leadership, de-cluttering
funding arrangements and downsizing
the machinery of bureaucracy built up by
the Welsh Government in support of its
various policy initiatives.

34. Since the advent of the National
Assembly, Wales has seen a huge growth
in policy initiatives supported by
individual dedicated funding streams.
Specific grant funding amounted to
£402m in 2003-04 and by 2012-13 it had
more than doubled to £859m. The cost of
administering, monitoring and auditing
these myriad schemes is unknown but a
recent report by the WAO into Grants
Management estimates that it is
somewhere between 5% and 10% of the
value of the funding. This is simply
unaffordable.

35. Unfortunately, nearly all of the 62
recommendations of the Williams report
have become overwhelmed by the focus
on the four recommendations proposing
the reorganisation of local councils. A
substantive report on the future of public
services in Wales has in effect been
reduced to an argument for and against
local government reorganisation. An

12 Page 32

inevitable debate about structures rather
than services has regrettably followed.
Six months after its publication, the
status of the report is unclear and the
Welsh Government has not responded
formally to the recommendations
proposed by the Commission. The
timescale and the deadlines proposed in
the report have inevitably slipped, and as
time passes there is growing uncertainty
across local government about its future
configuration. In the mean time, the
funding crisis continues to grow.

36. The WLGA recognises the need for a
robust debate on the future shape of
local government and is eager to play its
full part. That debate must set out a new
vision for local government and must
define the relationship between central
and local government. It must also
include a robust analysis of financial
implications of any structural change.
The Williams report’s brief did not include
such a study and the report’s analysis of
costs is largely a critique of work
undertaken by the consultants Deloittes.
Following a seminar in early 2014 the
WLGA has commissioned a full
independent analysis of the potential
financial impliocations of restructuring
from the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance (CIPFA). This work must be at
the heart of any new vision for local
government in Wales.

37. The need to set out the future role of
local government was recognized by the
former Minister for Education, Leighton
Andrews AM, in a debate on the Williams
report in the Assembly on the 28th
January 2014 the when he stated:

38. "Where I think the commission’s
report is somewhat weaker is in the area




of democracy. It does not give us an
analysis of the appropriate role of local
government or the appropriate
relationship between local and central
government.... The issue of the functions
of local government is also an area that is
not addressed effectively within the
Williams commission report. Answering
these issues will be critical to building a
consensus for reform across Wales.......
What is the role of local government? If
you are going to develop a reform
programme for reorganisation, you have
to have a clear vision for local
government going forward”.

39. The recently published Commission
on Local Democracy undertaken by the
Council of Scottish Local Authorities
(COSLA) addresses many of these issues
within the Scottish context. Rather than
focusing on structures, centralizing and
contested arguments around scale, the
COSLA Commission proposes a bottom up
approach and provides a critique of the
centralist philosophy. It is very much a
reassertion of the principles of local
democracy.

40. As it states: “Over the decades, we've
seen a culture in which more and more
services and decisions been taken away
from local communities and put into the
hands of distant bureaucracies. As a
country, we have got so used to this
approach that we've come to think of it
as the only way to improve public
services, even though that has meant
that for most people decisions are now
taken far away from where they live their
lives. That kind of thinking won't see us
through for much longer. People are
losing trust and confidence in democracy,
and fewer and fewer are choosing to
vote. Not only that, but this top down
way of working hasn't produced the
results that Scotland needs or tackled the
local challenges that people face”.

41. This sentiment clearly resonates in
Wales particularly as the contours of
devolution have developed over the last
15 years.

Page 33 13



The Constitutional Settlement in Wales

42. The outset of devolution saw a
settlement that recognised the
constitutional importance of all tiers of
elected government. The Government of
Wales Act 1998 obliged the Assembly “to
promote local government”, establish a
Partnership Council and report annually
on local government performance. The
Scotland Act 1998 contained no such
provisions. This was a clear attempt in
Wales to codify the place of local
government in the devolved setting and
to provide a counter balance to the
inevitable centralising dynamic of a new
tier of government. The need for checks
and balances within any democratic
system is widely recognised and this was
an attempt to build those principles into
an emerging system.

43. The Government of Wales Act left
existing local government powers and
responsibilities untouched. The strongly
declared, implication was that the new
Assembly would complement not
compromise local authority autonomy.
Section 73 of the Government of Wales
Act 2006 (“the Act”) prescribes that
Welsh Ministers must produce a scheme
setting out how they propose to sustain
and promote local government in Wales.

44. The last ‘Local Government
Partnership Scheme’ was published in
2008, over six years ago. With the
passing of time, the focus and
appreciation of the importance of this
agreement appears to have diminished.
As a result, the annual publication of a
summary document of the scheme’s
progress is now largely a formality and
many councillors are unaware even of its
existence.

45. Inevitably the balance in local central
relations has shifted. The 2009

referendum that granted the Assembly
further legislative powers strengthened
central government’s position in relation
to local government and the major public
services. This was reinforced by the
separation of the National Assembly into
a legislative and executive in the form of
the Welsh Government. The tone of
central-local relations has changed
significantly as a consequence. Over time,
the Welsh Government has developed a
more centralised and assertive approach
to public services and the focus has
switched from being strategic to being
operational. Increasingly, service
providers are being held to account by
the Welsh Government for operational
aspects of service delivery which has
traditionally been the preserve of the
regulators and the inspectorate. Although
local government is democratically
accountable and has its own popular
mandate, there is a sense in which it is
seen as the junior partner and must be
subjected to an additional level of
accountability.

46. It is undoubtedly the case however
that Wales sees a much greater level of
partnership working between local and
central government than other parts of
the UK. The WLGA has welcomed the
relative protection that has been applied
in recent years to the local government
settlement in Wales in comparison to
England. There have also been significant
achievements in the major service areas.
The recent passage of the Social Services
and Well Being Act sees the function of
social care fully retained in local
government following extensive dialogue
between Welsh Government and local
councils. Local authorities in Wales
continue to run education and retain their
statutory responsibility. The recently

14 Page 34




established National Model for Regional
Working is an example of the partnership
between local government and the Welsh
Government and the increasing trend
towards the shared construction of policy.
The 21% Century Schools Programme is
another example of shared construction
that means Wales compares favourably
against the cuts experienced in England.

47. Yet despite these achievements, the
push for centralisation continues. There
remains an ongoing debate about what
should be the functional base of local
government. There are also suggestions
that some functions could be removed if
local government reorganisation does not
occur. For some reason, the successes of
shared construction in these big policy
areas do not translate into a wider or
more positive debate about “localism”.

48. As a consequence, there is the
emergence of a contradictory
phenomenon of centralisation within
devolution. At a time when the functions
of central government are being moved
closer to the people, the functions of local
government are in danger of being
moved further away. This has led Paul
Griffiths, the special adviser to former
First Minister Rhodri Morgan, to observe
that:

49. "If the Williams recommendation of
Just 10 local authorities is implemented,
our most local unit of government will
have an average population of over
300,000 people. The distance between
community and government will be
bigger in Wales than in any other part of
Europe”.

50. The table below graphically illustrates
this point.

Table 1: Municipal Governments at the most local level

Country No. Councils at Population
Lowest Tier
France 36,786 65,633,194
Austria 2,354 8,451,860
Spain 8,167 46,704,308
Estonia 226 1,324,814
Germany 11,252 82,020,578
Italy 8,092 59,685,227
Norway 428 5,051,275
Finland 320 5,426,674
Latvia 119 2,023,825
Belgium 589 11,161,642
Sweden 290 9,555,893
Netherlands 408 16,779,575
Lithuania 60 2,971,905
Denmark 98 5,602,628
N. Ireland (15 from 2015) 26 1,823,600
Wales 22 3,100,000
England 353 53,493,700
Scotland 32 5,295,000
EU27 89,149 501,465,000

Source: Council of European Municipalities and Regions (2013) Local and Regional Government in Europe
http://www.ccre.org/img/uploads/piecesjointe/filename/FINAL CEMR factsheets 2013 EN.pdf

Page 35

15



51. Despite the European evidence it
seems that in Wales we are becoming
ever more centralist in our thinking.
Councillor Bob Wellington, the Leader of
WLGA highlighted this trend in his speech
to the 2013 WLGA Conference when he
stated,

52. "There seems in some quarters to be
a proposition widely circulating in Wales
that we would all be better off with less
local government. You've heard the
argument, it goes that Welsh Government
could run schools, let the NHS undertake
social care and then divide the rest up
between various quangos and other
organisations. My guestion back to those
wise pundits who propose this is a simple
one, are we that scornful of local
democracy? .... Well exercised local power
can mitigate the follies of the centre. My
colleagues in Cardiff Bay rightly state that
one of their current key purposes is to
constrain the impact of the excesses of
Westminster government and its
programmes. We know that our Assembly
colleagues often complain that the
Westminster does not listen or show
respect to them. Central governments
can be a bit like that.”

53. Local democracy is not an abstract
political concept that local government
has a vested interest in preserving and
promoting. It is a characteristic and
feature of Welsh society that Welsh
communities still cherish. The public want
local government and local decision-
making over the matters and services
that they care about most. Councils and
councillors have a better understanding,
are more accessible and more responsive
to local communities’ needs.

54. The public place greater trust in
councils and councillors than in any other
tier of political representation. A recent

16 Page 36

UK-wide survey shows that 76% of
people trust their local councillors most to
make decisions about how services are
provided in their areas whilst only 9%
trusted national politicians. Similarly, 77%
trust their council most to make decisions
about how services are provided in their
area, whilst only 13% trust central
government.!

55. Despite some well-publicised service
challenges in a number of authorities,
satisfaction ratings with local government
services are higher than those for the
Welsh Government. The latest National
Survey for Wales shows that 57% of
people said that their local authority
provided high quality services and the
satisfaction rating for education is 6.4 out
of 10 compared to 5.8 for the Welsh
Government.?

56. The Williams report has offered up a
variation on the localist approach linked
to structural reform. This argues for more
democratic input into all Welsh public
services, the dismantling of costly control
mechanisms like specific grants, properly
costed legislation and the possibility of
devolving more functions to local
government. In a similar vein, the First
Minister has also recognised that the
process of devolution extends beyond the
National Assembly when he stated in the
Plenary Session on 28" January 2014
that: "7 spend a lot of my time arguing for
powers to be devolved from London to
here. I am fully aware of the fact that the
same argument applies to devolving
powers to local authorities, as long as
they are able to deal with those powers.”

! LGA Survey January 2013 —
http://www.local.gov.uk/web/guest/media-releases/-
/journal_content/56/10180/6175790/NEWS

2 Welsh Government — National Survey for Wales [April 2012-
March 2013] - http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-
research/nationals-survey/?lang=en




57. This is a clear recognition that
decisions about how public services are
managed and provided must be taken
within a democratic framework, and more
importantly, as close to the people who
use them as possible. Once the Welsh
Government’s response to the Williams
recommendations is published, the
debate about empowering local
government can begin in earnest. Whilst
there have been suggestions about a
larger role for local government in the
NHS and the broader public health
function, there is as yet no real substance
to this discussion. The longer it takes to
initiate this discussion and the process of
reform, the less intrinsic resource benefits
it yields as ongoing austerity means that
budgets continue to decline.

58. The IFS report commissioned by the
WLGA highlights that the most severe
budget challenges are in the forthcoming
three financial years up to 2018. The
danger is that if local government
reorganisation does not occur until 2020,
it will have been overtaken by the impact
of the cuts in public spending. Services
will have been redesigned, reconfigured
or cut in an immediate and more arbitrary
way rather than being managed and
planned. The scale of the current
austerity cuts throws the relative modesty
of the Williams projected savings of £60-
80 million per annum into sharp focus.
Taking just three authorities across
Wales, the cuts in these councils during
the current year alone have already
exceeded this figure:

Financial Cuts 2014-15
Example South, Mid and North Wales

Cardiff £50m
Powys £20m
Flintshire £15.5

59. Lynne Neagle AM also raised a further
point about continuity with existing
initiatives and the impact of the Williams
report, during the Assembly debate on
28t January 2014 when she commented:

60. "Is there not an obvious danger that
embarking on a long, complex and
potentially very fraught process of local
government reorganisation will derail that
Journey of improvement before the
changes that we have put in place to try
to fix the problems have even had a
chance to bed in? ....... Meanwhile, the
fact that Ceredligion is currently our best
performing local authority in terms of
education and, yet, is also one of the
smallest, should be enough in itself to
strike a note of caution among those who
dogmatically insist that bigger is, by
default, always better”

61. In advance of the 2015 General
Election, a cross-party debate is occurring
in England on giving more power and
freedoms to local councils to enable them
to make changes locally. This is deemed
to be vital in order to design and deliver
more efficient public services and help
local areas innovate and, in particular,
promote growth. A similar debate needs
to occur in Wales.

62. Local government has been central to
the development of devolution in Wales
and has been a constructive force in the
partnership governance that has shaped
the first decade of devolution. Welsh local
government remains committed to
continuing this partnership and working
with the Welsh Government to reform
public services and respond to the
unprecedented challenges that face our
communities.

Page 37 17



63. As part of this shared commitment, Welsh local government

will:

18

Engage in constructive debate around structural reform of local government
and will continue to lead and deliver the wider public service reform agenda.

Promote and support the local contributions to the long-term national strategic
vision for Wales which will be articulated through the forthcoming Future
Generations Bill.

Deliver specific local contributions to the Wales Programme for Government,
through successful delivery of Outcome Agreements.

Continue to lead on self improvement and a collective sector-led approach to
identifying and responding to improvement challenges faced by individual
authorities.

Build on progress around improving engagement, challenge and scrutiny
within the local democratic process, with a particular focus on improving the
diversity of democracy ahead of the next local elections.

Honour all existing specific service based commitments.




64. In order to deliver these commitments, Welsh local government
needs greater flexibilities, freedoms and clarity from Welsh
Government, including:

e The transfer of all specific grants into the RSG and a restatement of the
commitment to reduce the burden of service plans.

e A robust financial process to cost the impact of new legislation and burdens based
on the principle that local government only assumes implementation for new
responsibilities which are fully funded.

e A review of the balance of funding and local government financial regime as part of
the Silk Finance and Tax-raising reforms.

e The introduction of the power of general competence for councils in Wales which
was introduced in England through the Localism Act 2011.

e An acceptance that "managed difference” and local variation are at the heart of
local democracy. This means that local services and solutions will be different for
different communities.

e Establishment of a dedicated group under the auspices of the Partnership Council to
examine what areas of public service delivery should be placed under local
democratic control.

e The establishment of a Staff Commission to examine the implications of local
government reorganisation and look at workforce planning and transfers across all
sectors.

¢ A proper codification of central-local relations and responsibilities in Wales.

e Fully respect and apply the principles of the European Charter of Local Self
Government.

e That Welsh Government should re-establish a process to understand financial
pressures within local government prior to the publication of the settlement, on the
proviso that this is not a commitment to full funding of those pressures.

e That Welsh Government should fully commit to the principle of introducing three
year financial settlements to give greater stability in terms of resource planning.

Page 39 19



Conclusion

65. It is vital that the relationship between Welsh Government and local government is
better and more clearly defined. The previous experience of formal partnership
agreements, concordats and memoranda of understanding to cement such approaches
have inevitably disappointed and not worked. A completely new approach is needed that
moves the focus towards a redefinition of the relationship between councils and their
communities — providing services with local people, rather than for them.

66. The dividing line is a clear choice between two approaches —

e CENTRALIST - that local government is primarily in existence to
administer, provide and oversee the provision of public services and
therefore must be regulated and controlled — as far as any
constitution allows - by the centre; or

e LOCALIST - that it is a democratic body charged with the role of
governing its locality and representing (and defending) it and its
needs to the centre, in which case it must have autonomy and
financial security and control over its own locality.

67. Founded on the principles of community of interest, access and accountability, local
government remains closest to the people, both in proximity and value. Despite this
important role, it is frequently taken for granted and, in some instances, widely
misunderstood. It is the unanimous view of the leaders of the 22 local authorities in the
WLGA that the localist approach offers the best way forward in terms of protecting our
communities and enhancing democracy across Wales.

20




Agenda Item 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER, SOCIAL SERVICES

SUBJECT: ANNUAL COUNCIL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
(ACRF)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present the final version of the Social Services Annual
Performance report to Cabinet for Agreement.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Every Chief Officer for Social Services is required to produce an
annual report summarising their view of the authority’s social care
services and priorities for improvement. The Overview Report is part
of the Welsh Government (WG) performance framework for Social
Services.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The final version of the Annual Report has been prepared following an
in depth review of current performance by the Chief Officer, Heads of
Service, Service Managers and Planning and Performance Officers. A
period of consultation included a Member Task and Finish meeting to
review the initial draft of the report and an opportunity for Cabinet
Members to further shape priorities and the style of the final format.

3.02 The Annual Report has for the second year in succession, been
prepared by our Social Enterprise “Double Click Design”. The report
for 2013/2014 is attached at Appendix 1.

3.03 The report has been developed in sections that reflect the key themes
contained within the Social Services and Well Being Act. The
alignment of our assessment and future priorities to the Act was an
approach that was positively received by CSSIW last year.

3.04 The annual report will form an integral part of the Care and Social
Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) performance evaluation of
Flintshire Social Services.

3.05 The report is intended to be an objective picture of services in
Flintshire demonstrating a clear understanding of the strengths and

Page 41



3.06

3.07

challenges faced.

Our overall assessment is that Social Services in Flintshire continue to
drive forward service improvement, ensuring we have an effective
range of good quality services that support and protect vulnerable
people. Through our assessment we can show that we have:

e supported families successfully at an early stage to help prevent
problems escalating this includes supporting parents through
Flying Start and the Integrated Family Support Service

e provided early support and helped people to regain their
confidence and ability to care for themselves e.g. reablement after
a fall

e supported people to live independently in the community by using
more flexible and creative responses one example being the
successful use of Direct Payments.

e delivered good outcomes for people with mental iliness through a
recovery model — we were awarded a Social Care Accolade in
2013

e supported an increasing number of looked after children with a
strong, consistent, and stable fostering service

e safeguarded children and vulnerable adults effectively

e worked in partnership with other authorities and agencies
including setting up a co-located team with Health at Holywell and
the development of Llys Jasmine Extra Care

e a stable workforce who are supported with their professional
development

e strong leadership driving forward our approach to modernise
social care and support the development of alternative models of
service delivery — for example our Living Well service which
provides flexible support to people with dementia, integrated
working with Health through our Crisis Intervention Team and
securing agreement to develop Double Click as a Social
Enterprise

e robust financial management which has delivered challenging
efficiencies whilst sustaining the delivery of front line services

Our achievements have been delivered within the context of some
real strategic and operational challenges, including an increasing
number of vulnerable children, young people and adults with complex
care needs requiring support. We have, never the less, made good
progress with our programme to modernise social care. However, we
recognise that we need to continue to adapt and modernise and our
report therefore sets out our priorities for service development and
improvement in 2014/2015. In summary the improvement priorities
focus on:

e continuing our work to respond to the requirements of the Social

Page 42



3.08

3.09

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

Services and Well Being Act

e developing our systems to ensure that people are at the centre of
our work and that they have a voice and control in what happens
to them, whilst we further establish a comprehensive
understanding of the quality of the services and people’'s
experiences

e developing and delivering our commissioning intentions to ensure
that the right services are in place which will include remodelling
and modernising services

e ensuring the we have a strong and professional workforce across
the whole social care sector

e making sure that we continue to safeguard vulnerable people and
looking at the potential for bringing together approaches across
Children’s and Adults safeguarding

e driving forward more integrated services particularly with Health

The improvement priorities are consistent with the themes and
strategic intentions of the Improvement Plan and the Single Integrated
Plan. We will ensure that specific actions, accountabilities and
timelines for delivering the priorities are integrated into our service
Business Plan.

Each quarter we will formally review and evaluate progress in
delivering the improvement priorities. This process is aligned to
quarterly Improvement Plan monitoring arrangements.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet agree the Annual Report to inform the organisation,
workforce, clients, partners, public and CSSIW of our assessment of
performance and priorities for 2014/2015.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The priorities identified within the report are aimed at delivering
service improvements, improving outcomes and meeting local needs
within the context of achieving challenging financial efficiencies and
value for money.

Priority actions contained within the report have been identified for
delivery within existing resources.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None arising from this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None arising from this report.

Page 43



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

12.00

12.01

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None arising directly from this report. However the report includes an
assessment of current performance against the equalities agenda and
has associated improvement priorities.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None arising from this report, but some of the identified improvement
priorities may have associated personnel implications. These will be
separately detailed as part of our plans relating to value for money
reviews.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

No further consultation is planned.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Consultation has taken place with key stakeholders including a
Members Task and Finish meeting, discussion at the Social Care and
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee who fully support the
assessment. As a result of feedback from key Members the length of
the report has been reduced to make it a more accessible and
succinct document.

An independent critical friend has provided objective comment on the
draft report.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Annual Performance Report 2013-2014

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

Contact Officer: Craig Macleod
Telephone: 01352 701313
Email: craig.macleod@flintshire.qgov.uk

Page 44



Flintshire County Council
Social Services

Annual Performance Report
2013-2014

o it Y Filint
Fiintshire



Contents

Introduction 2
A Well Governed and High Performing Council 4
A Stronger Voice and Real Control for People 7
Smarter Commissioning 14
A Strong and Professional Workforce 19
Stronger Safeguarding 22
Driving Forward more Integrated and Preventative Sevices 25
Evidencing our Improvement 36
Glossary 40

This document provides a summary of our annual self assessment. If you receive a service
from us please let us know if you think this report is a fair description of your experiences.
Your views matter to us and are crucial if we are to continue to improve what we do and
deliver on our future priorities.

If you are reading this on the web then there are links (in bold) throughout the document if
you want to read more about individual projects. For words underlined there is a glossary
at the end of the document that may help explain unfamiliar words and terms.

We welcome your comments on the format of this report, particularly whether it includes
information that is helpful and of interest to you in a suitable format.

You can write or email:

Neil Ayling,

Chief Officer

Social Services

6th Floor

Phase 4

County Hall

MOLD

Flintshire

CH7 6NN

Email: neil.j.ayling@flintshire.gov.uk

Page46



1. Introduction

We are pleased to share our third annual report about Social Services in Flintshire. The
services we deliver as part of the Council are vitally important to adults, children and
families. We provide social care services directly and in collaboration with partner
agencies such as Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, independent sector care
providers, voluntary and charitable organisations. We are currently providing services to
3,305 adults and 843 children with an annual budget of £55 million for 2013/2014.

This report looks at our performance in 2013/2014, our priorities for 2014/2015, the
challenges we face and the opportunities we can take as we continue to move forward.

During the year we have spent valuable time listening and learning from people who use
our services so that we can better understand how our performance impacts on peoples
lives.

Our staff are central to the delivery of good quality services and our greatest asset and
speaking to them face to face provides the opportunity for sharing our joint vision of the
future. Our vision is to work with people to achieve healthy, independent, fulfilling lives,

safeguarding vulnerable local people and building strong communities.

Our plans for the future delivery of services are set against a
backdrop of wanting to do better whilst meeting increasing
demand from a larger population with less money. This
includes an increase in the number of children on the Child
Protection Register, more children with significant
disabilities, an ageing population with more complex care
and support needs and carers and young carers who need
support to help them to continue in their caring role.

Modernisation

During 2013/2014 our ambitious programme to modernise
social care in Flintshire has gained momentum. Our
Modernising Social Services Board has focussed on delivering
sustainable change to improve outcomes for people and maximise

efficiency across Children’s and Adult Services. The Board is made up

of Councillor Christine Jones, corporate colleagues and senior managers from social
services. During the year Councillor Jones, who is Cabinet Member for Social Services,
has worked tirelessly to support the improvement initiatives that are bringing about change
for the people of Flintshire. This includes an active role as Older Peoples Champion and
Recovery Champion for Mental Health Services as well as involvement in the development
of social enterprises.

Our modernisation programme responds to the_Social Services and Well Being (Wales)
Act which places greater legal obligations on local authorities and their partners to enhance
well being, independence and safeguarding of people and their carers, including greater

Page4+ -



integration of social care and health services. It is clear that the increased demands on
social care will continue and the need for change in how we deliver those services has
been identified in Flintshire County Councils Corporate Priorities which you can read
more about in section 2. Our Modernisation Programme will continue in 2014/2015.

How are we performing?

Our assessment is that Flintshire Social Services has made real improvements in both
performance and the quality of services this year. This can be demonstrated through:

. supporting more people to stay living independently at home after a period of
Reablement

. providing early support to families to help prevent problems increasing

. more people being in control of their own support through personal budgets

. opening of our second extra care scheme which includes specially designed apart
ments for people with dementia

. our strong Fostering Service which provides stable positive support to children and
young people

. recognition of services at national award ceremonies, including our Mental Health
Services and Kinship Carers

. positive relationships with our care provider partners

. being fully committed to involving the people who use our services and having
improved quality monitoring processes

. delivering services within budget whilst meeting increasing demand from a larger
population

The Financial Challenges
The financial challenges for local government have been

widely reported on in the press. The budget for Social
Services in Flintshire in 2014/2015 is just under £56.5m. We
need to ensure that we continue to use this money efficiently
and effectively to secure good outcomes for vulnerable
children and adults. This is in the context of delivering £15m in
efficiencies across the Council in both 2014/2015 and in
2015/2016. We will achieve this through value for money
reviews. The reviews focus on how we make better use of our
resources whilst delivering more integrated, joined up and
customer focussed services. We envisage that in some
instances this will require us to change the way in which
services are delivered but our focus will be on ensuring that positive outcomes are
delivered. Whilst we do not want to underestimate the challenges we face, we want you to
know that we are confident of the real difference we are able to make to the lives of peo-
ple across Flintshire. Our corporate commitment to protect frontline services remains as
strong as ever.

Neil Ayling, Chief Officer Social Services

Page48



2. A Well Governed and High Performing Council

Flintshire is a well governed and high performing Council. We have a clear sense of
purpose and direction and have set four shared priorities with our partners at a County
level, and eight priorities for the Council itself.

Council Priorities
The Council’s priorities and sub-priorities for action are set out in our annual improvement
Plan. The Improvement Priorities and sub priorities for 2014/2015 are summarised below:

SUB-PRIORITY IMPACT
wousne 000000
Extra Care Housing Helping more people to live independently and
well at home
Modern, Efficient and Adapted Improving the choice and quality of local housing
Homes
Achieve the Welsh Housing Quality | Improving quality of life for our tenants through
Standard improved housing
LIVING WELL
Independent Living Improving quality of life
Integrated Community Social and Enabling more people to live independently and
Health Services well at home

ECONOMY AND ENTERPRISE
Business Sector Growth in Deeside | Creating jobs and growing the local economy

Town and Rural Regeneration Making local communities viable

Social Enterprise Supporting and creating new forms of local
business

Modernised and High Performing Improving learning provision to get better learning

Education outcomes

Apprenticeships and Training Meeting the skills and employment needs of local

employers

Community Safety Keep people and communities safe
Traffic and Road Management Improving road safety

Welfare Reform Protecting people from poverty

Fuel Poverty Protecting people from poverty
ENVIRONMENT

Transport Infrastructure and People being able to access employment, local
Services services and facilities

Carbon Control and Reduction Reducing our carbon impact on the natural

environment

Page49



Organisational Change Managing services well to achieve our priorities
Financial Strategy Protecting local front-line public services and
delivering Council priorities through the best
use of our resources

People Change & Development The Council has sufficient capability and
capacity to operate effectively as a reduced
sized organisation

Asset Strategy Having the right buildings in the right places for
the right uses

Procurement Strategy Making our money go further through smarter
procurement

Access to Council Services Achieving customer focused, modern and

efficient access to council services

The main ways in which Social Services will contribute to our Corporate Priorities in
2014/15 will be through:

1. Improving quality of life through the promotion of independent living.

2. Helping more people to live independently and well at home through integrated
community Social and Health Services.

3. Improving the opportunities for the growing numbers of Looked After Children, with
a focus on learning opportunities and educational attainment.

It is important to note that as a Council we work collectively across service areas to deliver
the improvement priorities. As such Social Services have a key role in delivering the
Council's improvement priorities. For example we are working hard to deliver the Asset
Strategy to make the best use of the council’s buildings by making sure our offices are
brought into local communities and using our Flintshire Connects facilities to deliver a wide
range of services. Conversely services across the Council work to support vulnerable
people and deliver priorities relating to the social care agenda e.g. through the provision of
quality Housing, anti poverty work in response to Welfare Reform and making local
communities viable and vibrant so vulnerable people are safe and can access local support
networks.

Partnership Priorities

We are proud of our longstanding track record of partnership working. The communities
we serve rightly expect the statutory and third sector partners to work together, to work to
shared priorities and, through collective effort, to get things done.

As a Local Service Board (LSB) we have jointly developed “Flintshire’s Wellbeing Plan:
A Single Integrated Plan for Flintshire 2013-2017”. The Plan focuses on four initial
priorities:

Page-56



* Priority 1 - Lead by example as employers and community leaders
* Priority 2 - People are safe

* Priority 3 - People enjoy good health, wellbeing and independence
¢ Priority 4 - Organisational environmental practices

Working together to make an impact in these priorities is the collective aim of the LSB,
realising that no single organisation can achieve on their own; the partner organisations
represented on the LSB can collectively make a positive difference for the people who live,
visit and work in Flintshire.

We acknowledge that over recent years there have been challenges in ensuring

effective and consistent partnership working with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board
(BCUHB). As a large organisation BCUHB have previously sought to develop single
regional approaches that have not always reflected local priorities, differences and
strengths. We are encouraged by more recent working relationships and refreshed
strategic direction being led by BCUHB’s new Executive Board. As this new relationship is
developing, and whilst it is taking a positive direction, we will continue to review the success
and pace of partnership working with BCUHB as part of our approach to risk management.

Working with members

Elected members have a valuable role in shaping policy, setting the direction for the service
and scrutinising progress. Good examples of joint working include the rigorous quarterly
monitoring of the Improvement Plan, half yearly Performance Reports presented for
challenge and scrutiny to the Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny

Committee, the Annual Budget Challenge and consultation on the setting of priorities and
targets. Elected members also provide an invaluable link to our communities and to the
issues that are important to them.

Organisational Change

During 2013/2014 the Council developed and adopted a new operating and senior
management structure. The transition to the new Chief Officer Team has gone well, and at
a fast pace. We will need to continue this transformation to ensure that the Organisation,
including Social Services, has sufficient capability and capacity to operate effectively as a
reduced sized organisation. We are all up beat about the next phase of change despite the
amount that needs to be done to meet the financial challenges which lie ahead.

Resources

The Council has succeeded in setting balanced budgets whilst investing in key

priorities, meeting growth in service demands and absorbing the cost impacts of inflation.
The Council has achieved this through developing internal programmes of change and
reform to make efficiencies. The scale and pace of efficiencies required over the

coming years is unprecedented. During 2014 we will be updating, and further developing,
a comprehensive Medium Term Financial Plan to ensure that we continue to respond to the
medium and longer term financial challenges ahead. Within this context we were pleased
to recently receive our best ever annual improvement report from the Wales Audit Office
(WAO) which reflects our commitment to remain a high performing organisation despite the
challenging landscape.

Page-5%



3. A Stronger Voice and Real Control for People

Carers

We value the vital role carers, including young carers, play in the delivery of social care. We
are committed to working in partnership with carers and have been actively involved in the
regional Carers Strategic Group developing the North Wales Carers Information and
Consultation Strategy 2012 — 2015. We have commissioned a new local information booklet
for carers which will be published later this year.

We commission a wide range of services for carers which are coordinated by NEWCIS.
The Bridging the Gap scheme was launched in April 2013 with an investment of £50k to
provide carers with flexible breaks and replacement care which is sometimes needed at
short notice. 173 requests were received by NEWCIS between April 2013 and January
2014, with 16 of these being for emergency breaks.

Bridging the gap case study

A carer was admitted to hospital unexpectedly, and had a longer stay than
was expected. The carer’s partner had dementia and even though family
members supported them, one daughter was on holiday abroad and the other
worked and had a family of her own.

Bridging the Gap was put in place to support the carer and their family. A
number of visits per day were arranged whilst the daughter was in work and
until more family support was available. When the carer returned from
hospital a home visit was arranged.

Bridging the Gap prevented an admission into care for the carer’s partner,
who had not used such services before and would have found this a daunting
experience without their partner and other family members around them.

Page-52



Last year we increased short break provision for children and young people with disabilities
by moving our respite care service to Arosfa, a larger adapted building, which is able to
offer more flexible breaks. This has increased available provision by 54% and in real terms
means that 23 children were able to stay between April and December 2013, an increase of
six families. Children visiting benefit from a new Sensory Room and projects for 2014/2015
include updating the digital technology available to children during their visits. We know that
the move to Arosfa has been positive because families have said:

“The building is very smart, new and clean and purpose built. It looks very homely
with photos of the children and decorations. The standard of care has been excellent,
very much cater for the individual child and ---- their needs taken into consideration”

“very accommodating when it comes to requesting dates of care”

“Communication is very good. A phone call the night before my child goes in and
also communication book | write in and staff inform me of what my son has done”

“X loves coming to Arosfa and participates in various activities but also allowed to
chill out when she wants or needs to”

Page-53



The summer Play Schemes give families and carers of children with disabilities short break
opportunities during the school summer holidays whilst the children benefit from structured
play and individual activities. In 2013 83 children with a range of disabilities and health
needs attended the sessions held in local special schools, with 19 children (23%) being
new attendees. Feedback reinforces the value families place on this service.

“I chose the club because of its facilities for disabled children, access,
trained staff, understanding and because my son loves it! Which is the most
important reason!”

“My child is safe and comfortable in the Holiday Club. | know her needs are
being met (and more). She is understood on every level. She can play at her
own pace and has the opportunity for lots of new experiences. She gets the
chance to play with old friends and make new friends. | have complete trust
in the staff, each and every child is their priority and it shows!”

Young Carers

The Young Carers Strategy Group has a clear measurable multi- agency plan for action
and in 2013/2014 we have continued to work with our partners to reach young carers with
a particular focus being in schools and colleges. We recognise that we need to strengthen
how we record the numbers of young carers that we are supporting during the coming year
as part of a wider approach to understand the difference we are making.

Our ‘Access to Action Card’ (A2A card) for young carers, Looked
After Children and care leavers was requested and developed
by young people who are part of Barnardo’s Cymru Flintshire
Young Carers or supported by Flintshire Children’s Services

and who find it difficult to explain their status in school to
teachers and when they need instant access to Council
services. We are pleased to report that all schools in Flintshire
and Coleg Cambria’s Flintshire sites have signed up to use of
the A2A card. Young carers have told us:

“Using the A2A card was really positive and the teacher was
really helpful” (Young Carer)

“I didn’t feel embarrassed about showing the card because everyone
knows what the card is for” (Young Carer)

“Glad I've got it just in case | need it” (Looked After Child)

“The teacher gave me extra time for my home work. We discussed it
privately and they were really understanding” (Young Carer)

Page-54



Direct Payments

Direct Payments enable people to take control over
their care arrangements. For example, a person may
choose to receive a monthly payment to purchase their
own care instead of receiving support arranged by
social services or to purchase an item of equipment
to meet their assessed needs. We are making Direct
Payments more flexible and responsive to individual
needs and are proud to have developed

“provider administered Direct Payments”. They are
becoming increasingly popular particularly amongst
older people ensuring that they can access the
flexibility and control a Direct Payment offers
without any associated concerns of administering
the funds themselves. In January 2014, 32
provider administered Direct Payments had been
approved with 53% of these being for older
people.

From April to December 2013 there were a total
of 296 people using Direct Payments across
Adults and Children’s Social Services, an increase of
31% from the same period in 2012/2013 (205).

Service Users receiving Direct Payments

December 2011 December 2012 December 2013

Dignity in Care

Promoting dignity in care is a cornerstone of our approach in the delivery of services.
Promoting and supporting peoples self respect means we are committed to providing
services on an individual basis and ensure that wherever possible people receive a service
that meets their particular needs, choice and aspirations.

N | ol el
rageé-oo
10



Involving people and gathering feedback

We have a set of Involvement Standards which are our commitment to the way we involve
people across our services and have systems to record brief details of involvement activity,
including the outcome. This helps to ensure our involvement activities are meaningful and
that the people who take part receive timely feedback on what was said. Some of the ways
we have involved children and adults include

. Young people with disabilities and their families commenting on the development of
the new Transition Team

. being involved in the recruitment of staff across Children’s and
Adults services

. Organising and co-hosting the Pride of Flintshire Ceremony for e
Looked After Children and Care Leavers ads g

. Us UnLtd, a youth led social enterprise for and led by young

people who have experienced homelessness, run regular focus
groups for young people and care leavers

. Older people were involved in a “Communities 2.0” project to
test a range of digital technology to assess what was suitable to
introduce in day service and residential care settings.

We also commission independent organisations to help
find out what people who receive services, and those that
know them best, have to say about their care and support. One
example of this is Care Checkers. In consultation with people with
dementia and their families Care Checkers obtained crucial
feedback to help us develop the “dementia road” (section 4). They
have also undertaken consultation with people with disabilities
and learning disabilities to inform the review of both supported
living and day services.

We have developed a standard questionnaire across Adult Social

Services which can be tailored with specific questions dependent on the
purpose of the questionnaire. Key messages coming from the responses are that people
are accessing a wide range of support and services that they rate as very positive in
improving their quality of life and confidence in their own abilities and skills. Care plans and
staff delivering support also receive consistent praise.

A range of satisfaction questionnaires is in use in Children’s Services and the findings are
presented to Senior and Team Managers to influence service development. One recent
example of this approach were comments on the standard of building work during an
adaptation for a disabled child and this has been referred to Housing to follow up on.
However responses to questionnaires from young people have dropped and we will be
redoubling our efforts to improve feedback from them in 2014/2015, making more use
social media to gather their views.

11

Page-56



Learning from compliments and complaints received is important and inform our policy and
practice. We seek to resolve complaints at the earliest possible stage and our compliments
and complaints team provides training for managers and works with them to ensure
complaints are addressed. Our performance management process includes quarterly
reporting to the Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to Senior
Management Children and Adults Performance meetings. The robust lessons learnt
process has led to improved services and most importantly for people who make
representation supports the resolution of complaints at the earliest opportunity. We produce
an annual report on our complaints procedure which includes examples of actions we have
taken as a result of complaints. Examples include:

What yqu S_a'd:_ Help is What we did: Piloted a new
needed in situations where mediation process for parents in
parents are in disagreement dispute with each other so childcare
with each other regarding their arrangements can continue with
children and which may have minimal disruption (e.g. weekend

an effect on their_ children’s arrangements, collections to and
emotional wellbeing. from school etc.).

What you said: Clearer
information is needed that
explains the reasons why
commissioned transport cannot
be used by service users who do
not meet the eligibility criteria.

What we did: Introduced new
concessionary transport
guidelines for both staff

and service users.

Compliments are equally valued, recognising where a member of staff has gone over and
above what is expected from them. Compliments received during the year about the work
of Social Services staff included:

A letter of thanks commending the Llys Gwenffrwd staff describing them as
“The most compassionate people | have ever met”.

“l cannot thank them or praise them enough for not only the care but the
love and affection they showed towards her”

A Childcare Social Worker received a compliment from a mother who said:
“Thank you so much for your support. | know you are always there if | need

you. Due to your encouragement | am going to carry on with my head held
high and try to continue making all the right decisions. Thank you so much.”

D 7
rage—ot
12



Welsh Language

The Welsh Government framework called ‘More Than Just Words’ Strategic Framework
for Welsh Language services in Health, Social Services and Social Care” aims
improve services for those who need or choose to receive their care in Welsh. Our More
Than Just Words Action Plan sets out the practical steps we will take to

strengthen Welsh service provision in Flintshire.

During 2013 we have mapped welsh language skills across our
workforce and developed new workforce initiatives. We have
strengthened our approach by accepting the Active Office princi-

ple and including welsh language requirements into our
commissioning and planning systems. In October 2013 Jo

Williams, Welsh Government Strategy Implementation Manager
visited us to evaluate our progress. She expressed her

enthusiasm for many of the changes Flintshire are developing, stat-
ing she was extremely impressed with proactive and energetic way in
which we are steering this framework.

A stronger voice and real control for people priorities for 2014/2015

1. Develop and agree our Action Plan to deliver on the requirements of the
Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act to put in place integrated arrangements
to undertake proportionate and outcome focussed assessments that focus on ‘what
matters’ to a person.

2. Consolidate Year 1 actions and deliver on Year 2 actions in our More Than Just Words

action plan to strengthen Welsh service provision locally, as set out in the ‘More Than
Just Words’ Strategic Framework for Welsh Language services in Health, Social
Services and Social Care.

3. Continue to expand the take-up of Direct Payments and Citizen Directed Support to

promote greater choice and control.

4. Complete the review of our Involvement Action Plan learning from the evidence

gathered to ensure people who use services and their carers are able to make
meaningful contribution to service planning and delivery.

5. Increase the range of opportunities and technology, including social media, for children,

young people and their families to provide good quality feedback so that we are able to
incorporate feedback into our lessons learnt process.

6. Train more Elected Members on their role as a Corporate Parent to ensure that they

understand the part they play in helping children and young people who are in care to
have the best outcomes.

13

Page-58



4. Smarter Commissioning

In 2013/2014 we are pleased to have had three commissioning strategies approved. All
three strategies aim to support people to maintain their independence, secure good quality
outcomes and achieve value for money.

The Learning Disability Commissioning Strategy 2012 - 2018 adopts the ‘progression
model’. The building blocks of this model are:

. An assessment of the persons abilities and strengths

. Individualised support planning

. Enabling people to be as independent as possible

. Just enough support’ to promote wellbeing and ensure they are safe
. An ethos of promoting independence and positive risk taking

Fundamental to delivering this approach is to give people with learning disabilities more
choice of where they live and who supports them to live as independently and safely as
possible. Service users and carers were amongst the partners who developed the plan
with an initial consultation workshop providing invaluable information about their
expectations and needs. People told us about “living independently” “what makes a good
home”, and about “short term care”. An easy read version of the strategy explains the vision
for the future, how we will get there and how we will know we have achieved the vision from
the perspective of the service user, the commissioner and the provider. As part of this
strategy we are undertaking value for money reviews of our in-house learning

disability services.

The Mental Health Commissioning Strategy 2013 - 2018 builds on a joint
vision with Health. Our strategy will see us build on the strong
foundations to further promote the recovery approach, by increasing
the training, education and work opportunities we offer. Our
Mental Health Services were winners in the Care Council
for Wales Social Care Accolades 2013.

In January 2014 approval was received for Double Click
Design, one of our Mental Health Support Services, to be
developed as a Social Enterprise. As a social enterprise with
primarily social objectives whose surpluses are reinvested for
that purpose in the business or in the community, Double Click
Design will provide a combination of training, placements and
eventually paid employment in IT, graphic design, customer
services, marketing and administration.

Page-59
14



Our Mental Health Services Social Care Accolade 2013

Flintshire Mental Health Support Services was successful in winning a Social Care
Accolade in 2013 in the category “Better Outcomes through Working Together”. The
service is working to embed a recovery orientated approach in the delivery of support
through: Accommodation Support, Social Support and Occupational and Educational
Support. The main aim is to listen to the needs and aspirations of people and to tailor
support to each individual, helping them to achieve personal goals and to have hope in
their lives. Progress includes:

Policy and process

* Arevised statement of purpose with a “Recovery Champion” in each team to promote
the recovery approach and share good practice with their peers

« Team training days focussing on recovery which service users help to deliver. Staff and
service users also attend Wellness Recovery Action Planning training together

* Support plans better record personal goals and achievements

« Service user feedback survey has questions which reflect recovery principles

» Service user led and open access groups have been developed

Joint working

« With Children’s Services to assist in safeguarding children and for parents and children
to have regular safe contact;

»  With Housing to help find accommodation;

* With the voluntary sector leading to services employing volunteers and having close
links with Peer Mentoring scheme and Involve project hosted with Unllais

Outcomes for service users

* During the last year includes: 70 people volunteering, 61 people accessing training, 54
people accessing education, 12 people obtaining paid employment, 8 people accessing
work placements and 2 people being supported to retain their jobs.

Our future plans involve

» Further development of groups run by people with lived experience and the expansion
of peer mentors

» Enabling service users to have better links with and access to community facilities and
more support for people to take up Direct Payments

» Development of social enterprise in order for people to be able to take up paid employ
ment and have valued roles within society

The final adult commissioning strategy to receive approval in 2013 was the Older People
[Dementia Care Long Term Placements] Commissioning Strategy 2013 - 2018. It's focus is
primarily residential care services with the overarching objective being to ensure that
people living with dementia have access to high quality person centred dementia care in
the most appropriate settings to meet their needs and that there is sufficient provision
available within Flintshire’s boundaries. We are undertaking exciting ground breaking work
with local providers including working collaboratively with an independent Home to remodel
the services they provide to adopt a proven model which shows that people with dementia
matter and supports them to have a quality of life. We would want this to be a joint
commissioning strategy with our partners in Health but given that Betsi Cadwaladr
University Health Board extends across the whole of North Wales recognise that we will
need to work towards this goal through a regional collaborative approach, involving Social
Services colleagues in the other five Local Authorities. Shared visions of integrated
services for high cost, low volume placements and community services, specifically joined
up service arrangements that support people early on the ‘Dementia Road’ and as the
illness progresses, are key.

15

Page-66



The “Dementia Road” below clearly illustrates the views of all stakeholders which were
sought as part of the consultation for the commissioning strategy including the views of
people with dementia and their families were instrumental.

The Dementia Road

Being diagnosed

= Early diagnosis & GP screening

= Local specialist semvices

= Timely infarmation and advice for
families! carers F R

The dementia progresses, declining
capacity & mobility; Continence,
health and behaviour problems L

= Infarmed social warkers

= Informed & responsive G Ps

= Infarmation & advice for families [ carers to
help them to continue caring & deal with
Pragressive changes

= Prompt access to services & equipment like
telecare, adaptations, continence supplies

= Timely input from Community Psychiatric
Murses

Codain Zon un srauss fumenes _ Biassds 4
LIV & CEle - g FOLIE a

approach

-Stfnng leadership; friendly & welcoming

staff
*CJpen visiting policy _

=Adopt best practice in person centred
dermeantia care, all staff trained in the
approach

"Life Stories” & staff wha can translate these
inta daily practice

*Families actively involved - see Care
Checker feedback

*Everyone's respansibility, including visiting
families to support residents to stay active
e.g. in running of the home, social activities
=Opportunities to go on outings and take part
in activities

*Residents supported to keep links to their
community

=Care provided in the preferred language
slnvalvement of young people & volunteers
=People can remain in the home as the
illness progresses

1

o
J
¥l
N

3
4
5

Or»r0xn Pr——HZMEMO

Living at home with dementia
= Carers treated as equal partners by all agencies
* Mamed point of contact for family
= Good communication between all agencies
* Quality support at home e g. Living Well
= Consistency in paid carers L)
= Advice & support to carers m
= Respite in own home :
= Dementia friendly communities / activities with
volunteers who have understanding e.g. lunchean
clubs, dementia café, memory support friends, young
people
* Community services e.q. chiropody,
handyman

There might be a time in hospital

= Mumber of moves in hospital kept to a
minimurm

= Hospital staff trained in dementia

= Effective and timely discharges, good
planning with families, carers and care homes

—

L/ Deciding about long term care

= Support at home for as long as possible, including
care at night

= good planning for timely moves, get it right first time
= Informed choice — access to inspection reports,
=Approved Provider list, alternative like Extra Care

= People & families know what "good dementia care”
looks like

= Advice & support from people who understand

= Timely “in reach” from key community based
services to prevent unnecessary hospital

dementia and know the person & family L

= In Flintshire

= Clean and adour free

= Appropriately designed and decarated
for people with dementia

*Space to wander indoars and outside

E> {F se to walk the dog with my granddad)
T

he Home makes use of telecare

Living in a care home - links with
community based services and
Home providers

admissions or move to other home e.g. GPs,
CPMs, OTs, Social workers

= Responsive out of haurs service

= Opportunity for Home providers to meet to
share best practice

Page-61

16



We remain firmly committed to collaborative working through the Regional Commissioning
Hub which includes all local authorities across North Wales and Betsi Cadwaladr
University Health Board to maximise regional capacity and rationalise the costs of high
cost, low volume residential placements that provide quality accommodation and
packages of support. Examples of our regional approach include

. Savings of £300k for the period 2012/2014 for Learning Disability Care
Home placements

. All out of county residential placements for Looked After Children being made via
the Regional Commissioning Hub since May 2013 and our documentation being
adopted by the Hub for use on a wider regional basis.

. Development of a regional framework in Children’s Services and domiciliary and
residential contracts in Adult Services which include quality monitoring outcomes
. Agreeing a business case and specifications to commission a regional advocacy

service for vulnerable children and young people to ensure that their voices are fed
into commissioning intentions, with a view to launch this service early in 2015.

It is important to work in partnership with Providers to improve standards and outcomes
for people who use services and we have successfully worked alongside Providers to sign
off improvement plans where necessary. We place greater emphasis on observing and
evaluating the parts of a service that impact most on people’s daily lives in Care Homes
so we can measure the outcomes achieved for those residents. We have started to apply
a “judgment framework” in recent Monitoring Reports as we believe this approach will aid
the development of a shared understanding of quality and best practice. We also believe
that people who use our services and their families should play a key role in our contract
monitoring process. People are invited to share their views by completing a quality
assurance questionnaire but we want to strengthen involvement and as such we are
asking what people want to see in a contract monitoring report and how they wish to be
involved.

Our collaborative approach has seen positive joint work with the Supporting People Team
to commission a number of initiatives and support services. Examples include:

. Developing an integrated approach for 16-17 year olds who present
as homeless (section 7)

. An Activity Coordinator in Llys Jasmine Extra Care Scheme,
providing activities and events for tenants, supporting healthy
ageing and a stimulating environment whilst promoting two
way community engagement

Page-62



Smarter Commissioning Priorities for 2014 /2015

1.

Further develop our programme of commissioning strategies and market position

statements taking opportunities for collaboration with Health and other partners where

money will be saved and the quality of services is maintained.

Evaluate our “judgement framework” approach in Contract Monitoring to develop a
shared level of understanding of levels of practice

Progress plans to develop agreed Social Enterprises, including Double Click Design
and explore options for the development of further viable social enterprises such as
the Sure Start Créche.

Develop and agree a plan to implement a night support service for people with a
frailty and / or disability to support greater independence, working with health providers
including G.P.s

With partners, launch the regional advocacy service to ensure that the voices of
vulnerable children and young people are heard

Page-63

18



5. A Strong and Professional Workforce

Our workforce will always be our most valuable asset to support people to achieve their
best outcomes and lead independent lives. Modernising to deliver quality services and
meet the challenges ahead must go hand in hand with modernising our workforce. Our
approach to performance management is strong and we are reviewing our strategies for
communication across the workforce to foster shared aims and strengthen close working.
Our investment in training has continued, and 2013/2014 saw increasingly numbers
accessing a range of new training opportunities including:

Wellness Recovery Action Planning

(WRAP)-Popular since its inception in 2008, our
success in adopting the ‘train the trainer’
approach means that we do not incur costs for the
delivery of these courses. In 2013/2014 52

people attended WRAP and we continue to
promote the attendance of staff with people who
use the services to promote communication and
trust. Ten people who use services and four
members of staff have completed the WRAP
Educator course enabling them to deliver the 2
day WRAP course and 14 people have
undertaken the Educator 5 day course.

Dementia

29 members of staff have attended the
Qualifications Credit Framework (QCF) at Level 2 or
3 (19 at level 2 and 10 at level 3). The qualifications
aim to give people an understanding of the
mainfeature of dementia, the principles of a person
centred care and communication with people
withdementia. Understanding and managing
behaviour and to explore relationships. We

continue to deliver dementia awareness training to
wider workforce groups and have pioneered high
level andvanced dementia training for managers,
Occupational threrapists and social workers.
However we are concious that services to meet the
needs of people with dementia continue to evolve
and we will review the delivery of our dementia
training to ensure we continue to be able to equip
staff with the most current knowledge and deliver
quality service.

Direct Payments and

Citizen Direct Support

22 People attended Direct Payments and
Personal Budgeting training. Our second
successful open event in partnership with
a not for profit organisation in November
2013 saw over 100 people attending. The
open event promoted personal budgets,
information about being a personal
assistant and information about employing
personal assistants.

Reablement

Following the successful delivery of an
intense period of Reablement training
in 2012/2013, a further 17 members of
staff have attended Reablement
training this year. The course is
designed to ensure staff have the
appropriate skills, knowledge and
attributes for delivering a
community-based service which
focuseson enablement and increasing
independence.

ooked After Children

A range of courses delivered to 102 members of
staff including foster carers. This includes
courses targeted at the new Transition Team to
ensure staff transfering from Adult services were
fully conversant with LAC requirements. Courses
included Hear to Listen: Hearing the Voice of the
Child: 21 staff, Childrens Advocacy: 19 staff,
Peadiatric First Aid for Foster carers: 5 staff,
Managing emergency foster placements: 9 staff.

Safeguarding

We are piloting the Care Council
Safeguarding Adults & Children
safeguarding awareness course across our
workforce. 165 members of staff have
attended safeguarding training and a further
13 training on The Deprivation of Liberty. Ten
members of staff from Adult services
attended Domestic Abuse Stalking and
Harrassment training which as part of a
coordinated community response to
domestic abuse supports the use of the
standardrisk assessment tool for high risk
victims.

Page-64
19




Independent sector care staff access a range of the courses we provide for free and care
providers we commission support from take up the opportunity to access “training
vouchers” from us. The vouchers enable their staff to access training provided by other
training organisations that meet both our and the Care Council for Wales standards. Our
contracts with the independent sector specify our expectations for training over and above
the minimum standards required by registration with CSSIW and the Workforce
Development Team works with our Commissioning Team to monitor the number of
vouchers being used by different independent sector agencies.

The training of the next generation of social workers is vital
for Flintshire and the work we do with other Welsh
counties has been held aloft in the national press by
central government advisers, as an example of best
practice when supporting student social

workers. Our Workforce Development Team
currently supports 33 students and works
collaboratively with our colleagues in the

region to invest in the future social care

workforce.

Over 150 staff received recognition for
qualifications they have obtained in the last 12
months. We know that people also learn in other
ways and this has been evidenced as part of our
commitment to More Than Just Words. In 2013 we
developed weekly informal conversational Welsh
groups where staff may come to practise existing skills,
learn new ones and develop their confidence. The
conversational groups have been well received,
acknowledging that not everyone learns in the same way and at
the same pace. We know this because comments received are
illustrated by:

“The Welsh Groups are really friendly informal environments. Everyone
is at different levels, but we encourage each other to speak freely so we
are learning from each others pronunciations or mispronunciations...as
is often the case, but it’s all part of the fun. | really enjoy the groups and
would recommend them”.

Page-65
20



Workforce Absence

We continue to make progress with our ongoing priority to address work absence across
Social Services and our panel of senior managers and Human Resource representatives
oversees and proactively manages absence. This approach combined with close working
with Occupational Health, has contributing to the reduction of long term absences. In
December 2013 we were on target to meet 2013/2014 intentions. We will pilot a new
electronic data collection and monitoring system in 2014 to allow us to improve the
management of sickness absence information.

A Strong and Professional Workforce Priorities for 2014 / 2015

1. Pilot and evaluate a new electronic data collection and monitoring system to better
enable us to review the reasons for and rate of absence for the social care work
force and set targets for further reduction

2. Commission the delivery of training and qualifications to ensure the
workforce is equipped to deliver services in accordance with the Social Services
Care and Well Being (Wales) Act and the Welsh Language More Than Just Words
Strategic Framework.

3. Deliver a programme of training to support the Public Law Outline — Evidence
Matters
4. Complete the benchmarking review of our Workforce Development Team to ensure

we are a quality training provider that delivers value for money

D ce
rage-oo
21



6. Stronger Safeguarding

Supporting people to live independent lives in safe communities will rightly always be one
of the Councils main priorities. We have strengthened our Adult Safeguarding Team,
identified as an area for attention by CSSIW, and this has been a positive step forward in
providing a more consistent approach to decision making and application of legislation.
The appointment of a social worker to the Safeguarding Team, whose role is to conduct
person centred investigations and to work alongside the Commissioning Team, is proving
a good use of resources securing positive outcomes for vulnerable people

From 1 April to 31 December 2013 193 vulnerable adults were referred to us, which was
nearly double the number completed in the whole of the previous year. In 99% of these
cases we were able to reduce or remove the risk to the service user; in the remaining
small number of cases people made a personal choice to accept a higher level of risk.

We have brought together our Children’s Safeguarding Managers and Independent
Review Officers into an enhanced Children’s Safeguarding Unit. The Unit has an internal
consultancy role supporting front line staff and our Performance Development Forum
which underpins service development and promotes positive working
relationships. 74 Children’s Social Service staff have
completed training on the new assessment and
screening Risk Model Tool in order that they can
routinely assess and analyse risk of significant
harm. We are implementing processes which
will enable improved reporting on information
from external agencies.

We have recruited a Therapist with specific
remit for Looked After Children to focus on
placements at risk at the point of transition.
This arrangement with Action for Children will
be evaluated in 2014.

D f adaw i
Page-67
22



Another key element in our arrangements to safeguard vulnerable children and families

is our Flintshire Family Project which we commission Action for Children to provide and
who work closely with Children’s Service Managers and the Safeguarding Team. There

has been a change in the nature of referrals to more vulnerable families with children and
young people, who have been subject to, are at risk of or who have witnessed abuse. The
more complex needs arising require longer term therapeutic interventions to enable them to
sustain the effective changes that the referrer and therapist have identified.

What people have told us about the Flintshire Family Project

“l wanted less anger and aggression in the home, better relationships
between my son’s and for them to understand that it is not ok to treat each
other and me they way they do, just because this was what they had grown
up with. We-have learnt to listen to each other and manage our angry
feelings; we have had an opportunity to talk to each other about our past
experiences of domestic abuse and move forward.”  (Parent)

“For her to have an understanding of why she cannot live with her parents
and the role of responsible adults to keep children safe. From the work
done, she began to accept boundaries and guidance rather than shout and
create chaos. It was good to have ongoing feedback and communication
with the therapist. | found the service extremely friendly and professional.”
(Member of staff)

In a challenging climate where the number of children
on the Child Protection Register has continued to
increase all of our key performance indicators for
Children’s Safeguarding remain well above the
All Wales average. All children on the Child
Protection Register have an allocated social
worker, and 98% of these children have had
their child protection plans reviewed within
statutory timescales.

The online postcard system set up by

the Flintshire and Wrexham Local
Safeguarding Children Board

(FWLSCB) enables all stakeholders to

give feedback and it continues to be
promoted. From April to October 2013 25
online postcards were received, tripling the
number received for the same period in 2012.
Enquires ranged from requests for general
information and training, to potential child protection
enquires.

23

Page-68



We recognise that we need to extend the ways in which children and young people locally
can give feedback on their experiences of the child protection system in line with ‘Don’t
Make Assumptions’. \We are looking at how we can use social media to better receive and
evaluate feedback and we are also considering expanding our regional advocacy
arrangements to include other partners including Health to encompass more of our
vulnerable young people.

In March 2014 the Wales Audit Office undertook a National Study on Safeguarding which
included fieldwork in Children’s Social Services in Flintshire and we look forward to
receiving the national findings from the local government study and a local summary for
the Council.

Stronger Safeguarding Priorities for 2014 /2015

1. Explore and confirm options for regional safeguarding arrangements

2. Agree options and implement procedures to take forward cross service
Safeguarding arrangements in Adults and Children’s Service

3. Consider and where appropriate implement recommendations arising from the
Welsh Audit Office Study on Safeguarding.

Page-69

24



7. Driving Forward more Integrated and
Preventative Services

For Adult Social Services:
Intermediate Care

Intermediate Care describes a wide range of services which focus on prevention,
rehabilitation, reablement and recovery and they can help avoid unnecessary hospital
admissions and delayed discharge and inappropriate admission to residential care. We
have secured significant funding from the Welsh Government Intermediate Care Fund for
2014/15. The funding will be targeted at supporting frail older people, to maintain their
independence in their own homes and will have strong integrated working with Health and
our other partners.

The number of adults who have benefited from our Reablement Service has continued to
increase and in 2013, there were a total of 1370 referrals to Reablement; an increase of
46% on 2012. Between April and December 2013, a period of Reablement was competed
for 692 referrals and the chart below shows that 75% of all adult service users completing
a period of Reablement required a package of care which was the same or less than they
had previously, or no package of care.

705 completed outcomes between 1 April and 31 December 2013
18%

O 1.NO FURTHER PACKAGE REQUIRED

59 A

B 2AS5ESSED PACKAGE REDUCED

55% O3 ASEESEED PACKAGE MAINTAINED

1% \

D 4 ASSESEED PACKAGE INCREASED

o ) o O &£DID NOT COMPLETE REAELEMENT
1%

25

Page—r0



A Telehealth case example:

Mrs Jones* is 100 years of age and has a history of chronic kidney disease,
rheumatoid arthritis, osteoporosis and hypertension. She lives alone in her own
bungalow and has had 4 falls recorded in the past six months. The 4th fall resulted in
fractured femur and admission into Countess of Chester Hospital. Following surgery
mobility was reduced with partial weight bearing with a wheeled frame and Mrs Jones
was transferred to Deeside Hospital for rehabilitation and was there for 10 weeks.

The Hospital Social Work Team completed an assessment and identified

Reablement intervention with 4 calls a day. Reablement services started 23rd
December and continued until the end of January. Mrs Jones confidence has returned,
with improved mobility within the home. Mrs Jones is managing all meal times
independently and back to her pre accident routines. Telecare equipment has been
installed and a bath lift provided so that Mrs Jones can bathe independently

Mrs Jones has been informed about Age Connects services, Library Home Services
and will call us when she feels ready to return to her routine shopping trip and we will
assess to rebuild confidence with outdoor mobility.

Mrs Jones said “| have been very happy with the service and all are very nice, it has
been excellent”.

Granddaughter said “Flintshire Social Services have been very good | must say”.
(*Names have been changed to ensure client confidentiality)

Telecare and Telehealth

Telecare supports independence and facilitates less intrusive support in people’s lives

through a range of sensors and detectors. Carers are also supported to be able to continue
with their caring role. As part of our Reablement approach, we have seen a steady growth

in the number of people using Telecare to 198 for the period April to September 2013 as

compared to 166 for the same period in 2012 and 115 in 2011, an increase over 2 years of

72 %.

Number of people using Telecare services

April to September April to September April to September

2011 2012 2013

hY
N
H

26



All young people with disabilities in transition from Children’s to Adult Services are
assessed for Telecare equipment enabling them to be more independent and in control
of their own lives.

We chair the North Wales Regional Telecare Programme Board which has been extended
to include the trial of Telehealth. Telehealth equipment helps people with chronic conditions
to live as safely and independently as possible in the community, accommodating timely
safe discharge from hospital and supports the prevention of avoidable and unnecessary
hospital admissions. We have invested in increasing our capacity to hold a store of
Telecare and Telehealth equipment locally so that we are able to respond efficiently to
more local people. This is evidenced by the increased number of people accessing
Telehealth equipment in Flintshire, 46 people with equipment in December 2013

compared to 12 people in December 2012, an increase of 74%.

A Telehealth case example:

Mr Smith* has chronic lung disease and his Telehealth equipment is connected to the local
authority Care Connect Monitoring Centre.

The Nurse Case Manager was alerted by messages picked up automatically on her mobile
phone that although his vital signs readings were within the range set as appropriate for his
condition, he had given negative answers to questions asked. She was able to quickly visit

and it was obvious that his condition had been aggravated. Swift treatment was put in place
avoiding the need for unplanned hospital admission over the weekend.

Patients struggling to breathe often do not wish to use the telephone to speak with anyone,
however with Telehealth equipment, readings can be reviewed and trends analysed.

As patients live with their chronic diseases each day, Telehealth encourages self
empowerment via use of the equipment coupled with a Nurse Case Manager to educate,
encouraging pro-activeness and more control of their own health.

Mr Smiths GP receives summaries of his condition and intervention and is able to scan
them onto his records to ensure they are up to date.
(*Name has been changed to ensure client confidentiality)

27

Y
N
N



Extra care

In October 2013 we opened our second Extra Care Scheme in partnership with Wales and
West Housing Association (WWHA) in Mold. The scheme provides 63 apartments and
bungalows, including 15 apartments specially designed for people with dementia providing
person centred flexible support. We believe we are the first in Wales to offer this model of
support for people with dementia and are pleased that initial feedback from tenants is very
positive. Everyone moving into Llys Jasmine is offered a period of Reablement to maximise
their independence and well being.

Page—73

28



A selection of comments received in the first weeks after opening:

“In just over 3 weeks of living in her new home, independence has
improved from having 4 calls a day to “pop ins” to check all is ok”

“Her skin care has never been so good” District Nurse

‘I have never heard my mum laugh so much for years” Daughter

Our next plan for Llys Jasmine is to establish a Dementia Café which will provide a
resource for tenants and for people with dementia living in the community and their carers
and families. We are currently developing plans for a further two Extra Care schemes in
Flintshire by 2016/2017.

People with learning disabilities, physical disabilities and acquired brain injury have told us
they want more choice in where they live and who they live with (section 4). During 2013 we
have worked with First Choice Housing Association and people with learning disabilities to
scope different models of accommodation and support and in 2014/2015 we will be
working with the Housing Association to ensure the development of a small apartment
complex enables people to live as independently as possible in their own homes. People
with physical disabilities and acquired brain injury were fully involved in the retendering of
their support for supported living arrangements, choosing to use Direct Payments to give
them more flexibility.

Locality Working

We have continued to strengthen our joint working with Health and in December 2013 the
first co-located team of Social Workers, Occupational Therapists and Districts Nurses
became based within Holywell Community Hospital. This approach improves
communication and our effectiveness of working together. The second team will be
co-located in 2014/2015 and the final locality team in 2015/2016.

Enhanced Care at Home (HECSs) is a core element of the locality working model which we
implemented in our North West locality area in September 2013 with the two other locality
areas following by the summer of 2014. HECs brings together our Reablement Team and
the Crises Intervention Team from Health and provides short term “step up” intensive
community based care as a realistic alternative to hospital admission or “step down”
support to enable early discharge from hospital. The service has been welcomed

as illustrated:

“This service is second to none! The peace of mind it gives is
fabulous. My mother was comfortable in her home and cared for
and monitored in the same way as she would have been in hospital.
Thank you all very much’.

29

U
~
1N



The partnership approach we have taken with Health in locality working demonstrates our
commitment to the integration of care for older people. We have developed our local plan
to take forward the regional Statement of Intent on Integrated Care for Older People with
Complex Needs so that we can deliver better outcomes for older people, ensuring that they
have a positive experience of care and support and equality of service.

Recovery Approach

The recovery approach focuses on wellbeing, identifying the strengths people have to build
on to achieve meaningful lives and not become dependent on long

term social care irrespective of their mental health problems.
We recognised that we needed to do more to fully embed
the recovery approach for people with mental health
problems to enable them to help to manage their own
recovery.

Our Feedback survey in 2013 indicated that 76%

of respondents felt that they had received enough
support from the services and all indicated that they
wanted to become more independent and to move
further along in their recovery by undertaking valued
roles within society. We have prioritised supporting
people to access information, find paid and

voluntary work, education and training from the
feedback received and our Commissioning Plan reflects
this. We know that the recovery approach continues to
deliver positive outcomes because people have told us:

“Both, Double Click and Growing Places are encouraging and
supportive. Neither judge people and treat everyone equally. | feel
very lucky to be part of them”.

“The ongoing work is helping me to fit into society, building my
confidence and independence”.

Our Recovery approach was widely recognised when we won a national Social Care
Accolade, reflecting the continued, genuine commitment of all members of the team to
work in true partnership with the person as well as with partner organisations to ensure
pathways out of services (section 4). In further recognition of this wonderful achievement
and our approach we have been invited to speak about it at a UK wide Mental Health
conference in December 2014.

Page—+5
30



Mental Health Measure

In 2013/2014 we have worked with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board on the Mental
Health (Wales) Measure (Welsh Government legislation), focussing on Assessment and
Care Planning to ensure we adopt a recovery ethos and the further embedding of the
recovery approach across all services.

Single Point of Access

Flintshire is the host organisation for a regional programme to

transform access to Health and Social Care by the development of a Single Point of
Access (SPOA) programme. SPOA will create a new streamlined system across North
Wales providing equal access to advice, assessment and community health and social
care services. Key principles will be people and families getting the right support, in the
right place, at the right time. The SPOA will be developed regionally but delivered locally.
We have appointed a project manager to take the development forward in Flintshire and
envisage the SPOA will build on our already well established First Contact team. Our target
is to launch SPOA in Flintshire by 2016.

For Children’s Social Services

We have continued to make progress in embedding our model of early
intervention that supports the whole family. The initiatives will mean
better outcomes for children and value for money as fewer children
will need to go into care. Here is a summary of the initiatives we have
in place:

The Families First Programme

The Families First Programme reduces the impact of poverty on families in
Flintshire and is making sound progress and the new Challenging Years
programme offers support to parents of teenagers.

The Taith Y Teulu Team support families in need who do not meet the threshold for
Children’s Services. They are fully operational and working to support families referred to
them by the Team around the Family Project.

In September 2013 we held an event to publicise our QUEST and NOVUS projects. The
projects provide complementary support, concentrating on parents, particularly single
parents, to help support them to get out of unemployment and back into the work place, by
enabling them to develop the skills required by their personal development plan, including
communication, numeracy and literacy.

“It has been very beneficial to me and inspirational. | know it will help
me and my children in the future”.

“I have struggled to find what it was | wanted to do when | go to work
but now | have a definite plan”.

31

Page—76



ovr new/
cleter

The Sure Start Créche Service continues to deliver services to
enable parents to attend courses. The long term aim is to develop
this into a Social Enterprise and discussions are ongoing to take
this forward.

Finally in December 2013 as part of the Families First initiative we
submitted a bid to the Lottery scheme to expand the delivery of
family focussed services from the Gronant Centre.

Integrated Family Support Service

Our Integrated Family Support Service (IFSS) was formally launched with

Wrexham in September 2013. The first such initiative in North Wales it provides support
to vulnerable families to improve their quality of life chances through an integrated family
focussed

multi-agency approach which bridges Children’s and Adults services in local authorities
and health. The IFSS enables parents to improve their parenting capacity and can involve
the wider family.

Children in Need

As part of our ongoing commitment to organisational value for money reviews we
commissioned an independent consultant to review and benchmark our Supervised
Contact Arrangements for Children in Need. We will now explore the benefits of developing
a specific Child in Need Team.

Flying Start

Multi agency teams deliver the Flying Start Programme with eligible parents
of 2 — 3 year olds receiving quality free childcare, parenting support, an
enhanced health visitor service and help for early language
development. Construction of a new Flying Start Centre in Deeside
began in January 2014 and is due to open in September 2014. It
doubles the number of local children who are able to receive childcare
services and facilities with the full range of services under one roof.
We are encouraged by the Deputy Minister for Tacking Poverty’s
comments that the Flying Start programme is progressing well

in Flintshire.

Flintshire Fostering Service

We have completed a full and detailed Systems Thinking review of our

Flintshire Fostering Service following a positive inspection report from CSSIW. Six options
for change were presented to the Modernising Social Services Board in October 2013 and
an action plan has been developed and progress will be reviewed in 2014.

Page—7+
32



We received a positive annual report from CSSIW and came second in the inaugural
Grandparents Association Local Authority Kinship Care Awards in 2013. CSSIWs 2014
inspection of our Fostering Service was again very positive. Our pool of foster carers has
continued to increase with the figure now standing at 102 approved carers.

Our electronic training facility for Kinship carers deliv
gone from strength to strength with over 120 licences

ed through a specialist provider has
being issued to carers to complete

Flintshire visit www.flintshire.gov.uk/foster.

Volunteer Mentor Project

over 18 months. 36 young people received support from 3
volunteer from April to December 2013.

We know the volunteer mentor service works because all
the young people who have completed a survey would
recommend it to other young people and could state one
way in which having a mentor had helped them.

Homes for our Care Leavers

The Housing support needs of our care leavers is important to us and the impact of
Welfare Reforms heightens the need to ensure appropriate accommodation given the
increased restrictions placed upon the payment of benefits to this group of young people.
Our aim is to see an expansion of the housing options on offer for all our care leavers who
will be equipped with skills to live independently. We continue to work in collaboration with
Housing to address the issue and this includes completing joint assessments within agreed
protocols with the Supporting People Team.

Following a commissioned report from the British Association for Adoption and Fostering
on a review of supported lodging schemes in Flintshire we have developed Nightstop which
provides a safe alternative to bed & breakfast accommodation in a family home for 16 — 18
year olds. Between April 2013 and the end of February 2014 270 nights of accommodation
support were provided with over £2,000 savings in accommodation costs. Positive move on
outcomes were achieved for the nine young people supported.

We are working to develop joint systems with the Housing Options team to support young
people between the ages of 18 — 24 who are recognised under the Children (Leaving Care)
Act 2000 or Southwark Judgement.

33

Page—78



nsition

Our joint Transition Team across Children’s and Adult Services has been operational since
July 2012 with staff members transferred and relocated to one team. Initially young people
with disabjlities over the age of 16 transferred to the Transition and we are now working
towards all\young people transferring at 14 years. An independent review of the new
service showed we were making positive progress to provide consistent services for young
people with disabilities. We await the recommendations from the North Wales collaborative
research on ggeless disability services which we expect in summer 2014 to further inform
best practice.|This will be considered alongside feedback from the young people and their
families and the independent review of the Team to inform future

Flintshire.

The Youth/Justice Service

The Council has identified Community Safety as one of its eight priorities and in 2013/2014
our aim was to improve victim engagement within the restorative justice process,

reducing the fear of crime, supporting victims and encouraging mediation opportunities.
The Youth Justice Service (YJS) have set up a reporting system to capture work
undeptaken with victims of crime and we are reviewing our victim strategy to set targets for
2014/2015. The multi agency YJS continues to work closely with partners and other
gencies, including Children’s Services in order to secure the best possible outcomes for
young people and their families. Case managers have a particular knowledge and
expertise in dealing with young people who display sexally harmful behaviours and work
cases in partnership with Action for Children.

“Flintshire Sorted” - Young People’s Drug and Alcohol Team continues to develop its range
of services to minimise the impact of substance misuse by children and young people.
Dedicated ‘Link’ staff at secondary schools across Flintshire support the
education and awareness of drug and alcohol issues. Targeted
support is provided for young people at increased risk and less
resilience of using substances. “Flintshire Sorted” is the only
referral based service for young people with identified
substance misuse issues that impact on their lives and 1-1
referrals are received from all agencies with young people
assessed and treatment interventions are provided within the
national time frames.

N wial
rage—71Y
34



Driving forward more Integrated and Preventative Services Priorities for 2014/2015

1.

Agree plans to extend our extra care provision by providing two more schemes with
60 units in each location and establish a Dementia Café at Llys Jasmine to provide a
resource for people living with dementia and their carers both in extra care and in
the wider community.

Progress the Single Integrated Plan (SIP) in the three localities through improved
communication and agreed governance arrangements to address the key health,
social care and well being needs of the population and implement our local plan
to take forward our commitment to the Statement of Intent on Integrated Care for
Older People with Complex Needs

Further progress the locality model of working, including Enhanced Care Services
(ECS) and maintain our successful Reablement and Recovery approaches, through
extended local use of Telecare and Telehealth technologies and Intermediate

Care Funding

Complete the review of the Children’s teams and Flintshire Fostering Service to
provide better outcomes by providing timely and effective support to children and
families in need and improve the customer experience

Work with our partners to develop alternative housing and support models to meet
the housing needs of care leavers, other young people and people with disabilities

Through the Integrated Family Support Service use a whole family approach to
reduce the numbers of Looked After Children and care proceedings and reduce
re-referral rates

As part of the Families First Initiative and pending the outcome of the Lottery bid,
consider options to expand the delivery of family focussed services from the
Gronant Centre

Work collaboratively with regional partners to develop and agree a Single Point of
Access (SPOA) Plan for Adult Services in Flintshire

35

Page-86



8. Evidencing our Improvement

We assess and evidence how our services are improving in a variety of different ways.
They include:

External inspection:
For 2013 these have included

Arofsa our short break facility for young people with disabilities which received

an unannounced inspection in April. The inspection report was very positive with
inspectors noting “there is a strong sense of person centred care, because there are
detailed systems in place to identity the individual requirements of the young people
using the service”.

Our three residential homes for older people all received positive reports with

particular reference to the recruitment of volunteers extending the range and number of
activities on offer and staff having more engagement in their role as key workers leading
to greater understanding of the expected outcomes of the activity for each person.

CSSIW (Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales) Annual Council
Performance Evaluation. This evaluation is in response to the Director of Community
Services’ Annual Performance Report for Social Services (ACRF) 2012, drawing on
various evidence including improvement plans, audit reports and inspection reports, and
the regulatory work of CSSIW completed during the year. The report sets out the areas
of progress and areas for development for Flintshire Social Services, for the year
2012-13. We were pleased with the final evaluation, which notes the council is forward
looking and innovative. Inspectors recognised we continue to make progress in a
number of key areas and are able to evidence a range of positive outcomes which have
been delivered through our strategic modernisation of services. We were proud to note
the Inspectors recognition that our performance against a significant range of national
indicators remains amongst the best in Wales. The evaluation also noted our intention
for more people to live independently through Reablement and the development of a
range of preventative services and provision of good support to young people leaving
care and access to accommodation has improved.

Internal assessment

Monitoring of the Directorate, Head of Service Plans (HOS) and internal plans. Senior
managers monitor their progress and report on this to Social Care and Health Overview
and Scrutiny Committee, and reflect how well we are performing in our priority areas.
Our Modernising Social Services Board oversees and drives forward service change
contributing to the Councils priorities, in particular the Living Well priorities that the
department leads on.

The Outcome Agreement. This includes themes that are a priority for our Directorate
Improved quality and length of life, with fairer outcomes for all - Good social care allows
people a better quality of life - Children and young people grow up as active citizens and
achieve the highest possible standards of wellbeing.

Page-8%
36



« Compliments, Complaints and other service user feedback. In order to improve
services, we need to know what users think. We use this feedback to inform the
decisions we make about the way we deliver our services.

« Strateqgic Equality Plan 2012 to 2016. Our Strategic Equality Plan details the
objectives, actions and targets we must deliver on to fulfil our statutory public sector
duties under the Equality Act 2010 to advance equality and eliminate discrimination.

Managing our Performance

2013 has seen us embed our improved performance management structure and
processes. All performance information from across both Adults and Children’s services is
consolidated and regularly presented to the Senior Management Teams and the Quarterly
Performance Forums to highlight best practice and identify areas for improvement. Our
performance is strong overall and we have made improvements in 2013/2014 against the
national set of performance indicators, as detailed in our Directorate Plan 2012-2016.

In 2013/2014 we have reduced the times taken to deliver major adaptations which are
important for people’s independence at home. Between April and December 2013 64 major
adaptations were completed in owner occupied properties; this is slightly fewer than in the
same period last year. However, we have reduced the time that people have to wait, and
the average time taken to complete a major adaptation was 230 days. This is better than
the All Wales average of 271 days and an improvement on our average for last year.

Average number of days taken to deliver a Disabled
Facilities Grant

500 -
450
400
350
300
250
200 -
150
100

50 -

Ql | @ | B | ¥ o | @ 8| ¥ o @ 3
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

37

Page-82



The project to pilot a Social Services Inspection Agency (SSIA) ‘Outcomes Framework’ for
child protection ended in July 2013. The focus of the project was on child protection
planning and delivery that is outcome focussed for the young person and not process
driven. Social workers recorded the project has resulted in them having an increased
understanding of outcomes and the outcome led approach which has seen a move away
from needs or service led practice. On a wider level the project has recommended to SSIA
that an outcome led approach be more widely delivered across Wales, having the potential
to be transformative for people who use services and social workers alike.

You have already read about some of our main areas for improvement in Children’s and
Adult Social Services and we have included below further examples from 2013 which we
believe evidence our continuing improvement.

* The Modernising Social Services Board commissioned two successful Systems
Thinking reviews. Systems Thinking acknowledges that performance is governed by
how a service is designed and most importantly the approach starts with the customer,
what do they want from the service, rather than what works for the service. The review
of our Flintshire Fostering Service resulted in us improving and streamlining the process
for training and approving foster carers, making it shorter and simpler for applicants with
less likelihood that they will drop out of the process. We have also changed the way we
supply foster carers with the equipment needed by each child or young person, making
this more straightforward. We also used the Systems Thinking process to review our
Financial Assessment and Charging Team (FACT) processes. We found out that the
most frequent contact was from people who use services whose circumstances had
changed, resulting in queries about charges for services. We have been able to achieve
a number of “quick wins” to streamline our processes to address this and have an action
plan to take forward more improvements.

» We have improved our “front door” service in 2013/2014 within the context of a
significant increase in the number of referrals received. In 2012/13 there were 709
referrals compared to 1,220 in 2013/2014. Positively for all children referred to us a
decision was made for 99.2% of referrals within one working day and 85% of initial
assessments are completed within seven working days. This means that children,
young people and their families receive the support they need and others are
signposted appropriately as soon as possible.

+ We have worked hard to improve the stability of placements for children looked after by
the Local Authority with 6.5% of children experiencing three or more changes of
placement. Sometimes placements do break down and a change of placement can be
a positive move for the individual, for instance where they move to a longer term
arrangement. 97% of our Looked After Children had a Permanency Plan at their second
review, an increase from 94% in 2012/2013. Whilst there has been an increase in the
number of looked after children moving school during 2013/2014 we know that some of
the changes were a ‘managed’ move to prevent permanent exclusions to keep children
in education. The others were ‘foster placement’ or ‘returning to parents’ moves with
education provision in the new home community rather than continue to travel distances
to former home placements.

Page-83



With respect to the Looked After Children and young people, we have a number of high
profile performance indicators and all of these are currently performing above target. All
our targets for safeguarding are set above the All Wales average and Flintshire’s
performance is among the best in Wales against the national indicators for safeguarding
children. We have achieved this in a challenging climate where the number of children
on the Child Protection Register has continued to increase.

We work in partnership with Barnardos to identify children and young people who have
a caring role and whilst this is a positive service we need to enhance and extend the
take up.

Providing aids and adaptations to people is crucial to improving independence. The self
assessment project gives people control over the assessment process and enables
people to identify the need for small pieces of equipment and minor adaptations such as
grab rails and stair rails to help with everyday activities. Introduced in April 2013 it offers
a fast track service for people who have low level needs which could be met without the
need for a face to face assessment. In the first six months, 97 referrals were received
for self assessment. Of those that resulted in an intervention, 72% were provided with
equipment or a minor adaptation without the need for a home visit. Over 90% of people
felt that their needs had been met fully in this way and almost three quarters found the
form easy or very easy to complete (73%). We are continuing to offer self assessment
for small pieces of equipment in Adult Services and are monitoring the impact it has on
our minor adaptations programme. We are considering piloting this approach in
Children’s Services.

We commissioned with an independent provider who said they could competitively
supply and fit minor adaptations across the County thereby assisting in maintaining
people in their own homes. We received positive feedback from customers who
experienced the service with 100% of respondents said they were “very satisfied”. We
have decided to extend the pilot to undertake a continued in depth evaluation of the
service and ensure we are receiving best value for money with a view to going out to
tender locally or regionally in the longer term.

Evidencing Our Improvement Priorities for 2014 / 2015

1.

Improve the timeliness of major adaptations and evaluate the impact of the
extended minor adaptations and self assessment projects to inform further
service improvements and options to increase people’s independence.

Further improve the data collection for Carers and Young Carers to meet the
outcomes for the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure

Consider the findings of research underway on parent’s perceptions of the Child
Protection process and take appropriate action.

Develop a coherent quality assurance framework which draws together information
about the quality of our services into a single quarterly report

39

:



9. Glossary

Cabinet - The Council’s Cabinet comprises 8 Elected Members. Each Elected Member,
supported by a Lead Director and accountable Heads of Service / Managers, is assigned a
portfolio of Council services / functions. The roles and responsibilities of Cabinet

Members in respect of their portfolio is to: lead, with their respective Directors, their
assigned set of portfolio services/functions, lead key corporate priorities according to the
Improvement Priorities and Assessment of Strategic Risks and Challenges (SARC),
participate in and lead county and regional partnerships and actively participate in the
national agenda e.g. WLGA, Ministerial meetings, conferences etc.

Care Council - The Care Council for Wales is the social care workforce regulator in Wales
responsible for promoting and securing high standards across the social services and
social care workforce.

CSSIW (Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales) — established in 2007, the
powers and functions of CSSIW are enabled through legislation. CSSIW has the powers
to review Local Authority social services at a local and national level, to inform the public
whether services are up to standard, to promote improvement of services and to help
safeguard the interests of vulnerable people who use services and their carers. They
provide professional advice to Welsh Ministers and policy makers.

Citizen Directed Support - It is where people choose, organise and control their own
support to meet assessed and agreed social care needs in a way that suits them with an
identified budget. It is about using available resources to achieve what is important to them.
The service package can be made up of statutory and other services.

Commissioning - involves making decisions about what services are required to respond
to need. It involves making decisions about the capacity, location, cost and quality of
services, together with who will deliver them.

Collaborate - where agencies pool resources (time, expertise and money) to work together
to deliver and develop services.

Corporate Parent - The Council has a duty to act as a good parent to children and young
people in its care and those young people in the process of leaving care. The Council
wants these children to have the best possible outcomes. Clear strategic and political
leadership is crucial in ensuring that Looked After Children and the Corporate Parenting
agenda is given the appropriate profile and priority.

Direct Payments — Cash payments given to people who are eligible as a means of
controlling their own care, allowing more choice and flexibility. They are regular monthly
payments from Social Services enabling people to purchase their own care, instead of
receiving help arranged by social services.

Domiciliary Care contract - A single regional contract for care in the home being
developed in partnership with Local Authorities, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board
and the Independent Sector. This means that all providers work to the same standard and
service specification.

N (@Y
rageoo
40



Enhanced Care - forms part of the spectrum of intermediate community based services,
but specifically provides care at the ‘far end’ of this spectrum for people who have

medical and/or nursing needs who, without enhanced care, would otherwise be admitted to
a hospital bed or would remain in hospital for a longer period of time . (This includes people
admitted to an acute hospital bed and those who are admitted / transferred to a community
hospital bed).

Extra Care Scheme — extra care schemes provide independent living for some older
people in Flintshire and apartments can be purchased by or rented to people aged 60+
who have care and accommodation needs. Llys Eleanor, our first extra care scheme, was
developed by Flintshire County Council in partnership with the Pennaf Housing Group and
provides 50 one and two bedroom apartments and a range of communal facilities. Llys
Jasmine, our second innovative extra care scheme opened to accommodate its first tenants
in October 2013. Developed in partnership with Wales & West Housing the scheme proves
a total of 63 apartments and bungalows of which 15 are specifically designed for people
with

dementia. Both schemes feature state of the art alarm systems and 24 hour care is
available on site.

Families First Initiative - Improving the delivery of services to families across Wales,
especially those living in poverty, as set out in the Welsh Assembly Government’s Child
Poverty Strategy 2010.

Full Council — The full council comprises all elected Flintshire County Councillors and is
the ultimate decision making body.

Integrated Family Support Service - An innovative service model that aims to reform
services provided to vulnerable children and families. For families with complex problems
there is an increased likelihood that the child’s physical, social and emotional development
will be impaired and for some children there will be repeated or long term episodes of
being looked after by the local authority. The main aim of IFSS is to support families to stay
together by empowering them to take positive steps to improve their lives.

Just enough support (Right sizing) - The right sizing assessment process aims to
ensure an outcome focussed personalised approach is taken so that people receive the
right amount of support to be as independent as possible — the right amount of support, at
the right time and in the right place.

Locality Leadership Teams — There are three teams in Flintshire - North East (Deeside),
North West (Flint and Holywell) and South (Buckley, Mold etc).The overall aim of the
Locality Leadership Teams is to enable multi-agency staff from the locality to work in
partnership as an integrated team to plan, deliver and monitor the best possible locality
services for residents by:

1) Maintaining independence and wellbeing at home and in the community as appropriate,
and avoiding unnecessary admissions to hospital and long term care

2) Improving the multi-disciplinary care of people with chronic conditions and

3) Targeting resources more effectively in the community to include a range of health
promotion and preventative interventions.

M

Page-86



Local Service Board — A local Leadership Team of Flintshire’s public service bodies
(Council, Police, BCU Health Board, Further and Higher Education, Probation, Fire and
Rescue, Environment Agency, Voluntary Sector). It has four principal roles as a set of local
leaders: to take ownership of the community strategy; provide oversight and monitoring of
relevant partnerships; identify common issues as public bodies/employers and promote
effective joint working in the design and provision of public services.

Looked After Child (LAC) - Looked after children are children and young people who are
in public care and looked after by the state. This includes those who are subject to a care
order or temporarily classed as looked after on a planned basis for short breaks or respite
care. The term is also used to describe ‘accommodated’ children and young people who
are looked after on a voluntary basis at the request of, or by agreement with, their parents.

Market Position Statement — Informs the Care Provider market of the local authorities
commissioning and service priorities based on the evaluation of data and evidence for
current demand and possible future trends in services. The data presented should help
providers to develop effective business plans.

Mental Health (Wales) Measure - The proposed Measure places duties on Local Health
Boards and local authorities in Wales in relation to assessment of mental health and
treatment of mental disorder. It also makes provision in relation to independent mental
health advocacy for qualifying patients — those are persons subject to the compulsory
powers of the Mental Health Act 1983, and persons receiving treatment in hospital
(suffering with a mental disorder).

Minor and Major Adaptations - Minor Adaptation is an adaptation which costs under
£1000 such as a grab rail or level access shower (not equipment). A Major Adaptation is
over £1000 and would be through the Disabled Facilities Grant or if a Housing Association
tenant through Scheme 1A which is Welsh Government funded (e.g. bathroom, kitchen or
bedroom extension, stair-lift or lift)

More Than Just Words — A strategic framework for Welsh language services in health
and social care in Wales, developed by the Welsh Government. The framework outlines
the current position and provides a systematic approach to improve services for those who
need or choose to receive their care in Welsh

Outcome - The benefits, changes or other effects that result in an improvement in quality
of life for the person from services provided. E.g. an improvement in physical functioning or
maintaining a life skill leading to continued independence

Prevention — The prevention approach enhances the persons well being by preventing or
minimising major problems of living. Providing information for people to self manage
alongside early intervention before problems escalate, monitoring and proportionate risk
assessment means that problems are reduced and the need for ongoing longer term
support is minimised.

N 0O ~7
| (O N |
9 42



Provider Administered Direct Payments - Avoid the need for people who use services to
manage the financial aspects of their care or to become an employer of a personal
assistant with these tasks being taken on by the care provider.

Reablement - Reablement is an approach which aims to maximise independence, choice
and quality of life. This means that all people who wish to access Social Care Services
undergo a period of assessment and support to enable them to live as independently as
possible, thus minimising the requirement for ongoing support. Reablement is a short term
assessment and intervention service which is person centred and outcome focused. As
such the duration of the Reablement will vary for each person (from a few days to a
maximum period of six weeks). During the Reablement phase there will be regular reviews
to assess progress against agreed outcomes.

Regional Commissioning Hub - A collaboration of the six North Wales’ authorities for the
commissioning and contracting of high cost low volume care home placements for adults
and children.

Rehabilitation — Rehabilitation means taking effective and appropriate measures including
through a variety of support, to enable people to attain and maintain their maximum
independence, full physical, mental, social and vocational ability, and full inclusion and
participation in all aspects of life.

Scrutiny Committee — Decisions are usually made by the Cabinet for all issues including
major policy matters. The role of Overview and Scrutiny is to hold the Cabinet to account as
a critical friend and to monitor/ assist in the improvement and development of the council’s
policies and services. Under the Local Government Act 2000 the Local Authority must have
at least one Overview and Scrutiny Committee. There are six Overview and Scrutiny
Committees in Flintshire of which the Social and Health Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee is the one relevant to this report.

Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act - The Act will set out the core legal
framework for social services and social care, reinforcing people’s rights to information and
services and supporting the delivery of our services in an integrated way to ensure that
social services and social care are sustainable.

Strategic Equality Plan - In producing our plan we meet our statutory Public Sector
Equality Duties under the Equality Act 2010 to advance equality, eliminate unlawful
discrimination, victimisation and harassment, and foster good community relations in our
employment, policy, procurement and service delivery functions. The Strategic Equality
Plan replaces and builds upon the progress we have made through the previous

Equality Schemes. The Strategic Equality Plan alongside the Diversity and Equality Policy
and Welsh Language Scheme sets out the Council’'s commitment to equality. The Strategic
Equality Plan is integrated across the ten Council improvement priorities.

43

Page-88



Supporting People Team — The team ensure the Supporting People Programme Grant
(SPPG) from the Welsh Government funds the most appropriate housing related support
services in the county to maximise outcomes for people. This includes support to
vulnerable people to enable them to maintain their independence in the community and to
prevent homelessness.

Telecare - is a way in which support can be provided through telecommunication devices
in the home. It uses simple technology to manage risk and give people the peace of mind
they need to live in their own homes for longer. Telecare equipment is provided through
Community Equipment Stores and fitted and monitored by Carelink. There are currently
over 400 homes in Flintshire with Telecare as part of an assessed care package

Page-89

44



supporting mental health

EDoubleClick

o FoBRE oo com




Agenda Item 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER, SOCIAL SERVICES

SUBJECT: FLINTSHIRE CHILDCARE SUFFICIENCY

ASSESSMENT 2014 - 2017

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To inform Members of the findings of the Flintshire Childcare
Sufficiency Assessment for the period 2014-2017.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Childcare Act 2006 underpins the Welsh Assembly Government’s
childcare strategy “Childcare is for Children” and enshrines in law:

e Parents legitimate expectation of accessible high quality
childcare for children and their families; and

e Local Authorities’ responsibilities for providing information to
parents and prospective parents to support their parenting role.

2.02 The intention of the Act is to place a duty on Local Authorities in
Wales to secure, as far as is reasonably practicable, sufficient
childcare to meet the requirements of parents in their area who
require childcare in order to train, to work, or to prepare for work. The
Act provides the Assembly with powers to make regulations requiring
Local Authorities in Wales to prepare assessments of childcare
sufficiency in their areas.

2.03 This Assessment of Childcare Sufficiency executes Flintshire County
Council’s obligations under Section 26 the Childcare Act (2006). It
identifies gaps and makes recommendations that will meet the needs
of parents so that the Authority can fulfil its childcare sufficiency duty.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 The duties on Flintshire County Council to manage the local childcare
market need to be taken seriously and resourced appropriately.
Childcare should be recognised as a crosscutting issue that benefits
the wider economy and community as much as individual children and
families.

Page 91



3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

6.02

This assessment of sufficiency suggests that the childcare market is
functioning adequately across much of the County in meeting the
needs of most working parents. However, there are areas where there
are shortfalls in the volume or type of childcare. Here, childcare is
insufficient to meet not only the demands of working parents, but also
insufficient to break down the barriers to work or training that a lack of
childcare creates for families not in work.

In the majority of areas, the role of the Authority should be in
monitoring levels of supply against changing demand; providing
information; and ensuring high levels of quality.

Through partnership working with Communities First, Jobcentre Plus,
Families First Projects the Childcare Development Group aims to
target groups of parents who need intensive support, or specific
localities where the market is not functioning. This could make a
difference to families and their ability to participate and contribute to
the local economy, and to raise children out of poverty.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To advise Members of the Council’s Childcare Sufficiency Audit 2014-
2017.

Members note the contents of the report and support the on-going
work being undertaken by the Childcare Development Group in
working towards addressing the recommendations in the audit of
sufficiency.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Funding to support the childcare market in Flintshire comes from the
following sources:

FCC Childcare budget

FCC Early Education budget

Welsh Government Flying Start Grant

Welsh Government Out of School Childcare Grant
HMRC via childcare tax credits

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Access to childcare can be a barrier which prevents parents/carers
from accessing training and/or employment. The Flintshire Assisted
Places Scheme provides families on low incomes with financial
support to assist them in paying for a childcare place

The Family Information Service provide information to families to
enable them to access information about help with childcare costs.

Page 92



7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.03

11.04

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There are no environmental impacts as a direct result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The report takes into account the diverse needs of the population of
Flintshire and it considers how childcare can be made accessible to:

Children with a disability

Children from minority ethnic groups
Welsh speaking children

Children in rural areas

Children of lone parents

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct personnel implications for Flintshire County
Council as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

The Childcare Act 2006 places a duty on local authorities to assess
the sufficiency of childcare provision to enable parents to access
employment or training. There is a requirement that consultation is
undertaken to gather the views of:

Parents
Children/Young people
Employers

Childcare providers

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Between October 2013 and February 2014, a consultation exercise
took place to establish the views of parents and carers.

An electronic survey was publicised to all parents of children in
Flintshire via schools, through existing childcare provision, local press,
County Council website and Twitter account, local employers and in a
number of other locations where parents meet.

Face-to-face consultation took place through existing structures such
as parent and toddler groups; integrated centres; family learning
groups in schools; pre-schools; health clinics and other locations
where parents were already meeting.

Parents in more deprived areas and in marginalised groups (such as
parents of disabled children) were targeted to provide balance against
the likelihood that fewer parents in these areas and groups would

Page 93



11.05

11.06

11.07

11.08

11.09

12.00

12.01

return surveys.

Feedback gathered throughout 2013-2014, from parents who access
assistance with the costs of childcare has also been incorporated.

Childcare providers were engaged through a telephone survey carried
out between September 2013 and December 2013. They were
representative of types of provision as well as geographically spread
across the authority.

Children and young people were engaged in consultation about their
views of childcare within Flintshire. In August 2013 41 children and 11
members of staff from 4 holiday clubs attended a consultation day. A
further 41 children in 7 holiday clubs were consulted during holiday
club sessions. Between November 2013 and February 2014 35
children from 1 welsh after school childcare setting and 7 English
settings were consulted on their views of childcare. The clubs were
set in both rural and urban areas of Flintshire and representative of
the type of provision and geographically spread across the county.

Thirty nine employers were consulted between September 2013 and
December 2013.They ranged from small and medium enterprises to
large multinational employers employing in excess of 5,000 staff and
they were located throughout the county.

In September the Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014-2017 will be

presented to the Social and Health Scrutiny Committee for their
consideration.

APPENDICES

Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014-2017

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Childcare Act 2006
Welsh Government Childcare Sufficiency Assessment Toolkit 2010

Contact Officer: Gill Harrison

Telephone: 01352 704057
Email: gill_harrison@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 94



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Assessment of
Childcare
Sufficiency

Flintshire County
Council

Page 95



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Contents
|V I 2 1 1 Lo 1 1 3
Statutory Duty 3
Methodology 4
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES IN FLINTSHIRE ..cocvviieiiieiieiiee e neeneee s 6
WORK AND FAMILY INCOMES ... cuiiiiiiiiiiiniieeieasessss s e esnsneaes 8
CHILDCARE: SUPPLY ..itiiiiiiiiiisieiesieses s ss s e e ssnsnsa e nenens 10
CHILDCARE: DEMAND ... .uttiittiieiateian st sanesanesasesanesanesanesnnesaneanness 15
MARKET ANALYSIS .. iiiiiiiiitiesiiee s ss s e sss s a e eesasneaes 21
Geographical Gaps 21
Type Gaps 24
Income Gaps 24
Specific Needs Gaps 26
Time Gaps 27
Language Gaps 27
Age Gaps 27
RECOMMENDATIONS ...ttt iie et raeeranesanesanern e saneranesanernnenns 30

FPagee9o



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Introduction

Statutory Duty

The Childcare Act 2006 underpins the Welsh Assembly Government’s
childcare strategy “Childcare is for Children” and enshrines in law:

. Parents legitimate expectation of accessible high quality
childcare for children and their families; and

. Local Authorities responsibilities for providing information to
parents and prospective parents to support their parenting role.

The Childcare Act will achieve these aims through statutory duties that will
build on Local Authorities’ existing roles and responsibilities. In Wales it
will:

. Place a duty giving Local Authorities the lead role in facilitating
the childcare market to ensure it meets the needs of working
parents; in particular those on low incomes, those with disabled
children, or those who wish their child to attend Welsh medium
provision.

. Ensure people have access to the full range of information they
need as a parent.

The intention of the Act is to place a duty on Local Authorities in Wales to
secure, as far as is reasonably practicable, sufficient childcare to meet the
requirements of parents in their area who require childcare in order to
train, to work, or to prepare for work. The Act provides the Assembly with
powers to make regulations requiring Local Authorities in Wales to prepare
assessments of childcare sufficiency in their areas.

This Assessment of Childcare Sufficiency executes Flintshire County
Councils obligations under Section 26 the Childcare Act (2006). It
Identifies gaps and makes recommendations that will meet the needs of
parents so that the Authority can fulfil its childcare sufficiency duty as set
out in section 22 of the Act.

Page 97



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Methodology

All of the information gathered for the Assessment has been analysed by
area to present a picture of childcare supply and demand by sub-local
authority area as proscribed by the Act.

Middle Layer Super Output Areas (MLSOA’s) have been used as the
geographical area of study. MLSOA’s are groupings of lower layer areas
used for collecting Census data and have an average population size in
Flintshire of 7,429 people. One of the advantages of using MLSOA's is that
they are much more similar in population size than electoral divisions
(wards) making comparisons between areas less prone to error. In
addition, MLSOA’s are much less prone to change than wards enabling
accurate updating of the Assessment to be carried out on a regular basis.
There are 20 Middle Layer Super Output Areas (MLSOA) in Flintshire as
shown below.

Figure 1: Flintshire County Middle Layer Super Output Areas

aaaaa

Greenfield, Bagil
3

Caergwle, Frith
20

25 0.0 25 5.0

1:179,469 Kms

FPagee¥o



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

During October 2013 and February 2014, a consultation exercise took
place to establish the views of parents and carers in Flintshire regarding
childcare. Through a mixture of focus groups and structured
questionnaires, the views of parents (fathers, mothers and other carers in
loco parentis) as to the availability and accessibility of childcare were
sought.

An electronic survey was publicised to all parents of children in Flintshire
via schools, through existing childcare provision,local press,County Council
website and Twitter account,local employers and in a humber of other
locations where parents meet. Only 63 responses were received.

Face-to-face consultation took place through existing structures such as
parent and toddler groups; integrated centres; family learning groups in
schools; pre-schools; health clinics and other locations where parents
were already meeting. A total of 43 parents in 6 groups across Flintshire
were interviewed in person or by telephone. Parents in more deprived
areas and in marginalised groups (such as parents of disabled children)
were targeted to provide balance against the likelihood that fewer parents
in these areas and groups would return surveys.

In addition, feedback gathered,throughout 2013-2014, from parents who
access assistance with the costs of childcare, has also been incorporated.

Childcare providers were engaged through a telephone survey carried out
September 2013 and December 2013. In total 31 registered childcare
providers were interviewed as part of the assessment, representative
across provision types and geographically across the authority.

Children and young people were engaged in consultation about their views
of childcare within Flintshre.In August 2013 41 children and 11 members
of staff from 4 holiday clubs attended a consultation day. A further 41
children in 7 holiday clubs were consulted during holiday club
sessions.Between November 2013 and February 2014 35 children from 1
welsh after school childcare setting and 7 english settings were consulted
on their views of childcare.The clubs were set in both rural and urban
areas of Flintshire and representative of provision type and geographically
spread across the county.

39 employers were consulted between September 2013 and December
2013.They ranged from small and medium enterprises to large
multinational employers employing in excess of 5,000 staff and they were
located across the county.

Page 99



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Children and Families in Flintshire

The number of children in the population is important in deciding how
much childcare is likely to be needed to meet local demand. In Flintshire,
the population of children set against all people, ranges from 16 per 100,
to just over 20 per 100 people. Areas on Deeside have more children in
the population compared with the more rural areas in the west of the
County.

For the purposes of the Childcare Sufficiency Assessment, it is estimated
that there are 26,719 children and young people Flintshire between the
ages of 0 and 14 years along with disabled children aged 15 to 17 years of
age.

While the population of Flintshire as a whole has increased from 148,629
in 2000 to 152,743 in 2011, the population of children fell from 30,732 to
26,719 between 2000 and 2011. This was a higher than average loss for a
Welsh County. While there has been a small increase in the number of
births in the County recently, the overall trend is downwards. By 2026 it is
expected that there will be between 11% and17% fewer children and
young people living in the region than there were in 2001.

There is a small net gain in families coming to Flintshire from elsewhere in
the UK, but more recently, a larger gain from children moving to the
County from Eastern Europe. While migration is unlikely to place a
significant additional burden on the childcare market, the way in which
services are delivered and in particular, how information is delivered may
need to be examined to meet the needs of migrant families.

The Flintshire Unitary Development Plan allows for nearly 500 new houses
to be built each year in Flintshire up to 2015. While this scale of house
building will probably not result in a significant increase in demand for
childcare across Flintshire, where significant developments are taking
place of a type likely to attract families with young children, discussions
within the local authority are needed to ensure that the impact on the
childcare market is assessed.

The population of Flintshire is overwhelmingly white, with less than 2% of
residents recorded as being from a black or minority ethnic group.

Welsh is spoken by 13.2% of people in Flintshire compared to 19% across
Wales. Welsh is used across most areas of the County by a significant

Page-260



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

minority. In five areas of the County, Welsh is spoken by over a fifth of
residents.

Family structures in Flintshire are slightly more traditional than the
averages across Wales, with more families headed by married couples
(63%). The proportion of families headed by a lone parent (20%) is less
than the average for Wales. However, in areas that are more deprived,
the proportion of children living in lone parent families is as high as 48%.

The number of lone parents is an important factor in childcare demand as
they are less likely to be working when their children are younger but
have greater need for childcare to support work once their children are in
school.In Flintshire there are 4,466 lone parent households. In 35.6% of
such households parents are in part-time employment and 29.2% are in
full-time employment. 35.1% are not in employment.

Page 101



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Work and Family Incomes

Overall, economic activity levels in Flintshire are higher than is average in
Wales with 72.7%in employment compared to 68.9% for Wales.

The overall level of unemployment and long-term unemployment rates are
lower than the average for Wales and Great Britain. This should mean that
demand for childcare in Flintshire should be high.

In 2012 15% of children in Flintshire were living in a household where no-
one works. Of these, two-thirds live with a lone parent. New requirements
for parents to seek work will have an impact on this figure and will
increase the demand for affordable childcare for up to 1,000 lone parents
moving into employment in Flintshire over the next two years. Childcare
to meet this demand will need to be in the areas of highest deprivation,
where there are currently a disproportionate number of lone parents. It is
unlikely that the market will respond to this growth in demand and some
intervention may be needed.

For working families, average earnings are higher in Flintshire than in
Wales as a whole, but lower than the UK average. An average gross
income for a two-parent family based on one partner working full time,
and the other working part time would be £512.25 or £26,637 per annum.
For a single, female parent, the average weekly wage for working full-time
would be £420.

Around half of all families in Flintshire have moderate incomes of between
£21,000 and £40,000 per annum, but a quarter have incomes that puts
them below the UK poverty level of £16,500 per year.

Figure 2:Monthly Income of Flintshire Families

£4,001 or
more £500 or less

£2,751 to
£4,000
17%

% %
£501 to £1,000
11%

£1,001 to
£1,750
27%

£1,761 to
£2,750
29%

For low and moderate income families, the Working Tax Credit should
provide an income top-up and provide support to pay for 70% of childcare

Page-402



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

costs. However, in Flintshire (as elsewhere in Wales) take-up rates are
relatively low at 79.5% of families in work receiving Working Tax Credit
compared to 74.7% across Wales. 20% of families do not claim their
entitlement - particularly the childcare element. Some parents do not
know that they are entitled to support, while others are put off by stories
about overpayments and lots of form-filling.

Low take-up of tax credits is compounded by a perception amongst many
parents that it does not provide enough support, so it's not worth working.

Overall levels of deprivation in Flintshire are low but there are a number of
small areas of the County where many people experience multiple
deprivation. These include parts of the Shotton Higher and Sealand in
Garden City, Greenfield and Holywell Central, Bagillt, Mold West in Mold
and Flint Castle. In these areas, childcare is likely to be needed to tackle
child poverty, but is least likely to be sustainable in the short-term.

More women work in Flintshire than the average across Wales. As women
take primary responsibility for childcare, this is likely to lead to a higher
demand for services.

Page 103



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Childcare: Supply

The Childcare Act (2006), defines childcare for which the Sufficiency
Assessment must take account, as that for which the childcare element of
the Working Tax Credit is payable.

According to information held by Flintshire FIS there were 5235 _childcare
places in 260 settings for which the childcare element of the Working Tax
Credit could be claimed in December 2013. Set against the population of
children aged 0 to 14 (and to 17 with disabilities) there was one childcare
place for every five children in the County. Compared with other local
authorities, Flintshire had the fourth highest amount of childcare in Wales
in relation to its population.

Childcare is not spread evenly across all areas of the County but there is
not a direct link between the amount of childcare and levels of
deprivation. In many areas of Wales, the market often fails in less affluent
areas as the private sector sees little opportunity to sustain a profit-led
business model. Some of the most deprived areas of Flintshire have the
highest levels of childcare and the expansion of Flying Start is a significant
contributor to the sustainability of early years childcare in such areas.

Early Years Childcare for children under 5 in Flintshire, is provided by
childminders and day nurseries. Sessional care settings (pre-school
playgroups and cylch meithrin that only operate for 2 2> or 3 hour
sessions) have not been included as on their own, they are not generally
meeting the childcare needs of working parents as set out in the 2006
Childcare Act.

Figure 3: Early Years Childcare Places / 100 children aged 0 to 4

Across the County there were 1,472 places available for children under 5,
in 29 group daycare settings and with 132 registered childminders. Set

Page«d04



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

against the population, there was one early years childcare place for every
six children aged 0 to 4 years of age in 2013. Analysis by area shows no
clear pattern to the spread of early years childcare in Flintshire with low
levels of provision in some areas interspersed by areas with more. Neither
is there any clear link between deprivation and a lack of early years
childcare with some evidence that use of day nurseries, for example, in
more deprived areas is higher than in more affluent communities.

The type of early years childcare is important in providing parents with a
choice of setting between home-based care and group care. Childminders
also often provide the only option for parents working unusual or flexible
hours. In Flintshire, childminders provide a minimum level of daycare
provision in most areas of the County, but in a number of areas there are
none, or very few. In general, there are far fewer childminders across the
northern part of the County.

Childcare for babies is limited with few vacancies with childminders or in
day nurseries.

Care for school aged children in Flintshire is provided by out of school
clubs, schools, some day nurseries and childminders. In total, there were
1,850 school aged childcare places in Flintshire in December 2013
providing 10 places per 100 children in the population (aged 5 to 14). This
compares with 6.7 places per 100 children across Wales. In 2013,
Flintshire had the fourth highest amount of school aged childcare in
Wales.

Before school care is mainly delivered in schools where it is estimated that
74 out of the 95 schools in Flintshire are served by either before-school
childcare or a free breakfast club.

After school care in Flintshire is provided by 48 registered out of school
settings, along with a small nhumber of day nurseries and 132
childminders. The majority of care is delivered by out of school clubs
attached to a particular school, but there are a small humber of clubs and
day nurseries that provide transport or ‘walking buses’ from more than
one school.

There are 48 registered after school providers in Flintshire and of the 95
schools in the County, only 14 schools are located more than 1km away
from an after school club. However, while some schools may be served by
a distant club providing transport, this is not generally a sustainable
option and schools of any significant size should consider how they can
meet the needs of their communities through developing after school care
as part of the Out of School Childcare initiative. For small schools in rural

Page 105



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

areas, sustaining an out of school club may not be possible. Here, close
links with local childminders could provide parents with a coordinated
service.

While most schools in Flintshire are served by an after school club, many
parents said that there were not enough places available when they
needed them in some clubs. Details of vacancies gathered through the
provider’s survey of indicated that after school clubs were reporting
occupancy levels of 75%-100%. The vast majority of out of school care is
focused on children of primary school age and many providers exclude
older children as most clubs admissions policies make the intake exclusive
to the school in which it is based. Only 8 after school clubs cater for
children over the age of 11.

There were 19 separate settings recorded by Flintshire FIS providing
holiday care to school aged children in 2008. They were run by a mixture
of day nurseries, out of school clubs, schools and voluntary organisations.
In addition, there two open-access playschemes registered with CSSIW.
While this setting may be used by some parents as childcare, it is not
included in the out of school holiday childcare figures.

There were 574 places recorded as being available in holiday schemes
alongside 144 childminder places usually taken up by school aged
children. This works out as 1 holiday place for every 33 children aged 5 to
14 years in Flintshire. The amount of holiday care is low across most of
the County and not all settings are open across all school holidays.

Sessional care is daycare that is provided for a continuous period of less
than four hours. It is used primarily to provide pre-school playgroup or
cylch meithrin services to children aged 2 to 4 years of age, for sessions
of 2 > to 3 hours at a time.

In Flintshire there were 43 sessional care providers in 2013. Together they
were recorded as having 1,044 registered places between them. As some
settings offer two sessions per day, a further 246 places could be added to
this total. Eleven settings were recorded as providing an extended service
that ‘wraps around’ the sessional place or a school nursery place to match
the school day. In most cases, these places match the school day and
operate only during term-time, yet they are likely to be meeting the needs
of a number of working parents.

Flintshire has a good spread of sessional care provision with sessional or
sessional and wrap-around services in all areas. Set against the
population of 3 and 4 year old children in Flintshire, there were 46

Page+106



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

sessional places available for every 100 children aged 3 and 4 years of
age.

Along with 19 maintained schools, 37 sessional care providers and 19 day
nurseries, 5 childminders provide free early education to 3 year old
children, and in Flying Start target areas, free places for 2 year olds. The
type of setting in which children receive their early education is important
in providing working parents with a choice of sessional care; sessional
care combined with other care such as a childminder; or an integrated
package of care as provided by day nurseries and Playgroup Plus /
Meithrin + settings.

Childcare provision for disabled children in Flintshire is provided by
mainstream childcare settings along with two specialist holiday schemes
operated in partnership by Action for Children and the specialist schools.
While the majority of childcare providers said that they would make
efforts to accommodate children with disabilities who wanted to use their
services, in practice, it would seem from the evidence that disabled
children are not taking up childcare places in proportion to their
population.In order to address this concern a specialist post of Childcare
Brokerage Officer has been developed jointly with Wrexham FIS to
support families with a child with a disability to access childcare.

Childcare providers in Flintshire have a range of services for which they
charge differing amounts. The average (median) hourly amount that
parents paid for childcare in 2013 was £5.39 per hour. Prices for childcare
in Flintshire would seem to be broadly in line with the rest of Wales,
although there are some isolated differences.

Just over 20% of the childcare providers surveyed in 2013 were planning
to increase their fees in the coming year. Of those planning increases, the
average price rise was approximately 3%.How providers charge for
childcare can have a bearing on its accessibility to parents. In Flintshire,
48% of providers charge for their services in advance; 26% charge in
arrears while the same number are flexible. Whilst it is good business
practice to charge in advance, it can make accessing childcare more
difficult for some parents. A third of childcare providers in Flintshire also
ask for deposits from parents before they start using their services. This
can range from a £5 registration fee to use a Cylch Meithrin to a £600
deposit to secure full daycare places in a nursery.

Overall, the majority of childcare providers in Flintshire class themselves
as English Medium. Only 4% are Welsh medium with a further 2% being
Welsh and English and 2% Bilingual. The largest proportion of Welsh

Page 107



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

medium childcare is delivered by Mudiad Meithrin, providing sessional and
wrap around care. In total, only 10% of childcare places are available
through the medium of Welsh or bilingually. This is set against a Welsh
speaking population of around 14% of all Flintshire residents. Welsh
medium childcare is also only available in 5 out of 20 areas of the County.

Childcare information is supplied by Flintshire Family Information Service
who operate a website, personal and telephone enquiry service to parents
looking for childcare and information about a wide range of services to
assist families. Of the 26,000 or so enquiries for childcare information
made in 2013-2014, a consistently high percentage were assisted in
making a positive choice about accessing childcare.

Figure 4:Customers accessing childcare after gaining information
from FIS.

% of customers opting to access suitable
childcare after contacting FISF

100%

90% 1=

80% - BE B

70% H I ] =ininizinininininln

60%
50% ({11 siinininininintinininln

40%

30% H I sininininininininininln
20% I I sininininininininininln

10% -

R i R A
Q1 Q3 Q1 Q3 Q1 Q3 Q1 Q3

Page+108



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Childcare: Demand

To establish sufficiency, an assessment needs to be made of the demand
for childcare by parents that will enable them to remain in, or enter, work.

An indication of unmet demand can be made from the number of
vacancies available in settings, by type, across the area. Where there are
high levels of vacancies, there may be low demand. Alternatively, settings
with less than 15% spare capacity are likely to find it difficult to take
many more children. Within an open market, this should indicate high
demand and either sufficiency, or some unmet demand.

In December 2013, 11% of all childcare places recorded in Flintshire were
vacant. While over half of all childcare providers had at least one vacancy,
only 15% had a vacancy for a full-time place. Across the areas of the
County vacancy rates ranged from 3% to 15%. Compared with vacancy
rates in other authorities, Flintshire had very little spare childcare capacity
in 2013. While this means that settings should be operating efficiently and
sustainably, parents may not be able to access their preferred childcare
service.

Figure 5: Proportion of vacant childcare places

kS

The volume of enquiries that childcare providers receive is a further
indication of demand for childcare services. In 2013, out of the 31
providers surveyed, 20% of providers said that they had received more
enquiries for their services over the past 12 months; 28% said levels had
not changed; while 24% said that demand was falling. There were some
differences by sector, with more childminders reporting a drop in enquiries
as opposed to other sectors where more than half reported an increase in
demand. In total, 7 out of the 20 areas in Flintshire reported a net
increase in demand for childcare. No areas reported an overall drop in

Page 109



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

demand. The overall picture, would suggest that there is a healthy
demand for all types of childcare provision in Flintshire.

Parents in Flintshire have some strong views about the availability,
affordability and accessibility of childcare. Their opinions provide a good
indication of demand for childcare by area, and by type. Due to a very low
number (63) parents responded to the parent childcare survey, it is not
statistically significant so cannot be used to conclude that their views are
representative of parents across the County.

The survey found that 67% of parents of children aged 0 to 14 in
Flintshire reqgularly use childcare. Relatives or friends provide the most
frequently used childcare option with 17% of parents taking this option.
Formal childcare is used by 50.3% of parents in Flintshire.

Overall, 92% of parents who expressed an opinion, said that they were
satisfied with their current childcare arrangements. The most satisfied
were parents using childminders, day nurseries and out of school clubs
where there was over 90% satisfaction. Interestingly, there was a lower
rate of satisfaction with current arrangements by parents using informal
childcare suggesting that care by friends and relatives was not their first
choice but was perhaps their only option.

Barriers to childcare use fall under a number of common themes:
accessibility; availability; affordability; lack of information; and a lack of
services catering for specific needs.

Nearly a third (33%) of all parents surveyed who gave an opinion, said
that there is_a good choice of local childcare. In many cases parents said
that there was not a good range of services that catered for different
situations and different age groups. In particular, out of school care was
not sufficient to meet their needs - particularly during school holidays. By
area, responses showed that in general, parents in the rural and outlying
areas of the County felt that they had the least choice in childcare
provision.

Page« 0



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Some parents choose informal care because they prefer and trust their

relatives. For others, it is the last resort and many parents clearly would
prefer to use formal care if it were accessible and they could (or would)
pay for it.

Supply data shows that childcare is not spread evenly across the County
with childcare provision accessible in some areas but not in others. 45%
of parents responding to the question said that they agreed that childcare
was available locally where they needed it, but 38% of parents disagreed.
In the Gronant, Talacre, Llanasa and Broughton, Saltney areas, a majority
of parents said that the childcare they needed was not accessible to them.

The lack of appropriate childcare for older children (of secondary school
age) was an issue that a large number of parents (over 10% of all
comments) were concerned about.

A majority of parents say that childcare was not available when they need
it. Many parents said that childcare was not available to enable them to
work shifts; was not available outside ‘normal’” working hours; and was
not available at the times of the year they required it.

Over 12% of survey respondents and 18% of working parents said that
they worked shifts or unusual hours. This is higher than was found in
other areas of Wales. In some areas, over 35% of parents work a-typical
hours.

While those working rotating shifts clearly find it most difficult to access
childcare, parents having an early or later than usual start to the working
day also find it difficult.

While 38% of parents who were surveyed said that they could afford to
pay for childcare, 43% said that they couldn’t. As would be expected,
those with higher incomes find childcare most affordable, while families
with low incomes find it much more difficult.

Parents with low incomes, or low earning potential are also discouraged
from using childcare by the reality — or the perception - that their salary
would not, or would only just cover their childcare costs. Lone parents
said that there was no incentive for them to work because they feel that
as soon as they work more, or receive any maintenance, the same
amount is taken away from their benefits.

Some of the parents who were interviewed said that it was difficult to find
out about childcare, and support for childcare costs. Those parents

Page 111



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

engaged with agencies usually had more information, but in general
parents would like better information with which they can make informed
decisions.

Of parents that use formal childcare 53% think that the guality of
childcare locally is high, while 22% said that it was not. While the number
of comments about poor quality of childcare was limited, some parents
who use formal childcare raised some specific issues around the quality of
care.

The parent survey suggests that there is some unmet demand for
additional Welsh Medium childcare provision in Flintshire. 23% of parents
in Flintshire - representing 6,000 children - said that there was not
enough Welsh medium childcare. Those that highlighted a lack of Welsh
medium services were most likely to be in the northern areas of the
County, and Shotton and Kinnerton, Penyffordd.

Parents would clearly like to see some choice of Welsh Medium childcare
of all types - including day nursery care, all types of out of school care
and particularly holiday care.

Survey data shows how childcare use by families with disabled children
differs from other families. Disabled children are less likely to be in day
nurseries, with childminders, in out of school childcare or even cared for
by family or friends. A far higher proportion of families with disabled
children do not access childcare outside of the home.

While parents of disabled children had the same concerns as any others,
their difficulties were often compounded by a lack of information, trust
and flexibility.

Some parents of disabled children require help with asking for help. They
are not sure what they are entitled to and struggle to cope with their
everyday situation. This impacts on the children themselves who need to
socialise with other children when not at school. For parents of young
disabled children, childcare in day nurseries is possible but very
expensive. Some parents have given up their former employment to look
after their disabled child when they are very young, perhaps taking up
more local, less well paid / low skill part time hours when the child
reaches school age. Even then, there are significant barriers for many in
accessing out of school care - both during term-time and in school
holidays.

Parents of disabled children can themselves feel isolated as carers. In
families where there are siblings, it can be very difficult for the parent to

PagedE2



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

take them out on excursions during holidays, when one child is disabled /
has behavioural problems. This can result in the whole family being
confined to the home.

Employers contacted for this assessment reported that staff recruitment
and retention is generally not an issue in Flintshire area, and does not
seem to be affected by any shortage of childcare provision. However,
employers are increasingly aware of childcare as an issue with many
larger employers engaged through the provision of childcare vouchers.
There is an opportunity for the childcare sector to utilise this new interest
to build mutually beneficial relationships. The local authority has a key
role in facilitating this.

Page 113



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014
Statistical Evidence of Demand

In making a full assessment of demand, parents’ needs must to be taken
in context alongside an analysis of social and economic data. This is
particularly important in making an assessment of whether additional
childcare is likely to be sustainable. The following map is based on a range
of data including parental demand; vacancies and a range of other data to
suggest where demand for childcare in Flintshire is likely to be highest.

Figure 6:Childcare Demand Index Map

Demand Index
Very High Demand

High Demand

Abc Moderate Demand

Ab Low Demand

Pagedd14



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Market Analysis

The evidence collected for the Childcare Sufficiency Assessment highlights
many issues regarding the supply of childcare and the demand for
childcare places in Flintshire.

Geographical Gaps

Relating the supply of childcare to demand is a complex calculation that
involves many variables. The most obvious method of identifying childcare
gaps geographically, is to examine current levels of provision in different
areas and plan to ‘bridge the gap’ between the current level of provision
and the average number of childcare places by type across the County.

In total, this would require 501 new daycare places (with day nurseries or
childminders) to be created along with 435 term-time out of school places
and 198 holiday scheme places. The total number of new places in each
area are set out below:

Figure 7:Childcare gaps based on average levels of provision

Additional Additional After Additional Holiday
Daycare Places School Places Places
Gronant, Talacre, Llanasa 40 0 0
Holywell 52 51 24
Greenfield, Bagillt 62 8 0
Flint Castle, Oakenholt 0 0 0
Cornist, Flint Mountain 65 59 27
Cilcain, Nannerch, 0 0 0
Kelsterton, Golftyn 0 33 0
Wepre 31 27 0
Shotton 0 65 27
Higher Shotton, Northop Hall 52 42 21
Mancot, Sandycroft 46 42 20
Northop, Sychdyn 0 0 15
Ewloe, Hawarden 0 0 0
Bryn y Baal, Mynydd Isa 46 0 16
Broughton, Saltney 0 58 0
Mold 0 0 0
Buckley 56 42 0
Kinnerton, Penyffordd 0 0 15
Gwernaffield, Pantymwyn 15 0 20
Caergwrle, Frith 35 9 12

Filling the gaps identified through developing new childcare places would
result in a minimum level of provision being available in all areas of
Flintshire and there is some evidence from the levels of vacancies in
current settings and in consultation with parents, that there is demand in
some of the areas highlighted for childcare services to fill these gaps. In
particular, comparing maps of where parents are least satisfied with the
accessibility of childcare and the map above, shows up particular areas

Page 115



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

such as Talacre, Mostyn,and Saltney as having childcare gaps and parents
saying that childcare is inaccessible.

Figure 8: Childcare gaps based on average levels of provision

nnnnnnnnnnn
Canta. Hotpual

Gresniens. sagi

yyyyyyyyyyyyyy
km. Gican,

aaaaaaaaa

Gaps in Early Years Childcare T 1

======

Gaps in Later Years Childcare L o i
= - .5 i bl

be | No childcare gaps |

However, the analysis fails to take into account the range of demand
evidence - such as vacancies - and also the need for childcare to be
sustainable. Local issues such as the rural nature of areas of the County,
and deprivation in other areas means that it is highly unlikely that the
amount of new provision needed to make things equal, would be practical.
For example, it is unlikely that nearly 150 new childcare places in the Flint
Mount Pleasant, Cornist, Flint Mountain area would be sustainable given
the amount of childcare available in the neighbouring Flint Castle,
Oakenholt area. In the Mostyn, Whitford, Carmel, Holywell area, the
childcare gap is 128 places, yet a higher than average unemployment and
poverty may make this number of places difficult to sustain in the short
term.

To identify areas of Flintshire where childcare is both needed and would be
easily sustainable, the gaps in current provision need to be placed within
the context of the Demand Index as set out in Section 6.

The following table combines a range of data to summarise the local
childcare supply and demand situation in each area of Flintshire. While
this may provide some guidance in developing strategy, further local
context will need to be sought prior to any new development of childcare
places.

Page«dt6



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Figure 9: Supply & Demand Analysis by Area

Early Years Out of

Care Supply School Care Demand Level
Level Supply Level

Gronant, Talacre, Llanasa low high high
Mostyn, Whitford, Carmel, Holywell low low low
Greenfield, Bagillt low low low
Flint Castle, Oakenholt high high low
Flint Mount Pleasant, Cornist, Flint Mountain low low low
Caerwys, Brynford, Halkyn, Cilcain, Nannerch, Rhydymwyn high high high
Kelsterton, Golftyn high low high
Connah’s Quay Central and Wepre low low low
Shotton high low low
Higher Shotton, Northop Hall low low high
Mancot, Sandycroft low low high
Northop, Sychdyn high high high
Ewloe, Hawarden high high low
Bryn y Baal, Mynydd Isa low high high
Broughton, Saltney high low low
Mold high high high
Buckley low low high
Kinnerton, Penyffordd high high high
Gwernymynydd, Gwernaffield, Pantymwyn low low high
Caergwrle, Frith low low low

Areas with low supply and high demand are those where development
of more childcare is needed and should be sustainable (eg. Higher
Shotton, Northop Hall / Mancot, Sandycroft / Buckley [/
Gwernymynydd, Gwernaffield, Pantymwyn)

Areas with low supply and low demand are those where it is unlikely
that the market will develop childcare places. The needs of these
communities may be being served by provision in neighbouring areas.
Where they are not, to increase childcare supply intervention in the
market is likely to be required to stimulate more demand (eg. Mostyn,
Whitford, Carmel, Holywell / Flint Mount Pleasant, Cornist, Flint
Mountain / Caergwrle, Frith)

Areas with high supply and high demand are those where the market
is most likely to be functioning and market forces will meet supply with
little further intervention (eg. Caerwys, Brynford, Halkyn, Cilcain,
Nannerch, Rhydymwyn / Northop, Sychdyn / Mold / Kinnerton,
Penyffordd)

Area with high supply and low demand are likely to have a sufficiency
of childcare. It is possible that there could be an over-supply in these
areas (eg. Flint Castle, Oakenholt / Ewloe, Hawarden) or that the
supply in these areas is meeting demand elsewhere.

Page 117



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014
Type Gaps

Taking the average number of places by each type of childcare provision,
the following table shows the number of additional places required of each
type, in each area, to bring it up to the average level of provision for
Flintshire.

Figure 10:Childcare Gaps by Type and Area

Holiday
Scheme Place
Gap

Childminder Day Nursery Sessional  Out of School

Place Gap Place Gap Care Gap Club Gap

Gronant, Talacre, Llanasa 7 34 0 0 0
Mostyn, Whitford, Carmel, Holywell 14 42 0 45 24
Greenfield, Bagillt 27 38 0 0 0
Flint Castle, Oakenholt 0 0 0 0 0
Flint Mount Pleasant, Cornist, Flint Mountain 21 48 26 51 27
Caerwys, Brynford, Halkyn, Cilcain, Nannerch, Rhydymwyn 0 0 0 0 0
Kelsterton, Golftyn 4 0 31
Connah’s Quay Central and Wepre 0 53 39 40 0
Shotton 1 0 64 27
Higher Shotton, Northop Hall 0 50 24 41 21
Mancot, Sandycroft 13 36 22 37 20
Northop, Sychdyn 0 0 2 0 15
Ewloe, Hawarden 0 0 20 0 0
Bryn y Baal, Mynydd Isa 0 48 0 0 16
Broughton, Saltney 0 0 17 59 0
Mold 19 0 0 0 0
Buckley 0 60 14 47 0
Kinnerton, Penyffordd 0 0 1 0 15
Gwernymynydd, Gwernaffield, Pantymwyn 0 14 0 0 20
Caergwrle, Frith 0 39 20 12 12
Total 106 462 185 427 198

While this information may be useful in identifying areas where theoretical
gaps exist, as with the broader analysis of childcare gaps, there may not
be demand for these services, and a local analysis may indicate that
needs are being met in adjacent areas.

Income Gaps

Compared with Wales as a whole, childcare in Flintshire is no more
expensive yet, family incomes are slightly higher than the average. This
suggests that childcare should be more affordable to more families. Yet
higher than average levels of working mean that for many families
childcare is more of a necessity.

Around 16% of families in Flintshire have earnings that take them beyond
the limits for Child Tax Credit support and therefore, should able to afford
to pay for childcare out of their earnings.

The majority of families in Flintshire are in middle-income bands with two
working parents and using formal childcare. Around half of these families
(mainly at the lower end of the middle-incomes bracket) said that they

could not afford to pay for childcare, yet had to support their work. Some

Page«d43



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

said that it was a marginal decision whether or not it was worthwhile both
partners going out to work. These parents should be getting support
through tax credits, but evidence suggests that many do not bother to
apply, or are not aware of the benefits. This group of parents are probably
the most vulnerable to rises in childcare prices, or adverse economic
conditions.

For other families in Flintshire, formal childcare is perceived - and often is
- unaffordable. These are parents whose purchasing power is limited
either because they do not work, their work is low-paid and part-time, or
because they work longer hours in multiple jobs, the childcare element of
the Working Tax Credit is insufficient to meet their childcare needs, or
because they do not access the tax credit system through lack of trust.
When they are in work, these parents are more likely to be using informal
childcare. If they do not have relatives locally who can provide this, some
choose not to work. However, if given the right support and information,
some parents in these situations would be able to pay for childcare.

Given the data collected on childcare costs in Section 5 set against
information regarding incomes from Section 4, a number of examples can
be constructed that illustrate the affordability of childcare in Flintshire.

Example 1: The average Flintshire family with two pre-school
children

For the average Flintshire family, with one parent working full-time
and the other working part-time (average net weekly income of
£586.86 plus £86.42 in Tax Credits) with two pre-school children in
part-time daycare (£146) would be spending 21.6% of their family
income on childcare.

If they did not claim WTC, childcare would take up nearly 25% of
their income.

Example 2: A lone parent with one pre-school child

For a female lone parent working full time will take home on average
£363.40 per week plus £131.14 tax credit. Childcare will cost on
average £146 per week representing 29.5% of her income.

If she did not claim WTC, childcare would take up 40% of her
income.

Example 3: A low-income two-parent family with two school-
aged children

For a family, with one parent working full-time and the other working
part-time (both earning minimum wage) with two school-aged
children using part-time out of school and holiday care costing on
average £48 a week would spend 7% of their family income on
childcare.

Page 119



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Example 4: A low-paid lone parent with one school-aged child
For a female lone parent working full time earning on minimum wage
of £188.66 per week plus £147.09 tax credit. Out of school care will
cost on average £39.98 per week during term-time and £85.15
during holidays representing 14% of her income.

It is clear that the proportion of family income spent on childcare is far
greater when children require early-years care. Childcare costs as a
proportion of family income are also greater for lone parents than couples.

Whether or not childcare is affordable will depend on a range of other
factors - including housing and other household costs, as well as and
individual perceptions of what people find affordable.

To enable more parents to use childcare in Flintshire, strategies are
needed that tackle both affordability for parents on low incomes and
increase accessibility for parents who can afford childcare but have no
access to it. The lack of vacancies for many services - and out of school
care in particular - is also a factor that makes it difficult for parents to
match work and childcare commitments.

The low level of tax credit take-up is likely to be a factor in the
affordability of childcare. If more parents took up their entitlement, the
childcare sector and the economy as a whole would benefit.

Specific Needs Gaps

All the evidence suggests that disabled children are not taking up
childcare places in proportion to their population, with the parents of
disabled children facing additional barriers in accessing childcare. A
complicating factor is that the parents of disabled children would often like
childcare for respite and social reasons rather than to support work, which
takes the responsibility to assure sufficiency away from the Council’s
statutory duty under the Childcare Act. However, there is some evidence
from schemes that have supported disabled children to access childcare
(eg. in Oxfordshire) that once they have settled in a childcare setting,
their parents often recognise the opportunities that this brings and then
feel confident enough to access work or training.

While some parents would prefer additional specialist provision for
disabled children, increased accessibility to mainstream services is the
main issue that needs to be addressed. However, accessibility to services
is also limited by a general lack of spare childcare capacity in Flintshire
that affects all parents, but is likely to exacerbate the situation for parents
of disabled children.

Page«dz0



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

The gaps in provision for disabled children are often greater as they get
older. For many disabled children, developmental differences with their
peers become greater and childcare provision becomes less age-
appropriate. For disabled children in secondary education, there is no
provision that is likely to be able to meet their needs.

Time Gaps

While some group care providers offer longer hours than many across
Wales (eg. there is some day nursery, out of school and holiday provision
that offers 7am to 7pm), the majority of childcare available in Flintshire
operates within fairly ‘standard’ hours despite the fact that a large
proportion of parents work shifts or unusual hours.

Care to cater for parents working unusual hours, shifts, weekends and
overnight is available in Flintshire with a small number of childminders.
The ability for childminders to provide this service is an important reason
to value and nurture a diversity of childcare provision.

It would be helpful for all childcare providers to regularly review their
hours in consultation with their customers.

Language Gaps

Taking the estimate of 13.2% Welsh speakers in Flintshire set against the
5% of childcare places currently available in the County through the
medium of Welsh or bi-lingually, an additional 488 Welsh medium
childcare places would be needed to ensure that all Welsh speaking
families had access to Welsh medium or bi-lingual childcare in the same
proportion as the English speaking population. Given that Welsh-medium
childcare is limited to a small number of Cylch Meithrin, there are likely to
be gaps in Welsh-medium or bi-lingual childcare in all types of childcare
and most areas of Flintshire.

Age Gaps
2 and under

There is a limited supply of childcare places for this age group and few
vacancies for babies, suggesting that more provision could be sustained.
However, there were very few comments from parents with children in
this age-group to suggest that there is a critical shortage. Most parents
seem to recognise that supply is limited and therefore booking their place
in advance is critical. The increase in maternity leave entitlement has
reduced demand for provision for 6month-12 month old babies.

Page 121



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014
3 and 4 year olds

Most three and four year old children are in receipt of funded early
education places in schools and ‘approved’ settings, for which there seems
to be plenty of supply. An amount of wrap-around care is available in both
day nurseries and in playgroup plus / Meithrin +settings. Nonetheless,
provision is not universal and there would seem to be limited vacancies
indicating unmet demand. More wrap-around care could provide parents
of three and four year olds with more choice and flexibility to be able to
work. As four year olds enter reception classes they are often using out of
school clubs, where there are some issues around supply, and a small
number of out of school clubs that have higher age-limits.

5, 6, 7 and 8 year olds

Although Flintshire has a high level of out of school care compared with
other authorities, provision is not universal and there would seem to be a
number of parents who would like to see more provision, particularly at
the schools not currently served by an out school club. In addition, there
is a shortage of places in clubs that was highlighted by parents and
reinforced by vacancy data.

Holiday care is unavailable in many parts of the County and the number of
places available is very limited. There would seem to be a considerable
amount of unmet demand expressed by parents for more holiday
provision however the existing provision of holiday care reports a
reduction in demand and issues of sustainability...

8, 9 & 10 year olds

There is no evidence of any significant difference in the availability of
childcare for this age-group that for 5 to 8 year olds, with most out of
school care catering for the entire primary-school age-group. However,
use of out of school clubs was found to decrease, as children got older.
Some parents commented on the quality of some out of school clubs in
catering for older primary school children. The appropriateness of
provision may be a factor in take-up of places for this age-group.

11 to 14 year olds

As parents increasingly rely on good quality school aged childcare for their
children in primary schools, many working parents are unhappy about
children being left to go home alone at the end of the school day.
Appropriate provision for older children is needed in or around secondary
schools during term time and during school holidays. This will become
more important in light of planned changes to the benefits system.

Pagedz22



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Parents are no longer be able to claim Income Support solely on the
grounds of being a lone parent. From October 2009 this was extended to
parents with a youngest child aged 10 and then from aged 7 or over from
October 2010.The Welfare Reform impacts are starting to be felt locally
and Shotton is a pilot area for Universal Credit.

Disabled children aged 15 to 17

There is no specific provision, apart from holiday care, available for this
age-group of disabled children in Flintshire, and with a limited number of
places advertising for children over 11 years of age, childcare for disabled
young people aged 15 to 17 is likely to be very limited. While it is possible
that should an older disabled young person require a place in an out of
school club, they could be accommodated with the right support, for some
disabled children, their developmental age might be a barrier in choosing
an appropriate setting.

Page 123



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Recommendations

Given the local authorities role in managing the childcare market the
following recommendations should be followed to bridge current supply
and demand gaps.

Pre-School Childcare

While Flintshire has higher than average levels of childcare for pre-school
children, there are a some areas where further development could take
place and would be sustainable as indicated by a high demand for services
in, for example, the Talacre, Llanasa / Higher Shotton, Northop Hall /
Mancot, Sandycroft / Bryn y Baal, Mynydd Isa / Buckley and
Gwernymynydd, Gwernaffield, Pantymwyn areas. The role of the local
authority should be to oversee the operation of the market here through
encouraging new group care, and targeting recruitment of childminders,
but it should not need to intervene.

In areas where there are low levels of Pre-school Childcare but there is
low demand, it is unlikely that additional provision would be sustainable in
the short-term. This is true in areas such as Flint Mount Pleasant, Cornist,
Flint Mountain where there is significant provision in the adjacent area. In
the most deprived areas of Flintshire — Shotton and Flint Castle,
Oakenholt, there is already a high level of early years provision that
should be enabling parents to train or work and therefore have an impact
on child poverty. However, there are more deprived areas of the County -
notably Greenfield, Bagillt and Mancot, Sandycroft where supply levels are
very low. If provision could be encouraged to develop in these areas
(through for example, short-term incentives) it would break down barriers
that currently restrict parents’ ability to work. In the Greenfield and Bagillt
areas in particular, the lone parent rate is much higher than the County
average and therefore more parents are likely to need childcare support to
become economically active.

Childminders in Flintshire provide the backbone of childcare provision for
all ages but are the most vulnerable to new group-care developments.
They also provide a range of more flexible childcare for parents working
unusual hours. The local authority needs to carefully monitor their
numbers and should continue to promote childminding services to parents
to retain this core level of flexible childcare provision.

Appropriately trained and resourced childminders could also provide the
key to enabling more parents of disabled children to access childcare.

Paged24



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014
Early Years Education

There would seem to be plenty early years education provision to meet
existing demand in Flintshire and overall, parents and carers are satisfied
with the quality of provision. There is no case for developing any
significant number of new places other than to provide parents with more
choice in some areas, and more choice of early education and childcare
provision that meets the needs of working parents though wrap-around
care.

School-aged Childcare

The focus on developing after and before school services should be firstly,
around filling the small number of gaps in provision to ensure that all
primary schools in Flintshire are adequately served by an out of school
club. In many cases this can be achieved as part of Out of School
Childcare Programme. Secondly, vacancy levels need to be monitored and
where there is insufficient space to meet local needs, the development of
additional places should be encouraged.

There is growing demand for the development of specific services for
children of secondary school age that also needs to be addressed as part
of Out of School Childcare Programme. The appropriateness of care
provided needs to be examined to ensure that it is meeting the needs of
older children and young people. To this end, young people should be
engaged alongside their parents to establish how their needs can be met.

Levels of holiday provision are very low in Flintshire with considerable
unmet demand expressed by parents across the County. Only a small
number of after school clubs currently offer holiday care and these could
be encouraged to work together in clusters to develop larger, more
sustainable holiday schemes.

The development of specialist childcare for school-aged disabled children
should be supported as well as improving information, training and advice
to mainstream out of school clubs to enable them to become more
accessible to disabled children and young people.

Flexible Childcare

All childcare providers need to be encouraged to examine the flexibility of
their services to meet the needs of parents. Childcare providers in general
need to become more customer focused and talk to parents who use their
services (and those that don't).

Page 125



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

While there are parents who work shifts, weekends and other unusual
hours, there are probably not enough of them wanting childcare at the
same times to sustain new or extended provision. However, childminders
currently provide a range of flexible services that could meet the needs of
some parents, but this is not always known by parents.

Information

The profile of Flintshire Family Information Service should continue to be
publicised to promote information for parents with which they can make

educated choices about childcare. Accessible, accurate information is the
key in enabling parents to use childcare that in turn will sustain existing

services and stimulate new demand.

A coordinated approach delivered in harmony by a range of agencies
(covering childcare, housing, debt advice, Job Centre Plus etc.) is nheeded
to provide parents in hard-to-reach and marginalised groups with
information that enables them to overcome the barriers to finding and
remaining in work. The Novus/Quest Project has been active in taking this
approach, but method needs to be mainstreamed beyond the life of the
project. For migrant families, there is likely to be a need for childcare
information to be made available in languages other than English or
Welsh.

Employers in Flintshire would generally welcome a relationship with FIS
and the ability to provide information to their employees or signpost
employees to the helpline.

Flintshire Family Information Service will need to examine the way in
which data is collected and held to fulfil the on-going duty to undertake a
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment. In particular, information on childcare
that is not registered but requires inclusion in the Sufficiency Assessment
should be gathered and category definitions need examination to account
for new services, such as ‘playgroup plus / cylch plws’. The categorisation
of ‘services’ rather than ‘settings’ is would help in the sufficiency analysis.

Sustainability

Because most existing childcare in Flintshire should be sustainable
through market forces, local authority intervention and funding to the
sector needs to be focused on supporting existing high quality provision to
attain sustainable occupancy rates, while recruiting new providers (mainly
childminders) to cover natural wastage (the recruitment and retention of

Page+26



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

flexible childminders is critical as this is the only option for parents
working unusual hours).

Where new services need to be developed to fill gaps identified in this
report, in most cases the local authority’s role will be in supporting
market-led developments. In areas where the market is not functioning,
the Council will need to support developing provision as part of
Community Focused Schools, Flying Start and Integrated Centre
developments.

The sustainability of all childcare provision in Flintshire would be helped by
the provision of better support and advice to parents on accessing
financial support for childcare, including the childcare element of the
Working Tax Credit.

Welsh Medium Childcare

There is clearly unmet demand alongside limited supply of Welsh medium
childcare in Flintshire. There is limited access to both pre-school and
school-age Welsh medium childcare. The local authority should encourage
new Welsh medium childcare places to be developed to meet what seems
to be a demand from not only Welsh speaking parents, but from a wide
range of families.

In some areas, parents would like to see more choice of Welsh medium
childcare, but additional childcare places are not always needed. There is
a danger of unsustainable competition for a limited number of children if
parallel Welsh and English medium settings are created in areas where
there is no significant demand for additional childcare. This would lead to
sustainability problems for both. This could be avoided if more Welsh-
medium or bi-lingual childcare options for parents were developed within
existing settings, and more Welsh speaking childminders were recruited.

Whereas to date, the local authority has supported Welsh medium
settings, resources should be re-configured to provide support for Welsh
medium places in a wider range of childcare settings alongside general
Welsh language support accessible to all providers.

Views of Children and Young People

Children and young people reported that they mainly go to childcare
because their parents are working.The main messages from the
consultation indicated a need to improve access to outside play provision
and to encouraging the workers to engage in more outdoor activity with
the children.

Page 127



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014
The Role of the Local Authority

The duties on Flintshire County Council to manage the local childcare
market need to be taken seriously and resourced appropriately. Childcare
should be recognised as a crosscutting issue that benefits the wider
economy and community as much as individual children and families.

This assessment of sufficiency suggests that the childcare market is
functioning adequately across much of the County in meeting the needs of
most working parents. However, there are areas where there are
shortfalls in the volume or type of childcare. Here, childcare is insufficient
to meet not only the demands of working parents, but also insufficient to
break down the barriers to work or training that a lack of childcare creates
for families not in work.

In the majority of areas, the role of the Authority should be in monitoring
levels of supply against changing demand; providing information; and
ensuring high levels of quality. Additional resources are needed to target
hard-to-reach groups of parents who need intensive support, or specific
areas where the market is not functioning. This could make a dramatic
difference to families and their ability to participate and contribute to the
local economy, and to raise children out of poverty.

Page«28



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Information Sources

The most recent data available has been used throughout this
assessment and we acknowledge that this may not be as current
as we would wish. However data collected will be revised and
updated annually to be included in the annual review of this
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment.

Information sources include:

Reports resulting from:

Parents Consultation

Childcare Provider’s Consultation

Employer's Consultation

Children and Young People’s Consultation

Infobase Flintshire

Flintshire Family Information Service

Daycare Trust

Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation Child Index 2008

Census 2011

Office for National Statistics: Mid year population estimates
Office for National Statistics: NOMIS

Office for National Statistics: Neighbourhood Statistics

Pege 129



Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014

Local Government Data Unit Wales: Infobase Cymru

Job Centre Plus

Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales

HM Revenue and Customs: Child and Working Tax Credit
Statistics

Department for Work and Pensions

Flintshire Children and Young People’s Partnership would

like to thank the children and young people, parents, childcare
providers and employers who responded to the consultation
process by taking part in various surveys and focus groups.

Page+d30



Agenda ltem 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: 15™ JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER — SOCIAL SERVICES

SUBJECT: REGIONAL COMMISSIONING OF CHILDREN AND

YOUNG PEOPLE’S ADVOCACY SERVICE

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To seek approval to proceed to tender for a regional independent
professional advocacy service for children and young people known to
Social Services in North Wales. This collaboration includes the six
North Wales local authorities.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Flintshire Social Services Department currently commission an
independent professional advocacy service for children and young
people, in collaboration with Wrexham and Denbighshire. This
contract comes to an end in March 2015.

202 In accordance with Welsh Government guidance and
recommendations by the Children’s Commissioner for Wales, the six
North Wales local authorities are seeking to commission independent
professional advocacy on a regional basis.

2.03 The Local Authority has a statutory duty to provide independent
professional advocacy for Looked After Children and Children in Need
under the Children Act 2004 Wales and Children Act 1989.

2.04 This report recommends that Flintshire Social Services Department
commissions advocacy for children and young people known to
Social Services in collaboration with the other five North Wales local
authorities.

2.05 Commissioning of the advocacy service on a regional basis in
partnership with the six North Wales local authorities. This would
require the tendering process to commence in July 2014 with a view
to commission the service from April 2015. This option also provides
an opportunity to make savings and to address some issues identified
through the service specification.

Page 131



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

CONSIDERATIONS

The Welsh Government issued a new model for delivering and
commissioning advocacy services. It is statutory guidance issued
under section 25(8) of the Children Act 2004. The model includes
guidance on the commissioning of Integrated Specialist Advocacy
Services through a partnership and regional approach, and states that
commissioning agencies should agree to pool budgets for advocacy
service with partners.

The Welsh Government guidance lists the vulnerable groups of
children and young people which have a statutory right to independent
advocacy.

Children’s Commissioner for Wales has undertaken a study on the
current provision of advocacy for children and young people' and
makes a number of recommendations for local authorities and the
Welsh Government regarding current shortcomings in provision. The
Commissioner’s report concludes:

“Services are not effectively promoted to all those they should be
reaching. They are not well understood by children and young people
and the professionals working with them. There is an inconsistent
funding and resourcing of services across Wales. They are
ineffectively regulated and inspected” (All local authorities have
responded individually to this report)

In response to the above, a regional project was set up in May 2013,
with a task group of members from the six North Wales local
authorities, Health and the voluntary sector. An officer from Conwy
CYPP is leading on the project and task group, with support from the
regional family support officer.

The main aim of the project is to address the gaps which currently
exist in statutory provision for vulnerable children and young people.
Other aims include improved consistency, parity of access,
accessibility, and efficiency

Through a mapping exercise we have identified gaps and duplication
in the provision of independent advocacy for vulnerable groups of
children and young people as listed in the Welsh Government
guidance.

The North Wales Family Support Group was presented with a number
of commissioning options to address these. The options were based
on monitoring data, population data, mapping, consultation results and
evidence gathered during the first stage of the project. The North

! Missing Voices: A review of independent advocacy services for looked after children and
young people, care leavers, and children in need in Wales (2012)

Page 132



3.08

4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

5.02

Wales Family Support Group chose the following commissioning
option, as a staged approach with a plan to bring Education on board
for April 2016).

Commission advocacy for children and young people known to Social
Services across North Wales (merge the North East and North West
contracts). In addition, a contribution from Health for advocacy
services for children and young people wishing to make a complaint in
a hospital or primary care setting (exclusion — Mental health advocacy
is commissioned separately by BCUHB).

Work has been undertaken with the North Wales Heads of Children’s
Services to agree budgets and to develop a service description and
specification.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to support entering a regional collaboration, on the
basis of efficiencies that can be achieved including reduced
management costs and shared personnel and resources. In addition
collaboration between 6 counties and BCUHB would create a
consistent regional service.

On the basis of the business case Flintshire County Council will be
assured that high quality advocacy services will continue to be
delivered and extended to a broader population of children and young
people in North Wales.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial commitment to the current contract between Conwy,
Anglesey and Gwynedd is £116,475, which is comprised of:-

e Conwy £38,967

e Anglesey £29,278

e Gwynedd £48,230

The financial commitment to the current contract between
Denbighshire, Flintshire and Wrexham is £95,868, which is comprised
of:-

¢ Denbighshire£26,266

e Flintshire £33,652

e Wrexham £25,950

The service was accessed by 58 NYAS children and young people
from Flintshire Social Services for Issue Based Advocacy during
2012/13. Figures vary across the other five local authority areas. The
advocacy provider also made monthly visits to residential units,
supported the Looked After Children’s forum, and provided an
Independent Visitors service (befriending). Savings have been

Page 133



5.03

5.04

5.05

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

8.02

identified for the next contract, for example excluding the participation
element which can be run in-house.

A great deal of discussion has taken place regarding funding
allocations, based on various formulas. This has proved challenging
given the complexity of population, trends, referral trends and
calculating a unit cost per case.

The Heads of Children’s Services agreed to a appropriate budget of
£100,000 for the contract and base their budget contribution on a
percentage of the RSG grant. This means that the following financial
commitment will be made by each local authority:

e Anglesey - £10,450
e Gwynedd - £19,220
e Conwy - £16,110
e Denbighshire - £15,770
e Flintshire - £20,440
e Wrexham - £18,020

This will be clarified through a collaboration agreement between the
six counties and will be based on an equitable service, which will be
clarified through the tendering process.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None arising from this report

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None arising from this report

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The eligibility for this service accepts that a child or young person who
is Looked After or a Child in Need is eligible to receive the service.
There are no other discriminating features and children and young
people will not be excluded for any reason based on ethnicity, culture,
religion, gender or sexual orientation. A provision of the service
specification will be to deliver the service through the medium of
Welsh where the child or young person’s first language/language of
choice is Welsh.

An equality impact assessment has been undertaken and can be
found at:-

http://intranet/doc.asp?cat=10373&doc=32197

Page 134



9.00

9.01

10.00

101

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.03

11.04

11.05

12.00

12.01

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

There is an expectation that we would seek the views of children and
young people and key partners agencies.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

North Wales Head of Children’s Services

The Clinical Programme Group Lead BCUHB

A workshop and one-to-one interviews have taken place with looked
after children. Their input will be included in the service specification.

Young people will be involved in the tendering interviews.

Officers from Social Services, Health, Education and the voluntary
sector are proactively involved in the regional task group.

Welsh Government Advocacy Unit and the chair of the Ministerial
Expert Group on Advocacy.

APPENDICES

None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

Contact Officer: Neil Ayling
Telephone: 01352 702500
Email: neil.ayling@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



Agenda Item 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER, COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE
SUBJECT: HRAS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  Welsh Government issued a consultation document on 15" May 2014
identifying options to end the HRAS subsidy system by voluntary
agreement. This paper describes the content of the document,
implications of the various options for Flintshire and seeks support for
Flintshire’s response submitted on 10™ July 2014.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Welsh Government has been in discussion with HM Treasury
since 2010 with a view to agreeing a financial settlement that would
enable the stock retaining local authorities (11) to exit from the
Housing Revenue Account Subsidy (HRAS) system

2.02 In June 2013, Welsh Ministers announced that they had reached
agreement with HM Treasury. The key elements of the agreement
are:

e Local Housing Authorities (LHA’s) are required to “buy”
themselves out of the HRAS.

e £73M of annual subsidy payments will be replaced by interest
payments of approximately £40m.

e The £40m annual interest payments will be converted to a
lump sum settlement figure to enable LHA’'s to plan their
‘basket” of borrowing to meet this requirement and other
investment needs. Public Works Loans board must be used
for all borrowing

e HM Treasury require a housing related borrowing cap to be
imposed on each LHA

203  The Housing (Wales) Bill is expected to make provision, allowing WG
to make a determination for the calculation of the settlement (“buy
out”) payment.

204  The borrowing cap requires UK legislation. UK Government has

agreed that exit from the system can take effect from 1% April 2015 but
this will require a Voluntary agreement, secured and managed by

Page 137



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

Welsh Government. All eleven councils must agree and sign the
voluntary agreement.

CONSIDERATIONS

Welsh Government officials have established a Steering Group and
worked with LHA’s to consider the principles on which the settlement
figure and borrowing cap could be distributed. Key principles on which
all have agreed is that “all stock retaining authorities should be “better
off”, than under the current system.

In order to be able to exit the system by 1% April 2015 a (challenging
but achievable) timetable has been established. This requires a
response to the consultation document by 10" July. The Ministers
decision on the outcome of the consultation is expected by 31st July.
Following this the council will need to seek approval for the
introduction of self financing on the terms outlined by the Minister to
enable officers to complete the work streams necessary for Self
Financing to be introduced and for the Council to be able to sign the
voluntary agreement described earlier.

The WG consultation document is attached to this report as Appendix
A. It identifies a rationale for, and proposal for distribution of the
settlement buy out figure, and three options for distribution of the
borrowing cap.

The proposal for the settlement figure, which is an annual payment to
HM Treasury of £40m per year (to replace the £73m negative subsidy
payment), is to use the negative subsidy payments as the basis for
apportioning each of the 11 councils share of the £40m annual
payment. There is a general (informal) consensus by all councils
affected that this seems fair, and in Flintshire’s case, based on 13/14
data would result in an annual interest payment of £3,471,379. The
negative subsidy payment for the same period was £6,324,826.

A large number of proposals for distribution of the borrowing cap were
considered, and the final consultation paper included three of these.
Again some overriding principles were agreed informally. The first is
that existing borrowing needs to be accounted for when distribution of
the cap is considered. Secondly, borrowing needs to achieve the
WHQS must take priority over other aspirations. These principles
have been supported in principle.

Once these figures had been drawn together based on 13/14 MRA
applications, £107m remained for borrowing to meet new build
aspirations across the 11 councils. Four councils including Flintshire
had well developed plans and aspirations for new build, whilst others,
had an ambition but had not identified specific borrowing needs. This
area of the work to date has therefore been a little challenging, hence

Page 138



3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

the 3 options presented in the consultation document.

The first option suggests distributing the new build borrowing on the
basis of the plans submitted by each council. In Flintshire’s case this
would provide (£25m to achieve WHQS and) £20m for new build.

The second option proposes using the SHG formulae for distribution
of the £107m across all 11 councils. The rationale for using this is that
the formulae utilises data on income levels and house prices to make
an assessment of the need for affordable housing across Wales. In
this option, this would provide £8,609,555 for new build in Flintshire
(and £25m for WHQS).

The third option is for those councils who had submitted plans for new
build to receive 50% of the amount they had planned to borrow, with
the remainder being split across all 11 councils on the basis of the
SHG formulae. This would provide Flintshire with £14, 326,108 for
new build (and £25m for WHQS).

In all these options WG propose leaving a contingency of c£5m for
distribution later by an unspecified method.

Flintshire Council elected members have been working closely with
colleagues in other authorities, and with WLGA, and a consensus has
been reached to recommend option 3 for distribution of the borrowing
cap. Consensus is vital as all 11 councils need to sign the voluntary
agreement for self financing to take effect from 1% April 2015.

Flintshire’s response to the consultation document is attached at
Appendix B. This needed to be submitted ahead of cabinet meeting.
Cabinet were supportive of the response and Housing Scrutiny
Committee were happy to recommend option 3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That cabinet note and support the Flintshire response to the HRAS
consultation document

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Self financing will introduce a number of freedoms for councils,
including much greater self determination for the long term planning
for investment in council housing services.

Should the proposals supported in this paper for the distribution of the
settlement amount and distribution of the borrowing cap be agreed,
then Flintshire Council will benefit from increased revenue annual to
achieve stock investment and service plan priorities and it will be able
to commence a new build housing programme.

Page 139



6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01
12.02

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Exiting the HRA subsidy system will provide resources to continue to
target those most in need.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Delivery of the WHQS programme will support the council’s
improvement objective to address fuel poverty and will support
reductions in Co2 emissions

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly arising from this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Exiting the subsidy system by voluntary agreement will require a
significant new (additional) workload in 2014. This may require
additional finance capacity in Housing for 12 months.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Meetings have been held with both the Scrutiny Committee and
Tenants Federation who are supportive of the councils response to
the consultation document.

APPENDICES

Appendix A- consultation document
Appendix B- consultation response

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None
Contact Officer: Clare Budden

Telephone: 01352 703800
Email: clare.budde@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 140



CONFIDENTIAL

Consultation Paper
New Local Housing Authority Self-Financing System (HRAS Reform)

The distribution of the Settlement Value of HRAS buy-out and the Housing
Related Borrowing Cap for individual Stock Retaining Local Housing
Authorities

Background

The Welsh Government has been in discussions with HM Treasury since 2010 with a
view to agreeing a financial settlement that would enable the eleven stock retaining
local housing authorities (LHAs) to exit from the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy
(HRAS) system.

The Welsh Ministers were pleased to announce in June 2013 that an agreement had
been reached with HM Treasury, which together with the introduction of new self-
financing arrangements is expected to generate revenue savings for the eleven
LHAs each year. This will allow LHAs to increase their investment in their existing
stock and, where possible, support the delivery of additional housing supply. Some
LHAs could bring forward improvement works to their properties to meet the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) which will bring real and tangible benefits to their
tenants.

Key elements of the agreement are that:

LHAs are required to buy themselves out of the HRAS;

e The £73m of annual negative subsidy payments will be replaced by interest
payments of approximately £40m. This will satisfy HM Treasury's requirement
that the agreement is fiscally neutral over the longer term;

e The £40m annual interest payments will be converted to a lump sum settlement
value a short period before the agreed implementation date. This will enable
LHAs to consider their borrowing requirements in accordance with their local
Treasury Management Strategy, to meet current business plan commitments and
provide flexibility for LHAs to determine the type and period of loan.

¢ [n order to fund the buy-out, Treasury require LHAs to borrow from the Public
Works Loans Board (PWLB). Failure to comply with this will result in sanctions by
Treasury. This will mean the Welsh Budget will be reduced and the reduction
passed on to each LHA as appropriate. Interest payments made to the PWLB are
effectively received by the exchequer;

o HM Treasury requires a housing related borrowing cap to be imposed on each
LHA in order to control public sector borrowing.

The Welsh Government has worked closely with HM Treasury to identify timescales
for implementation and the appropriate legislative mechanism for the setting of
housing related borrowing cap. HM Treasury has advised that the borrowing cap
requires UK legislation and is bringing forward provisions within an appropriate UK
Bill. If provisions within the UK primary legislation is not in place HM, Treasury have
agreed that Wales can exit from the HRAS system in March 2015 on condition that

Page 141



CONFIDENTIAL

Welsh Government secures and manages the borrowing cap as part of a voluntary
agreement with all eleven LHAs.

Legislative Background
Housing (Wales) Bill

The Minister for Housing and Regeneration introduced the Housing (Wales) Bill to
the National Assembly for Wales in November 2013. The Bill is currently at Stage 2
of the scrutiny process during which the Communities, Equality and Local
Government (CELG) Committee will consider, and vote upon, both Government and
non-Government amendments to the Bill.

The provisions in Part 5, Housing Finance will, subject to scrutiny, provide:

o for the Welsh Ministers to make a determination providing for the calculation of
the settlement payment that each LHA will be required to pay in order to exit
HRAS.

o for the determination to be revised only in the event that there has been an error
or change in any matter that was taken into account in the original calculation or
determination.

o for the Welsh Ministers to determine the timescales and processes that LHAs will
need to follow in order to exit HRAS;

o for LHAs to be required to respond to requests for information; and

o for the existing legislation which supports HRAS system to be repealed.

The provisions in Part 5 may be amended

The provisions in Part 4, Standards for Social Housing will, subject to scrutiny,
provide for the Welsh Ministers to:

¢ set standards to be met by LHAs in connection with the quality of accommodation
provided by LHAs and the rent and service charges for such accommodation.
to issue guidance that relates to, and amplifies, the standard.

o consult with bodies representing the interests of LHAs, tenants and other persons
Welsh Ministers consider appropriate when setting, revising, or withdrawing
standards and related guidance; and

¢ have powers of intervention where a LHA has failed, or is likely to fail, to meet the
quality of accommodation standard.

The provisions in Part 4 may be amended

The Housing (Wales) Bill, explanatory memorandum and the record of passage
through the National Assembly for Wales can be found at:
http://www.senedd.assemblywales.org/mglssueHistoryHome.aspx?11d=8220

2
Page 142



CONFIDENTIAL

Wales Bill

The Secretary of State for Wales published a draft Wales Bill in December 2013.
The draft Bill was subject to pre introduction scrutiny by the Welsh Affairs
Committee. The Committee reported in March 2014. The UK Government introduced
the Wales Bill (along with explanatory notes and the Financial Empowerment and
Accountability Command Paper) on 20 March 2014.The provisions in clause 23,
provide:

o for UK Ministers to set the maximum amount of housing debt that can be held, in
aggregate, by LHAs in Wales;

o for Welsh Ministers to determine the amount of housing debt that is to be treated
as held by each LHA, and the maximum amount of housing debt that each LHA
may hold;

o powers for Welsh Ministers to obtain such information as Welsh Ministers may
specify either generally, or in a particular case, from LHAs to enable them to
exercise their functions above.

The Wales Bill, explanatory notes and details of progress of the Bill through
Parliament can be found at:

“http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2013-14/wales.html

Voluntary Agreement

As the timescales for UK Legislation were unclear, HM Treasury agreed that the 11
Welsh LHAs could exit the HRAS system in March 2015, subject to the Welsh
Government securing and managing a borrowing cap through a voluntary agreement
between each of the eleven LHAs and Welsh Ministers.

The powers for Welsh Ministers and a LHA to enter into a voluntary agreement are
provided in section 80B of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

It is essential that all eleven LHAs agree and sign the voluntary agreement. Failure
to do so will result in the HRAS remaining in place in Wales until appropriate UK
legislation is passed.. This means that at least £73 million will continue to be paid
back to HM Treasury each year.

The voluntary agreement will act as an interim arrangement until the Wales Bill
comes into force and as a fall-back position should the Wales Bill fall for whatever
reason. Once the Wales Bill receives Royal Assent and the appropriate provisions
are commenced Treasury will need to issue a determination to the Welsh Ministers
which will set the macro borrowing cap for Wales. This will enable the Welsh
Ministers, subject to consultation, to issue a determination to LHAs which will set the
borrowing cap for each LA. There is the potential for the legislative process to
replace the need for a voluntary agreement.

3
Page 143



CONFIDENTIAL

Welsh Government Priorities

The Welsh Government believes that everyone in Wales should have the opportunity
to live in a good quality home within a safe and secure community.

The Welsh Government is committed to ensuring that all LHAs meet the WHQS by
2020 and has worked closely with LHAs to ensure that their business plans
demonstrate that they will meet this target date. LHAs must be able to have access
to sufficient borrowing to enable them to meet WHQS by 2020.

The Housing (Wales) Bill will, subject to scrutiny, will enable the existing WHQS
guidance to be issued as guidance to the quality of accommodation standard for
existing properties. Therefore the Bill will place the requirement for LHAs to meet
and maintain the WHQS on a statutory basis for the first time.

The Welsh Government is also committed to increasing housing supply and
supporting LHAs that wish to undertake new council house building. However, this
should not be to the detriment of meeting WHQS

Governance Arrangements

The Welsh Government has put in place robust governance arrangements to
manage and oversee the reforms. This comprises a steering group and four
technical work-streams. One of the key responsibilities of the steering group is to
make recommendations to the Minister for Housing and Regeneration on the
methodology to be used for the distribution of the settlement value and the borrowing
cap. The steering group includes representatives from LHAs, WLGA, Welsh
Tenants, Wales Audit Office and Welsh Government.

The WLGA and LHA representatives on the steering group support and agree the
inclusion of all the options within this consultation paper but have differing views on
whether a preferred option should be identified.

In the interests of both landlords and tenants it is essential that agreement is
reached on the distribution methodologies. This is necessary as the finally agreed
methodologies will form the basis of the voluntary agreement that will need to be
signed by all 11 LHAs. In light of this, the Welsh Government considers that
Borrowing Cap Option 3 provides a compromise between those LHAs that have firm
plans for new build while enabling the remaining LHAs the opportunity to consider
their capacity for new build.

The Welsh Government therefore considers that the Settlement Value Option 1 and
the Borrowing Cap Option 3 are the preferred options. The final distribution
methodologies will be subject to consultation and agreement by the Minister for
Housing and Regeneration.

Background

Welsh Government officials have worked closely with appropriate officials from
LHA's since June to consider the principles that might underpin the distribution of a
settlement figure and a borrowing cap.

4
Page 144



CONFIDENTIAL

There was clear consensus that “every stock retaining authority should be better
off than the current position”. This includes not only the financial benefits from
exiting HRAS but also the benefits of becoming self-financing. The Welsh
Government and the steering group are committed to maintaining this as a key
principle in the distribution arrangements.

The Directors of Housing and Chief Treasurers of the eleven stock retention
authorities met and considered options for the distribution of both the settlement
value and borrowing limits. They agreed that, although not perfect, the distribution of
the settlement value based on negative subsidy values appeared to be the most
pragmatic and transparent way forward.

Members of the steering group have worked closely together to model and consider
a wide range of options for distribution of the borrowing cap. The group identified
those options which were most suitable for further consideration and narrowed these
down to those that should be subject to consultation.

When considering the options which are set out in the following part of this
consultation paper, it should be noted that the accounting work-stream, the
transaction and debt work-stream and the capacity building work-stream will jointly
be considering a range of financial and accounting matters and related guidance
which will inform the development of financially sustainable business plans following
the buy-out and implementation of the new self-financing arrangements. These
matters include, but are not limited to, depreciation, minimum revenue provision,
treatment of capital receipts and loan pooling arrangements. The work-streams will
also be developing new business plan guidance and parameters and these will be
made available to LHAs in due course.

It should be noted that all figures contained within the options and the statistics
within this consultation paper are illustrative and remain subject to change for a
number of reasons before the final settlement date.

The final figures and methodology will be subject to agreement by the Minister for
Housing and Regeneration.

Exiting from the HRAS system: The Agreement with HM Treasury

The agreement with HM Treasury, which will allow authorities to exit from the HRAS
system and become self financing from April 2015 consists of two parts.

Firstly, the eleven stock retaining authorities are required to buy themselves out of
the existing HRAS. The agreement is based on £40m interest payments which will
replace the existing negative subsidy payment of £73m. The £40m interest will be
converted to a buy-out lump-sum (settlement value) a short period before an agreed
settlement date and authorities will be required to take out loans with the PWLB to
fund the buy-out. This will result in all authorities being better off under self financing.

The second part of the agreement is that HM Treasury require a housing borrowing
cap to be set for each of the eleven authorities.

Page 145



CONFIDENTIAL

A borrowing cap of £1.85 billion was agreed with HM Treasury in June 2013. The
cap includes the estimated Housing Revenue Account capital finance requirement
(HRA CFR) and the estimated settlement value. This leaves potential borrowing
headroom of £471 million for authorities to meet their business plan commitments.
All estimated figures are subject to change as the HRA CFR will need to be updated’
and the settlement value will be based on prevailing interest rates when the £40
million is converted to a settlement buy-out value.

Should the figures change significantly it is possible that the headroom will be
reduced below £471 million. In the event that the borrowing required by LHAs
exceeds the headroom, in order to protect investment in WHQS, the first call will be
to reduce the borrowing available for new build.

This consultation considers how the settlement value and the potential borrowing
headroom should be distributed given that LHAs need to be able to access sufficient
borrowing to enable them to meet WHQS by 2020.

Key Information

The information in Table 1 below has been obtained from each LHA as part of their
application for Major Repairs Allowance for 2014/15 and from their Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) Business Plan which was submitted to Welsh Government in
December 2013. The Welsh Government carried out a further exercise to obtain
confirmation from each LHA on the accuracy of the figures below.

Table 1: Stock numbers, WHQS status and estimated borrowing requirement:

Local Housing Stock at | Met Expected to Estimated Borrowing
Authority Dec ? WHQS achieve WHQS Requirement
2013
Month Year | To meet For Total
WHQS New
Build
£m £m £m

Cardiff 13,730 | Yes 40.0 40.0
Anglesey 3,802 | Yes 214 214
Pembrokeshire 5,663 | Yes 26.0 26.0
Denbighshire 3,454 December | 2014 19.6 19.6
Carmarthenshire 9,009 March 2015 144 144
Vale of 3,940 March 2017 33.9 33.9
Glamorgan
Powys 5,419 March 2018 18.2 18.2
Caerphilly 10,900 March 2020 55.0 55.0
Wrexham 11,292 December | 2020 118.0 118.0
Swansea 13,590 December | 2020 74.0 74.0
Flintshire 7,236 December | 2020 25.0 20.0 45.0

! The proposed date of the HRA CFR will be considered by the accounting work-stream, be subject
to discussion with Wales Audit Office and approved by the Minister for Housing and Regeneration .
2 Stock numbers for tenanted properties obtained from HRA Business Plan submitted December
2013

6
Page 146



CONFIDENTIAL

| All Wales Borrowing Requirement

[ 3581 |

107.4 |

465.5 |

The Settlement Value and its Distribution

In order to allow Wales to exit the HRAS system, HM Treasury required LHAs to
“buy-out” of the system at a settlement figure that is fiscally neutral to the UK
Government. The agreement is based on £40m interest payments which will be
converted to a lump-sum (settlement value) a short period before an agreed
settlement date. The estimated settlement value is considered to be in the region of
£919.5 million, which has been used for modelling purposes. HM Treasury requires
local authorities to fund the “buy-out” by borrowing from the Public Works Loans

Board (PWLB).

Options for distribution of the Settlement Value

Settlement Value Option 1 - To distribute the settlement value based on
negative HRA subsidy amounts

HRAS Share of
. Share of . estimated
Local Housing settlement R Reduction X
Authority amounts annual interest Reduction settleiment
(1) (2) value
(3)
£ £ £ % £

Isle of Anglesey 1,695,873 930,779 765,094 45.12 21,396,292
Caerphilly 5,978,361 3,281,222 2,697,139 45.12 75,427,087
Cardiff 15,095,807 8,285,330 6,810,477 4512 | 190,459,015
Carmarthenshire 6,234,522 3,421,816 2,812,706 45.12 78,658,989
Denbighshire 3,105,081 1,704,223 1,400,858 45.12 39,175,823
Flintshire 6,324,826 3,471,379 2,853,447 45.12 79,798,326
Pembrokeshire 6,373,758 3,498,235 2,875,523 45.12 80,415,686
Powys 5,660,823 3,106,941 2,553,882 4512 71,420,811
Swansea 5,789,100 3,177,346 2,611,754 45.12 73,039,241
The Vale Of
Glamorgan 5,011,706 2,750,673 2,261,033 45.12 63,231,107
Wrexham 11,609,836 6,372,055 5,237,781 4512 | 146,477,623

72,879,693 40,000,000 32,879,693 919,500,000

Notes:

(1) HRAS settliement amounts obtained from 2013/14 HRAS 2nd estimate claims HRAS 13-02(W)
(2) Interest payments of circa. £40m required as part of the agreement with Treasury
(3) Estimated settlement value based on PWLB 30 year Maturity rate at 12 March 2013 of 4.35%

Page 147




CONFIDENTIAL

Advantages

e Every LHA would be better off in revenue terms when compared to the existing
HRAS subsidy payments

¢ The method is as transparent and simple as possible given the inherent
complexities of the existing HRAS system

e FEach LHA has the same percentage reduction when comparing their existing
HRAS amount to their share of the £40m

e Would be relatively straightforward to explain to tenants and members
Would not replace one complex formula with another

Disadvantages

o Reflects the current and complex HRA subsidy system but some might argue that
the current system is not fair

e There is no link to the current condition of the housing stock
There is no link to the resources required to meet and maintain WHQS

e There is no link to housing supply or demand

Other Options Considered

The other option considered for the distribution of the settlement value was to base it
on the stock numbers for each LHA. While this appeared to be a simple and
transparent methodology, the results of the modelling showed that two authorities
would be expected to pay more in annual interest payments than they currently pay
in negative subsidy payments. This option was therefore disregarded on the basis it
did not result in every stock retaining authority being better off than within the
subsidy system.

Summary
The Welsh Government considers that Settlement Value Option 1 is the preferred

option. The final decision will be subject to consultation and agreement by the
Minister for Housing and Regeneration.

8
Page 148



Options for distributing the Borrowing Cap

CONFIDENTIAL

Borrowing Cap Option 1 - To distribute the borrowing headroom based
on information submitted by each LHA to the Welsh Governmentin
support of their HRA Business Plan for their 2014/15 application for

MRA
Borrowing Cap Allocation
Total borrowing % share of
WHQS New Build allocation Borrowing |
Authority £ £ £ %
Anglesey 0 21,400,000 21,400,000 4.5
Caerphilly 55,000,000 0 55,000,000 11.7
Cardiff 0 40,000,000 40,000,000 8.5
Carmarthenshire 14,400,000 0 14,400,000 3.1
Denbighshire 19,600,000 0 19,600,000 42
Flintshire 25,000,000 20,000,000 45,000,000 9.6
Pembrokeshire 0 26,000,000 26,000,000 5.5
Powys 18,200,000 0 18,200,000 3.9
Swansea 74,000,000 0 74,000,000 15.7
Vale Of Glamorgan 33,900,000 0 33,900,000 7.2
Wrexham 118,000,000 0 118,000,000 25.0
358,100,000 107,400,000 465,500,000
Contingency to be
retained by Welsh
Government 5,585,263 5,585,263 1.2
All Wales 363,685,263 | 107,400,000 471,085,263 100.0

It is assumed that the information submitted by each LHA reflects what each can

“afford” to borrow.

It is further proposed that any balance, between the borrowing requirement identified
by authorities and the total borrowing cap, should be retained by the Welsh

Government as a contingency (see section on Flexibility below).

Advantages

e Prioritises WHQS by ensuring that LHAs have access to sufficient borrowing to
enable them to meet WHQS by 2020.
¢ Provides access to sufficient borrowing to those LHAs that have included
proposals for new build within their existing business plans.

Page 149



Disadvantages

CONFIDENTIAL

¢ Does not reflect housing need or demand.
¢ Does not allocate any borrowing headroom to the 7 authorities who have not
included new build proposals in their latest business plan.

Borrowing Cap Option 2 - To base the distribution of the borrowing headroom
on prioritising WHQS and applying a modified Social Housing Grant (SHG)
formula using household projections and affordability index

The illustrative figures are broken down into borrowing required to meet WHQS and
borrowing available for new build. This approach uses official Welsh Government
statistics and utilises the most recent data for median incomes and median house
prices to create an affordability ratio and combines it with household projections.
This data is used to calculate the housing need element of the formula that is used
by Welsh Government to distribute SHG to Local Authorities.

Borrowing Cap Allocation

Allocation Total
based on borrowing % share of
WHQS modified SHG® allocation Borrowing

Authority £ £ £

Anglesey 0 4,696,259 4,696,259 1.0
Caerphilly 55,000,000 8,569,648 63,569,648 13.5
Cardiff 0 22,245,524 22,245,524 4.7
Carmarthenshire 14,400,000 9,924,527 24,324,527 5.2
Denbighshire 19,600,000 5,711,302 25,311,302 5.4
Flintshire 25,000,000 8,609,555 33,609,555 7.1
Pembrokeshire 0 8,350,797 8,350,797 1.8
Powys 18,200,000 10,655,999 28,855,999 6.1
Swansea 74,000,000 13,514,579 87,514,579 18.6
Vale Of Glamorgan 33,900,000 8,214,191 42,114,191 8.9
Wrexham 118,000,000 7,492,881 125,492,881 26.6
Total 358,100,000 107,985,263 466,085,263

Contingency to be

retained by Welsh

Government 5,000,000 5,000,000 1.1

* Based on:

2011 Household Projections published by the Welsh Government

Median Gross Weekly Pay 2013 Resident Analysis published by ONS and
Median House Prices 2011 published by HM Land Registry

10
Page 150




CONFIDENTIAL

All Wales 363,100,000 107,985,263 471,085,263 100.0

Advantages

o Prioritises WHQS by ensuring that LHAs have access to sufficient borrowing to
enable them to meet WHQS by 2020.

e Provides all LHAs with “notional borrowing headroom” to enable them to consider
proposals for new build, if affordable within their business plans.

o Distributes borrowing cap headroom after WHQS by an objective measure that is
a reasonable proxy for housing need.

¢ This formula could be applied as and when Treasury agree an uplift to the macro
borrowing cap for Wales.

Disadvantages

¢ Does not provide for the level of new build that is currently included within the
business plans for four LHAs.

e Could be perceived to disadvantage those that have met WHQS.
e LHA may not be able to use full borrowing capacity to build by 2018.

Borrowing Cap Option 3 - To base the distribution of the borrowing headroom
on prioritising WHQS, 4 LHAs receiving 50% of their new build request with
balance allocated to 11 LHAs on an indicative basis using the modified SHG
formula.

The illustrative figures are broken down into borrowing required to meet WHQS and
borrowing available for new build based on 50% of the figures 4 LHAs requested for
new build with the balance being distributed across all 11 LHAs. The latter
distribution uses official Welsh Government statistics and utilises the most recent
data for median incomes and median house prices to create an affordability ratio and
combines it with household projections. This data is used to calculate the housing
need element of the formula that is used by Welsh Government to distribute SHG to
Local Authorities.

Page 151




CONFIDENTIAL

Borrowing Cap Allocation
%
50% of new | Allocation based Total share
WHQS build on modified borrowing of
requested SHG* allocation Borro
wing |
Authority £ £ £
Anglesey 0 10,700,000 2,360,856 13,060,856 2.8
Caerphilly 55,000,000 4,308,047 59,308,047 12.6
Cardiff 0 20,000,000 11,183,046 31,183,046 6.6
Carmarthenshir
e 14,400,000 4,989,158 19,389,158 4.1
Denbighshire 19,600,000 2,871,128 22,471,128 4.8
Flintshire 25,000,000 10,000,000 4,328,108 39,328,108 8.3
Pembrokeshire 0 13,000,000 4,198,028 17,198,028 3.7
Powys 18,200,000 5,356,877 23,556,877 5.
Swansea 74,000,000 6,793,913 80,793,913 17.2
Vale Of
Glamorgan 33,900,000 4,129,355 38,029,355 8.1
Wrexham 118,000,000 3,766,746 121,766,746 25.8
Total 358,100,000 53,700,000 54,285,263 466,085,263
Contingency to
be retained by
Welsh
Government 5,000,000 5,000,000 1.1
All Wales 358,100,000 | 107,985,263 471,085,263 100.0
Advantages

e Prioritises WHQS by ensuring that LHAs have access to sufficient borrowing to

enable them to meet WHQS by 2020.

e Provides those LHAs with a percentage share of the borrowing capacity they
requested for new build to ensure part of their new build plans are deliverable.

¢ Provides all LHAs with an “indicative allocation” of borrowing headroom for new
build, if affordable within their business plans.

¢ Distributes remaining borrowing cap headroom after WHQS and initial proportion
for new build by an objective measure that is a reasonable proxy for housing

need.

e This latter formula could be applied as and when Treasury agree to uplift to the
macro borrowing cap for Wales.

4 Based on:

2011 Household Projections published by the Welsh Government
Median Gross Weekly Pay 2013 Resident Analysis published by ONS and
Median House Prices 2011 published by HM Land Registry

12
Page 152



Disadvantages

CONFIDENTIAL

e Does not provide for the level of new build that is currently included within the
business plans for four LHAs.

e Could be perceived to disadvantage those that have met WHQS.

LHA may not be able to use full borrowing capacity to build by 2018.

Summary

A summary of the borrowing capacity that each LHA would obtain from each of the
options and the difference between the borrowing capacity each LHA requested and
the outcome of options 2 and 3 are shown below:

Difference Difference
Outcome Outcome between Outcome between
Option 1 Option 2 Options 1 Option 3 Options 1
and 2 and 3
Authority £ £ £ £ £
Anglesey 21,400,000 4,696,259 | -16,703,741 13,060,856 -8,339,144
Caerphilly 55,000,000 63,569,648 8,569,648 59,308,047 4,308,047
Cardiff 40,000,000 22,245,524 | -17,754,476 31,183,046 -8,816,954
Carmarthenshire 14,400,000 24,324,527 9,924,527 19,389,158 4,989,158
Denbighshire 19,600,000 25,311,302 5,711,302 22,471,128 2,871,128
Flintshire 45,000,000 33,609,555 | -11,390,445 39,328,108 -5,671,892
Pembrokeshire 26,000,000 8,350,797 | -17,649,203 17,198,028 -8,801,972
Powys 18,200,000 28,855,999 10,655,999 23,556,877 5,356,877
Swansea 74,000,000 87,514,579 13,514,579 80,793,913 6,793,913
Vale Of
Glamorgan 33,900,000 42,114,191 8,214,191 38,029,355 4,129,355
Wrexham 118,000,000 | 125,492,881 7,492,881 | 121,766,746 3,766,746
Total 465,500,000 | 466,085,263 466,085,263
Held by WG for
future
distribution 5,585,263 5,000,000 5,000,000
All Wales 471,085,263 | 471,085,263 471,085,263

Option 1 should be regarded as the baseline as this is what each LHA identified as
the borrowing capacity they each required to meet their business plan commitments
at a certain point in time. Earlier versions of this data were used to form the basis for
the calculation of the borrowing cap and for agreement with Treasury.

Steering group members noted that, for a range of reasons, not all LHAs had
included plans for new build in the data submitted to Welsh Government and there
were also concerns about whether the data was based on consistent assumptions.

13
Page 153




CONFIDENTIAL

Therefore some members of the steering group felt that option 1 would not be
considered fair and equitable to all LHAs.

Option 2 prioritises the borrowing each LHA requires to meet WHQS in the first
instance. The balance of the borrowing capacity is then distributed using the
modified SHG statistical formula and provides borrowing capacity to all 11 LHAs. As
can be seen, this creates significant differences, particularly for the 4 LHAs that have
consistently requested capacity for new build and have developed firm plans for new
homes to be built or to demolish and re-develop some of their existing stock.
Steering group members recognise that developing plans for new build is a lengthy
process and will depend on for example housing need, the availability of land,
planning consents and appointment of contractors etc.

It is also possible that some LHAs may not wish to consider new build within the next
few years. Alternatively the borrowing capacity under this option may not be
“affordable” within the business plan for a LHA.

Some members of the steering group felt that there was a need to match the
distribution of the borrowing cap with outcomes and deliverability. Option 2 would not
provide 4 LHAs with sufficient borrowing capacity to meet their existing plans for
development. It was also noted that the borrowing capacity may not be maximised
as some LHAs may not wish or be able to utilise their allocated borrowing cap.

It was therefore considered necessary to develop an option that would provide a
compromise that could be supported by all 11 LHAs which appear to fall within two
groups, those with firm plans for new build and those that only submitted figures for
WHQS for various reasons.

The steering group members were keen to strike a balance between ensuring that
the distribution methodology for the borrowing cap could be regarded as fair and
equitable to all LHAs whilst ensuring the deliverability of new build plans.

Option 3 again prioritises borrowing for WHQS. It then provides a percentage share
of the borrowing 4 LHAs identified as required for new build and distributes the
balance to all 11 LHAs on an indicative basis using the modified SHG statistical
formula which was used for option 2. The modelling for this option is based on the 4
LHAs receiving a 50% share of the new build capacity they require.

There has been significant discussion as to the potential for future flexibility in the
distribution of the borrowing cap as it is considered important that borrowing
capability should be fully utilised where possible. However it is also recognised that
this should not negate the enormous benefit of self-financing and moving away from
annual announcements which will provide LHAs the ability to plan over the medium
to longer term and deliver and measure key outcomes and outputs. It is expected
that any change to a LHA's borrowing cap, whether temporary or permanent, would
need to be accounted for within “a Limit on Indebtedness Determination”, subject to
the Wales Bill coming into force.

The steering group noted that the flexible approach would need to be taken during

both the initial setting of the borrowing cap and during any future reviews and
recommended that a review of the borrowing cap should be undertaken every 3

14
Page 154



CONFIDENTIAL

years, starting in 2018. This periodic review would apply regardless of what option is
taken forward.

The Welsh Government are seeking to ensure that the methodology to be applied to
the borrowing cap will distribute borrowing capacity to where it can be fully utilised by
achieving WHQS and maximising the delivery of new housing supply. It is therefore
important that each LHA is realistic about its ability to use their “indicative allocation”
by 2018 which will be reflected in its submission to the Welsh Government in
October 2014.

One of the consultation questions is seeking views on what sanctions could be used
by Welsh Government in the event that there is a significant difference between the
LHA’s borrowing capacity and what it has utilised. However, if sanctions were to be
applied then provision will need to allow for further flexibility during the period prior to
the 2018/19 review. This should be on an “exceptional basis” but would enable a
LHA to advise the Welsh Government where it is unable to use their borrowing
capacity for whatever reason. This surplus borrowing capacity could then be re-
distributed to a LHA e.g. those with shovel ready schemes. It is expected that this
type of flexibility which would result in the transfer of borrowing capacity from one
LHA to another would require a revised “Limit on Indebtedness Determination” to be
issued.

The Welsh Government considers that Borrowing Cap Option 3 is the preferred
option. The final decision will be subject to consultation and agreement by the
Minister for Housing and Regeneration. Option 3 is supported by the following
process:

Each LHA will be allocated an “indicative allocation” of the borrowing headroom”
under the methodology set out in option 3.

Each LHA will need to advise the Welsh Government by end of October 2014 on
whether they will take up their “indicative allocation” for new build up until March
2018.

If a LHA wishes to take up their “indicative allocation ", the LHA will need to submit
proposals to the Welsh Government by end of October 2014 which sets out how and
when they could utilise this for new build and whether this together with their
allocation for WHQS and % share for new build was "affordable" within the business
plan.

The LHA'’s submission will need to set out whether land has been identified, an
assessment of housing need, the number and type of properties to be developed,
timescales for development (up to 2018) and any potential barriers to deliverability.

As part of the submission, each LHA to advise if they could afford to, and wish to,
take on any further borrowing capacity over and above their “indicative allocation”
and, if agreed, what additional units could be delivered and whether these would be
shovel ready.

Page 155



CONFIDENTIAL

Where a LHA is not able, or does not wish, to utilise their “indicative allocation” for
new build, this could be re-distributed to those LHAs that wished to take on further
borrowing capacity. This could either be re-distributed to those LHAs that have
indicated they could deliver more units or to all remaining LHAs using the modified
SHG formula.

Exceptional arrangements will be introduced to enable a LHA that is not able to fully
utilise it “actual allocation” of the borrowing cap before March 2018 to notify the
Welsh Government and the surplus borrowing capacity will be re-allocated to LHAs.

New systems and processes need to be developed to allow for the annual
monitoring of compliance with the borrowing cap. This work will be undertaken by
one of the work-streams and will consider the data that will need to be gathered by,
and collected from, LHAs on what has been delivered in terms of all key outcomes
and outputs. This is expected to cover all aspects including achievement and
ongoing maintenance of WHQS, re-modelling of existing schemes, regeneration and
the development of new properties etc. The work-stream will also be looking at ways
of collecting data on the community benefits that are achieved and can be evidenced
by LHAs in respect of tackling poverty, jobs and growth, apprenticeships, workless
households (LIFT project) etc.

The borrowing cap will be subject to review every three years with the first review
being undertaken during 2018/19. Where a LHA makes a decision not to take up
their “indicative allocation of the borrowing cap” for new build under this first
distribution, this period of review will enable them to develop new build proposals to
feed into the 2018/19 review. LHAs may also be able to develop new build from
existing resources or any revenue savings arising from exiting the HRAS system.

Other options considered and reasons for being disregarded

Members of the steering group carried out extensive modelling, and considered the
outputs, for the distribution of the borrowing cap which reflected both prioritising and
not prioritising the borrowing each LHA requires enabling them to meet WHQS.
Where borrowing for WHQS was not prioritised within the modelling, in each case,
there were between 3 and 6 LHAs that would not receive enough borrowing capacity
to enable them to achieve WHQS by 2020. Since this is a shared Welsh Government
and Local Government priority and is to be made a statutory obligation, all options
where the borrowing required for WHQS was not prioritised were disregarded.

16
Page 156



CONFIDENTIAL

The options that were considered and which prioritised borrowing capacity for
WHQS together with the reason why each option was disregarded are set out in the

table below:

Modelled by:

Reason for being disregarded

Data provided by LHAs in response to
the Welsh Government’s request in July
2013

This data was no longer current as LHAs
recently submitted updated data to the
Welsh Government (see Option 1)

Existing housing stock /dwelling numbers

Since the borrowing capacity required to
achieve WHQS has been prioritised then
the existing stock numbers has no
bearing on the borrowing capacity
required for future new build plans

Housing projection figures for 2020

(published 2011)

The outputs were very similar to the
outputs from the modified SHG formula
which the steering group considered was
a more objective measure and a
reasonable proxy for housing need and
affordability (see Option 2)

Housing projection figures by the change
in housing projections from 2013 to 2020

While this was based on the change in
household projections over time, the time
period involved was considered too small
to be a robust measure of the typical
change over a 30 year business planning
period.

Each LHA receiving the same
percentage headroom over and above
the sum of their existing debt plus the
settlement figure

This did not reflect future housing need
and may also amplify any issues with the
distribution of the settlement amount

Each LA receiving the same value
headroom (an equal share)

This does not reflect the differences
between authorities in terms of size and
housing need

Distributing based on current negative
subsidy settlement value

This does not reflect future housing need
and may also continue any inequalities
inherent within the current subsidy
system.

Allocating a percentage share to those
LHAs that identified a requirement for
new build with the balance being
distributed to the 7 remaining LHAs using
the modified SHG formula

The further modification of the SHG
formula to only allocate borrowing
capacity to 7 out of the 11 LHAs could
impact upon weighting and was not
considered to be equitable and fair to all.
The setting aside of a percentage for the
4 LHAs for new build and distributing the
balance to all 11 LHAs was considered
an appropriate compromise option which
could be supported by all LHAs (see
Option 3)

Page 157




CONFIDENTIAL

18
Page 158



CONFIDENTIAL

Contingency and Future Distribution of the Borrowing Cap

The setting of a housing related borrowing cap for each LHA is a Treasury
requirement and is new to Wales. As part of the agreement for LHAs to exit the
HRAS system Treasury has advised that any breach of the borrowing cap would be
supported by sanctions. This means that, in the event that the borrowing cap is
breached, Treasury would make a compensatory reduction to the Welsh
Government Budget which would be passed on to LHA(s) accordingly. Therefore it
is in all of our interest to ensure that the borrowing cap is maintained.

The Welsh Government propose the setting aside of a small part of the borrowing
cap as a contingency in the first instance. The amount included in the options is
approximately £5 million. This contingency will help to safeguard Welsh Budgets
whilst the Welsh Government and LHAs adjust to the new borrowing cap
arrangements. Whilst this contingency could provide LHAs with access to additional
borrowing in the event of an emergency or a change in circumstances it is expected
that LHAs will have prudent plans in place to enable them to act in the event of an
emergency

The Welsh Government are currently in discussion with Treasury to ensure that
there is equity between LHAs in England and Wales in that any increase to the
borrowing cap in England should be replicated in Wales.

This consultation is aiming to identify the methodology that will be used in the setting
of the initial borrowing cap for each LHA. Subject to the analysis of consultation
responses, and Ministerial agreement, it is the expectation that a defined
methodology will be identified.

In the event that Treasury does agree to uplift the borrowing cap, it may be possible

for such an amount to be distributed using the defined methodology that arises from
this consultation process.

Page 159



CONFIBDENTIAL
M

Consultation Questions:

1 Do you agree with the proposal to distribute the settlement value based on
negative subsidy amounts?

2 Do you agree with the proposal to distribute the borrowing cap based upon
option 3 to allow for new build commitments whilst also providing potential
headroom for new build to every local authority?

3 Do you agree that the Welsh Government should retain a small proportion of
the borrowing headroom as a contingency?

4 What are your views on how we allocate any unallocated borrowing headroom
now or in the future?

5 Do you agree that the borrowing cap should be reviewed every three years
with the 1° review in 2018/19?

6 What action should the Welsh Government take on a LHA who has not
delivered on their ability to utilise their borrowing cap?

7 Do you have any further comments to make?

Consultation Responses

This consultation is only relevant to the eleven stock retaining local housing authorities
in Wales who are currently part of the existing Housing Revenue Account Subsidy
system.

It would be appreciated if these eleven LHAs could respond to the questions as set out
above and email the response to:

Jen Welsby at: Jen.welsby@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Anshu Verma at;: Anshumail.verma@wales.gsi.gov.uk and

Michelle Herneman at: Michelle.herneman@wales.gis.gov.uk

by close of business Thursday 10 July 2014
If you have any queries please contact Jen Welsby on 0300 062 8161 or

at jen.welsby@wales.qgsi.gov.uk

20
Page 160



Response to Consultation Document
New Local Authority Self Financing system
Flintshire County Council
10" July 2014

Consultation questions:

1. Do you agree with the proposal to distribute the settlement value based on
negativity subsidy amounts?

Flintshire recognises that this potentially reinforces an imperfect historical
system, but agrees that this is the fairest method for distribution.

2. Do you agree with the proposal to distribute the borrowing cap based upon
Option 3 to allow for new build commitments whilst also providing potential
headroom for new build to every authority?

Flintshire does support the proposal to use Option 3 to distribute the
borrowing cap. Although this disadvantages Flintshire council where there are
developed plans for new build it is recognised by the council as the fairest
Option to allow some new build across all 11 councils.

3. Do you agree that the Welsh Government should retain a small proportion
of the borrowing headroom as a contingency?

Flintshire council is not supportive of this proposal as it can see no clear
rationale or advantage in doing so. We need to maximise the opportunity to
meet local housing need.

4. What are your views on how we allocate any unallocated borrowing
headroom now or in the future?

As above we do not support leaving any of the headroom unallocated. For the
future we would like to see any new additional headroom negotiated based on
business plan needs at that time.

5. Do you agree that the borrowing cap should be reviewed every three years
with the first review in 2018/97?

Flintshire is agreeable for the cap being reviewed with WG, on the basis of a
voluntary “offering up” of any spare capacity.

6. What action should WG take on a LHA who has not delivered on their
ability to utilise their borrowing cap?

Flintshire believes that this should be negotiated through with the individual

authority rather than there being a need for “sanctions”. Each Local Authority
is accountable to WG to meet both the WHQS standard and to deliver its

Page 161



individual new build plans. Failure to achieve either in (a cost effective way
and in) accordance with agreed timescales is already part of the annual MRA
monitoring process and this will continue under self financing.

7. Any further comments

Flintshire is delighted that self financing can now be introduced in Wales and
thanks the Welsh Government for leading this work. There are two further
areas of strategic discussion and commitment/actions needed to safeguard
business plans over the medium to long term. These are, the need for a clear
understanding about the long term funding of MRA and an urgent need for a
review of the Right to Buy. Councils all want to build but are concerned that
the current suspension system does not provide sufficient safeguard to
ensure that newly developed assets can be used in perpetuity to meet social
housing need.

Page 162



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF ICT AND CUSTOMER SERVICES
SUBJECT: 3 COUNTY REGIONAL PROCUREMENT PROJECT

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  For Cabinet to consider and agree the final business case for the 3
County Procurement Project between Flintshire, Denbighshire and
Gwynedd County Councils.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 At its meeting on 17" September, 2013 Cabinet agreed to support the
3 County Procurement Project to introduce category management in
to the 3 Councils, subject to a final business case being agreed.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The 3 County Procurement Project was agreed by the North Wales
Leadership Board last year. A bid was submitted to Welsh
Government Regional Collaboration Fund for funding of the project.
The bid was successful.

3.02 The Institute for Competition and Procurement Service at Bangor
University were commissioned to develop the final business case; this
is attached at Appendix 1.

3.03 The development of the business case has included the involvement
of Procurement staff from the 3 Councils and senior management
from several service areas. Workshops were held, questionnaires
undertaken and the recommendations reflect the outcomes and
results from this exercise.

3.04 The business case, which is available in the Members’ Library and on
the website, has been agreed by the project board and by Cabinets at
Denbighshire and Gwynedd.

3.05 The business case demonstrates how a category management
approach to procurement implemented across the 3 Councils could
realise major procurement improvements and savings for each
Council, supported eventually by a procurement support service which
is already in place for Flintshire and Denbighshire.

Page 163



3.06

3.07

3.08

4.00

4.01

4.02

The business case recommends a model for a shared service across
the 3 Councils. However recognising the major change management
implications of a shared service, as a first stage each Council will
independently but in a coordinated standard manner implement
category management locally prior to moving to a regional shared
service with shared implementation support.

In summary the benefits of implementing category management in this
way are:-

¢ |dentification and delivery of procurement savings per individual
category of spend — across the 3 Councils in 2012/13 we procured
£384 million of goods and services in total, some of the larger
spend areas £86 million on social care, £100 million on
construction, £26 million on public transport.

e An estimate of potential savings across the 3 Councils of £2.7
million in year 2 rising to £9.2 million in year 5 if we were to
implement regional category management.

e Economies of scale when collaborating across spend areas.

e Enhanced procurement capability within the procurement function
and across the organisation.

¢ Reduced costs of procurement through reducing process and staff;
from the questionnaires 244 employees across Flintshire are
involved in procurement and aggregating their time spent this
represents 74 FTE’s equating to £2.9 million in salary costs.
Improvements in procurement planning and demand management.

e Ensuring category purchases are co-ordinated both locally and
regionally.

e The project is scalable allowing other partners to join the project at
a later date.

The business case recommends a direction of travel for procurement
within the 3 Councils. The next stage will be to engage a commercial
category manager partner to develop the category management
system for the 3 Councils, and to develop a full implementation plan.
It is envisaged that the first stages of implementation will be in early
2015. The remaining Councils in the region have the option to enter
the consortium at a later date.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet to endorse the final business case for the 3 County
Procurement Project and for the project to move to implementation
stage.

Regular progress reports are provided to Cabinet, the next being in
the autumn.

Page 164



5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The project costs are being met from the Welsh Government Regional
Collaboration Fund.

Estimated savings are set out in 3.07 above and detailed further in the
Final Business Case.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly from this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly from this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly from this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly from this report but potential for reduction in employees
engaged in procurement activities once category management has
been implemented.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Full consultation will continue with the procurement team and service
based employees engaged in procurement activities.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Workshops held and questionnaires undertaken with all employees
involved in procurement and senior management. All six Councils
were involved in the previous work on the project and were given the
option to enter into an agreement.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Chris Guest

Head of ICT & Customer Services
Telephone: 01352 702800
Email: chris.guest@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 166



Agenda Item 10

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER
SUBJECT: CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 (OUTTURN)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the Capital Programme 2013/14 outturn
information (Subject to audit).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital
programme for 2013/14 of £10.992m at its meeting of 19" February
2013 and a Council Fund (CF) capital programme for 2013/14 of
£29.908m at its meeting of 1% March 2013.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Programme - Changes since Month 9

3.01.1 The table below sets out how the programme has changed since the
Month 9 report to Cabinet on 18" March 2014. Detailed cumulative
information relating to each programme area is provided in Appendix
A and summarised below;-

REVISED PROGRAMME Original | Changes - | Changes- | Rollover | Revised

Budget Month 9 This | to 2014/15] Budget

201314 Period

£m £m £m £m £m

Corporate Senices 1613 0.873 0.439 (0.652) 2273
Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.025 0.035 0 (0.008) 0.054
Community Senvices 3.350 0.226 (0.301) 0 3.275
Environment 16.460 (0.625) (1.097) (3.282) 11.456
Lifelong Learning 8.460 5.080 (1.703)]  (1.890) 9.947
Council Fund Total 29.908 5.589 (2.662) (5.830) 27.005
Housing Revenue Account 10.992 1.134 0.748 0 12.874
Programme Total 40.900 6.723 (1914)  (5.830) 39.879

Page 167



3.01.2 The revised budget is that against which the programme is
monitored.

3.02 Changes during this period

3.02.1 Changes during this period have resulted in a net decrease in the
programme from that reported at Month 9 of £1.914m (a CF
decrease of £2.662m, partially offset by an HRA increase of
£0.748m). A summary of the changes, showing any major individual
items, is in the table below (further details can be found in Appendix

A):-
CHANGES DURING THIS PERIOD
£m
COUNCIL FUND
Increases
Flintshire Connects 0.460
Highways 0.206
Other Aggregate Increases 0.582
1.248
Decreases
Private Sector Renewals/Improvements (0.380)
Transportation (1.563)
Primary Schools (0.508)
School Modernisation (1.284)
Other Aggregate Decreases (0.175)
(3.910)
Total (2.662)
£m
HRA
Increases
Central Heating 0.400
Kitchen Replacement 0.297
Other Aggregate Increases 0.051
0.748
Decreases
Other Aggregate Decreases
0.000
Total 0.748

Page 168



3.02.2 Reasons for changes in the programme include:-

3.03

3.03.1

e An increase/decrease in grant funding from Welsh
government (WG) or other external funding providers. This is
the case with Highways and HRA Central Heating;

e Expenditure profiles for schemes alter during the year,
resulting in budgets needing to be realigned to meet this
scenario. This is the case with Primary Schools, School
Modernisation and Kitchen Replacement;

e Contributions from partners are only recognised when they
are realised in order to exercise prudence. This is the case
with Flintshire Connects;

¢ Houses into Homes, a WG scheme providing recyclable loans
for the repair of long term vacant properties with the aim of
bringing them back into use, had previously been included
within Renewals/Improvements as it represents expenditure
within Flintshire. The Council merely acts as an agent for WG
and under accounting regulations the budget and any
associated expenditure must be accounted for outside of the
Council’s accounts; and

e Similarly, elements of the Transportation budget and
expenditure related to non Flintshire works are accounted for
outside of the Council’s accounts, this relates to TAITH, the
regional transport consortium of which Flintshire is the lead
member; whilst those elements relating to works within
Flintshire remain in the capital programme.

Capital Expenditure compared to Budget

Outturn expenditure across the whole of the programme is
£37.975m. The breakdown of expenditure is analysed in the
following table, along with the percentage spend against budget.
The table shows that 95.23% of the budget has been spent across
the programme (CF 92.95% and HRA 100%).

Page 169



3.03.2

3.04

3.04.1

3.04.2

3.04.3

EXPENDITURE/OUTTURN Revised Outturn Variance % Outturn v
Budget Outturn v Budget
Budget
(Under)/Over
£m £m £m %
Corporate Senvices 2273 1.397 (0.876) 61.46
Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.054 0.053 (0.001) 98.15
Community Services 3.275 2.806 (0.469) 85.68
Environment 11.456 11.260 (0.196) 98.29
Lifelong Leaming 9.947 9.585 (0.362) 96.36
Council Fund Total 27.005 25.101 (1.904)(—» 92.95
Housing Revenue Account 12.874 12.874 0.000 |— 100.00
ProgrammeTotal 39.879 37.975 (1.904)| —» 95.23

The detail of the variances for individual programme areas is listed in
Appendix B, which includes the reasons where those variances
exceed 10% of the budget.

Rollover to 2014/15

Rollover occurs when schemes due to be completed in a given
financial year are delayed, possibly due to procurement issues,
weather or if funding from external sources is altered e.g. rephasing
of WG grants and are therefore not completed until the following
year.

Cabinet has to date approved rollover of £6.011m into 2014/15 as
part of previous monitoring reports, which has been partially offset by
£0.181m being returned to 2013/14, leaving a net rollover total of
£5.830m. Of the £0.181m, the majority (£0.128m) relates to
expenditure on Town Centre Regeneration which was incurred in
2013/14 rather than 2014/15 as previously anticipated.

Further rollover at outturn of £1.904m has been identified and is
included in the narrative in Appendix B. This reflects reviewed
spending plans across all programme areas; these committed
amounts have been identified as now required to meet costs of
programme works in 2014/15 and is put forward for Member
approval.

Page 170



3.04.4 Information relating to each programme area is summarised below:-
ROLLOVER TO 2014/15
£m
Corporate Senices 0.876
Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.001
Community Senices 0.469
Environment 0.196
Lifelong Learning 0.362
Council Fund 1.904
Housing Revenue Account 0.000
3.04.5 If approval is given to the request in 3.04.3 above, the total rollover
into 2014/15 will be £7.734m.
3.05 Financing
3.05.1 The capital programme is financed as summarised below:-
FINANCING RESOURCES General Specific Total
Financing! | Financing? | Financing
£m £m £m
Latest Monitoring
Council Fund 12421 14584 27.005
Housing Revenue Account 5.200 7674 12.874
17.621 22.258 39.879
Total Financing Resources 17.621 22.258 39.879
1 Supported Borrowing / General Capital Grant / Capital Receipts / MRA
2 Grants & Contributions / CERA / Reserves / Prudential & Other Borrowing

3.05.2 Capital receipts generated from asset disposals form part of the
Council Fund total financed from general (non specific) resources.
The continuing harsh economic climate is impacting on the ability to
achieve the budgeted level of anticipated capital receipts, a situation
that is likely to continue until the economy picks up at some future
point. The capital receipts situation is closely monitored as part of
overall capital monitoring arrangements.

Page 171



3.05.3 The final outturn position for capital receipts was £2.470m; this

represents a decrease from the original budget of £3.700m of
£1.230m, partially offset by the £0.038m of unallocated funding when
the 2013/14 budget was set.

3.05.4 The outturn position is shown in the table below:-

3.05.5

3.05.6

3.05.7

FUNDING SHORTFALL OF APPROVED SCHEMES

£m £m
Shortfall from 2012/13 3.028
Increases
In year receipts shortfall 1.192
New Pressures 0.195 1.387
Decreases
20% Budget Holdback (2.106)
Funding from AD Waste Liquidation (0.512) (2.618)
Projected shortfall to 2014/15 1.797

The table above shows the shortfall in funding on schemes approved
in 2012/13 and 2013/14 carried forward into 2014/15. This shortfall
was originally generated in 2012/13 and is the shortfall in funding
compared with expenditure that would have occurred had all
approved core programme schemes been completed on budget and
by 31 March. Schemes in 2012/13 and 2013/14 capital
programmes were less advanced than anticipated and so the
programmes expenditure in both years had sufficient funding.

The projected shortfall of £1.797m represents an increase of
£0.745m on the position as at Month 9 and was caused by a further
decrease in the level of receipts due to a Planning Appeal decision.

The 2014/15 budget approved by Members earlier in the year
assumed a prudent level of capital receipts and a 30% reduction in
the core programme in order to address the estimated shortfall at the
time. The impact of this increase means that additional receipts over
and above the budgeted figure will need to be realised to address
this shortfall. The situation will be closely monitored by officers and
reported to Cabinet in the quarterly monitoring reports.

Page 172



3.05.8

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

The HRA capital resources are ring-fenced and used only for HRA
purposes.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is requested to:-
¢ Note and approve the report.

e Approve the rollover adjustments in 3.04.5

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in Section 3 of the Report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Many of the schemes in the programme are designed to improve the
environment, infrastructure and assets of the Council.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A - Capital Programme — Changes during 2013/14
Appendix B - Variances

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Page 173



Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accounting
Telephone: 01352 702289
E-mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 174



G/ T abed

APPENDIX A

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2013/14

Council Fund :

Corporate Services
Information Technology
Flintshire Connects
Corporate Finance

Theatre
Clwyd Theatr Cymru

Community Services

Private Sector Renewal/Improvement
Children's Services

Travellers' Sites

Original | Rollover 20% Changes [Changes| Rollover | Revised

Budget | from | Holdback | (Previous)| (Current) | to 2014/15| Budget

2013/14 | 2012/13 2013/14
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
0.938 0.935 (0.188) 0 0 (0.452) 1.233
0.500 0.274 (0.100) 0.020 0.460 (0.200) 0.954
0.175 0.074 (0.035) (0.107) (0.021) 0 0.086
1.613 1.283 (0.323) (0.087) 0.439 (0.652) 2.273
0.025 0.040 (0.005) 0 0 (0.008) 0.054
0.025 0.040 (0.005) 0.000 0.000 (0.006) 0.054
3.050 (0.038) (0.550) 0.990 (0.309) 0 3.143
0.150 0 0 (0.150) 0 0 0
0.150 0 0 (0.026) 0.008 0 0.132
3.350 (0.038) (0.550) 0.814 (0.301) 0.000 3.275




9/ T abed

APPENDIX A (Cont.)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2013/14

Environment

Administrative Buildings

Sustainable Waste Management
Engineering

General Environmental Enhancement
Highways

Planning Grant Schemes

Ranger Services

Regeneration

Transportation

Original | Rollover 20% Changes |Changes| Rollover | Revised

Budget | from | Holdback | (Previous)| (Current) | to 2014/15| Budget

2013/14 | 201213 201314
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

3.785 0.237 (0.302) (0.124) 0.010 (0.258) 3.348

0 0.554 0 0.316 0.042 (0.569) 0.343

3.200 0.665 (0.040) (3.000) 0.090 (0.551) 0.364

0 0.002 0 0.003 0 0 0.005

3.860 0.588 (0.232) 0.035 0.206 0 4.457

0 0 0 0.006 0.012 0 0.018

0.236 0.007 0 0.020 0 (0.232) 0.031

3.679 0.522 (0.061) (1.459) 0.106 (1.672) 1.115

1.700 0.005 0 1.633 (1.563) 0 1.775

16.460 2.580 (0.635) (2.570)|  (1.097) (3.282) 11.456




/1T abed

APPENDIX A (Cont.)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2013/14

Lifelong Learning

Leisure Centres

Swimming Pools
Community Centres
Recreation - Other

Play Areas

Education - General

Primary Schools

Schools Modernisation
Community Youth Clubs
Secondary Schools

Special Education

Early Years

Minor Works, Furniture & Equipment
Schools - Additional Funding

Original [ Rollover 20% Changes [Changes| Rollover | Revised

Budget from | Holdback | (Previous) | (Current) | to 2014/15| Budget

2013/14 | 2012/13 2013/14
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

0 0 0 0.026 0.026 0 0.052

0 0.120 0 0 0 0 0.120

0 0.065 0 0 0.001 0 0.066

0 0.034 0 0 0 0 0.034

0 0 0 0.106 0.145 0 0.251

3.580 0.403 (0.566) (1.919) (0.055) 0 1.443

0.075 1.129 (0.015) 1.244 (0.573) (0.183) 1.677

4.745 0.138 0 1.079 (1.284) (0.665) 4.013

0 0 0 0.093 0 0 0.093

0 0.718 0 0.715 0.037 (0.217) 1.253

0 1.138 0 0.578 0 (0.825) 0.891

0 0 0 0 0.003 0 0.003

0.060 0 (0.012) 0 0.002 0 0.050

0 0.006 0 0 (0.005) 0 0.001

8.460 3.751 (0.593) 1.922 (1.703) (1.890) 9.947




8/ T abed

APPENDIX A (Cont)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2013/14

Housing Revenue Account:
Housing Revenue Account
Major Works
Accelerated Programmes
WHQS Improvements
Disabled Adaptations
Other Services

Totals :
Council Fund
Housing Revenue Account

Grand Total

Original [ Rollover 20% Changes [Changes| Rollover | Revised
Budget from Holdback | (Previous) | (Current) | to 2014/15| Budget
2013/14 | 2012/13 2013/14
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
5.321 1.196 0 0 (1.366) 0 5.151
0.300 0.020 0 0 (0.206) 0 0.114
4.061 (0.132) 0 0 1.920 0 5.849
1.000 0 0 0 (0.468) 0 0.532
0.310 0.050 0 0 0.868 0 1.228
10.992 1.134 0.000 0.000 0.748 0.000 12.874
29.908 7.616 (2.106) 0.079 (2.662) (5.830) 27.005
10.992 1.134 0 0 0.748 0 12.874
40.900 8.750 (2.106) 0.079 (1.914) (5.830) 39.879




6.1 abed

CORPORATE SERVICES

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Outturn

APPENDIX B

Programme Area Total Actual Projected | Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m

Information Technology 1.233 0.750 0.750 (0.483) (39) (0.154)|The scale of the projects, conflicting Rollover - Request rollover of £0.483m.
priorities and shortage of resources has
resulted in projects being unable to keep
within the original timescales.

Flintshire Connects 0.954 0.647 0.647 (0.307) (32) 0.000 [Work ongoing on site at Connahs Quay |Rollover - Request rollover of £0.307m.
due to scheme expansion. Final sum
retention for Flint Connects.

Corporate Finance 0.086 0.000 0.000 (0.086) (100) 0.000 |Corporate provisions for Feasibility & Rollover - Request rollover of £0.086m.
Helath & Safety allocated as required.

Total 2273 1.397 1.397 (0.876) (39) (0.154)

Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.054 0.053 0.053 (0.001) (2) (0.006)|Projects came in slightly under budget, |Rollover - Request rollover of £0.001m.
causing the final small favourable
variance.

Total 0.054 0.053 0.053 (0.001) (2) (0.006)

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




08T abed

COMMUNITY SERVICES

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Outturn

APPENDIX B (Cont.)

Programme Area Total Actual | Projected | Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m
Private Sector 3.143 2674 2674 (0.469) (15) 0.000 |£155k purchase of Flint maisonettes Rollover - Request rollover of £0.469m.
Renewal/Improvement £138k Group Repair Schemes All schemes will be completed in early
£49k relocation of 'Shotton Man' 2014/15.
£58k DFG's
£69k Misc others
Travellers' Sites 0.132 0.132 0.132 0.000 0 0.000
Total 3.275 2.806 2.806 (0.469) (14) 0.000

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




T8T abed

ENVIRONMENT

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Outturn

APPENDIX B (Cont.)

Programme Area Total Actual Projected | Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m

Administrative Buildings 3.348 3.305 3.305 (0.043) 1) (0.305)|Planned Works for DDA & Fire Safety Rollover - Request rollover of £0.043m.
Orders delayed into 2014/15. Planned
works Ph 2 at Holywell LC pending a
review of the building.

Sustainable Waste Management 0.343 0.343 0.343 0.000 0 (0.569)

Engineering 0.364 0.324 0.324 (0.040) 11) (0.031)|Maijority of land drainage schemes Rollover - Request rollover of £0.040m.
delayed due to re-directing funds to the
Mold FAS, which is currently awaiting
planning permission to progress.

General Environmental 0.005 0.005 0.005 (0.000) (7) 0.002

Enhancement

Highways 4.457 4.448 4.448 (0.009) (0) 0.004 [Balance of feasibility study costs due in |Rollover - Requestrollover of £0.009m.
early2014/15.

Planning Grant Schemes 0.018 0.018 0.018 0.000 (o] 0.012

Ranger Services 0.031 0.024 0.024 (0.007) (23) (0.162)|Wepre Park development started in the Rollover - Request rollover of £0.007m.
final 1/4 of 2013/14 so the majority of
spend has been reprofiled into 2014/15

Regeneration 1.115 1.018 1.018 (0.097) 9) 0.030 [These funds are delivering an integrated |Rollover - Request rollover of £0.097m.
package of town centre projects. Detailed
design & implementation is underway.
The process is behind schedule and the
majority of the spend is now due to take
place in 2014/15.

Transportation 1.775 1.775 1.775 (0.000) (0) 0.004

Total 11.456 11.260 11.260 (0.196) (2) (1.015)

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




28T abed

LIFELONG LEARNING

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Outturn

APPENDIX B (Cont.)

Programme Area Total Actual | Projected | Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m

Leisure Centres 0.052 0.023 0.023 (0.029) (55) 0.000 |£0.025m H&S works at JJP, Flint. Rollover - Request rollover of £0.029m.
£0.004m minor projects on-going.

Swimming Pools 0.120 0.120 0.120 (0.000) (0) 0.000

Community Centres 0.066 0.064 0.064 (0.002) (3) 0.000 |On-going project at Sealand Manor Rollover - Request rollover of £0.002m.
(demolition work).

Recreation - Other 0.034 0.026 0.026 (0.008) (25) 0.000 |Pitch works in Connah's Quay. Rollover - Request rollover of £0.008m.

Play Areas 0.251 0.250 0.250 (0.001) (0) 0.000 No Rollover required.

Education - General 1.443 1.443 1.443 0.000 0 0.000

Primary Schools 1.677 1.582 1.582 (0.095) (6) (0.152)|On-going projects across Primary Rollover - Request rollover of £0.095m.
Schools, all projects started 2013/14

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




€8T abed

LIFELONG LEARNING (Cont.)

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Outturn

APPENDIX B (Cont.)

Programme Area Total Actual Projected | Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m

Schools Modernisation 4.013 4.013 4.013 0.000 0 0.000

Community Youth Clubs 0.093 0.093 0.093 0.000 0 0.000

Secondary Schools 1.253 1.156 1.156 (0.097) (8) (0.175)|On-going projects across Secondary Rollover - Request rollover of £0.097m.
Schools, all projects started 2013/14.
Includes works at Buckley Elfed and Mold
Ysgol Maes Garmon.

Special Education 0.891 0.761 0.761 (0.130) (15) 0.000 |On-going projects across all schools. All |Rollover - Request rollover of £0.130m.
works started 2013/14. Includes work at
Mold Bryn Coch and Hawarden High
School.

Early Years 0.003 0.003 0.003 0.000 0 0.000

Minor Works, Furn & Equip 0.050 0.050 0.050 0.000 0 0.000

Schools - Additional Funding 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.000 0 0.000

Total 9.947 9.585 9.585 (0.362) (4) (0.327)

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




APPENDIX B (Cont.)
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Outturn

8T abed

Programme Area Total Actual Projected | Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m

Major Works 5.151 5.151 5.151 0.000 0 (1.179)
Accelerated Programmes 0.114 0.114 0.114 0.000 0 (0.250)
WHQS Improvements 5.849 5.849 5.849 0.000 0 1.714
Disabled Adaptations 0.532 0.532 0.532 0.000 0 0.050
Other Services 1.228 1.228 1.228 0.000 0 0.009
Total 12.874 12.874 12.874 0.000 0 0.344

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




Agenda Item 11

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE:

TUESDAY., 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14

1.00

1.01

1.02

2.00

(OUTTURN)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform Members of the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue Account
Outturn for 2013/14 (subject to audit) and the impact on the respective level
of reserves at 31 March 2013/14 which will be reported to Audit Committee
on 16 July 2014.

INDEX OF CONTENTS

Section 2 | Executive Summary

Para 3.01 | Council Fund Summary Table

Para 3.04 | Overview of the Year

Section 4 | Non Standard Inflation

Section 5 | Unearmarked Reserves

Section 6 | Housing Revenue Account

Appendix 1 | Council Fund Movement of Variances from Month 12
Appendix 2 | Community Services — Variances Summary
Appendix 3 | Environment — Variances Summary

Appendix 4 | Lifelong Learning — Variances Summary

Appendix 5 | Corporate Services — Variances Summary
Appendix 6 | Central & Corporate Services — Variances Summary
Appendix 7 | Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves Summary
Appendix 8 | Housing Revenue Account — Variances Summary
Appendix 9 | Achievement of Efficiencies Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The year end position at outturn is as follows:
Council Fund

¢ Net in year expenditure is £3.387m less than budget.
e Contingency Reserve balance as at 31 March 2014 of £5.328m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Page 185



3.01

3.02

3.03

¢ Net in year expenditure is £0.229m less than budget.
e Closing balance as at 31 March 2014 of £1.662m

CONSIDERATIONS

The table below shows a final outturn positive variation of expenditure against
budget of £3.387m

Original Revised In-Year Over /
Budget evise (Under) spend
TOTAL EXPENDITURE AND g Budget
INCOME
Month Outturn
12
£m £m £m £m
DIRECTORATES (Service Groups)
Services for Adults 45.642 44.485 (1.434) (1.413)
Services for Children 11.906 12.144 1.150 1.128
Housing Services 1.800 1.746 (0.281) (0.281)
Development & Resources 1.688 1.628 0.013 0.010
TOTAL : COMMUNITY SERVICES 61.036 60.003 (0.552) (0.556)
Assets and Transportation 6.015 5.139 (0.143) (0.145)
Planning 1.708 1.717 (0.039) (0.039)
Public Protection 3.455 3.465 (0.076) (0.076)
Regeneration 0.715 0.705 0.027 0.027
Streetscene 19.320 20.005 0.306 0.306
Management, Support &
Performance 1088 | 1.076 | 4 030)| (0.030)
TOTAL : ENVIRONMENT 32.301 32.107 0.045 0.043
Culture & Leisure 6.876 6.363 0.279 0.280
Inclusion Services 14.058 13.331 0.080 0.081
Primary School Services 43.374 43.723 (0.174) (0.174)
Secondary School Services 36.638 37.725 0.003 0.000
Development & Resources 12.118 12.310 (0.264) (0.264)
TOTAL : LIFELONG LEARNING 113.064 | 113.452 (0.076) (0.077)
Chief Executive 2.356 2.303 (0.135) (0.135)
Finance 14.265 14.225 (1.259) (1.258)
HR & OD 2.427 2.749 (0.041) (0.041)
ICT & Customer Services 4.922 5.048 (0.115) (0.115)
Legal & Democratic Services 3.145 3.142 (0.146) (0.146)
TOTAL : CORPORATE SERVICES 27.115 27.467 (1.696) (1.695)
TOTAL DIRECTORATES 233.516 | 233.029 (2.279) (2.285)
Central and Corporate Finance 26.236 26.723 (0.873) (1.102)
Total 259.752 | 259.752 (3.152) (3.387)

The original budget column reflects the budget approved by Council on 1
March 2013. The revised budget column reflects the in year virements which
have been approved in compliance with Financial Procedure rules.

The significant in year variances at final outturn are detailed in Appendices 2
— 6 (Council Fund) and Appendix 8 (HRA). The significant changes for the

Page 186



3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

Council Fund from Month 12 are detailed in Appendix 1.
BRIEF OVERVIEW OF THE YEAR

The early projections as at Month 3 for the Council Fund was a positive
budget variation with net expenditure forecast to be £2.065m less than
budget.

A review was undertaken to analyse service trends and forecasts in key
areas. Following this review, it was identified within Social Services for
Adults, that there were projected savings of £1.670m and as a result in-year
budgets were reduced. As part of this, additional recurring savings of
£1.185m were identified and have been included as future budget efficiency
within the 2014/15 budget.

As a result of the overall review of Community Services, a budget pressure of
£0.250m was identified within the Professional Support budget (Children’s
Services) due to the increase in the demand for statutory child care support
an additional base budget was allocated to this service.

In month 3, challenges remained with regard to the financial sustainability of
the leisure service including meeting the capital cost of the refurbished
facilities at Flint and Deeside directly from the Leisure budget. The ongoing
revenue financing costs of the capital expenditure incurred on the
improvements amounted to an annual cost of £1.052m. The budget and
expenditure for such costs was moved to the Central and Corporate Finance
budget where it was included with all other capital financing repayments.

Following the period of severe weather in March 2013 a delegated powers
authority was approved in May for the recovery cost expenditure associated
with this event. An initial allocation of £0.518m was ring fenced to be met
from the contingency reserve to finance these costs. The actual severe
weather costs were £0.473m, and this has been allocated to the appropriate
Council Fund service account at the end of the financial year.

During the year there was a significant change in the projected costs for Out
of County placements. In the early part of the year the projected position
reflected an underspend of £0.755m; although by Month 8 costs had
increased and there was a projected overspend of £0.452m with the final
outturn position being a £0.646m overspend. Out of County placements are
demand led and costs are dependent on service user need, many of these
placements are expensive given the severity of need. The numbers of these
young people change throughout the year and these changes significantly
affected projected expenditure.

In 2013, along with its strategic partners, the Council intervened in relation to
the former chemical plant in Sandycroft (Euticals Ltd). At Month 5 the costs
were initially estimated at £0.400m, however this figure was revised later in
the year to £0.300m and the actual expenditure incurred within 2013/14 was
£0.288m.

Page 187



3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

4.00

4.01

The projected under spend increased in Month 9 due to the accounting
treatment of current year income from Deeside Power (£0.200m). In Lifelong
Learning the projected under spend on Primary School Services increased by
£0.135m primarily relating to the reduced demand for Early Entitlement
services and there was additional one off windfall income (£0.243m) which
was received from the Welsh Government in respect of the First Steps
Improvement Package.

In the latter part of the year, the positive movement in the variance was due
to in part an increase in the underspend within Community Services
(£0.344m) which relates to a number of factors including additional income
from charging clients for care within residential services through charges on
their property (£0.199m) and additional income from the Health Board
(£0.046m) within Social Services for Adults as well as lower than anticipated
care costs for transition due to the timing of clients entering the service.

Corporate Services (Finance) also reflected an overall improved position
(£0.220m) the maijority of which related to the net impact of year end changes
in relation to the Revenues and Benefits Service, including the level of bad
debt provision, subsidy receivable and collection fund surplus. Within Central
& Corporate Finance additional rental income was received (£0.134m)
together with various year end accounting changes in relation to the Central
Loans and Investment Account.

ACHIEVEMENT OF EFFICIENCES

The 2013/14 budget contains £5.331m of specific efficiencies and the table
below summarises the final position in relation to the achievement of these
items. The analysis shows that £4.213m (79%) was achieved resulting in a
net underachievement of £1.118m. Full details are shown in Appendix 9.

Valued
Value of 9f (Under)
Status of Efficiency Budgeted Pr°‘o‘f°te Aciﬁ;’xme
Efficiency £m Efficienc nt £m
y £m
Already Achieved 3.454 3.454 0.000
Expected to be Achieved 0.451 0.451 0.000
Achievable in Part 0.516 0.308 (0.208)
Not Achievable 0.910 0.000 (0.910)
Total 5.331 4.213 (1.118)

NON STANDARD INFLATION

The 2013/14 budget included amounts for non-standard inflation for elements
where costs were likely to increase by more than the standard rate of
inflation. During the year these amounts have been held centrally until the
additional requirement could be demonstrated. The final position in relation to
these elements is detailed below:

Page 188



5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

5.04

6.00

£0.255m in respect of Energy for Street Lighting

£0.161m in respect of Energy (electricity and gas for property)
£0.187m in respect of Fuel

£0.141m in respect of Food

An amount of £0.036m was not allocated and forms part of the underspend
within Central & Corporate.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 July 2013 (above the base level of £5.564m) of
£3.409m after taking into account a commitment in 2013/14 for use of
£0.297m to meet one-off time limited costs. In July, Cabinet allocated
£0.250m to the Winter maintenance reserve, bringing the level in the reserve
to £3.159m.

In accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS 19), any known
costs that are associated with termination benefits in relation to the workforce
efficiencies must be accounted for in the current financial year. The Senior
Management phase 1 meets the criteria for this requirement due to its
advanced stage. A budget provision has been made in the 2014/15 budget
for the exit costs associated with this. However to meet the requirements of
IAS 19 and to ensure this is accounted for correctly; this is being made from
contingency reserve in 2013/14, but will be repaid in 2014/15 from the
budgeted allocation.

Appendix 7 details the movement in-year on unearmarked reserves and the
level of contingency sum available. As a result of these movements the final
level of Contingency Reserve as at the end of March 2014 is £5.328m. This
amount will be increased to £6.073m in 2014/15 when the exit costs provision
in relation to phase 1 of the senior management review are repaid to the
reserve after the need to account for these costs in 2013/14 as reported in
the month 12 report. However, this will be offset by projected costs
associated with the Organisational Change and Redesign Programme
totalling £0.696m which will be incurred in 2014/15 and have been approved
via delegated powers. They include essential expenditure in relation to the
continuation of various Programme costs and also include costs associated
with office relocation.

When the 2014/15 budget was set it was estimated that an amount of £3.7m
would be available to contribute to the Investment Strategy. It is
recommended that the additional amount of £1.677m be held in the
Contingency Reserve and its use considered for in-year and future use in
relation to investment in organisational change in the context of the MTFP.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Page 189



6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

6.06

7.00

7.01

On 19 February 2013, the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2013/14 of £28.259m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £0.903m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent
approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July 2013 showed a
closing balance at the end of 2012/13 of £1.931m which was £0.861m more
than when the 2013/14 budget was set. This had the effect of increasing the
opening balance for 2013/14 by the same amount.

The final outturn for the HRA is an underspend of £0.229m which results in a
final closing balance (subject to audit) at 31 March of £1.662m which at
5.81% of the total expenditure exceeds the recommended minimum level of
3%.

BRIEF OVERVIEW OF YEAR

The 2013/14 HRA budget provided a total revenue contribution of £5.942m
towards the funding of capital expenditure (CERA) an increase of £1.250m on
the previous year.

As detailed in this report, the final position is a surplus of £1.662m. The
Council anticipated an opening balance of £1.545m in the HRA budget
2013/14 approved at Council on the 18™ February 2014 and therefore
accounted for these additional funds within the budget creating additional
spend on Welsh Housing Quality Standard works (WHQS). The remaining
balance of £0.117m is proposed also to be utilised towards additional
investment in meeting the WHQS.

The continued improvement in the financial management of the HRA during
2013/14 has helped to enable delivery of the following service developments
and improvements.

Additional funding for WHQS delivery plan.

Voids- turn around 31 days (59 days for majors)
Arrears, 25k less at week 41 than same week last year
Repairs- all categories out performing target

99.5% of properties with gas safety certificate

ASB successes and service improvement

Tenant satisfaction improved from 74% to 81%
Extended tenant involvement

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:-
a) Note the overall report

b) Note the Council Fund Contingency Sum available as at 31 March 2014

Page 190



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

(para 5.03)

c) Note the final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account (para
6.03)

d) Approve that the additional contingency sum of £1.677m be held and its
use considered for in-year and future use in relation to investment in
organisational change in the context of the MTFP (para 5.04)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTIPOVERTY IMPACT

None

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATON UNDERTAKEN

None

APPENDICES

Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 12 — Appendix 1
Council Fund Variances — Appendices 2 — 6

Council Fund Movement on Unearmarked Reserves — Appendix 7
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 8

Achievement of Efficiencies — Appendix 9

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Page 191



Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: (01352) 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 192



COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14

bor FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
FSlr / Filint
Fllg{gh_lre Budget Monitoring (Outturn)

Summary of Movement from Month 12

Month 12

Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Cabinet Report

Outturn

Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation

Community Services

Services For Adults
e Disability Services (Resources & Regulated Services) - accrual for
refund of duplicated recharge to Health Board for a joint funded

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Adults
Subtotal: Services for Adults
Development & Resources

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m
Subtotal: Development & Resources

Services For Childrens
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m
Subtotal: Services For Childrens

Total: Community Services

Page 193

Appendix 1

£m £m
(2.279)
(0.873)
(3.152)
(2.285)
(1.102)
(3.387)
(0.235)
0.027
(0.006)
0.021
(0.003)
(0.003)
(0.022)
(0.022)
(0.004)



Environment

Assets & Transportation
e Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Subtotal: Assets & Transportation
Total: Environment

Lifelong Learning

Culture & Leisure
e Libraries, Culture & Heritage - minor variances

Subtotal: Culture & Leisure

Inclusion Services
e Inclusion & Behaviour Services - minor variances due to rounding

e Out of County - minor variances due to rounding
Subtotal: Inclusion Services

Secondary School Services
e Secondary School Services - minor variances due to rounding
Subtotal: Secondary School Services

Total: Lifelong Learning

Corporate Services

e Finance - minor variances

Central & Corporate Services
e Support Services - Additional Income, pension fund recharge

Total Changes

Page 194

Appendix 1

(0.002)
(0.002)
(0.002)
0.001
0.001
(0.001)
0.002
0.001
(0.003)
(0.003)
(0.001)
0.001
0.001
(0.229)
(0.229)
(0.235)



‘puadsiano ay) ssaippe

0} Aem ajeudoudde jsow

ay) autuua}ap 0} palinbais yiom
Jayuny 3JIAISS [ERUSPISSY

‘uoljesijeuoijel
1e6pnq ul pajsnipe pusdsiepun
9JIAI9S uoljepodsuel | Jusiip

“Jeah

aund ay) ybnouy) Aem ped
Butaq Apioey ayy Jo Buiuado ayy
0} enp uasue sey pue BuLndal
uou pue yo-auo si jsuiebe

"awooul (WoS0'03)

yyesH pue (wiG1L'03) Jusid Aq Jesyo
($#10°03) seomuses pue salddns jeuonippe
pue (wez0 03) sisoo sasiwaud |euonippe
(wgGE L 03) 49102 JjBlS 8INSUS 0} pasu

8y} 0} anp (w/90°03) SJIAISS [eRUSPISY
~BShoy-uf uiypum puadsiano pajoalosd

e Aq Jes)o ale spuadsiapun 8say |
spuadsiapun Jouiw 184lo

snid - (wgy0 ' 03) seiouedeA 0} anp Afsow
(w}50°03) puadsiopun S3JAIBS Aeq
'S910UBIRA Jels 0} sajeal (WyeD 03)
puadsiapun 33IA18G uonepodsuel] jual)
‘ssapinoud

2.1e 10}03s Jugpuadapul pue Juawajgqeal
Jo asn Jajealb o) anp (WZgn03)
puadsiapun 3187y ATelIoIwog asnoy-uj
Joues|3 sA|7 uo puadsiano w00 03

e ss9| ‘Ajioey ay) Buuado ui Aejep

[emul ue 0} anp s (W Gg'03) sulwser

(uawsjqesy pue
ayeu|) seoIneg
paleinbay

¢ XIONIddV

puadsiepun 8y | 8ie7) enxg| sAjj uo puadsiapun pajosfoid 18] BNXI 91 0) (y¥+°0) 996 oLy'S pUB S92IN0SaY
‘YjjesH wolj paianooal aie (Weeo 03)
S]S00 8S9Y | "Wed] UojUBAIBIU| SISUD (yuswajgeay
ay) ut Buuanod Ja)IOAA [e100S [ejidsoH pue a)eju|) MOAA
"jJ0-8uQ e 0} anp Ajsow si puadssepun 8yl [(€40°0)  |(€E¥0'0)  [29€°0 S0v°0 [e100g [eydsoH
S}NpPY 10} S3VIAIBS
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yuoi
paiinbay uonoy asueuep Jofepy Jo asne) isen edueueA SN0 1obpng CRTTVETS
L . > pajoafoid | pasiney
aJueueA
S3JIAY3S ALINNININOD v1/€10T uININQ jeutd

Page 195



¢ XIONZddv

‘puewap

juslfo ul sabueys ay) 199)§84 YoIym adIAISS
abJej sy} ssosoe saoueuen bunesuadwos
18Y)0 awos ale a1ay] "¢ yjuow
-Kessaosu| wouy pabueyoun suiewsa. pue ‘uoposfosd
uaaoud Ji pajsnipe pue majasl puadsiapun }au 8y} ulyim woyL 03

Japun 1day aq [[im 8say | Jo Bulaes e 10} SJuNo2Je SiY) "YiesH (saoineg

-suondwnsse JuaLnd uo paeseq| pue HD4 usamiaq sabexoed papuny jutof Ayjqesiq)

s1 sebexoed papuny Ajuiof| jo maiaal e jo Joedwi pajoadxa ay) 1asyo S90IMBS

uo yjeaH yum suopenobau ay) djoy 0} 186pnq e sapnjoul 821AI8S SIY} paieinbay

0} uopefe. ul puadsiapun ay | | pajou Alsnoineud sy - sapiligesiq buiuies|(€2°0) (96€°0) 6EE'GL SeL'Gl pue adJnosay
puBewsp JuslD pasealoul 0} anp
(wgg 03) puadsiano suoneldepe JOUIN <
"S1S02 alea Aue|jo|wop
paseyaind o0} anp (wggo 03) puedsiano
0) pajoaloud si epuawa( 18suQ Ape3 <
‘swes) "S}S0OO JaSN 32IAISS [euolippe 0}
Ayjeooj ayj jo ped se Buiutewal| anp (wgy 03) puadsiapun o} pajosiosd
aouas Adeiay | jeuonednasQ ale s)s09 |enuapisal paseyaind <
ay Ajuo yum BuipesH seoiniag *S}S0D J19SN AJIAISS jeuonippe
Aupgesig sy uiyim umoys mou| 0} anp (wiye0°03) puadsiano o) pajosioid
ale s)@bpnq wes) Ajljea0}f ayy ale s)s02 Ae|jIowop peseyaind <
1o ped se papnjoul Ajsnoinaid ‘sjsod jueoea
sjusws|e |SAd 84} JO ISON | 0} anp Ajisow (wgg | 03) puadsiapun 0}

pajoadxa iayjabo) aie swes] Ajes0T < (senyesoy)

"MBIABI JBpun desy S8JiAIeg sjdoad oplOf(150°0)  |(150°0)  |0E8'EL 188'EL swes] Ayjeco]

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yyuon n 6
peiinbey uonay aouepe Jolep jo asne) jsen adueLIBA wnyno 1sbpng LIPS TT
pejosfoid | pesiaey :
aoueuep
S3JIAYTS ALINNWINOD Y1/€102 wininQ jeuty

Page 196



¢ XION3IddV

(seoinBg
Aunigesia)
S92IAI8G
"MalAal Japun daayy sjs00 Buyyeys ui uononpey|(£80°0)  |(280°0) g6l 085'L Aungesig
‘awoou) Juelb 19Yjo |eUOIpPE BWOS
Aq jesyo ‘(ajdoad Buuoddng) "wgzo 03
Jo awooui juelb jo |jejuoys e pue (seomuag
‘(wpz0'03) siuswAed soysuel) (Wyg0'03) Aungesiq)
podsuel; (wggp 03) siuswied S90S
Aued payy (wpg0'03) sisod Aed yeis Auniges|g
‘mainal Japun deayj| jsuiebe spuadsiano 0} anp Afjsow S| SIYLIELL 0 cLL0 1220 869°0 pue uonisuel |
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Hitio wnyng jebpng
peJinbey uogoy asueuep Jofepy Jo esne) jse souelBA 89IAIB8S
pajoefoid | pasirey
eosueuep
S3DIAUIS ALINNWWOD $1/€10Z WINRNQO [euld

Page 197



(@21M8G asnsI
aouesqng
‘Aed ou yum asuasge 2 yjjesH
paaibe ue Bumoj|oy uoonpal jsoo Aed |eusp) voddng
jjo-suQ| yo-auo e o} anp (wpgo"03) Apsow si siyL[(60L°0)  [(60L°0)  |022°0 628°0 [euoissajoid
*S)USI0 MaU J8yjo SWos
Buipnjoul sabeyoed aJeo JUsLIND JO 1SO0D
ay) sjoayjas Ing Jaybiy aq alojalay) pjnom
puadsiapun juaund 8y "93IAI8S By}
ojui Jualo siy) Bulusysuel) ui Aejap e usaq
sey aiay) ‘abexoed uonisues) 3500 ybiy e (901nu8G asnsIN
UJIM [ENPIAIPUI UB JO Y)jea woij Jajsuel) aouejsqng
8y} jo uonejoadxe ey J9a)al 0} €102 ® UllesH
ui eale siy) 0} pappe uaaq sey }18bpnq |eJusiN) @21AI8S
weGZ0'03 leuolyppe uy ‘sebesoed Aeaiwoq
"MBIAJ Japun dos)j| 8180 Juauno uo paseq si puadsiapun siy] ((S60°0) (560°0) 6550 ¥59°0 pue |ejuspissy
(sooineg
(wsp0°03) sisod sestwaud Aynqesiq)
pue (wgg'03) s1sod Aed yejs jsuiebe yoddng
“M3IAB) Japun daa) puadsiano ue o} anp Asow SI SIY ] 1920°0 920’0 8Ly 0 Z6€°0 aAjjRJSIUILPY
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
HUow wnpno jebpng
paiinbay uopoy eoueueA Jofep jo asne) yse asueueA -LTTV T
souepEA pajosloid | posiaay

C XIAN3ddV

SIAJIAYIAS ALINNWWNOD

vi/€L0Z unynQ jeutd

Page 198



(bev's)  [(ew))  [zzoey lssvvy ‘lejoignsg

(erebaubbe)

saoueleA

‘Juaindal 8q 0) pajoadxa S}inpy 104

Jou jng maiaad 0} snupuo) "S8OUBLIEA JOUIW SNOUEA|(802°0) (zLZ'0) A4 ¥SL'¥ $80IAI8S JaYl0
‘umouyun aJe sajep
Ye)s Jo s)so9 jenuajod abejs
siy} Je ybnoyye sjusid YesH

[EJUS [BUOHIPPE JO SUOHEDIPUL (Augesia

Ajes ale asay) se mou “PLELOZ Buies)

104 POSSILISIP PUE paJopistio u seBexoed 81 40 1500 SIOBYSHEE00 6200 [11G0 2840 1ebpng aisu0
uaaq Sey SaJIAIas oM}
ay) usamjaq 1obpnq Buiubie
-a1 jo Aypqissod ay| ‘sunod
10 uosud woJly 800U LOYS je

(so1u0g BsnsiIy

SPUBWISP pUE S1aquINu Judijo eoUEISaN

ul sabueys o) anp Ajliejoa . :n S

fenuajod - mainal tapun daay vL/ELOC ® YeeH [ejus)

u} sebexoed a.1e2 Jo 100 spo8YRY|(brL'0)  |(PPL0)  [L9L°0 GOE0 1abpng odisuaio

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Hiuon wnyno yebBpng
peainbey uopoy asuepe/ lofep jo esne) ise] aoueleA 8JIAleg
pajoafoid | pesirsy
ajsueuep
S3JIANTS ALINNNINOD viL/gL0Z wninQ jeuly

¢ XION3ddVv

Page 199



€ XION3ddV

_
€L0°0 0100 8€9°| 829°L jeyoyqng
(s1ebaibbe)
SoouUBLIBA
$92In0Say
‘juaunoal aq o} pajoadxa 2 JuswdojaasQ
JOU JNq M8iA31 0} 3nujuon "SgouBLIeA Joujw snolep|(810°0) (Lzo0) [€29°0 ¥$9°0 8Ul0
SJUBLISSASSY
awooui Juelb s|doad Buiioddng [eloueuly
pajebpnqun pue Aisuone)s ‘asempiey 2 sSwajsAs
pue asemyos | | uo spuadsiapun|(690°0)  |(690°0)  [SLO'L ¥80°L ssauisng
sjsod jueoea Jo juswubijesy 00L°0 00L°0 0000 (00L°0) josuoQ Aoueosep
$821n0S9Yy ¢ Juswdojeas(
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Uiuow wonno yebpng
peainbay uopoy eoueuep Jofepw jo ssnen jsen esueuep 9oIAIag
pajosfoid | pesiney
soueLiep
S3AJIAYIS ALINNIINOD Y1/€102 WInnQ jeuly

Page 200



¢ XION3ddv

(saoineg
s,uaipfiyo)
*s}1s00 Juawaoeld jejo} saybiy w bupinsal poddng
sjualjo aJeo Buiaes| Jo siequinu j[eUOHIPPY Y61 0 ¥61°0 069°G 96¥°G |euoISS8}0.id
(C=RIVEN
‘sjsod jueoea 0} anp s ,ualpjiy)) wea
"Jj0-auQ| Ajisows s) ease sjy} ulym puadsispun 841 (260'0)  [(260°0) 12220 vEE0 BuipusyQ WinoA

‘slJaied

ay} Jo} aouemojje buiobuo ue joeiye

‘satoualoy)e ajqissod Algeueaul yoiym sispio diysuelpiens)

pue Bujuueld ainyny WOUI ||IM |eloadg pue asuapisay 10} S18p.Io
pue pasapisuod Bujaq si yomym UNo9 Jo Jaquinu Guisealout 8y} 0} anp (sooinBg
JO 8Wo9)N0 ay) uayenspun| osje s|}| "82IAISS BY) ulyim sjuswaoe|d s,ualpiiyo)
usaq Ssey wes] juswadeld 21e9 19)S0} JO JBqUINU 8y} Ul 3SEaIU| Jusweoe|d
Alwe4 8y} Jo majaal 7| ue Jo Jnsal e se Ajulew s) puadsieno ay] |¥8€°0 80 1982 1161 Appwe
uaIpjiy) IO} SIIIIDG

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Huow wnyng jeBpng
peJinbay uoyoy asueueA Jolepy jo asne) Ise asueuep aoieg
pajoefoid | pesiay
aosueuep
SIJIAUTS ALINDNINOD 1/€10Z winpnQ jeuly

Page 201



¢ XION3ddVv

_
ost’L {8z1°1 (42443 Lad X4’ ‘lejoiqng
(s1ebaibbe)
SaouBLeA
‘JusuIN0di 8q 0} pajoadxa uaipjyn 40y
10U }ng m3IAD4 O} BNURUOYD *S9OUBLIBA JOUIW SNOUBA[ZS0°0 8v0°0 202’1 lesL L S9IIAI9S JaYI0
*90IAI8S
‘pPamalnal aq 0} penuiuos a1ed Buiaea| sy} ulyym 1o} pajunooaoe (seomuag
i pue jo8foud sajepp Ajsnojnaid sem oym Jusijo suo 1o} s,uaipiiyd)
YUON B mou si sjuawaoe|d| s}so2 Jo Jajsues} apnjoul pue ‘v |0 Yaiepn 18bpng psjood
1500 ybiy Jo snooy 8y | [un dn suswaoeld bulsixa 08|84 S1S0D |/ /60 B85S0 JANA 8LLE Aunog jo InQ
(w3) (w3) (wgz) (w3)
HUoW wnpno jebpng
palinbay uopoy aosueLe) Jofel jo asnen 1se aosueuep pejoefoig | pesiey 30IAIBS
ajsueueA
SFAJIAU3S ALINDNWOD vL/€1L0C UInnNQ jeuly

Page 202



(zes'0)  [(ess'0)  |ivp'6S £00°09 i [ejoL
(18z'0) |(18270) [sov'L ovL') ‘[ejoiqns
Jua.INoal aq o0} pajoadxa (e)eb21668)
10U JNQ MBIABI O} 2NURU0D ‘s@oueleA Jouiw snoueAl(€90°0) (£90°0) /120 0820 SsaouBLeA JaY)0
(CERITVET
BuisnoH)
-uonoalosd ulyym pajoayjal Ajjny mou wea| poddng
‘pauawadun mou aimponusay| sinjoniisas e auobiapun Ajuasal 2019 |(S00°0) (s00°0) oL} 901L°L uoEepPOW WOy
‘uotiepouwiwodoe ‘GLiPLOZ Iun
Aresodwa) Jo 1509 palkejop uaaq sey joaloid asnoH Aenp
ay) 2onpai 0} aoe|d ul ind uaaq "uonepowLWodoe (sao1nIeg
aABY SPOYIaW ausym adIAIes Aresodwa) Jo 1502 8y} aonpal 0} agejd BuisnoH)
ay} ul s)uawanoidwi o) anp si| Ul Ind uaaq aaeYy SPOYISLL dJBYM 3DIAIDS UOIEPOWILIODDY
aoueueA "Malaal Japun daay)| 8y} ul sjuswaaoidun o) anp si sauelieA[(g12°0) (erz0) J¥L°0 09€°0 SSOUSSI|OWOH
s291A19S BuisnoyH
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Usuo wnpng jebpng
paJinbay uopoy asueuep Jofey jo asnen isen aoueuep aoAIeg
pejosfoid | pesiaay
aoueUeA
S3JIAM3IS ALINNNINOD vL/g102 uiNPNQ Jeuty

€ XIAN3ddv

Page 203



Page 204



0000 (1000) _ |98P'E€ 18V'€ saoueleA Jayjo Jo jebaibby
's2oud joeljuod
pajenobau-ai 0) anp pasnpaJ aAey jey)
siojesadQ sng 0} sjuswAed Apisqng sna|(6500)  [(650°0)  [OL¥L 697 L uopepodsuel |
‘sabJeyoa. a9} ubisap pajedonue uey)
Jamo| pue awodu) abieydal yejs jeuonippe
0} anp si g1 pouad e uopisod Buirosdu
ay] "wiejo |epuajod e Joj uoisinoid e se
papNjoul SI 093 JO JUBWHWWOD Y "S3INSO0
peo. B (sajuedwos An Aq Jiedas
10 spJepue)s Buinosdw) uo paseq) s,Nd4 saoineg Aiojejnbay
10} BWOooU] JO S[aAS] pajedonue uey) JamoT|e90°0 €900 9/8°0 €180 9 jouo) Juawdojnag sAemybiH
sbuineg Aoueoep 1oN[(860°0)  [(860°0)  [0EY0 8250 JuswdojaAa(g @ 19ssy Apadold
swwelbo.d juswabeuew
19sse yym aulj ul Alessanau
sjabpng ajis jo malnay sabieyd YANN pajediopue uey) 1amo1((920°0)  [(2200)  |9S0°0 €800 sBulpjoH Apadold
ueid ay; e uoneisuab
ABlaua Bupnpal o} anp pajoalosd
uey) SSB| %G9F S! SIU) pue 10z Mdy
|IUN PaAIadal jou sem ainbyy swooul |enjoe
3yl 'v1/€102 Ul apEW 3q MOu pjnoys
‘102 Aep ui anp %0023 J0 Jamod apisesQ
0} Bunejal awoou) Joj uoisinoid e jey)
‘uonepUSWIWODaI 320 NIPNY SAjBM U Aq
1@SH0 uaaq aAey oyjopsod aje)s3 jeusnpu)
8y} SS0.OE Sj[eyuoys awooul Jau pajewns3/(€z00)  [€zo0)  [(pozl)  [(1vZL) Sjun [eusnpu)
(syL0)  |(svL-0) 66’V 6SL’S uonepodsuel | g S}ossy
(w3) (w3) (w3) Aw.s
T} pouied wnynQ | jebpng
paJsinbay uonoy aJueleA Jo esne) eoueLEA aosueLiep pejosfold | pesirey LTV T
€ XION3ddV INIINNOUIANT $1/€10Z WINPNQ jeuld

Page 205



120°0 220°0 zeL’0 S0L°0 uopeisuabay
sbuiaeg Aoueoep 18N|(#10°0)  |(7100)  [802C 2222 S8JUBLIBA Jay)o Jo 3)eba.66y
‘Wwea) Jusawadiojuy
Ases ® YileaH ay) Aq ed AepljoH
yued aJoeje| Jo uoinoasold Jnjssadsons
ay) 6umoljo) pseme S)S0Q LNOD e sapnjouj|(zg00)  [(z90'0)  |18L°L zAl" uoa8)0id Apunwiwo)
(920°0) (920°0) 68€°C |SoV°'€ uolodRold dlignd
“senuoyine buunoqybiau
0} aoApe Bujuueld isijejoads Jo} dwooul
abieyoal ye)s pue sbuineg Aoueoep 12N{(Z€0'0) (zeo0) zesL $Ge’L saoueleA Jay)o jo ajebaibby
‘Cl pouad e
awoouj 93} Buluueld uo uswanoidwy Jouin}(200°0) (200°0) 9Ge0 £9€°0 jonuog Gujuueld
(6c0'0) [(6£00) |819°L L) Buiuueld
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Zl poliad wnyno | jebpng
paisinbay uonoy adUBMEA JO asne) soueLE asueueA peyosfoig | pesiney STV E T
€ XION3ddv IN3WNOYIANT ¥1/€10C WinynQ jeuly

Page 206



S¥0°0

£v0'0

051°2¢

101°2¢

Jejol

‘sj@bpng

S80IAI8S pue sa||ddns U0 SJUBWHWIWOD
paonpai pue uojejuswajdw) malral
201M9s Jo peaye sbuineg Aouedep 1N

(0£0°0)

(0€0°0)

90’}

9.0°L

aouewiopad
9 Loddng juawabeuep

(0£0°0)

(og0°0)

9ro°'L

9.0’}

aJueuLiopad B poddng

juawdbeuep

sjuana BuIpooy JaJUIM JO 1S0D Pasealou)

0100

0100

0LE®

00€6

saoueLeA Jayio Jo ajebaibby

‘pajealpul suopdaioid

snoinaud uey) paiinbai 6uiaq jjes ooy
$S9| pUB S}S02 pPadnpai Ul pajnsaJs sey sy}
0S SJUaA3 Mous Juedijubis ou alam aiay)
‘1aAaMOH “Jajuim abeiaae ue payojew
S)NoUIN} 3dUBUBUBW JAJUIM pauue|d

(080°0)

(080°0)

6160

6660

aouBUBjUIBIN JOIUIAN

pienuoj Bujob
d41i uo oedw Japisuo)

‘A1oedes paonpad o} anp Apybijs peyoaye
aq |im awoou) ue|d Juawiead) ayeyoea) ay)
yum pasuauadxa sanss] jeuoyesado 0} ang

A0S L3 I1se9)
1€ Jo ||epoys Buipuny e uy Buninsals 9,6 0}
dn Aq Jeak-ul paonpal uaaq sey (SNMS)
Juelo) Juawabeueyy S)SEAN 9|qeule)sng ay |

‘a)sem uiyum uonebnsanul 6ujob
-uo ay} Jo }nsaJ e se s)s09 buljyoeq yers

N0G3F 0

uOljONpPaJ AWOooU| pajeLwWwisa ue ul Buynsal
Jaquwiaydag pue AN udamyaq auuo) Jad
0013 Aq paonpai saoud Buijphoay onse|d

9.€°0

9.¢0

28001

90,6

uoND9Jj0N ASBAA B |esodsi( dsepm

90¢°0

90€°0

Lieoz

$00°02

audIs)eaNlS

pesinbay uopay

aoueleA Jo asne)

(w3)
Z) pouad
asuelep

(w3)
aoueuep

(w3)
wnyno
pajoafoid

(w3)
jeBpng
pesjAsy

R TIVETS

€ XION3ddV

LNIINNOYIANI

Y1/€102 uinynQ jeuty

Page 207



Page 208



"8aWOooUl S j00YoS uo sbBuines Jouiw 0} salefds w0 03
‘uonesnp3 Ul Ysiap Joj sisoo jeuolbal jeuonippe 0}
sajejal wG0'03 196pnq Juswapgul Ape3 ay ul sbumes
paulejuiew Uou pue paulejuiew ul sjuawaoejd plo jeah

€ uo sBulnes o} sajejas WiyL°0F siebpng ssediaiss pue
saljddns uo ainjipuadxa UO SjoJuUOD 0} S8le|jal WOED 0F
(Buiaes wipy/|°03) SedIAleg [00YOS Alewnd

(P2L0)

(¥21°0)

6VGEY

ECLEY

(S0 NETS
jooyog Aiewnid

‘Hoddng

inoiAeysg @ UOISN{oU| O} djejas WIGN0 03 Jo sbuines
‘syjuswaoeid funo) Jo IO Bugsixa o) sejefps w8003
(sunssaad

wzgo'03) slooyas |edads B SIJIAIBG UOISNOU|

080°0

180°0

13443

LEE'EL

s|ooyos jenads
Q SA0IAIBS UOISN|ou|

"SaoUBLiEA JOUlW O} Saje[al w/g80 03

Buiulewas ay] "s}s09d sasiwaid o} 9jejal WGl 03 Jo
sainssald "S8Jjusd SSOJOB alodU] U0 $ainssaud o) sejejal
wggg 03 "SaJluad ssoioe §)S02 Alejes paonpal 0} sejejal
weyL 03 Jo Buines v "g10g 1snbny ul pasead awwelboid
SIY *aJIYSiul4 WG 0} Sa)ejal WYz 0F Jo ainssaid v
(einssaud wigzy'03) S9d1AIRS ainsiaT

S3oUBUEA JOUIN
(Buiaes wizp0°03) abejuiay g aumyn) ‘seuseqi]

‘a01AI8g Adeiqi [00YOS By} Ui ainjipuadxa aonpai 0} uae)
aq jjm sainseaw Jo Jaquinu e ‘awweiboid Asuow Joy
anjeA ay) SpJemo) ajNqLIuUod 0} pue puadsisAo a)eioloalig
ay) ajebiiw o} ‘] nQ 1e Juawaaibe ue Bumojjo

(Buines weg0°03) 9dinag Aseiqi j0oYog

6.2°0

0820

£v9°9

£9€°0

ainsia '@ auMn)

pesnbey uopdy

aJuBLIBA JO BSNEY)

(w3}

yuoy ise
aouelURA

(w3)

souelEA

(w3)

wnyno
pejoefoid

(w3)

1ebpng
pasiAay

ELITINETS

¥ XION3ddVY

ONINY¥VY3IT ONOT3AT

YLIELOZ wnNNQ jeuty

Page 209



(920°0)

(220°0)

SLEECLE

esvell

T [eol

*(-0j@ sauoyda|a}

‘suonduosgns) saouelieA Jouil JaYyjo 0} sajejal wglL0'03
Buiuiewsa 8y -ainypuadxa 3o Jayio pue Aisuoilels
‘6unuud o} sajejas w10 03 196pnq Buiuies) ajelooalp
8y} 0) we L0°'0F ‘Buiues) JOUIBAOL) 0} sajejal w900 0F
(Buines wigpo 03) Hoddng ssauisng @ Juswabeuey

saouele Joulpyy
(Buines wzpo'03) SaolAlS SaNjIoe

‘WQN0 03 40 SaoueleA

Jouiw J1ayjo pue (wsep'03) souesnsuy) (Wogo'03)
swooisse}) s|iqoly uo sbuiaes pajewnss Aq 19syo
uaaq aAey (suoissiway Jisnyy pue sdu) jooyds ‘siesy
jooyos a@ai4) poddng jdnd Uo WZOL 0F JO sainssald
(Buines wigL0"03) SHUN 2DIAIRS

* 191 $jooyoas ul anypuadxa

paniwwosun uo pjoy e ase|d 0} uoisioap auy} apew aAey
LIAG ‘awweiboid Asuow J0j anjeA U} SpIeMO) SjNqLIU0D
0} pue puadsJano ajeio}oali] 2y} 8onpal 0} Hoye ue uj
(Buwes wysL'03) LI SI00Y9S

(v92°0)

(r9z°0)

90Cl

oLeCL

$82IN0SaY
2 juswdojanag

£00°0

0000

GeL'LE

Scl'LE

S82IMIBS
jooyog Arepuoosag

pasinbay uonoy

asuepeA JO 8sne)

(w3)

yiuoy ise
aosueueA

(w3)

asuelEA

(w3)

wnnung
payoefoid

(w3)

yeBpng
pasiaey

L TTVETS

¥ XION3ddV

ONINYVIT ONOT341

PLIELOT wNRNQ [euly

Page 210



‘(sijuawAed BuisnoH

Aeuonalosi(q pue sjuswAediano Guipnjour)
Apisgng sjysuag buisno pue pund
uoj98jj0D XE| |1Iounoy) Uo snjdins jeuolippe
pue Buipunj swayog uoionpay xe |
(12UNOY Ui |{ejoys paonpais e Buipnjoul si0joey
10 Jaqwinu e 0} anp Aouaiiye (W60 L3)
196pnq Jo wswubyeal Jeak u Bumojjoy

2013s 8y} uo sbulaes Aoueosea jau (wiL0Z 03)((652°L) (8sz’L) 296'21 SzZT vl aoueul4
saoueleA Joulw (wL00°03)
S]s02
Jeal u| Jasyo 0) el gs Jo asn (wyzo'03)
Aouaaiye Abajens Ajunwiwo) (wg Lo 03)
suone|ay
211gnd pue uoieynsuo)) Bulpnjou; salouaIdYe
suopesiunwwo? ayesodio) (wozo 03)
sBuiaes Aoueoep (Wpe0°03)
wiodiabueq o} uonguuod

Jojoas Aiejunjon ajesodio) wiZL0°03F(SEL0) (geL°0) 89.°2 £0€'C aAjndaxd JaIyy

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
yjuop ise wnino 1ebpng
paJinbay uonoy aoueUEA JO Isne oumtie asueleA pejosfoig pesiney 901AI08
S xipuaddy SIDIAYIS ILVHOLN0D PL/CLOZ UINPNQ jeUL

Page 211



saoueueA Joujw (We00 03)

ERIINETS

jeba] 1oy abieyoal Yyers paonpal wsLo 03
ainypuadxd

suonduosgng |eba paonpals (wiZ10'03)

(018 |2Aey) *Buuies; -out)

puadsiapun saouemoj|y siaqusiy (wL60'03)
puadsiapun sa21AI8g siaquisy (wggo 03)
safieyoas pue swnoo/Aouaby jo asn

LERITVEDS

ay) Buipnjou sBuines Aoueoep jau (wiglLo'03)[(9vL°0) (9vL°0) 966'C ZrL'e ajesoows( g [ebe
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
LIuUoW 1se wnino yebpng
paiinbay uonoy aouepeA jo asned soueLie ajueuep pajoefoid posiAey 90IAI9S
G Xipuaddy SIJIAYAS F1VIOdH0D ¥1/€10Z WNRNQ [euld4

Page 212



ajis JoudApues

Bupoyiuow Ajyyuow Bulobup ‘v 1L/EL0Z 404 PAsIARL UR3Q dAeY S1SC)| 8820 8820 882°0 0000 - P11 sjeanng Jaulo4
90188 poddng -abieyoal sableyoay
JO Ma|A3I |eIan0 Ue 0) 103[qng poddns puny uoisuad ‘awooul jeuollippy| 9¥€'0 gLL'0 (vLi¥'L) (06S°L) J0IAIBS [BJU3D
"(wpz0 03) seoueLeA
Jouiw JaYl0 “(wpgL"03F-) @0jm3 asnoH Aun
o} awodu; jeuoyippy (abexoed dwj sda)s 1s41d)
(wgzz 03) awoou |jejpum ajelodiod jo Alen0dal
JanQ (WG 03-) luawabeue ainsie ‘wggl’L3
186png j1ouno)d GL/p L0 4O S80IABS Ajunwwo))) podal £ IUOW au ul SuoIsinoid
Jed se pasopisuod aJe s}abpng| panoidde se (wpgy'03) Jo Suswysnipe 1bpngIan|(9LL'L)  [(911°L) €66} 60L°€ PIeH Ajenua)
aoueueA
ws 0’03 B u Buinsal paAiedal uasg mou
puads JeaA uj uo uayepapun sey a8210Au| SiY} ‘ouno) Ajuno)) aaysybiquaq
j12uN0y AJunon aaysybiquag WioJ} paAladal B)ep UO Paseq jenidoe
yum Bulioyuows Jejnbay| pajewnss ue sem abieyosal sivu0I0) ¥ Jauend| 0200 0,00 €920 €610 sJauoio)
"pajoadxa ueyy Jjaybiy (WoZo 03
-) awoaui sayjo ‘pajosfoid ueyy Jaybiy seouejeq
yseo (W 90'03-) WoouU| Juawysaay] ‘puadsiapun
(wpo1°03-) pueqgspue jo swiep Jo ajes
‘pajoadxa uey) Jamo| sabieyoas yeys ‘wzL0'0F
L) jJuswabeuew Jga( “pajoadxs ueyy Jaybiy swns
‘ABajesig| peonwwon puadsiano WSZO 03 ISaJaiu) [eulaluy|
yuawabeuepy Ainseas| ‘awweiboid jeydeo ay) ui abueyo jo joedw JUNOJ2Y JUBWISAAU|
Uyim aul| Ul Jojuow 0) 3nuhuod| (wpgo 03-) (dHN) UoISIrOIg anuasdy wnwIun|(S6r°0)  [(961°0) 18Lv) €82Gl '® sueo [enguad
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Hilon wnynQ
paiinbay uojjoy 82UBHEA JO ISNE) Isey asueueA yoBpng pesiasy 2olAleg
soueLEA pejoalold

9 XIAN3addV

JONVNIH JLVHOdHO0D ANV TVHLNID

viig10e uinpnQ feuld

Page 213



_.NS.:

(€.8°0) 129°'se £2L'9Z fleol
(wgL0 03F-) SPoUBLIBA JOUIW JaYIQ "SanuUoyIny
JUaN)ISUOD pAMID X@ Jnoj WO} JINW Jo} (WsZo 0
-) Jo 1di1a0a1 AA3) }sOd "pund uolelojsues |
jeuoibay Joj (w/Z0 0-3) J0 aouejeq
[enpisay “(Wi€0 0-) SHO 31 IS paseasoy
(W20 0-) @OUBINSUI UM piBy Saluow Joj ypaid a)ebalbbe
{(WSH0"0-3) WUBWHWWOD uogseD paanpay|(€21°0)  |(121°0) £26'6 6001 - SBOUBLIEA JBUIQ
‘GL/L0C Ul s8louaidyje
Jayunj pwoddns |im sauobajeo ‘awweibouid abuey) 0}
puads jo abuajjieyd panuiuoDd| 1seau| auy) uiym AouaIdYS JO JUBLLBABIYDE JBpUN) ¥80°0 ¥80°0 €£0°0 (150°0) saJnind aJysjull4
-uoiysod ajep 0} dn
GL/PL0Z ur joedwi| ay) sjoayes uoyosiold asuelea ay) pue p/eL0g W
ay) JopIsuod 0) uayelapun| paseasdap sey abesn Aousby uaxeuspun uaaq
aq 0} sisA[eue Jayun4| sey joejuo) XUlep 8y} Uo 9leqal ay) JO Mairal Y| €210 g£CL0 (z61°0) (SLE0) 10BJUOD XIEp SSEN
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yjuopy winun
paiinbay uonoy 89UBHIBA JO 8SNe) jsen asueMeA nno yebBpng pasiaey JojAles
8oueURA pepeloid

9 XION3ddV

FONVNI4 31VHOdUO0D ANV TVHLNID

tiLieL0Z winpnQ jeuld

Page 214



APPENDIX 7

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2013

Less - Base Level (inclusive of total increase
of £0.270m agreed as part of the 2013/14
budget)

Total Reserves above base level

Less - Amount approved by Council on 1%
March for funding of one-off costs in the
2013/14 budget proposals

Less - Amount approved by Cabinet on 16"
July for reinstatement of funding within the
Winter Maintenance reserve following
utilisation of funding during 2012/13 (late
March severe weather event)

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Add underspend as at 315 March 2014

Less - Actual severe weather recovery costs

Less — contribution to termination benefits
relating to workforce efficiencies — Senior
Management Phase 1.

Total Contingency Reserve as at 31
March 2014

Page 215

£m

9.540

(5.834)

£m

3.706

(0.297)

(0.250)

3.159

3.387

(0.473)

(0.745)

5.328



Page 216



Final Outturn 2013/14

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

APPENDIX 8

Maintenance

salaries due to long term vacancies and
recruitment freeze in place.

£0.159m Increase in the anticipated
major works being undertaken in voids
resulting in a reduction in the revenue
spend projections from previous month.

Subcontractor overspend of £0.437m due
to adverse weather conditions in March
2013, recent high wind damage in
February 2014 and major works on void
properties.

£0.070m variance is based on the carry
forward request for PDA costs which will
be purchased in 2014/15.

Service _MM,MMMM_ an..__M”nqﬂa Variance _.MM“, __U___“.”mn: Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

HRA Subsidy 6.167 6.328 0.161 0.189|Capital Financing charges amended after
budget rounds completed.
Further amendments to Capital figures
for inclusion in 2nd HRAS return. Under
payment on 2012/13 of £0.031m
calculated on Advance Final return.

Rents (26.946) (27.182) (0.236) (0.202)|Actual bad debt provision saving of
£0.226m.

Repairs and 8.393 8.754 0.361 0.255|£0.201m net under spend variance on Housing Asset Management

Team is working closely with
Travis Perkins on price
reductions due to the volume of
materials being purchased
through the partnership
arrangement.

An in-house kitchen team is
being created to undertake
kitchen installations in void
properties which will reduce the
level of subcontractor spend in
this area.

Page 217



Final Outturn 2013/14 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT APPENDIX 8
= Revised Projected . Variance g - .
Service Budget Outturn Variance Last Month Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Finance & Support 2.656 2.197 (0.459) (0.243)|Support Recharges reflected at 2012/13

actuals, saving £0.106m. Information on
2013/14 has been requested.

Pension Fund Strain costs £0.080m
lower than anticipated creating saving.
Insurance claim non-reimbursement
reviewed and reflected at 2012/13
figures, saving £0.034m

Variance is based on the carry forward
requests totalling £0.125m which are to
be actioned in 2014/15 ....

£0.110m due to software costs not
materialising in 2013/14 but will be
purchased in 2014/15.

£0.015m due to Maisonette budget not
being fully spent in year.

Page 218




Final Outturn 2013/14

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

APPENDIX 8

Service

Revised
Budget
(Em)

Projected
Outturn
(Em)

Variance
(Em)

Variance
Last Month
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Housing Estates

1.852

1.705

(0.147)

(0.181)

Procurement reimbursement for
screening received in amount of
£0.058m.

Void clearance recharges generating a
further £0.017m income.

Water commission generated a further
£0.034m of income due to early bird
discount scheme which offsets the
£0.055m variance on the water bill.
Cancellation of cleaning contract saving
£0.005m on maisonette blocks.

Salary savings of £0.067m over all areas.

Other variances
(aggregate)

8.375

8.465

0.091

0.011

Total :

0.497

0.268

(0.229)|

(0.171)

Page 219



Page 220



\¢ 901°0 suofpejuasald Jo Bujuwi] - SS3USSaPWIOH

\» 820°0 sBuiaes Aouapiy Buisnon|

\¢ Le0o M3INIY uogeqs|uiwpy 824j0 [essuan

Ve 5LO°0 VSO - 4E1s jo yuswaoeidas uop - jualainey Apel|

\r 000 saopoesd Bugsixe Jo uojsiABI - WED ] JUBWAdEd Ajlwe

\p €v0'0 S3UINISS S,UBIPIYD - 1S0d Bugsix3 Joj Bulpung jewaix3

\¢ €500 s19A3) Ajiagoe paonpal - siybpy pansasalg

\¢ 00170 210 BAX3 JO [8AS} Y} Ul JuBWageay

sasiag Aunwiwo)d

{92 XIONTddv) eBuey edinies

Issro TvioL

\¢ gL00 S19S( BOIAIAS sl |Bjuan
\» 001°0 puBWwag Wau4 atwodu) paseasnu| - bujbiey) |epuapisay|

saoines Apununtio)

(82 XIGN3ddY) sebieyd @ sead

BRI
FIGVAIIHOV LHvd NI QIAIIHOV 38 Q3A3IHOV
10N NI 318VAIIHOV OL G3103dX3 AQV3dv
AON3UOI443 AON3ID1443 ADN3IOI343 ADN3IOI443
UojjeuLIoju] JueAs|el (w3) : P
Jeyjo 10 snjejs uopisod uelind Kouejpoiyg uondussaq Aduedisg
uoddns 03 uopeuusoju; seyyng uopsod jueund pajeBpng
Zl Yjuo
Sepuep3

AJSIILY
g A h_mm&

Bujiojjuopy 19bpng

Page 221



0200 sjuswaoeid awnjoA

\f M) 1502 Ybiy Jo Juawaindoud jeuoiBal - qniy Juswaindoid

\¢ IG,0°0 saonag pue sayddng - ase) |erog

\» £00°0 saomieg pue sayddng - saojiag BujsnoH

\¢ 0£0°0 manas anjpuadxa uonejuawaidw jsod - Spivd

sasuas Apunuwiuo)
(04 XIONIddY) Weweind0.d|

lesvo Vi0L

\¢ 50070 aJeo Aep - 82|AJ3S 2IRJ 13)S0) BAIEIUAALY

11 Buswous ApuSIS 51 i W_MQWMH A L0 uogonpa 1a6pNq Wea} SV - SIIIIBS S,USIPIYD
\¢ 5100 Aouampyye iS00 LOdSUBL] - S3DIAISS §,URIPIYD

Vo 0100 sieIstIEq / SI0)DIIOS JO BS() - Saa4 1Bl

\f 0100 3oi1Aas Jnpe sjeudoiddy - 8oRSN YINOA

TIEVAIHOV LMvd nn Q3AIIHOV
NI Q3A3IHOY 38
10N NI 318VAIIHOY oL g3L03dx3 AQV3AY
AON3I0I443 AON3IDI443 ADN3IIOI443 AON3I0I443
UORBULIOJU] JUBABOS (w3)
Jey}o 1o smejs uojysod Jua.nd OISO JuBLIND Aousiony uoydaaseq Aousjoiy3
yoddns 0} uojjeunioju) Jeyund pejebpng
Z1L yiuon
Sepuew3

SNYSIUL]
g A s

BuLiojluoyy jebpng

Page 222



lesvo Tv10L
. wea} juswoabeuep)
\¢ 050°0 JO uopES|jeUCHEY - SBDIN0SaY PUB JuswdoPAs(Q
\r 000 1sod Jabeueiu Wea) sUO JO |BACWSY - SBIIAISS S,UsIpiIYD
\r 8100 S91AJ3S USPIEAA JO MBIASY BINISS,
“Buizis )ybu
40 )jnsal B se apew uaaq aney sbuines awog
‘piemuoy 6uiob |impoob yels jo uofualal pue
‘3WO2)NO [NYSSIVINS B PAAIIYIL UOYEJNSUCD \f 0SE°0 sowsag Buia papoddng jo mamnay]
BAISUBIX® Uy "p10Z tdy woJ aimonns
mau 3y jo uogejuawsaydun Jo )nsal e se
‘G L/ 10T Wwoy ageaaiyoe Ajiny st Aduapye syl
saqnseg Ajunwiwo)
(P2 X1GNIddY) ubiseq jeuogesiuebio
| 101
S200
\¢ SJOBAUOD PASIABL - MAINIY podsuel |
ZEv'03 jo puadsiano ue Bumoys mou s|186pnq teso o o
SIY) SSOURSWINAID 13SN 3DAIBS Ut abueyd aopoe.d JuswaIndo
0} anp 19AaMOH (Y€ 0)3F Jo puadsiapun \r panoxdwi - sjuswadeld Hunod Jo JNO - SBIAIBS S,uaIPIIYD
ue Bumoys sem 1abpnqg siy £ Yluow Je sy
J18VAIIHOV wvd oottt ] aanaHov
1ON NI 319VAIIHOV Ol a3103dX3 AQV3IYY
AON3IOI443 AON3IOI443 AONIIOIH43 AON3I12i443
UOpEWIOJU| JuBAR|Rl (w3) p p
u 1IS JUO)
49430 10 snjejs uojyisod justind OISO JUBLIND Koueyoiyyg ojjduvseq o
Hoddns 0} uojjewnoju) JBYUNg pajebpng
Zl QiuoWw
S8ioueldyj3

AasILIY
ung A .;.W&u

~SedIAIBg AJJUNUIUIO)

Bupioyiuow 1ebpng

Page 223



Page 224



AISIUIL g
Jutlig A 152

6 Xjpueddy - JUBWUCI[AUT

18207 M.._~mamw_.n_vv anﬂ_um_vﬂcmﬁwcm.wcﬂcvﬁﬂbwww \ S2C0 10 Buseydas- (dWVH) ueld EoEommcmc_\q_““_mﬂcww_a@szgg __.._..ﬂ
Jou sem jey) ainssaud panoidde snoinald
1INy U} paASIYIE 8q |Im >UCO_UEN Siu) puej X =L fiupiw jsod sease [epuepisal-uou - bu Je8l)
paidope usaq sey Aoyod BuyBr] 19315 Mau By Ve 0500 _:o ) Biupiw |epuap nyé S
JusluUoHAUT
(92 XIGN3ddv) abueyd eajates
Jovi'o IVioL
‘ueld juaw)eal) sjeyaes) ay) e
sanss| Ayjoeded 0) anp Y51 F Aq pasdAcdal Japun \o G.00 Buissasosd ajeyoea| - auassieans|
[29 uw 1abue) awoauy mau ay) ey pajedionue s) )|
18bpng Aojlod .
skemybiH uiyim WwoJy oW uononpay 186png Va €100 S30010N Japio uoneinbay oelL
‘uotjisod . soed -
awoou snidins e Bupodas Apuauina syaspep \r 6100 S SIAENa) PSSEaL) - SRS SIBHEW
€102 3uny I1S| WoJj pasesldul alam S3IAIRS . _
WewaAeajeg puE BuisuSorT 11og 10} see| Ve 520°0 sajes Ja)Jew o} 9SeI3U - UON3BI0Id AN
‘uopisod awooul .
snjduns e Buipodas Apuannd saiels3 jeinynouby \¢ 8000 Sieiua) Sjeis3 fRinynouBy
JusuoyAug
(e XIGN3ddv) sebiey) g sead|
J1BVATIHOV wva | o008 | aaaamov
1ON NI 3719VAIIHOV Ol g3103dx3 AQVINTY
AON3IOI443 AON3IDI443 AONIIOI443 AODN3IDI443
UOJ3ELLION] (w3)
jueAB|al JOLRO JO SNJEYS uogisod LORBOG RIS Aouepyyg uopdusseq Aoueldy3
juaund poddns 0} UopeWIOU| JOLRIN pajaBpng
Z1 Yluow

seauepPIsg
BupGiuoW 39Bpng

Page 225



«Jum:n_‘:_:
Wi A 35

§ Xipuaddy - JUSWUOI|AUS

. Japusi-al pue SjoeNueD INARBS
126pnq 221As9s Uy paquosqe Asuaioly3 \» 9€00 SN PasIPISQNS JO MBIABY - SBJJAIaS uonepadsuelf
Imou ase pue ssasaud Japua) ed se MJ_MS,M 0500 fecodsip
pu ejouy abueue uel 3] - SBDIAJAG BISE
usaq aaey mE@Eﬂm:mbm tonm:wt. MBN \ _uumw; 40} Sjuaus toam 1 19pUaL. eSS S1saM
JueluoNAUTg
(92 XIGNIddV) Wowaino0.d|
foszo IvioL
*A2UBtoHa SIY) JO JuSWAABIYDE! lsooo $8553001d JUaLIND auyweans - Asuolels
S3)e2ipUl § POUdd e uonisod Guuoluop 196png \¢ pue seyiddng - 3sueuLiopad @ Hoddng m.m._o.uﬂ_DL
"Aauaroiye sip Jo Juawanaiyde : sjuawAed abeepw 1 - [3AR]) LBl
sajeajput  poliad e uonisad Buuoyuon 186png Va €000 ejiul psonpa.
*AoU01Hd SIY) JO JuBWaARoe] . Bunpom apibe - w uswdoje SS3UISN!
sajealpul  pouad Je uoiisod Buuoyuop 196png e 000 _ o Eal . ena
‘aAIaS3) SNIEIS
oL 91705 Posctioe 5 o pereiRre ovi0 UORoI00 Aepinies
| 1A B -
5105 STREIS BYBUS 40 LoHENSWSIL 1) o) \¢ 0 IO (101 10y wozy SBIABS 3j2IUBA - SBDIAIRS 81SEM
juepuadap s| Aouaiaije Siy) JO JuBLIBABIYJE aY ]
‘anIasal snjejs
a1buis ay) woyj Jow Buaq s llejuoys yL/ELOZ
8yl "Si/yL0Z Ul paAsiyde 8q o} pajediopue \f 00€°0 Juawaaibe ||| ved jo uoleluswsidu) - 3U3ISIBANS
st os snje)s ajbuis jo uonejuawsidus ay) uo
juepuadap si AoUBD1YS SIY} JO JUIWBABIYDE BY |
At s13i123 Aq Asusioye
3U) UO JUSWBABIYIR JBpUN puUE Alessadau
uoyieynsuod buiobuo L pakelap seyuny Va 0500 ABajey)s 0 JISIAaI - SAJUBUBAUCD aANd
usaq aaey smiae) pue wedy) pue £10Z |udy
YI0E 1AUN 3SO0 L,UPIP |IBMAIOH ‘Suapies) Jamo]
J1BVAIIHOV wvd | o S gl Ganamov
1ON NI 318VAIIHOV OL 03103dX3 AQYIHTV
AON3IDI443 ADN3IOI443 ADNIIOIH43 AON3IDI443
uopeuLIOju (w3)
JueAB|8. JBY30 JO SME)s uopisod OISO WL Kouejng uopydsosaq Aduejoy3
juaund uoddns 0} uopewloju} JBYLINg pejebpng
ZI ypuow
STEIERITE]

Bupoyuoy 198png

Page 226



Ay
M A 15 T

losoo V1oL
183yg aoueeg .
JUBWUONAUZ BU} Ul 3ouBleg A)BI0paMQ Syoads Ve 5200 paiinbai jou asuejeq - Alajes B yieaH / Buisuadn
193ys saueteg .

JusWIUONAUT 8Y) U duereq ajeIoiDaN] JYIads \o 5200 paunbal jou soueteq - SIS [MINLBY
juswiuonaug
(82 XIGN3ddY) $819UBIPHIT JBRO

00 vioL
[PL/EL0Z J0§ WwiRlD JUBS) 1SU1 SBIIUNWIICD B JO hzo: awuweibold
ued se paAsiyoe aq |im sy} 1ey pajedioque si 1| Vs 00 1sJ1d sanunwwo) ay) o) sbieyoay juawabeuei mejaey
Jusiwuonnug
(P XiIGN3ddv) uBisag jeuopesjuebip

1o WIOL
196pnq acinsas ulywm paglosqe Aouapiyl| \¢ 0200 Joddng ajeJ0)024] UM Sassadold Juaund aujweans
196pnq 821AI8s UIYIM paqiosqe >uco_u5m4 Ve 5200 puads ajgesuanyun Ul LoNINPSY
196pnq annes ulym pagiosqe >oco_o=_m‘ Va €100 SJUBHNSUOD JO 3SN L) LoNONPaY

N4
FIGVYAIIHOY Luvd NI G3A3IHOV 39 Q3A3IHOVY
10N NI 318VAIIHOV 0L 03103dx3 AQVIHTVY
AON3I01443 AON3IOI443 AONIIDIH43 AON3IDI443
uoREWLIOU| o (w3) p ,
JUBAS|J JOLJIO 10 SNJE)S LOY)S! Kousjoiy3 uonauIsag Adus|dilig
juaund poddns 0} uopewLou] JBYUNg uoRISad weLng psjeBpng
<1 Yjuol
R EITE]

Buiio)uon 1e6png

Page 227



Page 228



Adysiug
Tun A 215 o

‘siseq 6uuunoal e uo
mofaq woso'03 3yl jo Wed Buiuieras Aq AGajens
YINoA 8Y) Jo Yed se passalppe useq Sey youm \r Ze0'0 SJS)JOM BIE JOIUDS JO LIOoNpal - 3AIBS INOA
mey) 196pnq e pajeasd Aousioiya sy "pasnpal|
usaq AjlsnoiAald pey SiayJom ease Joj 1abpng ay L
\¢ 5200 sajouadIYa feuoneiad)
Bunwee'y buoreyry
(a2 XIGNIddV) sbuey) edjases
1202°0 WioL
"awy siy) je jabpng
podsuel] ay) uo amssasd e ajedidnue jou
Op BM 'JSASMOH "SIt} Wiiuod o) 6ujobuo Si YoM .
"pansiyoe aq ued AJuaioie aul Jo WL 03 Aluo \» 0£0°0 Hwi| dduesip g1 Isad jo maIAY
1ey) sueaw euque?) Bajjo) o) yodsues apiroid|
0) anuyuo? 0) jesodoid ay) o) Jualpuawe ayj
‘weoto3
3|QEASIYIE JUNOWE pBjewWlST "PaAayoe Ajnj
aq 0} A1axy Jou osie sy Aoudidie ay) '1ew aq o) \t L7ANY] sabiseyo paseaiou) - SadIAIRS aInsia
pajoadxa jou ase sjabie) awoduy se Inq paalbe
se Aienuer IS| ay) UO pasEaIdty asem syue]
\¢ lvoo0 aseasoul sabieyd anH - Aiesqr|
Vs 1000 saul - aoineg Aegn|
Bupsesy buojoyry
(e2 XION3ddv) sebieyd 3 seed|
1nd
JIEVAIIHOY 1dvd NI G3A3IHOY 38 Q3A3IHOVY
1ON NI 3N8VAIIHOV 0L g3103dxX3 AQVIETY
AONIIOI443 AON3I0I443 ADNIIOIS43 AONIOI443
uopeuLIoju) (ur3) u :
jueABjas JBY)o JO SME)S uopisod Aousioulg uopduasaq Adusidyia
jusund yoddns 0} uoyeuIoju| JayUNg uonsod Juaiing pajabpng
Zl Yiuoly
$8{ausidl3

Gujicjjucy 3eBpng

Page 229



rmv.e

ANYSIU |
1 A 115 T

V101
\¢ Iev0'0 anaruisay wea ) Juswabeuey ajei0103.Q}
\¢ 5200 Apisqns Buluwims Jo feaowsal - SBIAIRS aInsia|f
“aun) sy} 1e 196pnq
191 stooyas ay) uo ainssaid e ajediue jou op 5 Snpat 150d - MBIAS) BIAIDS WLBIY| -
SM MBIASY 1O 912104100 BU) LM PRUIQUIGD \¢ 15200 uofjonpas } ) NAIBG WWBiU| - LI} T1f
US2Q MOU SBY MIIATY aJIAJS | D} SI00YaS By L
"apew
uaaq 134 jou sey sinoy buado ey Aunod ay 200 S1500 aunpaao f A6iaua
85101 0) UDISIIBP BY) “Jeak sy 1eBpnq sanioey e paonpal - sunoy Buiuado pasiaa: jleH AunoD - senyioed|
ay) uo aunssaid e 133dxa Jou op am ybnoyyy,
\¢ 5100 MaIAaS BIMONS - 300 1BNURD / Juswabeueyy - sanmoed|
‘bLIELOZ Buunp . - o
pasnbas JeBUO| OU S| LOINGUILO? [EUONIPPE SIYL Ve 050°0) (€171 DO) %053 Yoeq BuipioH - 301AaS UINOA ™
(Q\|
\¢ 5000 uonesjleuoyel Suipiing - adIABS YINDA (D)
(@)
©
\p 1100 sBuiaes s1s00 Bujpjing - 82IAJ3S YINOA (al
\¢ iZLO'0 uoyesnbyu0sal INAIBS - BJIAISS YINOA
‘paue)ls aaey suofeyjobau ybnoy) pajuawaidui|
us3q 194 jou sey pue ABajens yino \¢ 19200 S1221U02 A0 B ULIB) - BIAIRS UINOA
8y} Jo ped se paonpouui Buteq s) abueyd sy).
N4
JI8VYAIIHOVY 1¥vd NI G3A3IHOV 39 A3A3IHOVY
1ON NI 318VAIIHOV OL 03103dX3 AQVIHTY
AOJN3ID1443 AON3101443 ADNIIDI443 AON3IOI443
uojeuLIojU (ur3) ._ .
W 408 IUB)D|
jueABjas J9Y30 JO smes uopisod uopisod sLng Aousoya oRdudseqg 9103
jusund pyoddns o} uoeunoju) Joyung pejebpng
Z1 WUol
SaPpusPWa

Bunicnuon jeBpng



rnv.n

qviolL

U._mz.n«::&
Junpg A L_V,.N@

Vo Z€1°0 (ssequinu pdnd) sjcoyas ut abueyd oiydelbowsq
(a2 X1GN3ddV) SalpuedNIa 18RO
—~med Tviol

\» 1€0°0 MaInaY adnuag Aleiqp - sauelqr]

\v SL00 Juawaa) ajq)xald - Sauesqr]
Bunues] buoiayy m
{(p2 XIGN3ddY) ubiseq [euogesuebiiQ (V]
()
_mc (@)]
v'0 IvioL ©
o

\» 080°0 sejouaioye jeuoiessdQ - 301AJ8S Lodsuel) j0oyas

. "syuawsaoeid jo Guuojyuow pue suawaalbe

\r S8€°0 somaweyy ybnosyy Juawanoosd pasasdw) - Hunod jo INO

Y _So.o souag Atexgr ay) uyym abejsod Jo uonanpay

bupisea buoayny

(22 XIGNIddY) Iuewaindoid|

Tnd
FIGVAIIHOV 1¥vd NI G3A3IHOV 39 A3AIIHOV
1ON NI 3T1GVAIIHOV Ol a31034x3 AQY3HTV
AJN3I01443 AON3NOIJ43 AONIIOIS43 AON31I0I443
UOREULIOjU) (w3) od p
jueAsjel Joyo Jo snyeys uopisod Aoauspwg uopduasaq Aduspoy3
juaund puoddns 0} uopeunIoju) Jeyging UORISOd JusLInd pajebpng
¢l Yjuoy
SappuePRa

Bupojucy j°obpng



Page 232



ANSILILY
uijg A 48 g

lsero V1oL
5100 saouemojje Ayiqisuodsey |ereds Jo Jequinu paanpal
\ O} pa)u| LOINPaI SUOHNQUIUOD [N - SBIUBMO||Y SiSqUIBN|
020" pajedoij|e Jequinu Jo uohanpal
\¢ 200 - saouemoyjy Aljiqisucdsay jejoads - Seauemolly Siaquiep
. esealau|
\» 0100 Aseuojiejjul ou - (83UEMO)[y JISEH) SSIBMOYY SIBGUIBIN
\» 0L0°0 ebesn Jaded paonpas - Sa0IAI9S JnRIoOWe]
saawusg 8jes0d:o) - JILYYIOWId ® VO3
Y 5E0°0 sSuojjdo JO MBIAR) - SH28YD BYHD)|
saneg ajeso0diod - 4o 9 HH
\¢ —moo.o SUNB|ING S2JOHHUOM PaAdNPaJ - SWWOY sjesodio)
seoiAIeg 9)e0dIn)) - 8AINIBXT JBID
(92 XIONIddy) eBuey esates

lsso0 IvioL
\ GLO0 sjusweelbe g0 LS 7 BuoueAsauod - sea4 [eweIxg
sasueg sjesodod - JLLYYIONIA ¥ TvOTT
Va 000 uswdinba ygSd Gusoy Loy 3WodU) - SBIANIBS HIOMIBN
Va 6100 $99) paseaidu) - siensibey
sagineg ajesodso] - SFOINYIS ¥IWO0.LSND B LD
\p 12070 SBUY XB] §OUN0Y JO JBGUINU PBSEBIIU) - SENUBASY
saguag ajesdio] - FJONVNIS
(e X3aN3ddY) seBieyd 'g 004

Tnd
J18VAIIHOV LMV NigaAgiHoy | 93AJIHOV
1ON ADN3IOI443 | N TBVAIIHOY (50 o) MV
a3103dx3a
AON3IDI443 AONIIOIS43 AON3I0I443
uopeuLIojuy (w3)
jueaejes JeLpo Jo sniels uopsod Aouepyya uopdpaseq Aauepw3
juaund poddns 0) uopeuULIOU) JeylN UORISOd UBLND pejebpng

ZL juoyy
sepuepPIRg

BUHO) UG 3eBpng

Page 233



anusung |
g A k_wm&

Lot

\o 1000 sjoenuod g4W Jo Bullie) - sauBUSIBUIB BIBMPIEH|

3 sjuawaaibe JaLjo

\¢ 0100 y6nouy painooid Saouadl JOSCINN - Bujsuadi] ezemyos

Va ls000 weunsnipe jabpngq - Buisea

\¢ 2000 uopnios 1 di Aq pajqeua uofjanpas - Buyged 1O}

\» 2000 Juswainaod paonpal - asempieH BuppomieN

\» 5200 huswdinba Ajunoes msu 0} BNp SISO AJUBUBJUIEW PBJNPaY

\a _So.c SUONN|OS M3U BIA JuBWRINJ0IY - }abpng Bujues

sagnies 8)es0dio - SFOINYIS ¥IWOLSNO B LOI

\ _Foc.c 2auBpua)e pacnpal - $8INJ087/SIBURLIBS/SBOUBIBJUCD

\p 0100 186pnq uc puewsp pasnpal - sainsesy Alajes aakoldw3|

\» 2000 Buppom spbe aimny - sucHanpes SuSWeADIdul} | suonels)y

\» 2000 uOaNPas SISO - BUDPOAA Julop

\» 0L0°0 saoiAes pue se|iddng

\¢ €000 18GWINU Ul UCHONPaJ - SUOKENNSUOY SUSPISeY / sakojdwz

saouag ejerodio) - aanaexg jand

(22 XIGNTddvr) Juswendoid

nd
AQ3A3IIHOY
FVAIHOY |\ s o [ N1aaaaiov T
10N ADN3IOI443 ADN3IDI443 38 0L 3103dX3 AON3IIOI44T
AON3i01443
uopBWLIOJUY (ur3)
jueasjal Joylo 10 snyes uopisod UORISOd JueLIng Aauejoysa uopduaseq Aausioi]
juaLund poddns 0) uopeuLou) Jeyung pajebipng

Zl \puon
SapuspPya

BuIGHUGH Jebpng

Page 234



saoiag ajesodiod - FJONVNIS
\p 6000 sadinag g sefiddng
\¢ 000 Asuelnsuog pue 3Jom s8des
\¢ £00°0 siempiey - SIBAISS asudiouy
\¢ [200°0 SuBaW 2§UAI}IS|S JO asn aloyy - Jaded Buls
\» G100 Aueuem Yim AGOOWY28] Mau - BIUBLRUIEI d1empieH
\» |L000 aimpuadxa u| UoIONPaI - SBIGeWNSUCY B0
\o 000 sanuadr)E(] - Sjuaweacsdw) § suolieIBlyY
\¢ L00'0 suonnios Buiuies; punase piing - uoflianpal j8bpnq Bues]
Va |teo0 sagiueg pue soyddng
\¢ 8100 uopeobauas eI - SJS09 BIURDN pacNpaY
\¢ 0200 Eis02 asueuB)UIEW BIEMYOS - SBSU AJBUONE{UI JO 3UEPIOAY
\t €100 51500 asemyos Aued puiy) Jo uones|euoney
Yol €000 ainypuadx3 (D] paonpay
\» 000 %€ Aq puads ajgesuanyul eanpey
Tnd
318VAIIHOY iivd Nig3aaHoy | G3ASIHOVY
N! 318VAIIHOVY AQVIHTV
10N AON3IDId443 ADON3I0I443 38 01 g3.1.03dX3 AON3IOI443
AJN3IOI443
uopeuwoju) (ur3) ey
JuRAB{I J6YJ0 10 SRS uopysod Kauepdia uogdposeq Aduejoli3
juawnd poddns 0} uopewLIolU) JayHINg uogisod jueuny pajabpng

2l yiuony

an mn«\::. 10 EEETE]
Jugjig A4S UL} UOH Jobpng

PIAL

Page 235



Jroo0 iOL
\¢ 1000 Bujuue)d Asuebiswg - pajjene)) ebes)iw ul uoRONPaY
sagneg ejesodio) - ennsaxy jeiyd
(p£ XIGN3ddv) uBiseq jeuopesjuetiQ
fsvzo iol
Va Z100 saoneg g sayddng
Tind
TIEVAIIHOV Livd NI G3A3IHOVY UE sy
NI 319VATIHOVY AQV3IHTVY
1ON AON3IOI443 AONZIDI443 39 01 a3103dX3 ADNIIOI44T
AON3101d43
uopEuLIou) (w3) nd s
jueaejeJ Joij}0 10 snjeys uopisod Ksuepoya uopauoseq LME |
jusawnd poddns 0) uopewLIoU| JeyUNY uonisad welnd pejebipng

AISIUI
UL A RS

Z1 Yluol
SepuBpPRg

BULIG)IUCH 38bpNe

Page 236



. uswabeuew
e 0800 SanHoe] - WERNSHIOM SIessy sainn axusiuy]
\» 220°0 sabueyds ejnuuoy o) anp Aaa aild ul uojionpay
\» 11200 HAN - seiouabupuoa paanpay
\¢ 0y2'0 SJS09 JUBLWISAAU Jjo-Buo - sapuabunuod paonpay
eaueul4 eelodio) 9 jenued
(82 XIONIddv) sepusidya seto
| |

ozo V101
\» 0810 MIIABY 18344 [BWDU| - SBIMNH BAYSIUNS
. sassasosd
\¢ 00 paaosdw) pue juawasnosoid-3 - SaIMNg sy
aaueul ajesodio) 9 [enus)
(92 XIONFddV) uaweind0id

lsso0 1vioL
\f GL0'0 uolNGUILIOD 0] UOHIINPaI paaibe - UWAD Neay ). pAMID
aouBUl 8)810010) P [BNUBD
(92 XION3ddY) 8buey) adjaseg

319VAIIHOY wvd | om\mﬁ_% a| Qan3mHOV
1ON NI 319VAIIHOV 0L a3103dx3 AQYIHTV
AON3I01443 AON3IDI443 ADN3IIDIZ43 AON3101443
uopeuLIOju| (w3)
jJueASjel JOL30 1O SNIE)S uopsod Koueoa uopduoseq Adusiow3
juaund yoddns 03 uogeurioju) JBYUN UoRisod Juaund pejebpng

¢l \WUO

Page 237



roL’o vi0L

Aousiiye jo Bun ‘ laUUE! weals! J8W0IsSNY - SaININ YSIW

8y ssasse 0) uayepapun Gujaq yiom pajejaa 001°0 US ¢ yo ISYOM 1SnD N Iysiuy
Aoauayonya jo bunuy 5010 19B1U0D JOLUOISND

8y} ssasse 0} ueyepepun buiaq yiom paersq 20B) O} 80} WEBNSHIOA JSWOISNY - SauNn auysiulld
Aoustaiya jo Bumun . .

8y} SSESSE 0) UBYRLBPUN BUIS] OM PIIIEIB] 0010 AU 19RIUOD WEBNSHIOAA JBWOISND - SaININS ajysiuld

uopeuLIoy (ur3)
jueaejal J8yjo J0 smeys uopjsod UOR{SOd Jueund Aouspyya uopduasaq Adueio|y3y
juend uoddns o} uojewiopul JoYyn pajabpng

cl Wuol

Page 238



Agenda ltem 12

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER
SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the first available revenue budget
monitoring information for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) for 2014/15.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council Fund budget and the HRA budget for 2014/15 were
agreed by Council on 18 February 2014.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 As in previous years, during the early part of the 2014/15 financial
year Corporate Finance resources have been dedicated to the closure
of the accounts for 2013/14 to ensure that the statutory deadline for
completion of the draft statement of accounts by the end of June is
achieved. The draft Statement of Accounts is to be presented to the
Audit Committee on 16 July and the 2013/14 revenue final outturn
report is included on the agenda for this meeting.

3.02 Early reporting of the progress of the annual budget and a forecast for
the remainder of the year is given a secondary priority until this key
task is completed, although Service Managers and Corporate Finance
continue to liaise with regard to any early changes in demand,
particularly in known volatile service areas. In addition, in the first
couple of months of a new financial year it is more difficult to rely on
trends around service demand for forecasting purposes.

3.03 Due to the above, this first budget monitoring report of the year does
not provide the level of detail which follows from month three onwards
but does highlight any significant budget risks at this very early stage
of the year.

Page 239



3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

2014/15 Emerging Issues and Risks

The following areas have been identified as potential areas of risk at
this early point in the year.

Out of County Placements

Combined Out of County costs in Social Care and Health and
Education and Youth are currently projected to show a negative
variance against budget in the region of £0.227m. Out of County
Placements are in their nature volatile areas to manage. They are
demand led and costs are dependent on service user need, many of
these placements are expensive given the severity of need. The
numbers of these young people change throughout the year and any
change can significantly affect projected expenditure.

Issues affecting the ability to obtain recoupment and grant income to
offset costs for both Out of County and Inclusion services have
reduced the pressure on this service in 2013/14, however we are not
guaranteed the same level of income in 2014/15. Therefore this
remains a risk.

Deprivation of Liberty Assessments (DoLS)

In Social Care and Health there is potential financial pressure in
relation to the Deprivation of Liberty Assessments (DoLS) (£0.270m)
as a result of a recent Supreme Court judgment where we are
required to carry out DoLS assessments for a significant number of
our current clients and new clients.

Professional Support (Leaving Care)

Also in Social Care and Health there is an existing pressure within
Professional Support relating to Leaving Care (CYAST) mainly as a
result of ongoing impacts of the Southwark case. The latest estimate
of the level of overspend is £0.120m.

Single Status

As reported in the February report the 2014/15 budget assumed an
implementation date of 1% April 2014 for Single Status. The actual
implementation date of 1% June will result in some efficiencies not
being able to be achieved for the first two months of the year. The
shortfall will be met from the Single Status/Equal Pay reserve which is
consistent with the treatment in previous years.

Former Euticals Site

In 2013, the Council intervened, along with its strategic partners in
relation to the former chemical plant in Sandycroft (Euticals Ltd).
Expenditure in 2013/14 was £0.288m. No government financial
assistance was made available to the Council, therefore it was agreed
with Crown Estates to transfer the abandoned site to the Council at a
nominal value so that the council could take either responsibility to
complete the clearance of the site and recoup most, or all of the costs

Page 240



3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

4.00

4.01

from its eventual sale. Tenders are shortly to be invited for the full
decommissioning, decontamination and clearance of the site (several
functions have already been decommissioned in partnership with
Natural Resources Wales) and the position will be reported upon in
future monitoring reports. This is a highly specialised industry with few
available qualified contractors. Once the full cost of site
decommissioning is known through the receipt of tenders then the full
cost of managing through to close this public health risk project will be
known. Depending on the final cost the Council may need to re-
approach Welsh Government for assistance.

Monitoring of Efficiencies

Corporate and Functional Efficiencies

The 2014/15 budgets include £8.8m of efficiencies relating to
Corporate Value for Money (VFM) on Procurement and Back to
Basics (£1.3m) and specific Functional VFM efficiencies (£7.5m).
These are being monitored closely on a risk based approach and
current information indicates that there is one area flagged as red at
this stage of the year which has a value of £0.070m (delegation of
teaching assistant support to schools) which is due to delays in
reaching an agreement with schools. Implementation is now likely to
take place in April 2015.

Workforce Efficiencies

Workforce Efficiencies of £3.1m are included within the 2014/15
budget. A Voluntary Redundancy Programme commenced early in
the year which invited invitations for employees to apply. As a result
of this, efficiencies totalling approximately 40% of the target have
been identified to date in the first phase. Further work is now
underway to consider and action the release of a number of deferred
VR applications from the earlier programme, to develop proposals for
the next phase of the Management Review and to run a further phase
of the Voluntary Redundancy Programme.

The Month 3 report will include a detailed appendix on all efficiencies
which will provide information on specific areas in relation to their full
or partial achievement.

Housing Revenue Account
There are no significant variations identified at this stage within the
Housing Revenue Account.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The final level of Council Fund Contingency Reserve brought forward
into 2014/15 was £5.328m as detailed in the 2013/14 outturn report
elsewhere on this agenda (subject to Audit).

Page 241



4.02

4.03

4.04

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

As referred to in 5.02 of the outturn report, a provision for termination
benefits relating to phase 1 of the Senior Management Review had to
be made in 2013/14 in order to comply with IAS 19. As a budget
provision has been made in 2014/15 for this, it will be repaid to the
contingency reserve thus increasing it to £6.073m (subject to final
figures being agreed). However, this will be offset by projected costs
associated with the Organisational Change and Redesign Programme
totalling £0.696m which will be incurred in 2014/15 and have been
approved via delegated powers. They include essential expenditure in
relation to the continuation of various Programme costs and also
include costs associated with office relocation.

When the 2014/15 budget was set it was estimated that an amount of
£3.7m would be available as a contribution to the Investment Strategy.

As detailed in the Final Outturn report it is recommended that the use
of the additional Contingency Reserve of £1.677m is held and
considered for any additional in-year and future investment in change
in the context of the MTFP.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is recommended to note the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None directly as a result of this report.

Page 242



12.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

12.01 None directly as a result of this report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 243



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 244



Agenda Item 13

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS - ACTUAL 2013/14

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with 2013/14 (actual) Prudential Indicator (PI)
figures as required under the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in
Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The background to this item is provided in the report to Cabinet 18"
February 2014 (subject: Prudential Indicators 2014/15 to 2016/17).
The Prudential Code has been developed by the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as a professional code
of practice to support local authorities in determining their
programmes for capital investments in fixed assets. Local authorities
are required by Regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code
when carrying out their duties under Part 1 of the Local Government
Act 2003.

2.02 The framework established by the Prudential Code is intended to
support local strategic planning, local asset management planning
and proper option appraisal. The objectives of the Code are to
ensure, within a clear framework, that the capital investment plans of
local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that
treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice; the 2013/14 capital programme was prepared
on this basis — affordable in terms of implications for Council Tax and
housing rents, prudent and sustainable in terms of implications for
external borrowing.

2.03 The Prudential Code sets out the indicators that must be used and
the factors that must be taken into account in preparing such.

Page 245



3.00

3.01

3.01.1

3.02

3.02.1

3.02.2

3.02.3

3.02.4

CONSIDERATIONS

General

Actual (2013/14) PI's have now been calculated in respect of the
following:

Capital expenditure

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
Incremental impact of capital investment
Capital Financing Requirement

Authorised Limit for External Debt

Capital expenditure

The PI's for capital expenditure are based on the Council’s capital
programme (that takes into account the Council’s asset management
and capital investment strategies), and are supplemented (for capital
accounting purposes) by the value of finance leases held. The
capital expenditure totals are the starting point for the calculation of
the PI's and essentially provide the base financial data from which all
other indicators follow.

Prior year (2012/13) actuals and 2013/14 estimate totals are
included for information purposes, together with forward totals for
2014/15 (as previously reported in the report of 18" February 2014).

Actual 2013/14 capital expenditure for the Council Fund and the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is £37.975m as shown in the table
below.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
2012113 | 201314 | 2013/14 | 2014115
Actual | Estimate | Actual | Estimate
£m £m £m £m
Council Fund 29.080 29.908 25.101 20.970
Housing Revenue Account 10.742 10.992 12.874 12.381
Total 39.822 40.900 37.975 33.351

Capital expenditure and related funding issues are part of the
agenda for meetings of the Corporate Asset Management Group
(CAMG). Detailed analysis and commentary regarding 2013/14
actual expenditure is provided in the capital outturn report which is
also on this agenda.

Page 246



3.03

3.03.1

3.03.2

3.04

3.04.1

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

The actual ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for 2013/14
is as follows:

RATIO OF FINANCING COSTS TO NET REVENUE STREAM

201213 | 201314 | 201314 | 201415
Actual | Estimate | Actual | Estimate

% % % %
Council Fund 5660%| 5489%| 5694%| 6.004%
Housing Revenue Account 8.238%| 7.535%| 6.354%| 6.755%

The HRA net revenue stream is the amount to be met from Welsh
Government grants and from rentpayers, and the Council Fund
equivalent is the amount to be met from Welsh Government grants
and local taxpayers. The HRA ratio continues to fall in line with
reducing capital financing costs attributable to long term debt
outstanding, consequent to the introduction of the Major Repairs
Allowance in Wales in 2004, from which point all new borrowing
relates to the Council Fund only.

Incremental impact of capital investment

The incremental impact of capital investment on the Council Tax
reflects planned unsupported (prudential) borrowing charges. During
2013/14 £0.732m of charges were incurred. The table below
indicates that the impact of this would be a £12.14p increase in
Council Tax levels, however these charges are funded from savings
elsewhere within the Council Fund and so the actual effect on
Council Tax levels is nil in 2013/14.

ESTIMATED INCREMENTAL IMPACT OF CAPITAL INVESTMENT

201213 | 2013114 | 2013114 | 2014/15
Actual Estimate | Actual Estimate

£ £ £ £
Council Fund Nil 23.38 12.14 11.86
Housing Revenue Account n/a n/a n/a n/a

Page 247



3.05 Capital Financing Requirement
3.05.1 The actual (average) capital financing requirement for 2013/14 is
£185.677m, being the measure of the Council’'s underlying need to
finance capital expenditure by borrowing or other long term liabilities
during the year; the reducing HRA debt outstanding total as referred
in section 3.03.2 above is evidenced in the table below:
CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT
2012113 2013114 201314 2014115
Actual Estimate Actual Estimate
£m £m £m £m
Council Fund 155.527 158.454 160.305 166.707
Housing Revenue Account 26.312 25449 25.373 24.701
Total 181.839 183.903 185.677 191.407
3.06 Authorised Limit for External Debt
3.06.1 Actual external debt for 2013/14 was £179.665m, with separately
identified limits for borrowing and other long term liabilities such as
finance leases:-
AUTHORISED LIMIT FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2012113 | 201314 | 2013114 | 2014/15
Actual | Estimate | Actual | Estimate
£m £m £m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 172.113]  202.600f 172113] 257.300
Other Long Term Liabilities 8.132 15.600 7.552 22.100
Total 180.245 | 218.200 | 179.665 | 279.400
4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS
4.01 Cabinet is requested to note and approve the report.
5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
5.01 None; the financial information provided is retrospective.
6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT
6.01 None.

Page 248




7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Final Accounts working papers 2013/14
Various Welsh Government and CIPFA papers

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager, Technical Accountancy
Telephone: 01352 702289
Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 249



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 250



Agenda Iltem 14

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 15™ JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE)

SUBJECT: ENFORCEMENT ACTION FOR THE RECOVERY OF
COUNCIL TAX AND NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC
RATES

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To advise Cabinet on options and seek approval for future
Enforcement Agent action, following the approval of the taking control
of goods regulations.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 On 30™ July 2013 Parliament approved the Taking Control of Goods
Regulations, which were enacted on 6 April 2014, which included
the re-designation of Bailiffs as Enforcement Agents (EA’s).

2.02 On 9th January 2014 the new fee structure was approved by
Parliament and set significant increases on the current fees structure.
As the new fee structure is statutory all EA’s will be required to
comply with these charges which will become payable on the
commencement of Bailiff action.

2.03  Legislation relating to the collection of Council Tax and National Non
Domestic Rates (NNDR), grants powers to use Bailiffs EA’s as part of
the recovery process once a Liability Order has been granted. In
seeking to recover monies owed to the Council, the Revenues
Department does examine and implement all other recovery options
available before the use of EA’s. However, in the previous 12 months
it has been necessary to refer 1,745 Council tax and NNDR cases to
Bailiffs; this has resulted in £900k (£700k Council Tax and £200k
NNDR) of unpaid revenues being collected and paid to Flintshire.

2.04  Flintshire collection rates for Council Tax in 2013/14 were the joint
highest in Wales at 97.9% an improved collection of 0.1%, with
NNDR being the second highest in Wales at 98.5%

2.05 The Authority has agreed a Fair Debt Policy which has been
designed in collaboration with the 3™ sector debt advice agencies to
ensure an equitable and positive approach to supporting payment to
the Authority.

Page 251



2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

Council Tax provides 20% of the income to the Authority which
supports the delivery of services and contributes to the calculation of
the Tax base for budget setting purposes. NNDR is collected on
behalf of Welsh Government and is re-distributed to Council’s as part
of the annual financial settlement. EA’s are an integral part of the
Council Tax and NNDR enforcement procedures to maximise the
collection rate for both forms of income.

In addition to Council Tax and NNDR, the use of EA’s is also
available for the collection of Commercial and Domestic rents, and
car parking charges, however the new charging structure for parking
will effectively reduce the charges, which under the previous fee
structure were criticised as excessive. The collection of Sundry Debts
is by collecting agents who are not affected by the changes to the fee
structures, the use of EA’s is restricted to EA’'s employed by the
County Court once a County Court Judgement has been obtained.

Comparison of costs payable

Action Old fees New fees
Bailiff receives order | Nil cost £75
Bailiff visit to | £39 plus levy | £235
property charges
Total cost of Bailiff | £39 £310
visit
Bailiff removes | £90 plus removal and | £110
goods sales cost
Total cost payable | £129 (additional £420
if goods are costs could
removed increase fees to

£229)

The increases in fees will have a direct impact on those individuals
where EA’s action is taken, with a significant increase in fees
payable. The new fees will increase debts by a minimum of £75 and it
is expected that in most cases these fees will increase by £310.
Whilst by the reasons vary why people do not pay amounts due to the
Council, some can pay and don’t, or won’t, there are cases where
people do experience financial difficulties. This may have been added
to through the current economic downturn and welfare reform.

The WG have confirmed that the Council tax Reduction Scheme will
continue to pay 100% of Council tax liability for the next 2 financial
years, however this could be reduced in 2017/18, resulting in
vulnerable people on passported benefits being liable to pay an
element of Council Tax.

Page 252



3.00

3.01

CONSIDERATIONS

The increase in the potential recovery from people on low incomes
requires the provision of EA services to be considered within a
context of a recovery process to ensure that collection levels are
maximised, whilst supporting people to pay. A review of options
available show

Agent action

currently collect
£900k Per year

Once known that
Bailiffs would not be
instructed an increase
in non payment would
be expected.

Option Impact Considerations
No High risk of loss of Reduced cash flow / income
Enforcement | income, Bailiffs Increase in arrears levels

Increase in bad debt levels
Increase in C.Tax levels

NNDR Reductions in
collection would be
reviewed by WG and WAO

sent to the Bailiff.

Continued Collection would be The increase in fees could
use of expected to remain increase the debt payable
external stable but with slight | by at least £70 over current
Enforcement | reductions due to the | charges, but there would
Agent increased amounts be a total increase of £305
which would have to | if a Bailiff visited the
be paid due to property.
increased fees.
Increased An increased level of | Prior to the granting of a
collection recovery activity of liability order at least 4

activity prior | 1. Additional letters recovery documents are
to Instructing | 2. Telephone debt | already sent including a
Enforcement | recovery summons.
Agent 3. Home visits
Would reduce the | Additional budget cost to
number of liabilities | resource increased activity

Powers of collection are
reliant on negotiation skills
and customers willingness
to pay with no further
powers available to enforce
debt. Bailiffs would still be
required in a high number of
cases where no contact can
be made or of instances of
refusal to pay

Introduce
internal

Collection would be
expected to remain

New service to FCC,
requiring additional staffing

Page 253




3.02

3.03

3.03.1

Enforcement | stable but with slight | resources
Agent reductions due to the
service increased  amounts | Budget set up costs plus
which would have to | ongoing staff costs

be paid due to
increased fees. Service would be income
generating through fees

Limited number of
Authorities in UK has
internal EA’s, Although a
number of LA’s are actively
considering.

Although fees are statutory
a decision could be made
on a case by case basis to
reduce fees payable.

Reputation risk if EA’s are
not managed correctly.

These options confirm that to maintain collections would require the
use of either external or internals EA’s however this does not address
the issue of the new fees structure.

The new fee structure is statutory, with payments being offset against
charges first. Therefore to be able to mitigate charges for people in
genuine need, there must be strong policies and links between the
EA company and LA management. The current use of EA’s is
contractual with agreed service levels and standards to protect
vulnerable groups however this is dependant on the actions of the
EA, which would be mitigated if fully controlled by the establishment
of internal EA’s

A review of the effectiveness of In House EA’s services shows the
theoretical comparison between External and In House EA’s with the
known advantages / disadvantages for each.

Advantages of External EA’s

Performance incentives to keep Council contract
No staff employment issues for Authority

No training costs for Authority

Experienced staff

Impact on public as not “the Council” collecting debt
Economies of scale

Are first point of contact for complaints

Provide indemnity

Page 254



° Enforcement of ‘Out of County’ cases would be better served
by external providers.

3.03.2 Disadvantages of External EA’s

° Customer Care as we are directing public to an external body

o EA’s Costs are discharged first, with any shortfall met by the
Authority and potential loss of collection

. Loss of control over recovery e.g. speed and flexibility of
recovery.

o As an external supplier there is contractual liaison and cost
between EA’s and Authority

. Limited future Debt management advice will be given to
customers.
Limited ability to identify and signpost vulnerable customers

. EA’s resources not readily available as could be working in
another client’s area.

. Cash collected only paid over weekly.

3.03.3 Advantages of In House EA’s

o Authority maintain control

o Local knowledge

o Single set of recovery procedures and training aligned to
existing ‘in-house’ service

. Support of Council policies e.g. anti poverty initiatives
Increased customer care as “one stop shop” recovery service

) EA’s can be multi functional and could support other areas of

the Council (eg. Collection of former tenancy arrears,
enforcement of Civil Parking Debts)

. Improved cash flow, all cash collected is credited to Authority
account immediately
° Speed of recovery, problem areas can be targeted immediately

Although EA’s fees are legislative and as such must be
charged, these charges can be mitigated dependant on the
circumstances of the customer

o The council will benefit from the substantial surplus generated
by fees providing the council with an income stream from fees
charged by the EA service. to mitigate budget pressures in the
future

3.03.4 Disadvantages of In House EA’s

Council image “only the Council”

Limited resources in terms of staffing and funding

Limited to Flintshire and immediate area

There is no performance related pay which is a disincentive
Familiarity once EA’s are known

Recruitment and training costs.

Page 255



3.03.5

3.04

3.056

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

In addition to EA’s services an in house EA could also be available for
Tracing of absconders

Discount / exemption reviews including Single Person Discount
Identification of new occupiers

Identification and support of vulnerable people

Supporting the recovery of former tenant arrears

° Supporting the recovery and enforcement of civil parking debts
This extra service although not direct income generators against
budget would be a Corporate benefit.

The Options for in House Delivery

Collaboration with Denbighshire who employ their own team would
mirror many aspects of using an external EA, albeit with a greater
control element over charges recovery.

A costing exercise has been completed for both options for delivery.
Denbighshire Proposal

The key differences are that the commissioned service from
Denbighshire would save 0.5 of a management cost, but would
reduce surplus income by 50%, as Denbighshire would share any
surplus with Flintshire.

Direct Staffing costs (at top of scale) have been calculated as

2 Enforcement Agents
3 Enforcement Officers (one a Senior)

Total Income £294.081 £294,081
Expenditure £196,565
Surplus Income £97,516

The costing exercise shows that developing an in-house service at
Flintshire would result in a significantly higher return, with added re-
assurance of maintaining a sound collection rate plus the benefits of
added value services for vulnerable customers whilst maintaining full
control of the recovery process.

CONCLUSION

The use of EA’s is a high profile area in the collection of revenues.
There is a risk of adverse publicity, especially with the increased
levels of bailiff charges. These risks can be reduced by the

Page 256



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

6.02

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

identification of sensitive cases and a proportionate response, which
would be more available with internal EA’s. Opportunities for future
collaboration in this service area will be considered as appropriate.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approve the establishment of internal Enforcement
agent team, as described in the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The current use of Bailiffs contributes to the collection of £64 million
income for the Authority; a reduction in the collection of Council Tax
would result in increases to Council Tax for all payers or a reduction
in services.

An internal EA service would provide an income surplus over costs of
a minimum £97K per year.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The new costs structure will result in adding further debt to those Tax
payers who are already experiencing financial difficulties in paying
amounts due to the Council.

Although fees are statutory an internal EA service would allow these
costs to be mitigated on collection in identified cases of hardship.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Staff recruitment to posts including external recruitment of Certificated
EA’s.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Informal talks have taken place with Flintshire CAB, who were
supportive of an in house option.

Page 257



12.00 APPENDICES

None
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Statutory Instrument 2013 no.1894 The Taking Control of Goods

Regulations 2014

Statutory Instrument 2014 no.1 The Taking Control of Goods (Fees)
Regulations 2014

Contact Officer: Ken A Jones

Telephone: 01352 702286

Email: ken.a.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 258



Agenda Item 15

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER, COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE
SUBJECT: GARDEN SERVICE FOR COUNCIL TENANTS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  This report makes recommendations to suspend the implementation
of the service charge for the grass cutting and hedge maintenance
service in council housing for sheltered housing tenants and those
who previously received the service due to a disability/vulnerability.
This postponement will be until the 2015/16 financial year and until full
consultation has been completed.

2.00 BACKGROUND

Current Service

2.01 An Assisted Gardening Service has existed in Flintshire for over 25
years. The service consists of grass cutting and hedge trimming and
prior to April 2014 was delivered in house via Street Scene to tenants
living in both general needs and sheltered housing stock.

2.02 To qualify for the Service, general needs’ housing tenants had to be
registered blind, over the age of 60 or in receipt of Disability Working
Allowance, Disability Living Allowance or Attendance Allowance.
Sheltered housing tenants qualified automatically.

2.03 Approximately 1,200 households (including sheltered tenants) were in
receipt of the Service at a cost of £250,000 per year to the Housing
Revenue Account.

2.04 In December 2013 following a service review and with the support of
Housing Scrutiny Committee, Cabinet agreed to introduce charging for
the service. The service had been tendered and a company called
Ground Control had won a tender to deliver the service on the
council’s behalf.

2.05 Cabinet agreed a charging mechanism, based on 14 cuts per year for

grass and two hedge cuts. Grass collection, (with use of the tenants
own brown bin) was included in the contract. The charging policy

Page 259



2.06

2.07

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

agreed by cabinet was for charges to be individual to each property
based on garden size, with a minimum charge of £58 for grass cutting
for a disabled tenant with a garden of less than 50m2, and £464 for
the same customer with a garden of less than 400m2. (Charges for
gardens bigger than this were set at a £1.16 per m2 for a disabled
customer).

The new service was designed to be available to any tenant who
wished to subscribe and in the longer term to be available to private
tenants who wished to purchase it too.

Based on the tender received it was reported to cabinet that the
council expected to realise a saving of £250k in introducing the new
service. This was made up of two elements. The first that the tender
price was cheaper than the internal service by £125k and the second
that charging would bring in an estimated £125k in income.

CONSIDERATIONS

Charging for Services

A service charge is a payment made by a resident, leaseholder,
shared owner or freeholder towards the cost of providing and
maintaining services and benefits, beyond that of enjoying occupation
of their home. Welsh Government has developed a prescriptive list of
service charging activities, and requires all Local authorities who have
not already done so to commence a policy of introducing charging for
services from 2015. The manner and timing for the introduction is at
the council’s discretion, and the council could agree a staged
approach to minimise any adverse impact on tenants.

Flintshire has close to £800k of services provided mainly to sheltered
tenants and those living in flats. These include aerial charges,
communal heating, cleaning, grounds maintenance, lift maintenance.
The only chargeable service at the moment is heating.

Most services are eligible for Housing Benefit for those who qualify,
with the exception of the individual tenant garden service.

With this in mind the approved Flintshire HRA business plan has been
modelled to include the introduction of service charging fully over the
next few years. The financial implications section of this report
describes the anticipated income in the plan. Any reduction in income,
without additional savings, will increase the need to borrow to achieve
the WHQS.

Implementation of the new service
This has been extremely problematic and has caused a significant

level of complaints to elected members and council staff. It has
resulted in a loss of confidence in the service which needs to be

Page 260



rectified.

3.05 The problems have included:-

An “opt in” arrangement means that only c400 tenants are
now receiving the service. Clearly some tenants may have
chosen to make alternative arrangements but others have
not (uncut grass leaving some gardens looking unsightly).
These tenants may be unwilling to pay the charge or unsure
how to request the service.

Garden measurements were inaccurate in some cases due
to historical data on the council data base, i.e. a driveway
may have been installed in a property and the garden is now
significantly smaller. This has led to large estimated bills and
a consequential loss of confidence in the service. This led to
a decision to measure all gardens where the service was
requested so that accurate prices could be provided. This
has caused delays in service commencement.

Some communal garden areas were recorded as private and
therefore cost proposals were sent out when they should not
have been.

Street Scene has continued to manage the communal
gardens and spaces; but the data on what is communal and
what is private was not fully accurate, leaving some things
out of the Ground Control contract and also not part of the
ongoing street scene contract. In addition, this has meant
that two teams have been sent to the same schemes, one
effectively cutting backs, and one fronts. This has caused
confusion with tenants.

Payment cannot be made through the rent this year due to
system issues. Discounts have been offered for paying the
total in advance but this is a significant change from the way
tenants are used to paying the council. Payment can also
be made weekly via the payment machine in the Connects
offices or by Direct Debit.

The growing conditions this year which has meant that any
service delays while measuring has been organised has led
to very long unsightly grass causing challenges for cutting
and collection and leading to complaint.

A number of options have been considered to remedy matters and a

3.06
service.

number of management actions have been instigated to improve the

Page 261



3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.1

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

Street Scene has taken over management of the contract from 9™
June. This has provided additional management capacity. A full
measure and review is underway to prepare a clearer contract from
2015, with a sensible split between Ground Control responsibility and
that of Street scene. This will have a short term cost to the HRA of
circa £20k. (An officer had been budgeted for but not appointed to
manage the contract so this can be funded with no adverse impact on
the budget).

This paper proposes ceasing charging for this financial year for all
sheltered tenants, and those previously receiving the service with
protected characteristics, whilst a full review of the service is
undertaken.

Full and detailed consultation with all tenants who may be affected by
the introduction of charging for services is to be commenced starting
with general needs properties. Once this is completed,
recommendations for a phase introduction will be considered by
Cabinet.

For the garden service, It is felt that two charges only would be
simpler for the future; one for large and one for small gardens, (and
more cost effective to administer and understand). Work needs to be
completed to assess what these should be.

The service will still be available as a chargeable service on the terms
previously agreed for any new customers who did not receive the
service pre April 2014.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approve a temporary suspension in service charging for
the garden service for sheltered tenants and those with protected
characteristics who received the service prior to 1% April 2014.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The HRA budget approved at Feb 2014 cabinet assumed that the
income received for the charging of garden services would fully
recoup the yearly cost of the Ground control contract of £126.0k.

The breakdown of this is:-
954 sheltered gardens
521 sheltered hedges
Anticipated income £87.1k

248 general gardens
210 general hedges

Page 262



5.03

5.04

5.05

5.06

5.07

5.08

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

Anticipated income £38.6k
In addition administration charges of 15% were to be charged.

Assuming that the majority of general needs tenants who have been
accessing the service have protected characteristics, the loss in
income to the HRA in 2014/15 should the council not charge either the
sheltered tenants or those with these characteristics would be
£126.0k.

This will be met through prudent management of the budget ensuring
that the budgeted balance at year end of 3.20% is met.

The rent reform policy due to be implemented in 2015/16 requires all
local authorities to commence a policy to introduce service charges.
The current business plan, approved by Welsh Government therefore
assumes a phased implementation of charging from 15/16, generating
income of £383.6k (including the assisted gardens income) in that
year, and full anticipated service charge recovery in 2016/17 and
beyond of £810.5k per year.

Most service charges (but not the individual garden service), are
eligible for Housing Benefit.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Tenants who have paid for the service and now qualify for a free
service will receive a refund.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Keeping gardens in a good condition is a condition of tenancy. The
recent introduction of the chargeable garden service has led to a
number of gardens not being cut leading to some unsightly areas on
council estates.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Tenants with protected characteristics previously receiving the service
would benefit from the changes proposed in this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None other than those described above.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Full consultation with tenants is required to introduce service charging.

Page 263



11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None to date.

APPENDICES

None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Clare Budden
Telephone: 01352 703800
Email: clare.budden@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 264



Agenda Item 16

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER, COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE
SUBJECT: IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK BASED

VERIFICATION POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To advise Members of a proposal to introduce a Risk Based
Verification (RBV) process for the administration of Housing Benefit
and seek members approval as to the proposed policy.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Following the publication of DWP circular HB/CTB S11/2011 in 2011,
Local Authorities are able to implement a ‘risk based’ approach to
verifying Housing and Council Tax Benefit claims.

2.02 RBV has been operating successfully in pilot authorities since 2009.
Following the operation of these ‘pilots’ DWP extended this approach
on a voluntary basis to all other local authorities from April 2012.

2.03 The current application process for Housing Benefit requires claimants
to provide, Identification, proof of income / capital and proof of rent for
verification purposes. In many cases not all proofs are received and
the claimant is contacted for additional information, resulting in delays
to the payment of Housing benefit.

2.04 RBV is a method of applying different levels of verification checks to
benefit claims according to the predicted risk associated with those
claims. Local Authorities adopting RBV will still require all claimants to
comply with relevant legislation and identified low risk claimants must
as a minimum be able to provide National Insurance documentation
and evidence of identity, with more extensive verification activity being
required on those claims predicted to be at greater risk of fraud and
error.

2.05 All Local Authorities opting to apply RBV are required to have in place
a RBV Policy detailing the risk profiles and verification standards
which will apply including the minimum number of claims to be
checked. The Policy must be submitted for Members’ approval and
sign-off along with a covering report confirming the Section 151
Officer's agreement / recommendation.

Page 265



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

CONSIDERATIONS

The current verification process requires a number of supporting
documents (proof of income / capital and proof of rent) which in many
cases could be considered excessive and if not available delays the
payment of Housing Benefit. e.g. a claimant on JSA living in private
rented accommodation will be required to provide proof of rent despite
rent levels being fixed by Local Housing allowance.

RBV is a proven process agreed by DWP which allows a targeted
approach to the verification of benefit claims with each application
being assessed for the likelihood of fraud or error.

The introduction of RBV is supported by the use of software which is
calibrated to comply with DWP guidelines. There is a risk propensity
model embedded within the IT solution which identifies risk groups as

Low (Green) 52%
Medium (Amber) 27%
High (Red) 21%

A lower verification requirement for the 52% low risk group will result
in faster processing times, due to the reduction in contact for
additional information, which will also release staff resources to
improve speed of payments to medium and high risk groups.

In RBV Authorities there has been an average reduction of 2 days
(10%) in overall processing time. This speed of delivery could be
valuable in gaining the support of private Landlords to make
additional investment in the provision of homes for rent which is a key
strategic priority for the authority. In addition there would also be
improved customer service levels as there will be faster payment of
Benefits

The RBV process will reduce the requirements to contact customers
for additional information to comply with verification rules with a
resultant reduction in postage and contact costs.

The identification of which claimant groups will be within these
categories cannot be fully predicted due to the propensity model,
however it would be expected that most claimants in receipt of
passported benefits (Job Seekers Allowance, Pension credit etc)
would be classified as "Green” low risk. High risk claimants are likely
to be in work but with variable salaries.

The proposed policy is formulated from the agreed policy guidelines
provided by DWP and is based on the software suppliers criteria
utilised in current RBV Authorities, which has been accepted by the
DWP and Audit bodies.

Page 266



4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

If agreed the verification process for each group would be

e “Green” claimants are fast tracked due to reduced levels of
verification evidence required.

e “Amber’ claimants will be required to supply the same
verification evidence as currently required.

e “Red” claimants will be required to provide all current verification
evidence, but will also be contacted to confirm claim details. In
many instances these customers would have been contacted for
additional information previously.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approve the proposal to implement a RBV process to
administer Housing Benefit.

That Cabinet approve the implementation of the proposed RBV policy
as prepared by Community and Enterprise Senior Officers.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There is an initial cost of £14,250 plus annual maintenance costs of
£900 per annum. This can be met from existing budgets.

There will be improved performance at no additional cost with
projected annual savings of £30k from 2015/16 achieved through
reduced postage and staff resource savings.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The proposed scheme is specifically designed to fast track claimants
who are in receipt of Benefits. With an overall decrease in the time to
pay Housing Benefit all groups will benefit from faster payments.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Limited training requirement. Any staff savings will be achieved
through natural turnover.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Page 267



10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.03

12.00

12.01

None, although key stakeholder partners will be made aware of the
plans.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The policy was considered by the Audit Committee on 25" June as
recommended by the DWP as good practise for an Authority to refer
the RBV policy to Audit Committee for consideration.

Internal Audit has reviewed the RBV process and policy.

Section 151 Officer has approved the RBV process and policy.

APPENDICES

Copies of the Policy are available in the Members Library

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

DWP circular HB/CTB S11/2011
Contact Officer: Ken A Jones

Telephone: 01352 702286
Email: ken.a.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 268



Agenda Iltem 17

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 JUNE 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT)
SUBJECT: PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY ANNUAL REPORT

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

For Cabinet to note the contents of the enclosed Annual Report on the
work of the Public Rights of Way Service.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  In October 2008 the Rights of Way Improvement plan (ROWIP) was
published by the County Council.

2.02 One of the commitments contained in the ROWIP was the production
of an Annual Report (Task 4.7 in the Statement of Action). The report
was intended to include articles on specific projects demonstrating
progress in the implementation of the ROWIP.

2.03 This is the third Annual Report that the County Council has produced,
which is enclosed at Appendix 1.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The Annual Report provides an ideal opportunity for the County
Council to address this by highlighting its work over the past financial
year and focusing on its achievements in this specialist area of work.

3.02 The Report gives a flavour of some of the high-profile initiatives that
both the Rights of Way section have been involved in. It should be of
interest not only to those who have professional interest in public
rights of way, but also the wider general public.

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01  That Cabinet note the contents of the Annual Report.

Page 269



5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 None - the report will be available to download from the Council’s
website.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01 None.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01  Any publicity about public rights of way should lead to a greater
awareness and understanding and hopefully better protection of this
valuable asset.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 None.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Public Rights of Way Annual Report at Appendix 1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:  Stephen Bartley Senior Rights of Way Officer
Telephone: 01352 704622.

Email: steve.bartley@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 270



Page 271



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 272



Environment Directorate
Public Rights of Way

Annual Report

Public Rights of Way | 2013-2014

e T Y I:fllnt
Flijstenire



Foreword

This is the third Annual report on the public rights of way service. Once again, the All-Wales coastal
path has featured prominently in the work programme, but for very different reasons. Few would
have anticipated that less than two years after its official launch sections of the coastal path would
have fallen victim to the storms that had such a devastating impact on Britain’s coastline during

the winter months of 2013 and 2014. Work is already well under way to repair the damage that
caused breaches in the path as a result of the severe weather, and several sections of the path have
already reopened. Tribute should be paid to Network Rail, Natural Resources Wales, the Council’s
Countryside Service and all the relevant landowners for arranging the paths to be reinstated so
quickly; and to the Rights of Way Team for swiftly organising the closures of the path to protect the
public.

In the foreword to the previous Annual Report, brief mention was made of the Burton Point
cycleway, which was officially opened in July 2013. This has proved to be a huge success story,
with over 10,000 bicyclists using the way in September 2013 alone. The route provides a safe and
environmentally sustainable alternative to the A494/A550 trunk road for people living and working on
either side of the border, as well as for the many visitors to the area.

The County Council continued to receive grant-aid support from Natural Resources Wales to
implement its ROWIP programme, support that is much needed in the current financial climate and is
set to continue at the same level for the present financial year. This report contains many examples of
improvements that could not have been carried out without this financial assistance.

It is pleasing that even in times of austerity, the County Council remains committed to securing
improvements for the benefit of everyone who uses Flintshire’s extensive public rights of way
network. The network provides important links between communities and hence plays a key role in
supporting the Council’s Improvement Sub-Priority of Transport Infrastructure and Services which
aims to improve access for employment, local services and facilities.

Andrew Farrow
Chief Officer (Planning & Environment)

Councillor Bernie Attridge
Deputy Leader of and Cabinet Member for Environment

j/) Alttr (/é!:

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 274 2



Contents

Foreword
1 | The Public Rights of Way Section

Public Path Orders

Definitive Map Modification Orders
Evidential DMMOs

Legal Event DMMOs

Other work of the section

Rights of Way Inspectors

2 | Performance Indicators

Indicators from random sample survey
ROWIP Performance Indicator

3| CAMS
4 | Schemes linking Flintshire Communities

Pegasus Crossing and Rights of Way Improvements
Public Footpath 64, Mostyn

5 | Sandycroft Cycle Way

6 | Cycle Way Counter Data

7 | Projects funded internally

8 | Projects funded by Natural Resources Wales

9 | Coastal Path

10 | Key Priorities

Appendix 1 | List of Temporary Closure Orders

Appendix 2 | Materials and Equipment used, Western Area
Appendix 3 | Materials and Equipment used, Eastern Area
Appendix 4 | Map of flood closures, Flint - Mostyn

Appendix 5 | Map of Public Footpath 16, Saltney

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 275



1 | The Public Rights of Way Section

Staff:- Steve Bartley, Nick Worrall, Natalie Davies, Stuart Jones, Suzanne Jones, Gayle Groves

The public rights of way section is responsible for maintaining the public rights of way network; the
review of the definitive map; processing orders affecting public rights of way; and for carrying out
enforcement. The workload is large and diverse, and some of the achievements are listed below.

Public Path Orders

The County Council was faced with another problem of a footpath obstructed by several houses,
this time in Halkyn, and an extinguishment order was the only viable option. After carrying out a
preliminary consultation the order was made on 3 September 2013 and subsequently confirmed

as unopposed on 15 October. It is pleasing to note that were no objections, because this is another
example of a long-term obstruction that had the potential to cause severe problems for any of

the affected property owners. Unfortunately, not all our orders are unopposed, but where there

are objections, the Rights of Way staff do their best to try to attempt to get them withdrawn. For
example in Hope, there have been objections to a diversion of a footpath in a former quarry. The
County Council is in negotiation with the objectors and is attempting to address their concerns, but
if their objections are not withdrawn the order can only be confirmed if it is referred to the Welsh
Government. On the edge of the quarry, meanwhile, a diversion order made by the County Council
was unopposed. The existing route crosses a large mound of earth, which is not easy to negotiate,
particularly for those who are less agile. The alternative follows a flat well-surfaced route around the
mound, thereby making it easily accessible for all (please see enclosed map) in keeping with the
County Council’'s commitment to ensuring that more of the network is available to those with mobility
problems. On 23 July a diversion order was made in respect of Public Footpath No. 5 Connah’s
Quay. The footpath had been obstructed by a barn following a DMMO to correct its alignment. The
order was confirmed on 3 September thereby opening a path that hitherto been unavailable.

James Dyson
05/06/2013

“Just a quick email to give our thanks and appreciation for the sterling service your lads
have given us once more by sorting out the wonky kissing gate at the junction of paths 28
and 31 see attached photo. Your team’s efforts are always well appreciated by the Buckley
Walkabout Walkers. Thanks once again. Jim Dyson”

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 276 4



358600

358500

330000 330100

PUBLIC FOOTPATH Me. 27 IN THE COMMUNITY OF HOPE
PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER 2013

Section of faotpath to be created i e B
Section of footpath to be extinguished B e—
Unaffected Paths: 0 seesessssss

Directorate of Environment . N
iie | Flintshire County Counci, Seale: 11250
County Hall, Mold, 085 Map 5J 3058 W B
Flintshire, CH7 BNF Plotted 1141172011 s
Ditector: b, Carl Londlsnd

ﬁx\lf Filint 2=
" Hinishire

Definitive Map Modification Orders

Evidential DMMOS

Following an application in December 2011 to add a footpath via stepping stones across the river
Alyn a DMMO was made in October 2103 and subsequently confirmed as unopposed in January
2014. Now that the footpath has been incorporated into the definitive map and statement its future is
secure and it forms an important link between two footpaths each side of the river.

During the course of the year, the team managed to correct a number of longstanding anomalies on
the definitive map and/ or the accompanying statement. A DMMO to alter the alignment of a footpath
in Ysceifiog Community, which was made on 5th November 2013, was confirmed without objection
on 7 January 2014. Meanwhile, on 12th November 2013 two DMMOs were made in the community

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 277



of Hawarden: one to correct the alignment of a footpath and the other to delete a footpath that had
been drafted in error. Both orders were subsequently confirmed without any objections.

Finally, a small section of footpath crossing the Wrexham to Bidston railway line near Penyffordd was
omitted from the definitive map when it was prepared in 1978. However, the footpath was recorded in
the statement and when the DMMO was made to remedy the situation in December 2013, there were
no objections and the order was subsequently confirmed.

Legal Event DMMOs

Progress is continuing in the former Alyn & Deeside District with only six community/town council
areas remaining to be done. Some of these contain a large number of legal events requiring
modification orders to be made and are being processed in manageable packages.

Other work of the section

Enforcement forms an integral part of the section’s work and there has been an increasing focus

on it in recent years, particularly in relation to offences associated with ploughing and cropping.

To date, these problems have been resolved by persistence, but without the need for formal
enforcement action. In August 2013, however, after the occupier had failed to comply with the
Council’'s requirement to remove a crop of barley from a footpath near County Hall, the Rights of Way
staff arranged for contractors to go in and remove it and restore the path to a maximum width of 1.8
metres. Hopefully, this approach should ensure that in future the occupier will not allow this situation
to develop and will remove the crop as soon as it starts to emerge. In March 2014 a landowner in
Sychdyn reinstated a ploughed footpath after the County Council threatened him with enforcement
proceedings. The County Council will remain vigilant and will adopt a firm stance in relation to this
problem, in the hope that all other occupiers will comply with their legal obligations on the cultivation of
land crossed by public rights of way.

All of the section’s work would not be possible without the continuing support of colleagues in the
legal department, in particular David Davies, Carol Higgins and Debbie Thomas, who provide
invaluable advice and assistance on a daily basis.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 278 6



Work of the Rights of Way Inspectors

Staff:- John Hill, John W Davies, Sam Charlton

The Rights of Way Inspectors, currently based in Halkyn, are responsible for the day-to-day
maintenance of the public rights of way network. They deal with all complaints of minor obstructions
such as barbed wire, electric fences and problems such as faulty stiles and gates. They are also
responsible for ensuring that signs and way marks are installed wherever a right of way leaves the
road and where else they may be needed.

As well as this day-to-day work the Inspectors carry out the annual surveys for the Best Value
Performance Indicators and they are heavily involved in identifying schemes for the work-programme
for CCW as part of its grant for the implementation of the ROWIP and also for our own works
programme. They identify suitable contractors, where the work requires the use of them, and will be
responsible for making sure that all the works are carried out in a safe manner and to the standards
required.

The strimming schedule is currently in its second year of a 3 year contract. The schedule is split into 2
areas and in total includes 205,000 sq metres of strimming per cut, there being 4 cuts per year. There
are over 400 individual sites on the strimming contract spread across the whole of the Rights of Way
Network and the Inspectors are responsible for monitoring the contract and ensuring that all sites

are cut to the required specifications. It also includes 30,000 square metres per cut of tractor grass
cutting.

As with the snow the previous year, the weather produced 2 spectacular occurrences which impacted
heavily on the inspectors’ work load, these being flooding and heavy gales. The flooding is discussed
further in chapter 9. The gales resulting in approximately 150 trees and branches that needed to be
removed to reopen paths and ensure the safety of the public.

As well as looking after the Rights of Way Network the staff continue to enhance their personal
development through training with all 3 staff having successfully completed level 2 of the City and
Guilds Award in Business for the Environment and land based sector.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 279 7



2 | Performance indicators 2012-2013 and 2013-2014

2013-2014 2012-2013 Differential
Km length of signs missing on metalled road 9.93 9.29 -0.64
% length of signs missing on metalled road 18.58 17.18 -1.4
No. of signs missing on metalled road 20 28 +8
% of signs missing on metalled road 20 37.8 +17.8
Km length of path obstructions 15.17 14.33 -0.84
% length of path obstructions 28.38 26.94 -1.44
No. of paths obstructed 20 20 0
% of paths obstructed 24.39 27.03 +2.64
Km length of paths where barriers are not in good 15.22 17.16 +1.94
repair
% length of paths where barriers are not in good repair 28.48 31.73 +3.25
No. of paths where barriers are not in good repair 20 25 +5
% of paths where barriers are not in good repair 24.39 33.78 +9.39
Km length of paths where waymarking is required 17.58 8.98 -8.60
% length of paths where waymarking is required 32.89 16.60 -16.29
No. of paths where waymarking is required 22 14 -8
% of paths where waymarking is required 26.83 18.92 -7.91

Commentary

The BVPI figures for 2013/14 reveal that 60.86% of the public rights of way network is easy to use
— a decrease of 3.01 percentage points from last year’s figure of 63.87%. It should be noted that
some Local Authorities have now discontinued producing this figure as the results are somewhat
unreliable because of the small sample of inspections used.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012age 280




Performance Indicators 2013-2014

Indicator

Result
2012 - 2013

Result
2013 - 2014

1. Number of complaints received and
resolved on an annual basis (by Members,
local groups and the public)

Received 394
Resolved 574

Received 394
Resolved 516

2. No. of outstanding Legal Event
Modification Orders by 2013

40

30

3. Percentage of future Legal Event
Modification Orders made within one
month of Legal Event (e.g. public path
order) coming into force

100%

100%

4. Number of outstanding applications for
Public Path Orders

7

5. Percentage of Network signposted
where paths leave a metalled road

83.27%

78.92%

6. Percentage of bridges that are in a
satisfactory condition within ten years of
the ROWIP’s publication

84.3%

85.7%

7. Length of public rights of way inspected
per annum. Retain and develop a rolling
programme of inspection (dependant upon
resources)

52.98Kms

53.45Kms

8. Length of new public bridleway and
restricted byway created per annum

3.3km

9. No. and length of new dedicated cycle
routes opened per annum

3Kms

2Kms

10. The percentage of total length of
Rights of Way which are easy to use by
members of the Public (CMT 001)

63.87%

60.86%

11. Respond to valid section 130A notices
(requiring the removal of obstructions) by

issuing forms 2 and 3 within one month of
receipt of Form 1

100%

100%

12. Percentage of planning applications
responded to within 21 days of their
receipt

100%

100%

13. Percentage of applications for
temporary closures (TROs) determined
within one month of their receipt

100%

100%

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 281




3 | CAMS (Countryside Access Management System)

We have recently made a number of improvements to the way in which problems and queries relating
to public rights of way can be reported. The software package that enables this is known as CAMS
(Countryside Access Management System), and uses interactive mapping and map search for easy
navigation.

Access to CAMS can be achieved by entering the Rights of Way section on the Authorities website.
On entering the system the first page a user will see is a public web map. This will allow the user to
explore the Rights of Way network by navigating around the map, to go to selected locations and
switch layers off and on. There are differing types of icons on the map which indicate the different
types of furniture such as stiles and kissing gates and when these are clicked on information about
the furniture will be displayed in speech bubbles. If photographs are available of the furniture
thumbnail photos will be displayed in the speech bubble and if clicked on will open a larger web-ready
version of the photograph.

If a user wants to report a fault they will need to have registered in CAMS and then be subsequently
logged in. To register, the user will be required to provide some basic personal data including an
email address for contact purposes. Once logged in they can access the web map where they will

be able to identify the location of the problem and enter details from drop-down lists. Once a fault has
been submitted, the user will be automatically sent a confirmation email. Checking on the progress of
an individual problem can be done via the reference number which will have been issued at the time
of reporting on the confirmation email, though we are currently looking at adding a feature which will,
if required, list all the reports that have been made by an individual user.

Reporting problems using this system will assist the Rights of Way Team and users of the network to
improve the network and build a picture of those areas in need of most attention.

Information provided will assist with the prioritising of programmes of work, targeting effective
enforcement and directing the work of the Footpath Inspectors and Rights of Way officers.

It is hoped that at the time of printing the web-based reporting function will be live.

James Dyson
02/09/2013

“We are very busy at the moment getting things ready for our 10th Anniversary of the Buckley
Walkabout, to be held this Thursday. We will have approximately 100 individuals turning up
to this event and hopefully it will be reported in the press. Please pass on our thanks to all
concerned for they are doing a sterling job. Thanks once again on behalf of all the Buckley
Walkabout gang. Cheers, Jim and Lyn Dyson”

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 282 10



4 | Linking Flintshire’s Communities

The Linking Flintshire’s Communities Project aims to enhance, develop and promote a series of
footpaths, cyclepaths and bridleways within rural Flintshire. It receives financial support from the
Rural Development Plan for Wales 2007-2013 which is funded by the Welsh Government and the
European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development. Other funding has been provided by the Regional
Transport Fund and Flintshire County Council.

Coastal Community Links
Scheme 1. Pegasus Crossing and Bridleway/Footway improvement at Gronant.

In May 2013 works began in Gronant to provide a signal-controlled bridleway over the A548 from
Public Right of Way No.48 (Sea Horse Ride) to link with permissive bridleways along the beach at
Talacre and also the National Cycle Network. Footways were also widened to provide a multi use
bridleway/cycleway/footway. These works were carried out as part of a safety scheme to improve
conditions for all road users, and reduce the risk of collisions by reducing the speed limit to 50 mph
and reconfiguration of the dual carriageway’s road markings. This scheme was completed in Autumn
2013.

Implementation of a safe crossing and link to Gronant Coast from the Sea Horse Ride offers
enormous tourism potential. It also offers the potential to boost the economy in the area by attracting
riders/ cyclists and walkers from as far as South Wales.

Scheme 2. Enhancement of Public Footpath No. 64 in Mostyn

Works to improve the path surface and rectify drainage problems were carried out in Autumn 2013.
This completion of this scheme has now provided safe pedestrian access from the Maes Pennant
Estate down to the all Wales Coastal Path on the Dee Coast. Information boards and signage have
also been provided along the route to the coast to encourage the local residents to visit the Dee

Estuary which is steeped
3 in natural heritage and is
an internationally important
coastline. The Dee Coast
is managed by a park
ranger who promotes the
diversification and the rich
heritage of the coast in this
B area.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 283 "



Pre scheme photographs

The footpath leading from Ffordd Ddyfrdwy runs through an open space, then
turns in an easterly direction. The surface was extremely mossy and the handrail
was unsafe, The path then enters a small copse and continues down a steep

incline where the path surface diminished to a muddy track and the handrail was
unstable.

Pre scheme photographs

The path became very steep and very muddy due to drainage issues. This
location was very hazardous.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 20R&§e 284

12



Pre scheme photographs

The path continues between a security fence to the left and chain link fence to the
right. The path surface at this location was tarmac but had a lot of moss growing
from its surface. The path did eventually become slightly drier as it entered open
scrub land.

Post Scheme Photographs

Resurfaced path with edging kerbs from ffordd Ddyfrdwy through the open space.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 285

13



Post Scheme Photographs

A new handrail has been installed in the copse area and a new footpath surface
with edging kerbs.

Post Scheme Photographs

The drainage issue has now been resolved and new concrete steps have been
installed.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 286

14



Post Scheme Photographs

A new footpath has been laid through the open scrubland to the junction with the
AS48.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 287

15




5 | Sandycroft Cycleway

The Queensferry to Sandycroft cycle path was a Welsh Gov ( Taith) funded scheme. The cycle path
comprises of a 1.5km of off road cycle provision . The cycle way provides a link between Queensferry
and Sandycroft Ind Pk. We are presently looking at the feasibility of phase 2 of the scheme which
would be a continuation of the path from Sandycroft linking into Airbus.

6 | Cycle Way Counter Data

1 - Deeside Industrial Park - Zone 4.

Located near the start of the Burton Point walking and cycling path this counter primarily indicates the
level of usage along this new path. The path provides a link between the The Wirral/Cheshire and the
Flintshire section of the Wales Coastal Path and Deeside Industrial Park. At the height of the holiday
period at the end of the summer school holidays over 10,000 cyclists passed this counter point
monthly and nearly 1500 walkers.

2 - Deeside Industrial Park - Zone 3 - 4.

This counter is situated adjacent to the railway line which passes under the A548 near the UPM
Papermill and leads to the starting point of the Burton point walk. This counter indicates slightly more
contacts than that at Zone 4 with over 11,000 cyclists and nearly 2,500 walkers.

3 - Deeside Industrial Park - Zone 2.

Situated on the link between National Cycle Route 5 and Parkway, it has a more consistant level of
count during early summer through to early winter which is indicative of its use mainly by workers
travelling to and from the employment centre of the Deeside Industrial Park.

4 - Blue Bridge Counter.

This counter is located on the Deeside Coastal Path, also National Cycle Route 5, between the Blue
Bridge and the A494 dual river bridge and has only been in position since November 2013. It attracts
a proportionally higher number of pedestrians to cyclists than previous counter sites with nearly 50%
walkers to cyclists and catches those travelling to and from Tata Steel.

5 - Dock Road Counters.

Found near the car park at the end of Dock Road, Connahs Quay this counter is the only one

that currently has a greater count for pedestrians than for cyclists with approximately a third more
pedestrians. This is probably indicative of its closeness to the conurbation of Deeside and its use as a

walk by local residents along the Dee embankment.

6 - Dragon Bridge (MOD) — Counters

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 288 16



Dock Road Counters

MCyclists | 4T0 | 3231 | 3893 | aT®M | 6062

Blue Bridge Counters

e R BT
BCyclists 5678 4621 528

Dragon Bridge Counters

10000 = "

8000 -
4000 1
- J
g 4= ' —

Moy
B Podestrians 1443
WCyclists | 5937

Located on
Green Lane
East near the
old railway
bridge over

the Sustrans
cycleway it

has the lowest
relative number
of pedestrians
which is
indicative of its
rural location.

It is situated on
adirect link to
the Deeside
Industrial Park
and Burton Point.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way [ 2012-1Page 289

17



Zone 2

el C— I

1548 ]

Apr  May | Jun ug | Sep Dctll"hv
DPedestians | 661 1767 E!E 1-EHIE Hz

i

1550 | 1520 | 1B14 |

IMCyclists 1009 | 4064 | 4ZTB 4913 | 4402 ma 3&14. | 3351 114712?2: 2762 | 3634 |

Zone 3-4

12000

g J]J}

CACIEIET ™
IPada;an 391 | 1918 2088 2328 | 2411 2436 | 1338 a7 55?

WCyciists | 1700 | 6401 | 8804 mamhugnz 11218| 6681 | 5464 3505 | 44:59 ;mh*m

et e ek

Zone 4 - Burton

12000

10000
000
G000
4000
2000

1]

.ﬁpr Mﬂ]r -JMH'Juhr Pui E-Ip Dl Nn'.-';[lu

ﬂPquﬂrEHn E'H'E E?I 'EE-! 1031 12&& Hi]'! aro ,3?1

Jan | Feb | Mar

" aE7 | 1004 | 1968

.{:-,nnjma 1MF ﬁ‘D-I:IH BsTa 10300 | ‘Ii:lﬁﬂﬁ_‘_ﬂ_.":fﬁ"_'__ﬁaﬁ-ﬁ { 5D¢_E_ 3_3__2_.’: #4132 4_2?? _E:_’I?E:

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012age 290

18



7 | Details of some projects carried out with internal funding

Footpath 22, Nannerch

The old wooden kissing gate on a popular local walk needed to be replaced as it had fallen into
disrepair. It was replaced with a modern stainless steel version and new fencing was erected either
side of it. The hand rail along the steps leading to the kissing gate was replaced and the steps were

given a general spruce-up.

Footpath 27, Llanasa

This footpath forms part of the coastal path and was severely damaged by the flooding in December
2013. Prior to accessing the location of the damage to investigate the extent of the problem it was
necessary for the inspector to undertake a health and safety induction course by BHP on whose land
the path is located. It was also necessary to produce a method statement detailing the problem and
how it would be resolved.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 291 19



Footpath 11, Northop Hall

There were 4 locations along the route of this popular path where the stiles needed to be replaced.
Discussions were held with the land owner with the offer of replacing the stiles with kissing gates,
however, the land owner preferred to replace the wooden stiles with modern stainless steel versions.
This path provides a route between Northop Hall and Kelsterton.

At the first location the stile was situated immediately adjacent to the edge of the adjoining
carriageway which could lead to someone stepping into the path of a vehicle on the road. The new
stile was set back away from the road and a new metal gate was also erected to improve general
access into the field.

At the next site which was on the opposite side of the road to the first, the stile had become
overgrown by the hedge and walkers had started to access the path by climbing over the field gate.
The hedge was cut back and the stile replaced with a metal one.

At the third site the stile and hand rail associated with the decking bridge over a ditch was dilapidated
and needed replacing. As well as renewing the stile and hand rail mesh was laid on the decking to
improve grip. Finally at the last location a stile in the hedge line was replaced with a metal version.

F.P 11 - Northop Hall.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012age 292 20



Footpath 39, Flint

Flooding of the river had seriously undermined the sand bag wall supporting a bridge at a remote
location on this path. The remoteness of the site meant that it was difficult to get the materials and
equipment needed for the remedial work close to the location and this meant most of what was used
had to be manhandled to site. The sand bags were removed and replaced with 8 gabion baskets
filled on site with 25 mm stone. The stream had to be diverted away from the site of the work so

that a trench could be dug into which the gabions were positioned and this required the bridge to be
temporarily removed. Whilst the work took place a structure made from hessian was strung across
the stream to trap as much silt as possible to limit any possible pollution.

Footpath 73, Leeswood (Dykes Farm)

There were problems created by water draining from adjacent land across the line of the footpath.
Two new manholes were constructed to intercept the flow of water and direct it to an existing
drainage system.

Footpath 51, Cilcain
This route is popular with both locals and tourists alike and is extremely well used by those completing

various projects under the Duke of Edinburgh Award scheme. Kissing gates were replaced at 2
locations.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 293 21



Footpath 55, Buckley

This footpath provides a well-used link to the old disused railway embankment and to nearby Watts
Dyke Way. The steps up the embankment had fallen into disrepair and were difficult to negotiate.
Before work could commence contact had to be made with the County Ecologist as the steps were
close to a live badger sett. As a result restrictions were placed on the work which allowed only hand
tools to be used to carry out the work. This obviously had a major impact on the job with regard to
the length of time to carry it out and with the physical effort required without the use of any form of

F.P 55 - Buckley

-

mechanization.

Other Work

As well as carrying out work at sites with specific localized problems the section carries out a variety
of rolling programmes of work to improve the condition of furniture on the network and general
accessibility. This year over 50 finger posts were replaced or repaired at locations throughout the
network and 1875 sq. metres of urban paths were slurry sealed which will assist the disabled user
and prolong the long term life of the paths. A further example of these ongoing programmes was the
continuing erection of directional signs which provide distance and location details with over 100 new
ones having been put up.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012age 294 22



Method Statement - BHP Billiton / Former Point of Ayr Colliery Site

Client: Flintshire County Council, County Hall, Mold, CH7 6NB.
Location: Former Point of Ayr Colliery Site, Wales Coast Path, Talacre.
Grid Ref: SJ 1206 8376 to SJ 1253 8395

ltem: Maintenance Works

Date: 02nd April 2013

Description of the Works

Undertake remedial works to repair the surface on Public Footpath 27 in the Community of Llanasa
by nominated Flintshire County Council approved contractor. To include surfacing works consisting
of a compacted layer of G.S.B. (granule sub base) to a depth of approx 200mm, with a final surface
layer of compacted limestone dust. To raise the level of several identified areas of depressions in the
existing stone surface.

Commencing at SJ 1206 8376 and running in a generally north easterly direction for a total distance
of approximately 646 metres to a point at SJ 1253 8395. This section of footpath is not within the
designated Dee Estuary protected site.

Main Purpose / Reason for the job

The Footpath forms part of the Wales Coast Path which is well used by both locals and visitors and
publicised through the Welsh Government, Natural Resources Wales and Flintshire County Council.

Due to depressions in the existing stone surface of the route several sections flood following heavy
rainfall, which then hold water resulting in restricted access for users.

The surface requires repair as a matter of urgency due to Health & Safety reasons and to ensure that
Flintshire County Council statutory obligations and policies with regard to Public Rights of Way are
met.

Without maintenance more major and intrusive works may be required.

Method

1. Obtain any permits / permission to carry out specified work affecting the above named site.
The nominated contractor will be required to report to the BHP Billiton security office at the
beginning and end of the working day.

3. Ensure that the site is secure and that the only people in the working area have been inducted
in the site procedures (including this method statement) and are wearing the correct PPE
(unless site specific) to include; safety footwear with steel toe caps, Hi- visibility jacket/
waistcoat and gloves.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 295 23



10.

11.

12.

13.

The nominated contractor will be notified of the legal requirements and specified conditions issued
by BHP Billiton required to carry out the above operations and will be provided with a copy of these
conditions accordingly.

The nominated contractor will be provided with contact details of the relevant Authorities to contact
in the event of any incident.

Access to the site will be along the road via the double gates adjacent to the roundabout, These
gates will be kept closed / secured once access has been obtained at the beginning of the working
day to prevent unauthorized assess. Unless otherwise instructed by BHP Billiton.

The work will be undertaken by qualified operatives using a J.C.B. 3 CX digger, 10 ton tipper lorry
and 110 roller.

Limestone product (G.S.B. / dust) will be transported to the working area using the 10 tonne tipper
lorry and will be deposited in the area required.

Working of the limestone will be undertaken using the J.C.B. 3CX digger and 110 roller to provide
the required level finish and depth.

All imported materials to be used on site are locally sourced quarried limestone, which once levelled
will be compacted and left to allow for the natural regeneration of the surface vegetation, any surplus
excavated materials will be removed from site.

A visual inspection of the work area will be undertaken for any potential disturbance to wildlife
habitat prior to work being undertaken.

The inspection of the work will be undertaken on a daily basis by Flintshire County Council to ensure
compliance with all necessary documentation

Commencement of works will only be undertaken once written confirmation from BHP Billiton has
been received.

Control Measures

Handling and use of all products will be done in accordance with the manufacturer’s guidelines and
safe working procedures.

All fuel and oil will be stored in an approved container in such a way to protect from accidental
damage, contamination or deterioration.

Spillages will be prevented by minimal amounts of fuel on site, refilling of machinery will be done

in a safe manner to prevent accidents and minimising damage or pollution to the natural and
surrounding environment.

In the unlikely event of an incident a spillage kit will be provided on site.

Number of vehicles on site to be limited.

In the event of any incident, work on site will cease immediately and the relevant Authorities will be
informed.

The disposal of any waste materials will be done in a safe manner to prevent accidents and
minimising damage or pollution to the natural and surrounding environment.

Environmental

The nominated contractor will be requested to ensure the specified works are carried out in accordance
with the legal requirements, site conditions and procedures (including this method statement) required to
carry out the above operations.

On completion of the work the area will be left in a clean and tidy condition, all debris, materials will
be removed and disposed of into skips or removal to a suitably licensed waste management facility in
accordance with Environmental good practices.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 296 24



8 | ROWIP projects carried out with funds from Natural Resources
Wales

Footpath 52a Flint

This route provides a popular walk for locals and provides links to Watts Dyke Way. A tree
had fallen onto a metal bridge over a local stream causing major damage to the structure.
The bridge had to be removed and transported to a specialist contractor for the repairs

to be carried out and to be repainted. Whilst the bridge was being repaired it provided

the opportunity to strengthen the support for the bridge as the embankment had been
undermined. This was achieved by the installation of stone-filled wire gabions. Other work
was also carried out on different parts of the path where several stiles were replaced.

Footpath 64, Coed Talon

This path provides access to a local nature reserve and an area of SSSI. A 6 metre board
walk was constructed and erected over a point of permanent standing water and two flights
of steps of over twenty steps each were constructed to and from the board walk. As the site is
within an SSSI permission was required from Natural Resources Wales to carry out the work
and a risk assessment had to be prepared.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 297 25



Method Statement - Coed Talon Marsh, S.S.S.I.

Client: Flintshire County Council, County Hall, Mold, CH7 6NB.
Location: Coed Talon Marsh, S.S.S.I.

Grid Ref: SJ 2720 5841 to SJ 2715 5841

ltem: Maintenance Works

Date: 5th February 2013.

Description of the Works

Undertake associated works to improve access on Public Footpath 64 in the Community of Leeswood
by nominated Flintshire County Council:

. Removal of existing stock fence from site, approx 45 mirs.

. Installation of a wooden boardwalk 35mitrs in length by 1.2mtrs in width, using approved
treated timber specified in line with BS 8417.

. Removal of a number of self seeded scrub trees to accommodate the construction of the
boardwalk and increase clearance height for walkers once the boardwalk is constructed.

. Remove existing wooden hanging post and replace with new, realign existing concrete post

and hang 12ft wooden gate.

Commencing at SJ 2720 5841 and running in a generally westerly direction for a total distance of
approximately 45 metres to a point at SJ 2715 5841.

Main Purpose / Reason for the job
The footpath is well used locally and has become unsafe due to the area being wet and boggy.

The surface requires repair as a matter of urgency due to Health & Safety reasons and to ensure that
Flintshire County Council statutory obligations and policies with regard to Public Rights of Way are
met.

Without maintenance more major and intrusive works may be required.

Method

14.  Obtain any permits / permission to carry out specified work affecting the above named site.

15.  The nominated contractor will be notified of the legal requirements and specified conditions
issued by the Countryside Council for Wales required to carry out the above operations and
will be provided with a copy of these conditions accordingly.

16.  The nominated contractor will be provided with contact details of the relevant Authorities to
contact in the event of any incident.

17.  Access to the site will be from the adopted highway adjacent The Old Chapel, Coed Talon
along the old dismantled railway using a 4x4 vehicle.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 298 26



18.

19.

20.
21.

22.
23.

24.

25.

Use wooden pointed uprights, knocked manually into the ground to attach a wooden frame
to enable the boardwalk to be constructed, allowing a 230cm gap underneath to allow for any
flow of water.

Materials used in the improvement works on Public Footpath 64, Leeswood will be of an all
wooden construction, so to be in keeping with the surrounding environment.

Existing stock fence to be removed from site and disposed of lawfully.

Any existing excavated soil from site that can be used to backfill the works, will be compacted
and left to allow for the natural regeneration of the surface vegetation.

The cut scrub trees will be cut into lengths and left to one side on site for the landowner.

A visual inspection of the work area will be undertaken for any potential disturbance to wildlife
habitat prior to work being undertaken.

The inspection of the work will be undertaken on a daily basis by Flintshire County Council to
ensure compliance with all necessary documentation

Commencement of works will only be undertaken once written confirmation from C.C.W. has
been received and are to be completed by 31st March 20183.

Control Measures

Handling and use of all products will be done in accordance with the manufacturer’s guidelines
and safe working procedures.

All materials stored on site will be stored in designated areas, in such a way to protect from
accidental damage, contamination or deterioration.

All fuel and oil will be stored in an approved container in such a way to protect from accidental
damage, contamination or deterioration.

Spillages will be prevented by minimal amounts of fuel on site. In the unlikely event of an
incident a spillage kit will be provided on site.

Refilling of hand held machinery will be done in a safe manner; any fuelling operations will be
undertaken away from water courses to prevent accidents and minimising damage or pollution
to the natural and sensitivity of the surrounding environment.

Number of vehicles on site to be limited.

In the event of any incident, work on site will cease immediately and the relevant Authorities
will be informed.

All reasonable care will be taken to minimise disturbance to the existing banks and to ensure
minimum obstruction to flows in the watercourses at all times,

Any waste materials will be taken from site frequently so as not to allow large quantities to
accumulate.

The disposal of any waste materials will be done in a safe manner to prevent accidents and
minimising damage or pollution to the natural and surrounding environment.

Environmental

The nominated contractor will be requested to provide a method statement to ensure the specified
works are carried out in accordance with the legal requirements and conditions required to carry out
the above operations.

On completion of the works the area will be left in a clean and tidy condition, all debris, materials will
be removed and disposed of lawfully into skips in accordance with Environmental good practices.

Site at present, removal of scrub trees to right of concrete post.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 299

27



Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 300




Footpath 29, Nercwys

A 6 metre wooden bridge was erected to replace one that had fallen into disrepair over a local stream.
A set of steps were also erected providing access to the bridge.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1B>age 301 29



9| Coastal Path

The coastline and coastal areas of Wales are extremely important to the people, communities,
economy and environment of Wales. Many of our towns and cities are located in coastal areas and
these are supported by a wide range of local and national infrastructure. A significant proportion of the
total national resource of agricultural land is located in areas at risk from the sea. Our coastal areas
are an important attraction to visitors from both within and outside of Wales and therefore provide

an important contribution to the national economy. 75% of our coastline is formally designated for its
environmental importance.

The storms which affected the Wales coastline in December 2013 and January
2014 caused widespread disruption and locally significant impacts, including
community evacuation and flooding to property and infrastructure.

In addition to the impacts on people, property and communities, the January storms in particular had
widespread impacts on:

* The coastal environment: Significant impacts, such as local erosion and loss of beach has been
identified around the coast.

* Infrastructure/utilities: Significant impacts upon Network Rail assets causing ongoing service
disruption, plus localised road closures and power cuts.

* The Wales Coastal Path: Damage at over 70 locations along the 870 mile route with repair costs
estimated at £340,000.

* Agricultural land: Around 360ha of agricultural land is reported to have been flooded or impacted,
the most serious reported impact being to over 200ha at Llanbedr.

* Cultural heritage: New palaeo-environmental and archaeological discoveries have been exposed,
such as ancient submerged forest and peat cuttings at numerous locations.

* Environmental change: Nationally and internationally important conservation sites and their features
have been affected, with change identified at 37 Sites of Special Scientific Interest and 10 Special
Areas of Conservation.

The damage and disruption to our coast and coastal communities has been significant and the impact
on those who have been affected is extremely distressing. The costs and challenge of restoring our
coastline and coastal communities are also significant.

Network Rail infrastructure beside the Dee Estuary was significantly affected during the December
2013 event, including six breaches along the Mostyn Sea Wall and damage to the Mostyn
Embankment, Lord Vivian’s Embankment and Holywell Embankment. The North Wales line from
Holyhead to Chester was temporarily closed as a consequence.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 302 30



(Information courtesy of National Resources Wales)
As a direct consequence of the flooding the following public footpaths were closed to members of the

public, both for safety reasons and to allow remedial works to take place. The current status of these
closures is detailed below and on the maps in appendices 4 & 5.

Public Footpath 69 in Mostyn (point A on the map)
The works are now complete and this footpath is open and available for use again.

Public Footpath No. 38 in Holywell (point B)

Contractors working on behalf of Network Rail are currently carrying out remedial work on this
breach and should be completed by the end of May 2014. Following completion of the work here the
contractors will then move onto working on the breaches on Bagillt 77.

Public Footpath No. 76 in Bagillt (point C)

This path is now open, works having been carried out by a contractor on behalf of the landowners
but there are two stretches of the footpath which have been filled which still require some minor
improvements to the surface. Users should currently take care using this route.

Public Footpath No. 77 in Bagillt (point D)

This path is still currently closed. Contractors working on behalf of Network Rail will be commencing
repair work on this footpath once the remedial works have been completed on Holywell 38.
Anticipated to start in May/June.

Public Footpath No. 16 in West Saltney (between Hawarden Railway Bridge and Blue
Bridge, Queensferry)

Several breaches of the embankment have been filled in but there is one large excavation still near to
Bridge Villas. The landowner is working with our Countryside Services Team to hopefully program the
repairs before the summer.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 303 31



Summary Damage Report
Flintshire Coastal Defences: Known locations of damage/breach 09/12/2013

Talacre Dune System

Ffynonnongroyw Sea Wall

The Marsh, Llanerch Y Mor

Greenfield Marsh 2

Panton Cop, Lord Vivian’s Embankment
Flintshire Embankment at Wepre.

I o

1.  Talacre Dune System

There has been significant damage and disruption to the sand dune system to the west of Talacre
with at least one breach to the outer dune system. Ownership and maintenance responsibilities are
being confirmed. FCC undertook a beach recharging exercise in conjunction with CCW in 2003.
Subsequently, in 2012, further work took place to build up low spots within the rear dune system.

No flooding of property reported.

Point of Ayr Qf?

o
’%&
o

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 304 32



2. Ffynnongroyw Sea Wall

Multiple breaches and collapses of sea wall. Network Rail currently undertaking emergency repair
works to re-open the Chester-Holyhead line. Damage to railway line. No flooding of property reported.

A

tyn Quay _ ~

3. The Marsh, Llanerch Y Mor

There is damage to the main (seaward) embankment along its 2.5km length. Overtopping appears to
have occurred with rock armour thrown inland. A 15m breach to ground level in the secondary (set
back) embankment has occurred approximately halfway along. Extensive flooding to agricultural land
but no reported floodlng to property.

» Star
indicates
approx
location of
breach.

- - en el
Fvo Haty Maes Glas y‘

R T ;

| VANEL [y / ,',""

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 305 33



» Breach on secondary embankment approx halfway between Greenfield Dock and Llanerch Y Mor

4. Greenfield Marsh 2

There are at least 3 known breaches to ground level of this embankment. Flooding to agricultural land
but no reported flooding to property.

usiness Park
Maes-Glas

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 306 34



» Main breach approx 15m

5. Panton Cop, Lord Vivian’s Embankment

There is significant damage and numerous breaches along the length of this embankment. Note:
Network Rail had only just completed repair works to the crest and rock armour facing on this
structure (2013).

P
F_e‘*

L

1

b,
AN A
AT . o R \.s.,
) ]jﬁ?AvI-Piitv I?‘Joaklnds? \
KR lo 155 %.
AN

e
i T Lo A P NE
- W77 el adly_ o — N 2

< IR TS
: ben&m FBrn Madyn \_.:‘ "‘_' ¥

[
I

~IRB

.‘ [rem : f)

NI
§VFRINT

sta  Flint Sands

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 307

35



Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012age 308

36



6. Coastal Embankments (& Coastal Path) between Wepre and Blue Bridge

WU VG RSO o~ S
| lq_,a/“?% : S Industrial INT gffime
" N A . . af NIy

il ’J; ] 3 g ¥

Estataf

oo

» View upstream (looking East) from near Hawarden Bridge. FCC owned embankment up
to the fence, private beyond.

There has been overtopping and/or breaches along this section as can be seen in the above photo.
The embankment and land is Flintshire owned in part and the rest is thought to be privately owned.

No flooding to people or property, however the coastal path runs behind this embankment and is
presently flooded. Pumping is required to drain area.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 309 37



10 | Key Priority Areas for 2014-2015

o Implementing the Rights of Way Improvement Plan in the face of reductions in funding.

. Removing the backlog of Legal Event Modification Orders (LEMOS)

. Continue with a robust approach to enforcement.

. Improving opportunities for equestrian and multi-user groups.

. Delivering the capital and revenue work programme.

. Making the rights of way network more accessible.

. Publicising the work of rights of way service.

. Managing the rights of way network more proactively

. Developing a policy for maintenance priorities.

. Timely publication of the Annual Report to highlight the achievements of the section.

. Managing the Strimming Schedule.

. Continue to support on-going development of the various Local Access Forum sub-groups

including volunteers.

. Identify easily accessible sites for circular walks with a view to adding to those already in
existence.

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 310

38



Appendix 1

Footpath number

Reason for closure

FP 2 Queensferry

Euticals

FP 26 Treuddyn

Landslip

FP 69 Mostyn

Engineering work on behalf of network rail

FP 34 Hawarden

Residential development

FP 16 Saltney

Flood damage — defence work

FP 80 Flint

Three castles trial event

FP 102 Mostyn

Three castles trial event

FP 33 Llanasa

Significant vegetation removal

FP 76 Bagillt Land breach due to high tide
FP 38 Holywell Land breach due to high tide
FP 56 Hope Removal of fallen tree

FP 21 Buckley

Residential development

FP 2 Llanasa

Landslip

FP 3/108 Penyffordd

Residential development

FP 9 Penymynydd

Residential development

FP 58 Treuddyn Landslip
FP 77 Bagillt Coastal flood defence works
FP 11 Mold 21 day closure of leete footpath to improve drainage and re-level path

FP 39 Hawarden

21 day closure — urgent excavation works

FP 79 Halkyn 21 day closure — fallen tree

FP10 Halkyn 21 day closure — fallen tree

FP 2 Buckley 21 day closure — drainage works

FP 67 Flint 21 day closure — culvert repairs

FP 4 Mold 3 and a half hour closure — firework display

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 311

39



Appendix 2

Public Rights of Way maintenance work carried out April 2013 — March 2014,
Western Area

277

95

3

29

12

290

162

25

13

16

98

68

12

Cams issues dealt with and resolved
Fallen trees and branches removed
Bridges repaired, including decking and handrails
Steps constructed in a steep embankment
Metres of handrail installed

25kg bags of concrete used

Tons of stone used

Metres of revetment work undertaken
Kissing gates installed

Stiles installed / replaced

Way markers erected

Signposts installed / replaced

Faded / damaged direction signs replaced on existing signposts

5 Gates installed / replaced

26

349

158

937

Rotten / unsafe wooden steps replaced on existing stiles
Lin metres of wooden rail used
Wooden posts used for way marking and stile construction

Lin metres of clearance work undertaken on public footpaths

1,555 Lin metres of clearance work undertaken on bridleways

196

Sqg metres of tarmac footpath slurry sealed

3,894 Sq metres of leaf fall removed from surfaced public rights of way

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | ZOPage 312

40



10 Metal gate hanging and receiving posts installed
13 Gabion baskets installed to prevent erosion

30 Various information signs erected, such as: Keep dogs on lead signs / Please
close the gate, etc

2,402 Lin Metres of Footpath, Bridleway and Byway track repaired and made safe

100 Direction signs identified and erected with destination, distance and
footpath number on sign

Additional works undertaken on Public Rights of Way have included the following:

. Proving salt heaps
. Removing large stone boulders placed on routes to obstruct or restrict access
J Removal of fly tipping and litter picking

. Drainage investigation

. Making safe potholes

. Undertaking various site inspections and meetings
. Attending to various cropping issues

. Enforcement action to remove obstructions

John Roberts
26/08/2013

“l walked this path today and I'm pleased to report that your prompt action has had the
desired effect. The path has been cleared and is now much easier to walk. It's not perfect,
and might still cause problems when the crop is wet, but it’s a big improvement and this will
be welcomed, especially by the Sychdyn villagers who use the path regularly. Hopefully
there will be no repeat next year, now that the individual concerned is aware that you will
take action if necessary.

Thanks again
John.”

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 313

41



Appendix 3

Public Rights of Way maintenance work carried out April 2013 — March 2014,

Eastern Area

239 Cams issues dealt with and resolved

70 Fallen trees and branches removed

1 Bridges repaired, including decking and handrails

25 Steps constructed in a steep embankment

25 Metres of handrail installed

71 25kg bags of concrete used

120 Tons of stone used

40 Metres of revetment work undertaken

2 Kissing gates installed

38 Stiles installed / replaced

150 Way markers erected

8 Signposts installed / replaced

20 Faded/damaged direction signs replaced on existing signposts

118 Rotten / unsafe wooden steps replaced on existing stiles

310 Lin metres of wooden rail used

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 20R2g§e 314

42



100 Wooden posts used for way marking and stile construction

1,500 Lin metres of clearance work undertaken

1,665 Sq metres of tarmac footpath slurry sealed

5 Metal gate hanging and receiving posts installed

30 Various information signs erected, such as: Keep dogs on lead signs / Please

close the gate, etc
2,775 Lin Metres of Footpath, Bridleway and Byway track repaired and made safe

11 Railway Sleepers installed
5 Crossing Points constructed
10 Dog Latches Installed
Additional works undertaken on Public Rights of Way have included the following:
. Proving salt heaps

. Removing large stone boulders placed on routes to obstruct or restrict access

. Removal of fly tipping and litter picking

. Drainage investigation

. Making safe potholes

. Undertaking various site inspections and meetings
. Attending to various cropping issues

. Enforcement action to remove obstructions

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 315

43



Appendix 4

Sa[EA S92IN0Say jeinjeN ‘L¥2610001 Aening soueupiQ g L0z 1YBI eseqejep pue jybukdon umoi @ ¥6155' 91e0g
MUWAD jounieN Y3a0jAD €102 42quwasq Z| :uo MYN Ag paonpold

_g&um

¥ ioopw ayy
"NONNAZ43H1L ,
. FI1AMATOH" p o »
{ SE|D-seey /1M b - unp T el
{_plelusaicy;

sanneuls)y pajsebbng
P3s0|D dOM
uadQ dOom

anysju 4 ul ebeweq wio)s

NG Uied 1s80Q S9[ENY NIWAD UPIONY JGAMIT

N %

44

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 20Page 316




Appendix 5

"0L0Z ‘JPUnoD AUnog anysiull4 ‘g8EEZ000) JOgUINN 20USar]

a WENZ TG AINOO X

i "sBuipa200.d |1ai0 10 uoynosseid o} pee| Aew pue JyBuAdon __m“_
Eé a \mv M| Npp689E 3 mM wmﬁvwhwmm umoig sabuuyul uoonpoidas pasuoyineun Jybuidos umol) ‘soQ o :__"_-

T 0059/1 3E9g Aisuone)s s Aissfepy JaH Jo 1s(j01u0 ay) O jjeyaq uo A2AING SOUBUPIQ JO Juij4 A A

N uoissiwiad ay} yym buiddew Aenung soueupi woy paonpoidal st dew siy | * SooND

< ued ssauisng Aemssaidx3
£ |

.

757 Y R : e
;..‘ﬁ £ \\ \ .
; GHPEN ALK N -
o Ee A

S ‘
{40 NOILYOOT

_ ~1o0oyag Aewyig
puejeog” PREiUAY

Emﬂv

=

6N H1yaLQO4 oand

S Yo Buipueq = /
It.ll ~ ~, o \W
wueq et / X
jueg puejess s L
- Y

45

Annual Report - Public Rights of Way | 2012-1Page 317




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 318



Agenda Item 18

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15™ JULY, 2014

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATIONS FROM _ THE _ LEISURE

FINANCE TASK & FINISH GROUP

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present to Cabinet the recommendations of the Lifelong Learning
Overview & Scrutiny Committee in relation to dual use leisure facilities
in Flintshire and sale of land at Ysgol Perth y Terfyn Infants and Ysgol
y Fron Junior School.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Leisure Finance Task & Finish Group was set up in October 2013
in order to review and address the current level of overspend within
the Leisure Service Budget.

2.02 The Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee had also
considered setting up a Task & Finish Group to review the Leisure
Service Budget. Therefore, the Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny
Committee, at its meeting on the 10 October, 2014, proposed that the
Chairman of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee be invited to sit on the Task & Finish Group and report
back the work of the Group when necessary.

2.03 The Membership of the Task & Finish Group is as follows:-

Clir David Mackie (Chairman)
Clir Marion Bateman

Clir Stella Jones

Clir Nancy Matthews

Clir Tim Newhouse

2.04 Meetings of the Task & Finish Group are also attended by the
following officers who provide specialist advice:-

e Lawrence Rawsthorne, Head of Culture & Leisure
e Mike Welch, Principal Leisure Services Officer

e Paul Jones, Business Improvement Manger

e Carl Jones, Accountant — Financial Services

Page 319



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

CONSIDERATIONS

During their second meeting, the Group discussed schools where dual
use leisure facilities were provided. Following consideration of
detailed information provided by officers to the Group, it was proposed
that officers initiate discussions with the schools to assess whether
they would consider assuming responsibility for community access of
the facilities in the future. This proposal was presented to the Lifelong
Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on the 15
May, 2014 where it was supported to be recommended to Cabinet.

During their last meeting held on the 19 May, 2014, the Group
considered the objectives as set out within their terms of reference,
and made the following comments:-

e To consider how best to address the current level of
overspend within the Leisure Service budget — The Group
commented that it was pleasing to note that the current Leisure
Service budget for 2014/15 had been set in line with realistic
customer receipts and had been increased to allow for a
balanced budget. This action by the Council's Administration
was seen to address the first of the Group’s terms of reference.

e To consider the opportunity available to encourage
external funding - The Group commented that the
maintenance of receipts from customers depended on facilities
being fit for purpose which depended on maintenance funds
being made available. The responsibility from securing other
external funding must rest with the Cabinet and Chief Officer
Team and be an on-going responsibility.

e To consider how best to prioritise spend within the Leisure
Services budget - The Group recommended that
consideration should be given by Cabinet that the capital
receipts received from the sale of land at Ysgol Perth y Terfyn
Infants and Ysgol y Fron Junior School be ring-fenced for
maintenance works for Leisure Centres in Flintshire.

During discussion around customer numbers, the Group commented
that to maintain and improve customer numbers, leisure facilities
across Flintshire must be well maintained but raised concerns around
the lack of budget for essential maintenance within the Council’s
Capital Programme. Previous investment has allowed Deeside
Leisure Centre and Flint Leisure Centre to be improved, but their
future on-going maintenance costs have not been funded. If a budget
for maintenance is not allocated eventually income from customers is
likely to diminish.

Page 320



3.04

3.05

3.06

4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

The Group were informed during the last meeting that the Council was
currently conducting a review of assets across Flintshire, where the
needs of Leisure Centre maintenance would be considered.
Following discussion with the Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy,
Public Protection and Leisure, the Group felt it would be inappropriate
to continue to review Leisure Services further as this time as this
could result in duplication of effort.

In closing the last meeting, the Group recognised the professionalism
of the officers who attended the meetings. The officers were able to
answer most of the questions asked from the data they had provided
and all requested information was presented to Members. Their initial
presentation was a succinct evaluation of the situation and the Group
wished to express their thanks for the support they had provided.

The proposal of the Group around the use of capital receipts received
from the sale of land at Ysgol Perth y Terfyn Infants and Ysgol y Fron
Junior School was presented to the Lifelong Learning Overview &
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on the 19 June, 2014 where it was
supported to be recommended to Cabinet.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet consider ring-fencing capital receipts received from the
sale of land at Ysgol Perth y Terfyn Infants and Ysgol y Fron Junior
School for maintenance works for Leisure Centres in Flintshire.

That officers be asked to initiate discussions with schools where dual
use leisure facilities were provided to assess whether they would
consider assuming responsibility for community access of the facilities
in the future.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

Page 321



9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 N/A

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.

Contact Officer: Ceri Owen

Telephone: 01352 703205

Email: ceri.owen@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 322



Agenda Item 19

FOR INFORMATION

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 15 JULY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01

2.00

2.01

3.00

3.01

4.00

4.01

6.00

6.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

To inform Members of action taken under delegated powers.

BACKGROUND

At the Executive Meeting held on 31% October, 2000 it was agreed that one of
the standard agenda items at each Executive should be a report on the
“Exercise of Delegated Powers”.

RECOMMENDATION

Members note the details of actions taken under the “Exercise of Delegated
Powers”.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 5.00 ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

As detailed in each report. 5.01 As detailed in each report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 7.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

As detailed in each report. 7.01 As detailed in each report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

As detailed in each report

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Not applicable

10.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

10.01 Not applicable

Page 323



11.00 APPENDICES

11.01 Summary of Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background documents:  See individual report.
Contact Officer: Detailed on the individual reports.

Page 324



APPENDIX 1

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS — DECISIONS TAKEN

e Restructure of Library and Arts Service

Copies of the Delegated Powers reports are on deposit in the Team Manager’s
Room, Committee Services

Page 325



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 326



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS

COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

JULY 2014 TO DECEMBER 2014

Council

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
July
Corporate 2 July 2014 Chief Executive's Annual Improvement Report
Resources Overview from Wales Audit Office
& Scrutiny Receive Annual Improvement
Tommittee Report from the Auditor
% General for Wales and note the
(D Council’s response
)
ngrporate 2 July 2014 Chief Executive's WAO Performance Audit
esources Overview Regulatory Programme 2014-
& Scrutiny 15
Committee To note the intended
programme for the 2014/15
Performance Audit work and
related fees
Corporate 2 July 2014 Chief Executive's Improvement Plan 2014/15
Resources Overview To consider the draft
& Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2014/15
Committee prior to endorsement by County

Xauuy epuspby



fd

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 2 July 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2013/14 (Month 12)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring
2013/14 report as at Month 12.
Corporate 2 July 2014 Workforce Information
Resources Overview Report
& Scrutiny To report workforce information
SCommittee to Members
(D
o)
%orporate 2 July 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources
esources Overview Forward Work Programme
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee
Social & Health | 3 July 2014 Social Services Year End Improvement Plan

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Monitoring Report (Social &
Health Care OSC)

To note and consider elements
of the 2013/14 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report relevant to the Social
and Health Care Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

3 July 2014

Social Services

Year End Service
Performance Report (Social
& Health Care OSC)

To note and consider the
2013/14 Year End Service
Performance Report produced
at the Head of
Service/Divisional level under
the adopted business model of
the Council.

fod

6¢sPhed

L

ocial & Health
are Overview &
crutiny Committee

3 July 2014

Social Services

Emergency duty Team Up-
date

To receive an update on the
joint Wrexham / Flintshire &
Denbighshire Emergency Duty
Team.

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

3 July 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Social & Health Care Forward
Work Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Ott °9bEd

7 July 2014

Community and
Enterprise

Housing Revenue Account
Subsidy (HRAS) system
Welsh Government issued a
consultation document on 15th
May 2014 identifying options to
end the HRAS subsidy system
by voluntary agreement. This
paper describes the content of
the document, implications of
the various options for
Flintshire and seeks support for
Flintshire’s response submitted
on 10th July 2014.

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

7 July 2014

Community and
Enterprise

Strategic Housing and
Regeneration Programme
(including Flint)

Seek approval for the process
of progressing Flint Town
Centre Regeneration.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

9 July 2014

Year End Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report

To note and consider elements
of the 2013/14 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report relevant to the
Environment Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

mmi
= o) ttee

Y @

nvironment
verview & Scrutiny
C
o8]
N

—

9 July 2014

Year End Service
Performance Report

To note and consider the
2013/14 Year End Service
Performance Report produced
at the Head of
Service/Divisional level under
the adopted business model of
the Council.

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

9 July 2014

Organisational Change

Energy Switching Scheme
Update

To provide an update to
Members of the Results of the
Welsh Government pilot
scheme




2014/15

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
for the Council Fund and the
Housing Revenue Account in
2014/15.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 15 July 2014 Chief Executive's "In Defence of Localism" - Strategic Leader of the
Elected Government in Council and
Wales and the Impact of Cabinet Member
Austerity" for Finance
To consider the WLGA
consultation and agree the
Council's response.
T@abinet 15 July 2014 People and Resources | Capital Programme 2013/14 Operational Leader of the
2 (Outturn) Council and
(D To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
N capital programme outturn for Finance
N information for 2012/13.
Cabinet 15 July 2014 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2013/14 (Outturn) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
Revenue Budget Monitoring for Finance
outturn information for 2013/14.
Cabinet 15 July 2014 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




Enterprise

Subsidy Reform

Draft consultation response to
Welsh Government Housing
Revenue Account Subsidy
Reform

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 15 July 2014 Finance Prudential Indicators - Actual | Operational Leader of the
2013/14 Council and
To present proposals for Cabinet Member
setting a range of prudential for Finance
indicators in accordance with
the Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities
(the Prudential Code).
_&ablnet 15 July 2014 ICT and Customer 3 County Regional Strategic Cabinet Member
) Services Procurement Project for Corporate
% To consider and agree the final Management
) business case for the 3 County
o8] .
N Procurement Project between
Lo Flintshire, Denbighshire and
Gwynedd County Councils.
Cabinet 15 July 2014 Community and Housing Revenue Account Strategic Cabinet Member

for Housing




Enterprise

Based Verification Policy
To seek Members' approval of
a policy to enable the
introduction of Risk Based
Verification for the
administration of Housing
Benefit

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 15 July 2014 Community and Enforcement Action for the Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Recovery of Council Tax and for Corporate
National Non Domestic Rates Management
To advise Members of reforms
to the Bailiff Regulations and
the impact of changes.
Cabinet 15 July 2014 Community and GARDEN SERVICE FOR Operational Cabinet Member
LS} Enterprise COUNCIL TENANTS for Housing
g This report makes
(D recommendations to change
) the charging approach for the
ﬁ garden service for Council
tenancies
Cabinet 15 July 2014 Community and Implementation of a Risk Operational Cabinet Member

for Corporate
Management




To seek Cabinet approval to
proceed to tender for a regional
independent professional
Advocacy Service for Children
and Young People known to
social services in North Wales.
This collaboration includes the
6 North Wales Authorities.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 15 July 2014 Social Services Annual Council Reporting Strategic Cabinet Member
Framework (ACRF) for Social
To present the final version of Services
the Social Services Annual
Performance Framework to
Cabinet for agreement.
Cabinet 15 July 2014 Social Services Flintshire Childcare Strategic Cabinet Member
Sufficiency Assessment 2014 for Social
- 2017 Services
;? To report the main findings of
% the most recent Childcare
o Sufficiency Assessment.
%abinet 15 July 2014 Social Services Regional Commissioning of | Strategic Cabinet Member
Children and Young People for Social
Advocacy Service Services




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 15 July 2014 Planninig and Public Rights of Way Annual | Operational Deputy Leader of
Environment Report the Council and
For the Cabinet to endorse a Cabinet Member
hierarchical approach to public for Environment
rights of way maintenance,
definitive map and public path
orders and handling
complaints.
\4
g‘)abinet 15 July 2014 Legal and Democratic | Recommendations from the | Operational Cabinet Member
(D Services Leisure Finance Task & for Waste
) Finish Group Strategy, Public
g To present to Cabinet the Protection and

recommendations of the
Lifelong Learning Overview &
Scrutiny Committee in relation
to dual use leisure facilities in
Flintshire and sale of land at
Ysgol Perth y Terfyn Infants
and Ysgol y Fron Junior
School.

Leisure




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

16 July 2014

People and Resources

Supplementary Financial
Information to Draft
Statement of Accounts
2013/14

To provide Members with
supplementary financial
information to accompany the
Draft Statement of Accounts
2013/14.

E\udit Committee

Lce 90

16 July 2014

People and Resources

Draft Statement of Accounts
2013/14

To present the Statement of
Accounts 2013/14 (subject to
audit) for Members' information
only at this stage.

Audit Committee

16 July 2014

People and Resources

Treasury Management
Annual Report 2013/14 and
2014/15 Quarter 1 Update
To present the Annual Report
on the Council's Treasury
Managemetn Policy, Strategy
and Practices 2013/14 and to
provide an update on Treasury
Management activity in
2014/15 to the end of May
2014.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

16 July 2014

Legal and Democratic
Services

Annual Governance
Statement

For the committee to consider
and approve the draft Annual
governance Statement (AGS)

All Report Types

Audit Committee

16 July 2014

Chief Executive's

Action Tracking

To inform the committee of the
actions resulting from points
raised at previous Audit
Committee meetings.

udit Committee

ggq obed

16 July 2014

Chief Executive's

Forward Work Programme
To consider the Forward Work
Programme for the Audit
Committee for the next year.

Lifelong Learning
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

24 July 2014

Eduction and Youth

Year End Service
Performance Report
(Lifelong Learning OSC)

To note and consider the
2013/14 Year End Service
Performance Report produced
at the Head of
Service/Divisional level under
the adopted business model of
the Council.




fod

of the 2013/14 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report relevant to the
Community, Profile &
Partnerships Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Lifelong Learning | 24 July 2014 Eduction and Youth Year End Improvement Plan
Overview & Scrutiny Monitoring Report (Lifelong
Committee Learning OSC)
To note and consider elements
of the 2013/14 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report relevant to the Lifelong
Learning Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.
Rifelong Learning | 24 July 2014 Eduction and Youth Inclusion Service Review
_DEDverview & Scrutiny To demonstrate to the
DS:ommittee Committee how the Inclusion
N Service review was being
o implemented in practice.
Community Profile & | 24 July 2014 Chief Executive's Year End Improvement Plan
Partnerships Monitoring Report (CP&P
Overview & Scrutiny OSC)
Committee To note and consider elements




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

fd

budget monitoring information
for the Council Fund and the
Housing Revenue Account in
2013/14

OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community Profile & | 24 July 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | C P & P Forward Work
Partnerships Programme
Overview & Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Community
Partnerships & Profile
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
T@orporate 30 July 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
fResources Overview 2013/14 (Outturn)
DX Scrutiny To provide Members with the
LEommittee Revenue Budget Monitoring
g Outturn information for
2013/14.
Corporate 30 July 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2014/15
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee most up to date revenue




2013/14 Year End Service
Performance Report produced
at the Head of
Service/Divisional level under
the adopted business model of
the Council.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 30 July 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources
Resources Overview Forward Work Programme
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Corporate 30 July 2014 Chief Executive's Year End Improvement Plan
Resources Overview Monitoring Report
Scrutiny (Corporate Resources OSC)
ﬁommittee To note and consider elements
% of the 2013/14 Year End
o Improvement Plan Monitoring
N Report relevant to the Housing
= Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Corporate 30 July 2014 Chief Executive's Year End Service
Resources Overview Performance Report
& Scrutiny (Corporate Resources OSC)
Committee To note and consider the




Care Overview &
perutiny Committee
Q)

Health Board
To receive an update /
presentation from Betsi

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
August
September
Social & Health | 4 September 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Betsi Cadwaladr University

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

% Cadwaladr University Health
0 Board

r

NBocial &  Health | 4 September 2014 Social Services Social Services Act update

To provide an update to
Members on the Social
Services Act

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

4 September 2014

Social Services

CSSIW Dementia Action Plan
To provide an update to
Members on the CSSIW
Dementia Action Plan

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

4 September 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Social & Health Care Forward
Work Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Community Profile &
Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

8 September 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Community Profile &
Partnerships Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Community
Profile & Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

fod

lintshire
Council
D

County

o8]
i~
o8]

9 September 2014

Legal and Democratic
Services

Annual Governance
Statement

For Council to approve the
Annual Governance Statement
(AGS)

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

10 September 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Housing Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Housing
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Corporate
Resources Overview
& Scrutiny
Committee

11 September 2014

Finance

Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 (Month 3)

To provide Members with the
Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 report as at month 3.




endorse the Business Plan as
recommended by the Theatre
Board of Governors.

A full copy of the Business Plan
is available in the Members
Library and each of the group
rooms.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 11 September 2014 | Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources
Resources Overview Forward Work Programme
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Cabinet 16 September 2014 | Chief Executive's Auditor General for Wales: Operational Cabinet Member
LS} Certificate of Compliance for for Corporate
2 the Audit of Flintshire Management
(D County Council’s 2014-15
¢0) Improvement Plan
E To note the compliance
certificate for the audit off the
2014-15 Improvement Plan
Cabinet 16 September 2014 | Chief Executive's Clwyd Theatr Cymru Operational Cabinet Member
Business Plan for Corporate
Members are requested to Management




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 16 September 2014 | People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2014/15 (Month 3) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
most up to date revenue for Finance
budget monitoring information
(Month 3) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
Account in 2014/15.
_&ablnet 16 September 2014 | People and Resources | Treasury Management Operational Leader of the
) Annual Report 2013/14 Council and
% To present to Members the Cabinet Member
o draft Annual Treasury for Finance
N Management Report for
<l 2013/14.
Cabinet 16 September 2014 | People and Resources | Workforce Information Operational Cabinet Member
Quarter 1 (April - June 2014) for Corporate
To provide members with an Management

update for the first quarter 2014
/15




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

9rvt 9bEd

16 September 2014

Community and
Enterprise

FLINT REGENERATION THE
NEXT STEPS, INCLUDING
PROPOSALS FOR TENDR
EXERCISE TO TAKE
FORWARD OTHER KEY
HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS
This report seeks Cabinet
approval for the next steps
required to progress the
regeneration of Flint Town
Centre, redevelopment of the
cleared sites of the
maisonettes, and proposas to
commence procurement of
Council Housing at a number of
sites across the Couinty.

Operational

Cabinet Member
for Housing

Cabinet

16 September 2014

Planninig and
Environment

Food Service Plan 2014-15
To obtain approval for the Food
Service Plan 2014-15.

Operational

Deputy Leader of
the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

afed

16 September 2014

Transport and
Streetscene

Removal of slippery road
signs erected prior to the
current policy for skid
resistance on the adopted
road network

To seek approval for the
removal of slippery road signs
erected prior to The Policy for
Skid Resistance on the
adopted Road Network that
was approved on the 19th
March 2013.

Strategic

Deputy Leader of
the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment

ﬁnvironment
~Dverview & Scrutiny
Committee

17 September 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Environment Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

d

24 September 2014

People and Resources

Statement of Accounts
2013/14

To present to Members of the
Audit Committee the Statement
of Accounts for 2013/14,
incorporating those changes
agreed with the Wales Audit
Office (WAO) during the course
of the audit.

(@)
DAudit Committee

ave

24 September 2014

People and Resources

Certification of Grant Claims
and Returns 2012/13

The purpose of the report is to
inform Members of the grant
claim certification for the year
ended 31st March 2013

Operational

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

Audit Committee

24 September 2014

Chief Executive's

Auditor General for Wales:
Certificate of Compliance for
the Audit of Flintshire
County Council’s 2014-15
Improvement Plan

To note the compliance
certificate for the audit off the
2014-15 Improvement Plan

Operational

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 24 September 2014 | People and Resources | Statement of Accounts
Council 2014/15
To seek Members' approval of
the final Statement of Accounts
for 2013/14.
Flintshire County | 24 September 2014 | People and Resources | Treasury Management
Council Annual Report 2013/14
To present to Members the
Annual Treasury Management
IS Report for 2013/14.

M ifelong Learning | 25 September 2014 | Eduction and Youth Update on School
igbverview & Scrutiny Modernisation
(@ ommittee To update Members on the
progress made with School
Modernisation
Lifelong Learning | 25 September 2014 | Overview and Scrutiny | Lifelong Learning Forward
Overview & Scrutiny Work Programme
Committee To consider the Forward Work

Programme of the Lifelong
Learning Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

October




fd

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 9 October 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2014/15 (Month 4)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 report as at month 4.
Corporate 9 October 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources
Resources Overview Forward Work Programme
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
nabommittee Programme of the Corporate
(D Resources Overview &
o Scrutiny Committee.

( 11

Bocial &  Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

9 October 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Social & Health Care Forward
Work Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

Community Profile &
Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

13 October 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Community Profile &
Partnerships Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the

Community Profile &
Partnerships Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




TGE ebed,
&
2

(Month 4)

To provide Members with the
Month 4 (end of July) capital
programme information for
2014/15.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 14 October 2014 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2014/15 (Month 4) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
most up to date revenue for Finance
budget monitoring information
(Month 4) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
Account in 2014/15.
14 October 2014 People and Resources | Capital Programme 2014/15 Operational Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

15 October 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Housing Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Housing
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny

22 October 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Environment Forward Work
Programme

fd

Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Lifelong Learning | 23 October 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Lifelong Learning Forward
@verview & Scrutiny Work Programme
SCommittee To consider the Forward Work
(D Programme of the Lifelong
o) Learning Overview & Scrutiny
ﬂ Committee.

November

Corporate 13 November 2014 | Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring

Resources Overview 2014/15 (Month 5)

& Scrutiny To provide Members with the

Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring

2014/15 report as at month 5.

Corporate 13 November 2014 | Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources

Resources Overview Forward Work Programme

& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work

Committee Programme of the Corporate

Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




2014/15 (Month 5)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 5) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
Account in 2014/15.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 13 November 2014 | Overview and Scrutiny | Social & Health Care Forward
Care Overview & Work Programme
Scrutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Community Profile & | 17 November 2014 | Overview and Scrutiny | Community Profile &
Partnerships Partnerships Forward Work
verview & Scrutiny Programme
ﬁommittee To consider the Forward Work
% Programme of the Community
o Profile & Partnerships
(o Overview & Scrutiny
Lo Committee.
Cabinet 18 November 2014 | People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

26 November 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Housing Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Housing
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

December
0

0)

fd

%nvironment
cPverview & Scrutiny

3 December 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Environment Forward Work
Programme

g)ommittee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Lifelong Learning | 4 December 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Lifelong Learning Forward
Overview & Scrutiny Work Programme
Committee To consider the Forward Work

Programme of the Lifelong
Learning Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

10 December 2014

People and Resources

Treasury Management Mid-
Year Report 2014/15 and
2014/15 Update

To provide an update on
matters relating to the Council's
Treasury Management Policy,
Strategy and Practices 2014/15
to the end of September 2014.

Scrutiny
ommittee

»
b

orporate

esources Overview
R
(D
(1

1

11 December 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Corporate Resources
Forward Work Programme
To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

Corporate
Resources Overview
& Scrutiny
Committee

11 December 2014

Finance

Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 (Month 6)

To provide Members with the
Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 report as at month 6.

Cabinet

16 December 2014

People and Resources

Treasury Management Mid-
Year Report 2014/15

To present to Members the
draft Treasury Management
Mid-Year Report for 2014/15
for recommendation to Council.

Operational

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 16 December 2014 | People and Resources | Council Fund Capital Operational Leader of the
Programme 2015/16 Council and
To propose the allocation of Cabinet Member
funding to the core capital for Finance
programme for 2015/16.
Cabinet 16 December 2014 | People and Resources | Capital Programme 2014/15 Operational Leader of the
(Month 6) Council and
LS} To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
2 Month 6 (end of September) for Finance
(D capital programme information
L0 for 2014/15.
%ablnet 16 December 2014 | People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the

2014/15 (Month 6)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 6) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
Account in 2014/15.

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

18 December 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Social & Health Care Forward
Work Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Community Profile &
Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

18 December 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Community Profile &
Partnerships Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Community
Profile & Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

/G¢ abed




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 358



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 "In Defence of Localism" - Elected Government in Wales and the Impact of Austerity"
	Enc. 1 for "In Defence of Localism" - Elected Government in Wales and the Impact of Austerity"

	5 Annual Council Reporting Framework (ACRF)
	Enc. 1 for Annual Council Reporting Framework (ACRF)

	6 Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014 - 2017
	Enc. 1 for Flintshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2014 - 2017

	7 Regional Commissioning of Children and Young People Advocacy Service
	8 Housing Revenue Account Subsidy Reform
	Enc. 1 for HRAS
	Response to Consultation Document V2 8.7.14.doc

	9 3 COUNTY REGIONAL PROCUREMENT PROJECT
	10 Capital Programme 2013/14 (Outturn)
	Enc. 1 for Capital Programme 2013/14 (Outturn)
	Enc. 2 for Capital Programme 2013/14 (Outturn)

	11 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Outturn)
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Outturn)

	12 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15
	13 Prudential Indicators - Actual 2013/14
	14 Enforcement Action for the Recovery of Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates
	15 GARDEN SERVICE FOR COUNCIL TENANTS
	16 Implementation of a Risk Based Verification Policy
	17 Public Rights of Way Annual Report
	PRoW_AnnualReport13-14_Draft

	18 Recommendations from the Leisure Finance Task & Finish Group
	19 EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
	FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

